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Dyddiad:  13 Medi 2016

AT:	Comisiynydd yr Heddlu a Throseddu, y Prif Gwnstabl ac Aelodau o’r Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio
                   (Mr G Evans, Mr A Kenwright, Mrs A Williams, Mr M MacDonald)

Copi at:	Mrs J Woods, Prif Swyddog Ariannol
Cymdeithas Prif Swyddogion yr Heddlu ac Uwch Swyddogion /Staff 
		Cynrychiolwyr o TIAA a Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru
		Y Wasg a Llyfrgelloedd

Annwyl Syr/Fadam,

Cynhelir cyfarfod o’r Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio ar ddydd Mawrth 20 Medi2016 am 10:00 yn Ystafell SCC002 o’r Ganolfan Gydlynu Strategol, Pencadlys yr Heddlu, Llangynnwr, Caerfyrddin er mwyn trafod y materion ar yr agenda sydd ynghlwm. Mae hawl gan aelodau o’r Wasg a’r Cyhoedd fynychu’r cyfarfod hwn.  
Noder y bydd sesiwn ar Lywodraethu’n cael ei gynnal ar ddiwedd y cyfarfod. 

Yr eiddoch yn gywir
[image: ]
Mrs Carys F Morgans
Pennaeth Staff

Amg.


A  G  E  N  D  A
1. Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb
2. Datgan buddiannau
3. Cadarnhau cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 21 Mehefin 2016 


4.	 Materion yn codi
Materion i’w trafod:
5.	Derbyn y Llythyr Sylwadau drafft ar gyfer 2015-16
	a)  Comisiynydd yr Heddlu a Throseddu 

	
	b)  Y Prif Gwnstabl 

	
6.	Derbyn ymateb rheolwyr i’r ymholiadau archwilio ar drefniadau ar gyfer atal a datrys twyll 

	

7.	Ystyried archwiliad Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru o Ddatganiadau Ariannol 2015-16

		
8.	Ystyried y Datganiad o Gyfrifon drafft ar gyfer 2015-16 


		
Y Flwyddyn Ariannol 2016/17
9.	Ystyried adroddiad cynnydd yr Archwilwyr Mewnol 

		
10.	Ystyried yr adroddiadau canlynol gan yr Archwilwyr Mewnol: 
	a)	Diogelwch TGCh – Sicrwydd Data
		
b) 	Rheoli oriau hyblyg AD 

	c)	 Trefniadau Gwrthdwyll Cyflogres
			
	ch)	 Y Swyddfa Gwasanaeth Cyhoeddus 	

	d)	 Rheoli Adnoddau Dyletswydd 
		
	dd)	 Ailhyfforddi Gyrwyr 
		
	e)	 Trefniadau Hawliadau Teithio a Threuliau Electronig
		
11.	Derbyn adroddiad ynghylch Rheoli’r Trysorlys

	
	Atodiadau A, B a C (Mae Atodiad A yn gyfyngedig)


	
12.	Derbyn diweddariad ynghylch gweithgarwch AHEM 

		
13.	Derbyn cofnodion cyfarfod y Grŵp Llywodraethu Corfforaethol a gynhaliwyd ar 6 Medi 2016. 

	
14.  Trafod hyfforddiant ar gyfer y Cyd-bwyllgor Archwilio 
15.  Unrhyw fusnes:
		- Dyddiadau cyfarfodydd 2016 
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Minutes of the Joint Audit Committee 


Tuesday 21st June 2016 @ 10:00 am 


                       Strategic Command Centre, Police Headquarters 


 


 


Present: Mr Gawain Evans (GE) Chair  )      


  Mrs Ann Williams (AW)   ) Members of the Joint Audit Committee 


  Mr Alasdair Kenwright (AMSK)  ) 


  Mr Malcolm MacDonald (MM)  ) 


 


In attendance:  


Dafydd Llywelyn – Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) 


Simon Prince – Chief Constable (CC) 


Adrian Williams – Director of Resources (DOR) 


Jayne Woods – Chief Finance Officer, OPCC (JW) 


Stephen Hughes – Chief Executive & Monitoring Officer North Wales OPCC 


John Herniman – Engagement Director, WAO (JH) 


Jason Garcia – Audit Manager, WAO (JG) 


Vicky Davies – Head of Audit, TIAA (VD) 


Karen Davies  - Force Accountant (KD) 


Sarah Welsby – Force Accountant (SW) 


Chief Inspector Jon Cummins -  (JC) agenda item 12 only 


Inspector Stuart Bell (SB) – agenda item 12 only 


Anne Williams – Support Officer, OPCC 


   


In the absence of Carys Morgans Chief of Staff, Mr Stephen Hughes Chief Executive at North 


Wales OPCC attended the meeting in the capacity of Monitoring Officer. 


  


A46  Apologies for absence  
  


Apologies for absence were received from Carys Morgans Chief of Staff and Edwin 
Harries Director of Finance. 


  


A47 Declarations of interest  
  


 There were no declarations of interest.  
  


A48 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 22nd March 2016 
  
It was noted that Adrian Williams Director of Resources was in attendance at the meeting and 


subject to this addition the minutes were agreed as an accurate record of the meeting. 
  


A49 Matters arising  
 
The CFO advised that the Corporate Governance Framework will be updated following the 


completion of ongoing work within the Force and OPCC. 
 


VD provided clarification in relation to the amendment required within the Internal Auditors’ 
Charter. 
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The CFO confirmed that the new CIPFA Solace Guidance was to be applied from the 2016/17 


financial year and that last year’s Annual Governance Statement was based on the old 
guidance.  


  
Confirmation was provided that all actions declared within the minutes had been completed. 
  


  
A50 Draft Statement of Accounts 2015/16 


  
The report provided Members of the Joint Audit Committee with a summary of the financial 
reserves position for 2015/16 and the key issues considered when compiling the 2015/16 


Statement of Accounts. 
 


SW highlighted that the closure of accounts was on track for completion by the 30th June 
2016. There had been a significant planned use of reserves during the financial year with a 
reduction in financial reserves from £44.9 million as at 1st April 2015 to £32.3 million on 31st 


March 2016. A breakdown of payments included an additional repayment of £7.0 million of 
outstanding debt resulting in an annual saving of £300k; PFI contract buy out of £3.6 million 


resulting in an annual saving of £500k; £3.3 million of reserves being utilised in support of 
the revenue and capital budget during the year.  The remaining reserves at year end of £32.3 
million are committed over the next four years to fund baseline revenue spending and capital 


allocations with a £4.5 million general reserve available for unforeseen events. 
  


KD highlighted the more significant accounting entries and issues encountered during the 
closure of accounts process 2015/16.  KD highlighted early processes and incremental 
changes put in place within the Force Finance team in preparation to meet earlier closure 


requirements.  A considerable amount of work remained to be undertaken and KD 
emphasised the degree of challenge faced in future years.  The staffing resource currently 


available to undertake the work over a shorter period of time will be reviewed over coming 
months. 
  


AMSK questioned whether WAO were happy with measures in place for accounting for joint 
arrangements and collaboration due to last year’s issue which had an impact on the 


completion of the statements.  The Force had received a report providing draft figures to 
work on, with final entries still to be considered. 


 
In relation to a national issue on the Contingent Liability Note MM questioned whether any 
discussions on acceptable wording had taken place between National Audit Office and Wales 


Audit Office.  JH provided an explanation and MM was content with the Welsh approach which 
was consistent with all Welsh Forces. 


  
Members noted the report.  


  


A51 To consider the Chief Finance Officer (PCC) and Director of Finance (CC) Annual 
Governance Statements for 2015/16  


  
Under the Accounts and Audit [Wales] Regulations there was a requirement for relevant 
bodies to conduct a review at least once a year of the effectiveness of the system of internal 


control and to include a statement reporting on the review within the Statement of Accounts.  
  


There was a requirement to produce two Annual Governance Statements reflecting the 
arrangements in place for the Commissioner and for the Chief Constable.  The 
Commissioner’s Annual Governance Statement was also included in the Group Accounts.    
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The draft Annual Governance Statements for the Chief Constable and Commissioner had been 


written in accordance with the CIPFA document Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government; Framework Addendum, with particular focus around the six core principals of 


good governance as identified in the revised ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government’.  
  


The DoR referred to the Chief Constable’s draft Annual Governance Statement and 
highlighted key themes within.  The Force had been working to refresh its vision, mission and 


values and fully embedded the “Code of Ethics”, supporting Police Staff Code of Conduct, 
induction training and the bad apple procedure. Various systems were in place for staff and 
public to raise concerns and provide confidence that matters are dealt with.  The DoR referred 


to work undertaken to develop Force Capacity and Capability in order to be effective in terms 
of governance.  At a strategic level the Force had committed to maximising the use of 


information technology in order to better engage with the public and release capacity 
amongst officers and staff.  This included the expansion of mobile data provision, electronic 
case file provision and digital interviewing; with plans to invest further sums in body worn 


video and in car telematics.  
  


In relation to engagement with local people and stakeholders to secure robust public 
accountability, the DoR highlighted key items already undertaken and referred to planned 
new developments for engagement.  


  
Reference was made to the work of the Corporate Governance Group and drew attention to 


both progress made in taking forward the governance framework during 2015/16 and to 
outstanding issues currently receiving attention.  
  


The DoR concluded that good progress had been made on implementing key governance 
issues such as implementing risk management and the governance of collaboration, with 


some outstanding work on business continuity yet to be completed.   Work had been initiated 
to review Corporate Governance Framework arrangements for the Force and PCC.  
 


The Chair invited questions on the content of the report. 
  


In 2015/16 the Force had experienced a significant level of HMIC inspection activity.  MM 
observed that the detail within the report did not emphasise this level in comparison to the 


amount undertaken in 2014/15. MM commented that many of the inspections listed related to 
2014/15 rather than 2015/16 and asked that this evidence be checked. 
  


In relation to progress and actions considered within the Corporate Governance Group, GE 
questioned the value of all members receiving feedback on developments highlighted within 


the Group.  Members agreed this to be an useful measure.  
  
In relation to the breach of information security, SH questioned whether this featured on the 


Force Risk Register?  The DoR confirmed its inclusion on the Risk Register together with some 
planned action around addressing wider IT issues.  


  
A discussion arose on the self-reference aspect of the breach and concern on the level of 
penalty imposed preventing an accessible system for people to disclose matters.  


  
The CFO referred to the Commissioner’s Annual Governance Statement and to a number of 


items already referred to by the DoR.  The format of the Commissioner’s Statement was 
slightly different but the documents covered each element of governance to ensure activities 
are carried out in a structured manner to demonstrate good governance.  The Review of 


Effectiveness had been carried out by the Corporate Governance Group and listed sources of 
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evidence in order to form a view.  The Findings and Actions summarised the most significant 


governance issues identified and addressed during the 2015/16 financial year.  These issues 
had been earlier referred to by the DoR.  Whilst the Force had embedded their risk registers 


the CFO highlighted that the Commissioner had outstanding work to firmly embed its 
registers into the organisation and was currently looking at developing risk appetites for each 
risk on the corporate register.  


  
Reference was made to Discretionary Payments paid to senior staff; a matter now 


closed.  New issues recognised during the year were highlighted and a number of issues 
previously identified had been successfully addressed and closed as detailed. The review 
concluded that the governance arrangements in place continued to be regarded as fit for 


purpose within the organisation in accordance with the governance framework.  
  


A discussion ensued around the negative press coverage in relation to the scale of relocation 
expenses.  GE questioned policies in place across Police Authorities and to the relative scale 
of negative press coverage.  JH referred to the previous policy and recommendations 


undertaken and made suggestions for improvement.  The CFO provided clarification on the 
necessity to make reference to this matter within the statement. 


  
Whilst the Statement made reference to the Police & Crime Plan there was no reference to 
other statutory responsibilities such as the issue of an Annual Report which identified 


progress within the year on the Commissioner’s priorities.  SH suggested that reference to 
this be added. 


 
The Force and OPCC Risk Registers was an item on the agenda at a later stage but Members 
felt it appropriate to bring forward a discussion on Risk at this stage to aid the dialogue on 


Annual Governance Statement for both the PCC and CC. 
 


Action: To check the dates of HMIC inspections. 
 
Action: That feedback on developments highlighted within the Corporate 


Governance Group be provided to all Members of the Joint Audit 
Committee.   


 
Decision: To change the order of agenda to accommodate a discussion on 


Risk Registers. 
 


  


A52 Force and OPCC Risk Registers and an update on risk management 
arrangements within Dyfed-Powys 


  
MM sought clarification on the exempt nature of this agenda item.  
  


The DoR drew attention to the critical sensitivity of operational items within the Force Risk 
Register.  


   
There had been a delay on the management of the Force Risk Register due to sickness.  All  
key findings from the recent HMIC Effectiveness and Efficiency reports had been added to the 


risk register under four key issues. The Corporate Risk Register was supported by the 
Dynamic Risk Register which included more detail and maintained on a day to day basis.  The 


DoR highlighted each area covering key issues across the Force and highlighted recent 
progress on Health and Safety issues.   
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MM expressed his concern on the Health & Safety aspects and the exempt nature of certain 


areas and was provided with re-assurance that the Force Risk Register was being progressed 
as a priority task in conjunction with the Dynamic Risk Register. 


  
Following an observation by GE the CC provided clarification on the identified risk of failure of 
service delivery.  


  
The CFO introduced the OPCC Corporate Risk Register and highlighted that more work was 


required to fully embed both the Corporate and Dynamic Risk Register.  The CFO pointed out 
that risks associated with the large estates programme currently being undertaken was 
managed by the Director of Estates in conjunction with the Force under a separate piece of 


work. 
  


The OPCC risk register formed similar themes as within the Force risk register.  The CFO 
made reference to the risk element in relation to the appointment of a new Police & Crime 
Commissioner & impending change in Chief Constable; funding and the impact of significant 


funding changes in the formula funding; the Commissioner’s statutory functions and ability to 
deliver the Police & Crime Plan.  


  
GE questioned arrangements in relation to the non-delivery of statutory duties delivered by 
volunteers. The CFO provided clarification on solutions to the recruitment of additional 


volunteers and to alternative methods.  The Volunteer Policy was currently being reviewed to 
allow added flexibility in their employment. 


  
Decision: Following examination of areas of risk within the Force and OPCC 


Risk Registers, Members were content with the Annual Governance 


Statement for both the PCC and CC. 
 


Decision: Members considered the draft 2015/16 Annual Governance           
Statements for the Commissioner and Chief Constable in 
conjunction with both the OPCC and Force Risk Registers.  


 
A53 To consider the Draft Annual Accounting Policies for 2015/16 


 
Members were presented with the Draft Accounting Policies for inclusion in the Group 


Statement of Accounts for 2015/16. 
 
The 2015/16 Statements of Accounts will be presented to Members in the September Audit 


Committee meeting and the Draft Accounting Policies had been prepared in advance of the 
September meeting to allow Members the opportunity to review and consider this element of 


the Statement of Accounts at an earlier stage.   
 
The CFO highlighted changes made to the draft accounting policies for 2015/16 and made 


reference to the termination of the PFI during the accounting period. 
 


GE questioned the necessity for Members to see the Accounting Policies in advance of the 
Statement of Accounts in the September meeting.  Suggestions were made and a discussion 
ensued on the most appropriate solution and way forward. 


 
Members concluded with an agreement to delay the June JAC meeting to avoid the creation of 


this document, subject to the delay having a detrimental effect on other areas of business. 
 
The CFO agreed subject to consideration being given to the preparation of the Annual 


Governance Statement where observations from the forum are fed into the accounts. 
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JH provided an opinion on the matter from a Wales Audit Office perspective. 
 


Action: That consideration to the Annual Accounting Policies be given 
when setting 2017 meeting dates. 


 


 Members considered the draft 2015/16 Accounting Policies. 
 


A54 To consider the 2015/16 Internal Auditors reports 


 


a) Summary Internal Audit Progress Report (SICA) 2015/16 


  


The summary provided Members with an update on the Controls Assurance framework 


following work undertaken to date against the Annual Plan for 2015/16.  The SICA was 


based on the internal audit work carried out by TIAA and management representations 


received during the period.  The report sets out details of audits carried out since the 


previous meeting of JAC.  The performance against targets for the reports finalised in 


2015/16 was as planned except for the review of Business Continuity which was 


deferred to 2016/17.  VD summarised the monitoring on targets and made reference to 


some untimely responses and one recommendation not accepted during the year which 


had previously been reported to the Committee.  Final progress against the 2015/16 


Annual Plan showed that all reviews were completed. 


 


MM stressed the importance for timely responses on targets.  The DoR referred to a 


small anomaly on the title of a report within being a Recruiting report rather than a 


Recruitment and Retention report. 


 


b)  Assurance Review of Recruitment arrangements 


 


The review considered the arrangements for the selection and appointment process of 


Police Officers and Police Staff and arrangements for any additions to basic salary that 


are provided to Police Officers and Police staff as part of their contract of employment.  


The review also considered the arrangements for making ongoing changes to individual 


salaries. 


 


Key findings concluded that adequate procedures are in place to ensure fairness and 


transparency.  The review awarded reasonable assurance with three Priority 2 


recommendations and six routine recommendations; all in relation to compliance with 


procedures and keeping information on file in line with procedures.  Management 


agreed all recommendations, all of which had been implemented. 


 


The review had proved useful for the Force and the DoR provided clarification on the 


transfer of recruitment responsibility from a centralised HR department to the Business 


Support Unit.   


 


c) Assurance Review of Leases Arrangements 
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The review considered the arrangements for property leases including the setting up, 


approval, authorisation, monitoring, renewal and safe keeping of leases.  The review 


awarded reasonable assurance with three Priority 2 and three operational 


recommendations. 


 


The audit initially commenced in September 2015 and was postponed by the Force.  


The work was later reconvened in February 2016, during which time improvements 


were evident in the arrangements for effective oversight of property leases.   


 


The Priority 2 recommendations related to limited procedures in place and the lack of 


information on the whereabouts of certain property leases. 


 


Management were content with the recommendations and the specified implementation 


dates. 


 


In response to a question, the CFO provided clarification on the Director of Estates’ 


remit on strategic and oversight of estate matters for the Commissioner and to the 


structure and responsibilities of day to day running of the Force estates falling under 


the Chief Constable.  The PCC emphasised the close collaborative working relationship 


between the DoE and the DoR at Estate Board level and his contentment on 


arrangements and relationships in place.  The PCC referred to ongoing work to achieve 


improved governance interfacing between the OPCC and the Force.   The CC 


emphasised the focus on working relationships as being key. 


 


d) Follow-up review 2015/16 


 


The follow up review established the management action taken in respect of the 


Priority 1 and 2 recommendations arising from the internal audit reviews during the 


year. 


 


There had been reasonable progress with the completion of the recommendations, with 


53% being implemented.  47% of the recommendations had been given revised target 


dates which will be monitored and reported within the interim follow up in September.  


VD highlighted one outstanding Priority 1 recommendation in relation to Business 


Continuity. 


 


AW expressed her concern at the slippage encountered on some original 


implementation set target dates.  The DoR provided Members with reassurance that 


significant progress had been made on Business Continuity planning. 


 


Members emphasised the necessity for closure on older reviews by the next meeting as 


some had been outstanding for a number of years.  Members appreciated that certain 


aspects of the reviews were fluid and ongoing but stressed the importance of an end 


date.  VD provided further explanation with regards to progress on the older reviews. 


 


Action:  TIAA to provide an update on completion of outstanding   


recommendations at the September Committee meeting. 







 


8 
 


 


e) Annual Report 2015/16 


 


The Annual Report by TIAA determined that sufficient internal audit work had been 


undertaken to allow for a reasonable conclusion as to the adequacy and effectiveness 


of the Dyfed-Powys Police’s risk management, control and governance processes.  TIAA 


determined that Dyfed-Powys had adequate and effective management, control and 


governance processes to manage the achievement of its objectives. 


 


VD summarised the content of the Annual Report.  AMSk questioned the requisite for 


the report to be a signed report and for some amendments within the content to be 


considered. 


 


Action:  That TIAA re-issue a revised signed Annual Report. 


 


A55  Summary Internal Controls Assurance Report (SICA) 2016/17 


 


The summary provided the Joint Audit Committee with an update on the progress of work as 


at 8th June 2016 and sets out progress against the Annual Plan for 2016-17.  VD provided 


clarification on some changes made to the planned quarters.  Good progress had been made 


with one report issued to a draft stage.  Progress on Business Continuity had already been 


discussed and VD highlighted some backtracking work made in relation to implementation 


dates and the prospect of final conclusion by the next meeting.  


 


A56  To receive the Minutes of the Corporate Governance Group meeting 8th June 


2016 


 


The DoR highlighted key areas within the minutes including reference to the development of a 


Collaboration Strategy for the Force. 


 


MM endorsed the attendance of a member of JAC at each meeting of the Corporate 


Governance Group. 


  


Decision:  The Committee noted the minutes of the Corporate Governance 


Group held on 8th June 2016. 


 


A57  To consider the annual report of the Joint Audit Committee 


 


This was the third annual report for the Dyfed-Powys Police and Crime Commissioner and 


Chief Constable’s Joint Audit Committee. The CFO thanked Helen Morgan-Howard for 


producing the draft Annual Report for 2015-16.  An outstanding section on the report was to 


agree the priorities for 2016/17.  On completion the report will be presented in a glossy 


format as in previous years.  A discussion on priorities for 2016/17 included HMIC reports; 


corporate governance arrangements, risk registers and regular review of overdue outstanding 


recommendations.  VD offered an opportunity to view the online portal for updates on 


recommendations which Members agreed to if appropriate.  A discussion ensued on the 


benefits of responsible individuals attending JAC meetings to provide updates on outstanding 
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Priority 1 recommendations.  A discussion also ensued around the pressure of resources 


during HMIC inspections and Members communicated their support and focus to Value for 


Money. 


  


Decision: Appropriate individuals to be invited to JAC meetings to provide   


update on any long outstanding Priority 1 recommendations. 


 


Action:   To include the priorities for 2016/17 as discussed. 


  


 


A58  Update on HMIC activity 


 


JC provided members with a brief update on the most recent HMIC inspection activity. 


 


HMIC had been in force for four days for the tranche of their annual PEEL inspection process.  


The inspection focussed on Force performance in Efficiency, Legitimacy and Leadership and  


JC summarised the main points of the inspection.  A Force action plan had been created on 


the 24 specific actions provided by HMIC and a hot debrief to the Chief Officer team had 


taken place.  The full report was expected for release in December and JC explained the 


proactive approach taken by the Force in drawing up the action plan soon after the inspection 


and in advance of the full report.  


 


The Force was again expected to undergo a heavy period of inspection with 19 inspections 


undertaken over the last 18 – 24 months.  The next PEEL inspection on Effectiveness was due 


in the Autumn with inspections of Custody, Crime Data Integrity, Domestic Abuse and Serious 


Organised Crime/Counter Terrorism to follow; the dates of which were not yet known.  


 


The CC pointed out that the work undertaken by the review team in preparing the Force for 


the inspections had been a significant investment. 


 


GE questioned whether the high volume of inspections was being experienced across all 


forces.  JC confirmed that it was not unique to Dyfed-Powys. 


 


JC referred to the role of Force Liaison Lead when questioned on whether the Force had 


continuity as part of preparations for HMIC inspections. 


 


JG confirmed that WAO met with the Force Liaison Lead to prevent any duplication work 


being undertaken. 


 


MM commented on the negative press reporting of HMIC reports and to the non-publicising of 


positive outcomes. 


 


The CC explained that some local work was required with the media once draft reports are 


produced. 


 


The Committee were complimentary of the amount of work undertaken to deal with the 


difficult situation around HMIC inspections. 
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A59 Any other business 


 


None 


 


The meeting closed at 11:45am 


 


Next meeting scheduled for 20th September 2016 






image3.emf
Llythyr Comisiynydd


Llythyr Comisiynydd


Our Ref: PCC/JAC 
 
Auditor General for Wales 


Wales Audit Office 


24 Cathedral Road 


Cardiff 


CF11 9LJ 


 
13 Medi 2016 


 
 


Representations regarding the 2015-16 financial statements 
 
This letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the Police 


and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys for the year ended 31 March 2016 for the 


purpose of expressing an opinion on their truth and fairness. 


We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made enquiries as we 


consider sufficient, we can make the following representations to you. 


 


Management representations 


 
Responsibilities 


We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements in 


accordance with legislative requirements and the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority 


Accounting; in particular the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance 


therewith.  


We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, maintenance and review 


of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and error. 


 


Information provided 


 


We have provided you with: 


 full access to: 


all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial 
statements such as books of account and supporting documentation, minutes of meetings 


and other matters; 


 


‒ additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the 


audit; and 


‒ unrestricted access to staff from whom you determined it necessary to obtain 


audit evidence. 







 the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 


materially misstated as a result of fraud; 


 our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects the 


Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys and involves: 


‒ management; 


‒ employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 


‒ others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 


 our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the financial 


statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators or others; 


 our knowledge of all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance 


with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the 


financial statements; and 


 the identity of all related parties and all the related party relationships and 


transactions of which we are aware. 


 
Financial statement representations 


 


All transactions, assets and liabilities have been recorded in the accounting records and are 


reflected in the financial statements. 


 


Significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, including those measured at 


fair value, are reasonable. 


Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 


disclosed. 


Disclosures included within the Police Officer and Police Staff Remuneration note and the 


Termination note have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed.  


All events occurring subsequent to the reporting date which require adjustment or 


disclosure have been adjusted for or disclosed. 


All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when 


preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to the auditor and accounted for 


and disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. 


The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. The 


effects of uncorrected misstatements identified during the audit are immaterial, both 


individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
  







Representations by the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys 


We acknowledge that the representations made by management, above, have been 


discussed with us. 


We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of true and fair financial statements 


in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. The financial statements 


were recommended for approval by the Joint Audit Committee on 20 September 2016. 


We confirm that we have taken all the steps that we ought to have taken in order to make 


ourselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that it has been 
communicated to you. We confirm that, as far as we are aware, there is no relevant audit 
information of which you are unaware. 


 
 


 
 


 


Signed by: 


 


Signed by: 


Chief Financial Officer to the PCC 


 


Police and Crime Commissioner for 


Dyfed Powys 


Date: Date: 


 


 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 







 






image4.emf
Llythyr Prif Gwnstabl


Llythyr Prif Gwnstabl


DRAFT DRAFT 


 Mr. Simon Prince O.St.J., QPM 


Prif Gwnstabl / Chief Constable  


 
Pencadlys Heddlu Dyfed-Powys, Blwch Post 99, Llangynnwr, Caerfyrddin, SA31 2PF. 
Dyfed-Powys Police Headquarters, PO Box 99, Llangunnor, Carmarthen, SA31 2PF.


  


• Ffôn/Tel : 01267 226308 
• Ffacs/Fax :  01267 226310 
• E-bost/E-mail : carol.price@dyfed-powys.pnn.police.uk 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


              
 


         20th September, 2016. 
 


Auditor General for Wales 
Wales Audit Office 
24 Cathedral Road 


Cardiff 
CF11 9LJ 


Representations regarding the 2015-16 financial statements 


This letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of 
the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys for the year ended 31 March 2016 for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on their truth and fairness. 


We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made enquiries 
as we consider sufficient, we can make the following representations to you. 


Management representations 


Responsibilities 


We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the financial 
statements in accordance with legislative requirements and the CIPFA Code of 


Practice on Local Authority Accounting; in particular the financial statements 
give a true and fair view in accordance therewith.  
We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, maintenance 


and review of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and error. 


Information provided 


We have provided you with: 


 full access to: 


‒ all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the 


preparation of the financial statements such as books of account and 


supporting documentation, minutes of meetings and other matters;


Eich cyf/Your ref : 
 


Ein cyf/Our ref :   
Gofynnwch am/Please ask for : 
 


Prif Gwnstabl • Mr Simon Prince •  Chief Constable 


 Y Wobr Brydeinig am 
Wasanaeth o Safon 
 


The National Awar d 
For Quality of Service 


 


Mae Heddlu Dyfed-Powys yn croesawu 
Gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg neu’r Saesneg. 


 
Dyfed-Powys Police welcomes 


Correspondance in either Welsh or English. 


Buddsoddwyr 
Mewn Pobl 


 
Investors in 


People 







 


‒ additional information that you have requested from us for the 


purpose of the audit; and 


‒ unrestricted access to staff from whom you determined it 


necessary to obtain audit evidence. 


 the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements 


may be materially misstated as a result of fraud; 


 our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and 


that affects the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys and involves: 


‒ management; 


‒ employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 


‒ others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial 


statements. 


 our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting 


the financial statements communicated by employees, former 


employees, regulators or others; 


 our knowledge of all known instances of non-compliance or suspected 


non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be 


considered when preparing the financial statements; and 


 the identity of all related parties and all the related party relationships 


and transactions of which we are aware. 


Financial statement representations 


All transactions, assets and liabilities have been recorded in the accounting 


records and are reflected in the financial statements. 
Significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, including those 


measured at fair value, are reasonable. 
Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately 
accounted for and disclosed. 


Disclosures included within the Police Officer and Police Staff Remuneration 
note and the Termination note have been appropriately accounted for and 


disclosed.  
All events occurring subsequent to the reporting date which require 
adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted for or disclosed. 


All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be 
considered when preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to 


the auditor and accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the applicable 
financial reporting framework. 
The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including 


omissions. The effects of uncorrected misstatements identified during the 
audit are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial 


statements taken as a whole. 







 


 


Representations by the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


We acknowledge that the representations made by management, above, 


have been discussed with us. 
We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of true and fair 
financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting 


framework. The financial statements were recommended for approval by the 
Joint Audit Committee on 20 September 2016. 


We confirm that we have taken all the steps that we ought to have taken in 
order to make ourselves aware of any relevant audit information and to 
establish that it has been communicated to you. We confirm that, as far as 


we are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which you are 
unaware. 


 
 
 


 
Signed by: Signed by: 


Director of Finance – Chief Constable Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 
Date: Date: 
 






image5.emf
Atal a datrys twyll


Atal a datrys twyll


 


Mr Edwin Harries and Mrs Jayne Woods 


Director of Finance and Chief Finance Officer, Office for the Police and 
Crime Commissioner 


Dyfed Powys Police 


Police Headquarters,  


PO BOX 99 


Llangunnor,  


Carmarthen  


SA31 2PF 


 


Dear Ed and Jayne 


Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys Police 2015-16 


Audit enquiries to those charged with governance and management 


 


As you will be aware I am required to conduct my financial audit in accordance with the 
requirements set out in International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).  As part of the requirements 
of the ISAs I am writing to you to formally seek your documented consideration and 
understanding on a number of governance areas that impact on my audit of your financial 
statements. These considerations are relevant to both management and ‘those charged with 
governance’ (the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable). 
I have set out below the areas of governance on which I am seeking your views. 
 
1. Management processes in relation to: 


 


 undertaking an assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 
materially misstated due to fraud; 


 identifying and responding to risks of fraud in the organisation; 


 communication to employees of views on business practice and ethical behaviour; 
and  


 communication to those charged with governance of the processes for identifying 
and responding to fraud. 


Reference  


Date 5
th
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2. Management’s awareness of any actual or alleged instances of fraud. 


 
3. How management gain assurance that all relevant laws and regulations have been 


complied with. 
 
4. Whether there is any potential litigation or claims that would affect the financial statements. 


 
5. Management processes to identify, authorise, approve, account for and disclose related 


party transactions and relationships. 
 


 
The information you provide will inform our understanding of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and Chief Constable’s arrangements and business processes and support our 
work in providing an audit opinion on their 2014-15 financial statements. 
 
I would be grateful if you could complete the attached table in Appendix 1, which should be 
formally considered and communicated to us on behalf of both management and those charged 
with governance by 31st August 2016. In the meantime, if you have queries, please contact me 
on 07854 022649. 


Yours sincerely 


 


 


Jason Garcia 


Audit Manager 







 


Appendix A 


 
International Standard for Auditing (UK and Ireland) 240 – The auditor’s responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit 
of financial statements  
 
Background 


 
Under the ISA, the primary responsibility for preventing and detecting fraud rests with both management and ‘those charged 
with governance’, being the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable. This includes fraud that could impact on 
the accuracy of the annual accounts. The ISA requires us, as external auditors, to obtain an understanding of how the Police 
and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable exercise oversight of management’s processes for identifying and responding 
to the risks of fraud and the internal controls established to mitigate them. 
 
What is ‘fraud’ in the context of the ISA? 
 
The ISA views fraud as either: 


 the intentional misappropriation of assets (cash, property, etc); or 


 the intentional manipulation or misstatement of the financial statements. 
 
What are we required to do? 


 
We have to obtain evidence of how management and those charged with governance are discharging their responsibilities if 
we are to properly discharge our responsibilities under ISA240. We are therefore making requests from both management 
and the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable: 
 


Enquiries of management 


Question Response 


1) What is management’s assessment of the risk that the financial 
statements may be materially misstated due to fraud and what are 
the principle reasons? 


Management’s assessment of the risk of 


material misstatement of the Financial 


Statements due to Fraud would be low. The 







 


   


 


principle reasons are: 


 Corporate Governance Framework 


controls 


 Chief Officer Group  


 Policing Board 


 Comprehensive staff vetting arrangements 


 High materiality limits 


 Computerised Purchase ordering 


 Regular budget monitoring to COG and 


locally 


 Joint Internal Audit - Targeted Audit 


(Arrangements for Counter Fraud around 


payroll arrangements and Treasury 


Management) 


 Transparency – publication of expenditure 


over £5K 


 HMIC work on integrity in policing 


 Independent professional procurement 


support 


 Separation of duties / input / authorising 


 Professional Standards / Integrity work 


However recognise added risk from: 


 Staff Turnover in key roles e.g. people 


leaving / new processes  


 Greater discretion / freedoms to make 


local decisions 


 Greater reliance on IT 


 Vulnerability of organisation to external 


fraud activity by ICT means 


2) How can management assure the Police and Crime Commissioner  Business Interest Processes 







 


   


 


and Chief Constable that it has not been inappropriately influenced 
by external pressures? 


 Integrity Unit Proactive Work 


 Whistle blowing arrangements / “Safecall” 


 Gifts and Hospitality Register 


3) Are management aware of any organisational pressure to meet 
revenue and capital budgets or other financial constraints? 


Yes – there were dual pressures both to make 


significant savings e.g. during “Public First” / 


“Spending Wisely” and other initiatives – but 


also to minimise contributions to reserves and to 


spend capital and revenue budgets 


Equally we recognise the scope for operational 


performance related pressures around reporting 


/ investigations and outcomes. 


 


4) What processes are employed to identify and respond to the risks 
of fraud more generally and specific risks of misstatement in the 
financial statements? 


As above 


5) How has management communicated expectations of ethical 
governance and standards of conduct and behaviour to all relevant 
parties, and when? 


Some considerable work has been undertaken 


on integrity and ethics in policing over the year 


as evidenced in the Annual Governance 


documents. The College of Policing guidance is 


being rolled out to officers and the importance of 


staff “doing the right thing” for victims and 


customers has been a key and consistent 


theme. Confidential reporting arrangements and 


an Ethics Committee have been established and 


the reults of misconduct cases are published. 


 


6) What arrangements are in place to report about fraud to those 
charged with governance? 


 Professional Standards processes 


 New Triage service with OPCC 


 Monthly COG Reporting / Policing Board 


operational updates 







 


   


 


 “Safecall” / Whistle blowing and “Bad 


Apple”  arrangements 


 Ethics Committee 


Enquiries of the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable 


1) How does the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief 
Constable, exercise oversight of management's processes for 
identifying and responding to the risks of fraud within the Force 
and the internal control that management has established to 
mitigate those risks? 


 Through regular reporting in COG / 


Policing Board 


 Corporate Governance Group 


 Professional Standards Updates / COG 


 Integrity Department 


 Internal Audit Planning processes 


 Joint Audit Committee 


2) Has the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable 
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud since 1 April 
2014? 


We are dealing with some cases where staff 


members are claiming for hours they haven’t 


worked. Technically this may be counted as a 


fraud 


3) Has the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable any 
suspicion that fraud may be occurring within the organisation? No. 


4) Are the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable 
satisfied that internal controls, including segregation of duties, 
exist and work effectively? If ‘yes’, please provide details. If ‘no’ 
what are the risk areas? 


Yes – Comprehensive Corporate Governance 


Framework and Internal Audit assurances.  


Corporate Governance Group assurances and 


quarterly Review of Governance arrangements 


5) How do you encourage staff to report their concerns about fraud 
and what concerns about fraud are staff expected to report? 


Focus on integrity and ethics with all staff and 


officers. “Safecall “ and “Bad Apple” reporting 


arrangements 


6) From a fraud and corruption perspective, what are considered by 
the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable to be 
high risk posts within the organisation and how are the risks 
relating to these posts identified, assessed and managed? 


Business Interests / Procurement / Budget 


Responsibility / Chief Officers / Press / Media / 


Treasury Management / Finance / payroll / 


income / officers seizing assets / financial 







 


   


 


investigators. 


 


Integrity Unit work / targeted audit / Corporate 


Governance Framework. 


7) Are the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable 
aware of any related party relationships or transactions that could 
give rise to instances of fraud and how does they mitigate the risks 
associated with fraud related to related party relationships and 
transactions? 


No. There was instance which was referred to 


the IPCC for investigation which WAO are aware 


of however this concluded that there was no 


case to answer in relation to wrongdoing. 


8) Are the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable 
aware of any entries made in the accounting records of the 
organisation that it believes or suspects are false or intentionally 
misleading?· 


No. 


9) Are the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable 
aware of any organisational, or management pressure to meet 
revenue and capital budgets or other financial constraints? 


Yes – there were dual pressures both to make 


significant savings e.g. during “Public First” / 


“Spending Wisely” and other initiatives – but 


also to minimise contributions to reserves and to 


spend capital and revenue budgets 


Equally we recognise the scope for operational 


performance related pressures around reporting 


/ investigations and outcomes. 


 







 


   


 


International Standard for Auditing (UK and Ireland) 250 – Consideration of laws and regulations in an audit of 


financial statements  


Background 


 
Under the ISA, in the UK and Ireland, the primary responsibility for ensuring that the entity's operations are conducted in 
accordance with laws and regulations and the responsibility for the prevention and detection of non compliance rests with 
both management and ‘those charged with governance’, being the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable. 
The ISA requires us, as external auditors, to obtain an understanding of how they gain assurance that all relevant laws and 
regulations have been complied with. 
 
What are we required to do? 
 
We have to obtain evidence of how management and those charged with governance are discharging their responsibilities, if 
we are to properly discharge our responsibilities under ISA 250. We are therefore making requests from both management 
and the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable. 
 


Enquiries of management 


 


Question Response 


1) How have you gained assurance that all relevant laws 
and regulations have been complied with? 


 Monitoring Officer Role  


 Director of Legal and Compliance role 


 Legal Advice when required 


 Staff Training 


 CFO role for PCC and CC re unlawful expenditure 


 Through Policing Board / COG 


2) Are there any potential litigations or claims that would 
affect the financial statements? 


Litigation claims are compiled by the Director of Legal and 
Compliance on behalf of the Force and by the Monitoring 
Officer in the PCC 
 


 A list of all litigation claims received is maintained and 







 


   


 


an estimate of liability is included in the accounts as a 
provision / or reserve. 


The following legal issues / areas are included in the 
accounts: 


 Milne Vs GAD - historic commutation Factors 


 Bear Scotland – holiday pay claim 


 Deduction of ESA from injury benefits 


 Assessment of litigation claims 


Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable response 


1) How do the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief 
Constable, exercise oversight of management's 
processes to ensure that all relevant laws and 
regulations have been complied with?  


 Through COG and the Policing Board 


 Monitoring Officer Role (PCC) 


 Director of Legal and Compliance Role (CC) 


 CFO role for PCC and CC 


2) Are the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief 
Constable aware of any non-compliance with relevant 
laws and regulations? 


No. 


3) If there have been instances of non-compliance what are 
they, and what oversight has the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and Chief Constable Board had to ensure 
that action taken by management to address and gaps in 
control? 


N/A 


 
International Standard for Auditing (UK and Ireland) 550 – Related parties  
 
Background 
 
The nature of related party relationships and transactions may, in some circumstances, give rise to higher risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements than transactions with unrelated parties. For example: 
 


 Related parties may operate through an extensive and complex range of relationships and structures, with a 
corresponding increase in the complexity of related party transactions. 


 Information systems may be ineffective at identifying or summarising transactions and outstanding balances between 
an entity and its related parties. 







 


   


 


 Related party transactions may not be conducted under normal market terms and conditions; for example, some 
related party transactions may be conducted with no exchange of consideration. 


 
Because related parties are not independent of each other, many financial reporting frameworks establish specific 
accounting and disclosure requirements for related party relationships, transactions and balances to enable users of the 
financial statements to understand their nature and actual or potential effects on the financial statements.  An understanding 
of the entity's related party relationships and transactions is relevant to the auditor's evaluation of whether one or more fraud 
risk factors are present as required by ISA (UK and Ireland) 240, because fraud may be more easily committed through 
related parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
What are we required to do? 
 
Where the applicable financial reporting framework establishes requirements for related parties, the auditor has a 
responsibility to perform audit procedures to identify, assess and respond to the risks of material misstatement arising from 
the entity's failure to appropriately account for or disclose related party relationships, transactions or balances in accordance 
with the requirements of the framework. We are therefore making requests from both management and the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and Chief Constable: 
 


Enquiries of management 


 


Question Response 


1) What controls are in place to identify, authorise, approve, Individual returns by officers identifying any related party 







 


   


 


account for and disclose related party transactions and 
relationships? 


 


transactions annually. An instance has been reported to the 
IPCC around incomplete disclosure however the 
investigation has concluded that there was no case to 
answer 


2) Confirm that you have: 


 disclosed to the auditor the identity of the entity's 
related parties and all the related party relationships 
and transactions of which you are aware; and 


 appropriately accounted for and disclosed such 
relationships and transactions in accordance with the 
requirements of the framework. 


 


Confirmed – these are stated in the Financial Statements 
This includes a note on the above instance. 


Enquiries of the Police and Crime Commissioner and 


Chief Constable 


 


1) How do the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief 
Constable, exercise oversight of management's 
processes to identify, authorise, approve, account for and 
disclose related party transaction sand relationships? 


 As above.  


 Business Interest Monitoring. 


 Professional Standards work 


 IPCC investigation also in the last financial year 
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Status of report 


Page 2 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report and Management Letter - Police and Crime 


Commissioner for Dyfed Powys and Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


This document has been prepared for the internal use of Police and Crime Commissioner for 


Dyfed Powys and Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys as part of work performed in accordance 


with statutory functions. 


No responsibility is taken by the Auditor General or the staff of the Wales Audit Office in 


relation to any member, director, officer or other employee in their individual capacity, or to 


any third party. 


In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, 


attention is drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of 


Information Act 2000. The section 45 Code sets out the practice in the handling of requests 


that is expected of public authorities, including consultation with relevant third parties. In 


relation to this document, the Auditor General for Wales and the Wales Audit Office are 


relevant third parties. Any enquiries regarding disclosure or re-use of this document should 


be sent to the Wales Audit Office at infoofficer@wao.gov.uk. 


The team who delivered the work comprised: John Herniman, Jason Garcia and Leanne 


Malough 
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Summary report 
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Introduction 


1. The Auditor General for Wales is responsible for providing an opinion on whether the 


financial statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys (the 


Commissioner) and of the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys (the Chief Constable) give 


a true and fair view of their financial position at 31 March 2016 and of their income and 


expenditure for the year then ended. 


2. We do not try to obtain absolute assurance that the financial statements are correctly 


stated, but adopt the concept of materiality. In planning and conducting the audits, we 


seek to identify material misstatements in your financial statements, namely, those that 


might result in a reader of the accounts being misled. 


3. The quantitative levels at which we judge such misstatements to be material are: 


 Police and 


Crime 


Commissioner 


£ 


Chief Constable 


£ 


Pension Fund 


£ 


Income and expenditure items and 


other balances 


£1.485 million £1.485 million £0.330 million 


Whether an item is judged to be material can also be affected by certain qualitative 


issues such as legal and regulatory requirements, reporting requirements and political 


sensitivity.  


4. International Standard on Auditing (ISA) 260 requires us to report certain matters 


arising from the audit of the financial statements to those charged with governance of 


a body in sufficient time to enable appropriate action. For police bodies, those charged 


with governance are the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable. 


5. This report sets out for consideration the matters arising from the audit of the financial 


statements of the Commissioner and the Chief Constable that require reporting under 


ISA 260. We have not included any recommendations in this report and we will issue a 


separate report to management summarising all the issues arising along with 


recommendations.  


Status of the audit 


6. We received the draft financial statements for both the Commissioner and the Chief 


Constable for the year ended 31 March 2016 on 1 July 2016. Both sets of accounts 


had been signed on 30 June in accordance with the required deadlines.  


7. We have now completed the majority of the audit work. We are reporting to you the 


more significant issues arising from the audits, which we believe you must consider 


prior to approval of the financial statements. The audit team has already discussed 


these issues with the Chief Financial Officer to the PCC/Director of Finance – Chief 


Constable.
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Proposed audit reports 


8. It is the Auditor General’s intention to issue an unqualified audit report on the financial 


statements of the Commissioner and an unqualified audit report on the financial 


statements of the Chief Constable once you have provided us with the Letters of 


Representation based on those set out in Appendices 1 and 2.  


9. The proposed audit reports are set out in Appendices 3 and 4.  


Significant issues arising from the audit 


Uncorrected misstatements  


10. Where misstatements are identified during the audit, management have the 


opportunity to correct them in the final version of the financial statements. 


Management have corrected for all misstatements identified and consequently there 


are no misstatements which remain uncorrected. 


Corrected misstatements 


11. There are misstatements that have been corrected by management, but which we 


consider should be drawn to your attention due to their relevance to your 


responsibilities over the financial reporting process. They are set out with explanations 


in Appendices 5 and 6 for the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable 


respectively. 


Other significant issues arising from the audit 


12. In the course of the audit, we consider a number of matters both qualitative and 


quantitative relating to the accounts and report any significant issues arising to you. 


There were some issues arising in these areas this year: 


We have no concerns about the qualitative aspects of your accounting 


practices and financial reporting. 


We found the information provided to be relevant, reliable, comparable, material 


and easy to understand. We concluded that accounting policies and estimates 


are appropriate and financial statement disclosures unbiased, fair and clear.  


 We did not encounter any significant difficulties during the audit. 


There were no significant difficulties during the audit. We received information in 


a timely and helpful manner and were not restricted in our work.  
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 There are two other matters discussed and corresponded upon with 


management which we need to report to you. 


Milne v Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) court ruling 


Payments totalling £3,191,000 were made from the Police Pension Fund in 


2015/16 to settle amounts arising from the error made by GAD which resulted in 


incorrect commuted sum payments to pensioners on a national basis. A 


provision for this was correctly included in the 2014/15 accounts. An amount of 


approximately £49,000 is still to be paid in respect of three officers and a creditor 


for this amount has been included. A debtor for the same amount has also been 


included reflecting a contribution from the Commissioner for income 


reimbursement, which was received as Home Office grant income by the 


Commissioner in 2015/16. 


Under HMRC rules, the above payments were classed as unauthorised 


payments and an additional charge was levied on all Police Forces. The Home 


Office wrote to all Police Forces on 8 December 2015 advising them that the 


costs relating to unauthorised payment charges would be dealt with centrally by 


Government and a payment was made by HM Treasury on 29 March 2016 to 


HMRC covering 95 per cent of the outstanding amounts. The remaining five per 


cent will be paid to HMRC by HM Treasury in August 2016.   


As both the notional expenditure and income relating to Dyfed Powys Police’s 


share of the unauthorised payments charge would be included in the Pension 


Fund account, there would be an overall £nil impact on this account. As a result, 


these entries have not been made, however, a note explaining the position has 


been included in the Pension Fund financial statements.  


Control account reconciliations 


Key control account reconciliations should be performed on a monthly basis to 


enable swift and timely action of any imbalances or anomalies in accordance 


with the Force’s own internal policies.  


We identified that some key reconciliations on payroll, debtor, creditor and 


suspense control accounts were not always undertaken promptly and for each 


month during the year. Year-end reconciliations were however undertaken in all 


cases.  


 There are no other matters significant to the oversight of the financial 


reporting process that we need to report to you. 


 We did not identify any material weaknesses in your internal controls that 


we have not reported to you already.  


 There are not any other matters specifically required by auditing standards 


to be communicated to those charged with governance.  
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Independence and objectivity 


13. As part of the finalisation process, we are required to provide you with representations 


concerning our independence. 


14. We have complied with ethical standards and in our professional judgment, we are 


independent and our objectivity is not compromised. There are no relationships 


between the Wales Audit Office and the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed 


Powys or the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys, other than those already 


communicated to you in the 2016 Audit Plan, that we consider to bear on our 


objectivity and independence. 
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Final Letter of Representation - Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Dyfed Powys 


(Audited body’s letterhead) 


 


Auditor General for Wales 


Wales Audit Office 


24 Cathedral Road 


Cardiff 


CF11 9LJ 


Representations regarding the 2015-16 financial 
statements 


This letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the Police 


and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys for the year ended 31 March 2016 for the 


purpose of expressing an opinion on their truth and fairness. 


We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made enquiries as we 


consider sufficient, we can make the following representations to you. 


Management representations 


Responsibilities 


We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements in 


accordance with legislative requirements and the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority 


Accounting; in particular the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance 


therewith.  


We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, maintenance and review 


of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and error. 


Information provided 


We have provided you with: 


 full access to: 


‒ all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the 


financial statements such as books of account and supporting documentation, 


minutes of meetings and other matters;
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‒ additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the 


audit; and 


‒ unrestricted access to staff from whom you determined it necessary to obtain 


audit evidence. 


 the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 


materially misstated as a result of fraud; 


 our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects the 


Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys and involves: 


‒ management; 


‒ employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 


‒ others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 


 our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the financial 


statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators or others; 


 our knowledge of all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance 


with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the 


financial statements; and 


 the identity of all related parties and all the related party relationships and transactions 


of which we are aware. 


Financial statement representations 


All transactions, assets and liabilities have been recorded in the accounting records and are 


reflected in the financial statements. 


Significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, including those measured at 


fair value, are reasonable. 


Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 


disclosed. 


Disclosures included within the Police Officer and Police Staff Remuneration note and the 


Termination note have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed.  


All events occurring subsequent to the reporting date which require adjustment or disclosure 


have been adjusted for or disclosed. 


All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when 


preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to the auditor and accounted for and 


disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. 


The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. The effects 


of uncorrected misstatements identified during the audit are immaterial, both individually and 


in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
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Representations by the Police and Crime Commissioner 
for Dyfed Powys 


We acknowledge that the representations made by management, above, have been 


discussed with us. 


We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of true and fair financial statements in 


accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. The financial statements were 


recommended for approval by the Joint Audit Committee on 20 September 2016. 


We confirm that we have taken all the steps that we ought to have taken in order to make 


ourselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that it has been 


communicated to you. We confirm that, as far as we are aware, there is no relevant audit 


information of which you are unaware. 


 


 


 


 


Signed by: Signed by: 


Chief Financial Officer to the PCC Police and Crime Commissioner for 


Dyfed Powys 


Date: Date: 
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Final Letter of Representation – Chief Constable for 
Dyfed Powys 


(Audited body’s letterhead) 


 


Auditor General for Wales 


Wales Audit Office 


24 Cathedral Road 


Cardiff 


CF11 9LJ 


Representations regarding the 2015-16 financial 
statements 


This letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the Chief 


Constable for Dyfed Powys for the year ended 31 March 2016 for the purpose of expressing 


an opinion on their truth and fairness. 


We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made enquiries as we 


consider sufficient, we can make the following representations to you. 


Management representations 


Responsibilities 


We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements in 


accordance with legislative requirements and the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority 


Accounting; in particular the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance 


therewith.  


We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, maintenance and review 


of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and error. 


Information provided 


We have provided you with: 


 full access to: 


‒ all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the 


financial statements such as books of account and supporting documentation, 


minutes of meetings and other matters;
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‒ additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the 


audit; and 


‒ unrestricted access to staff from whom you determined it necessary to obtain 


audit evidence. 


 the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 


materially misstated as a result of fraud; 


 our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects the 


Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys and involves: 


‒ management; 


‒ employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 


‒ others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 


 our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the financial 


statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators or others; 


 our knowledge of all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance 


with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the 


financial statements; and 


 the identity of all related parties and all the related party relationships and transactions 


of which we are aware. 


Financial statement representations 


All transactions, assets and liabilities have been recorded in the accounting records and are 


reflected in the financial statements. 


Significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, including those measured at 


fair value, are reasonable. 


Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 


disclosed. 


Disclosures included within the Police Officer and Police Staff Remuneration note and the 


Termination note have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed.  


All events occurring subsequent to the reporting date which require adjustment or disclosure 


have been adjusted for or disclosed. 


All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when 


preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to the auditor and accounted for and 


disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. 


The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. The effects 


of uncorrected misstatements identified during the audit are immaterial, both individually and 


in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
  







 


Page 13 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report and Management Letter - Police and Crime 


Commissioner for Dyfed Powys and Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


Representations by the Chief Constable for Dyfed 
Powys 


We acknowledge that the representations made by management, above, have been 


discussed with us. 


We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of true and fair financial statements in 


accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. The financial statements were 


recommended for approval by the Joint Audit Committee on 20 September 2016. 


We confirm that we have taken all the steps that we ought to have taken in order to make 


ourselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that it has been 


communicated to you. We confirm that, as far as we are aware, there is no relevant audit 


information of which you are unaware. 


 


 


 


 


Signed by: Signed by: 


Director of Finance – Chief Constable Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


Date: Date: 
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Proposed audit report of the Auditor General for Wales 
to the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys 


Auditor General for Wales’ report to the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed 


Powys 


I have audited the accounting statements and related notes of the: 


 Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys; 


 Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Group; and  


 Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund  


for the year ended 31 March 2016 under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.  


The Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys’ accounting statements comprise the 


Movement in Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 


the Balance Sheet and the Cash Flow Statement,   


The Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys’ Group accounting statements 


comprise the Group Movement in Reserves Statement, the Group Comprehensive Income 


and Expenditure Statement, the Group Balance Sheet and the Group Cash Flow Statement.  


The Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s accounting statements comprise the Fund Account 


and the Net Assets Statement.  


The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law 


and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015-16 


based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 


Respective responsibilities of the responsible financial officer and the Auditor 


General for Wales 


As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts as 


set out on page eight, the responsible financial officer is responsible for the preparation of 


the statement of accounts, including the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys’ 


Group accounting statements and the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s accounting 


statements, which gives a true and fair view. 


My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements and related notes in accordance with 


applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards 


require me to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 


Scope of the audit of the accounting statements 


An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the accounting 


statements and related notes sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the accounting 


statements and related notes are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud 


or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to 


the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys’ and Police and Crime Commissioner 


for Dyfed Powys Group’s and Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s circumstances and have 


been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant 


accounting estimates made by the responsible financial officer and the overall presentation 


of the accounting statements and related notes.
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In addition, I read all the financial and non-financial information in the Narrative Report to 


identify material inconsistencies with the audited accounting statements and related notes 


and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially 


inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing the audit. If I 


become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies, I consider the 


implications for my report.  


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner for 


Dyfed Powys 


In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Police and Crime Commissioner 


for Dyfed Powys as at 31 March 2016 and of his income and expenditure for the year 


then ended; and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 


Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015-16. 


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner for 


Dyfed Powys Group 


In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Police and Crime Commissioner 


for Dyfed Powys Group as at 31 March 2016 and of its income and expenditure for the 


year then ended; and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 


Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015-16. 


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Police Pension Fund 


In my opinion, the pension fund accounts and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the Dyfed Powys Police 


Pension Fund during the year ended 31 March 2016 and of the amount and disposition 


of the Fund’s assets and liabilities as at that date, other than liabilities to pay pensions 


and benefits after the end of the scheme year; and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 


Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015-16. 


Opinion on other matters 


In my opinion, the information contained in the Narrative Report is consistent with the 


accounting statements and related notes. 


Matters on which I report by exception 


I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters, which I report to you, if, in my 


opinion: 


 adequate accounting records have not been kept; 


 the accounting statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 


returns; or 


 I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit; 
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 the Governance Statement does not reflect compliance with guidance.  


Certificate of completion of audit 


I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts of the Police and Crime 


Commissioner for Dyfed Powys in accordance with the requirements of the Public Audit 


(Wales) Act 2004 and the Auditor General for Wales’ Code of Audit Practice. 


 


 


 


For and on behalf of      Wales Audit Office 


Huw Vaughan Thomas     24 Cathedral Road 


Auditor General for Wales     Cardiff 


29 September 2016      CF11 9LJ 


The maintenance and integrity of Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys’ website 


is his responsibility; the work carried out by auditors does not involve consideration of these 


matters and accordingly auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have 


occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented on the website. 
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Proposed audit report of the Auditor General for Wales 
to the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys  


Auditor General for Wales’ report to the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


I have audited the accounting statements and related notes of the: 


 Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys; and  


 Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund. 


for the year ended 31 March 2016 under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.  


The Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys’ accounting statements comprise the Comprehensive 


Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, and related notes.  


The Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s accounting statements comprise the Fund Account 


and the Net Assets Statement and related notes. 


The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law 


and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015-16 


based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 


Respective responsibilities of the responsible financial officer and the independent 


auditor 


As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts, 


the responsible financial officer is responsible for the preparation of the statement of 


accounts, including the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s accounting statements, which 


gives a true and fair view. 


My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements and related notes in accordance with 


applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards 


require me to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 


Scope of the audit of the accounting statements 


An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the accounting 


statements and related notes sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the accounting 


statements and related notes are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud 


or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to 


the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys and the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s 


circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the 


reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the responsible financial officer; 


and the overall presentation of the accounting statements and related notes. 


In addition, I read all the financial and non-financial information in the Narrative Report to 


identify material inconsistencies with the audited accounting statements and related notes 


and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially 


inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing the audit. If I 


become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies, I consider the 


implications for my report.
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Opinion on the accounting statements of the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Chief Constable for Dyfed 


Powys as at 31 March 2016 and of his income and expenditure for the year then 


ended; and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 


Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015-16.  


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund 


In my opinion, the Pension Fund accounts and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial transactions for Dyfed Powys Police Pension 


Fund during the year ended 31 March 2016 and of the amount and disposition of the 


fund’s assets and liabilities as at that date, other than liabilities to pay pensions and 


benefits after the end of the scheme year; and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 


Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015-16. 


Opinion on other matters 


In my opinion, the information contained in the Narrative Report is consistent with the 


accounting statements and related notes. 


Matters on which I report by exception 


I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters, which I report to you, if, in my 


opinion: 


 adequate accounting records have not been kept; 


 the accounting statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 


returns;  


 I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit; or 


 the Annual Governance Statement contains material misstatements of fact or is 


inconsistent with other information I am aware of from my audit.  
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Certificate of completion of audit 


I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts of Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


in accordance with the requirements of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and the Auditor 


General for Wales’ Code of Audit Practice. 


 


 


 


 


For and on behalf of      Wales Audit Office 


Huw Vaughan Thomas     24 Cathedral Road 


Auditor General for Wales     Cardiff 


Xx September 2016      CF11 9LJ 


 


The maintenance and integrity of Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys’ Dyfed 


Powys’ website is his responsibility; the work carried out by auditors does not involve 


consideration of these matters and accordingly auditors accept no responsibility for any 


changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially 


presented on the website. 


 







Appendix 5 


Page 20 of 22 - Audit of Financial Statements Report and Management Letter - Police and Crime 


Commissioner for Dyfed Powys and Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


Summary of corrections made to the draft financial 
statements which should be drawn to the attention of the 
Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys 


During our audit we identified the following misstatements that have been corrected by 


management, but which we consider should be drawn to your attention due to their 


relevance to your responsibilities over the financial reporting process. 


 


Value of correction Nature of correction Reason for correction 


£1,254,000 Increase in Employer 


Contributions in the Pension Fund 


Accounts to disclose the full 


amount paid to the Home Office 


during 2015-16. 


The Police Pension Fund was 


presented showing a shortfall to be 


met by the Police Fund. However, the 


full 24.2% contribution rate value 


should be included as this is the 


correct amount that has been paid to 


the Home Office.   


£3,190,528 Removal of £3.1 million GAD 


Provision Expenditure from 


Commutations and Lump Sums in 


the Pension Fund Accounts. 


The provision was set up in 2014-15 


and expenditure was recognised in the 


year. As this provision has been 


realised in the 2015-16 financial year, 


the expenditure should not be included 


in the expenditure line. 


£178,000  Amendments needed to the 
Capital Adjustment Account to 
use of reserves and charges to 
the General Fund.  


 


Grant balance incorrectly included as a 


revenue item charged to the General 


Fund when it should have been a 


Capital item.  


£141,000 Expenditure 
£106,000 Income 


Amendments needed to the 
Collaboration Arrangement Notes 
for both expenditure and income 
for the Regional Organised Crime 
Unit and Regional Task Force 


Updated audited Collaboration tables 


from South Wales Police highlighted a 


number of errors that needed 


correction.  


Various A number of other narrative, 


presentational and minor 


amendments were made to the 


accounts.  


To ensure full compliance with the 


Code, ensure presentational accuracy 


in line with International Financial 


Reporting Standards, and improve or 


correct narrative disclosures.  
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Summary of corrections made to the draft financial 
statements which should be drawn to the attention of the 
Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


During our audit we identified the following misstatements that have been corrected by 


management, but which we consider should be drawn to your attention due to their 


relevance to your responsibilities over the financial reporting process. 


 


Value of correction Nature of correction Reason for correction 


£1,254,000 Increase in Employer Contributions 


in the Pension Fund Accounts to 


disclose the full amount paid to the 


Home Office during 2015-16. 


The Police Pension Fund was 


presented showing a shortfall to be 


met by the Police Fund. However, 


the full 24.2% contribution rate value 


should be included as this is the 


correct amount that has been paid to 


the Home Office.   


£3,190,528 Removal of £3.1 million GAD 


Provision Expenditure from 


Commutations and Lump Sums in 


the Pension Fund Accounts. 


The provision was set up in 2014-15 


and expenditure was recognised in 


the year. As this provision has been 


realised in the 2015-16 financial year, 


the expenditure should not be 


included in the expenditure line. 


£141,000 Expenditure 


£106,000 Income 
Amendments needed to the 


Collaboration Arrangement Notes 


for both expenditure and income for 


the Regional Organised Crime Unit 


and Regional Task Force 


Updated audited Collaboration tables 


from South Wales Police highlighted 


a number of errors that needed 


correction.  


Various A number of other narrative, 


presentational and minor 


amendments were made to the 


Chief Constable and Pension Fund 


statements.  


To ensure full compliance with the 


Code, ensure presentational 


accuracy in line with International 


Financial Reporting Standards, and 


improve or correct narrative 


disclosures.  
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Narrative Report  
 
Introduction 


1.1 This Narrative Report aims to provide an easily understandable and effective 
guide to the most significant matters reported in the accounts of the Chief 
Constable of Dyfed Powys. It also provides some contextual information on the 
financial environment which will also be of relevance. 


2.0 About the Statement of Accounts of the Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys 


2.1 The Statement of Accounts provides information on the financial position and 
financial performance of the Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys for the financial 
year 2015/16.  The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 established 
each Chief Constable as a legal entity or ‘corporation sole’ in their own right on 
21


st
 November 2012. This is the fourth Statement of Accounts to be produced by 


the Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys Police under these arrangements. 


2.2 The financial position of the consolidated Group of the Commissioner and Chief 
Constable for Dyfed Powys are set out in a separate Statement of Accounts 
document produced by the Police and Crime Commissioner. 


2.3 The Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2015 require local government 
bodies to prepare a Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices. 
The Code is identified as representing proper practices.  


3.0 What is included in the Statement of Accounts? 


3.1 The Accounts that follow this narrative provide further detail of the financial affairs 
of the Chief Constable and are comprised of:- 


•  Independent Auditor’s Report; this sets out the opinion of the external 
auditor, the Wales Audit Office, on whether the Chief Constable accounts 
presented give a ‘true and fair view’ of the financial position and operations of 
the Chief Constable for 2015/16; 


•  Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts; this 
statement sets out the responsibilities of the Chief Constable and the Chief 
Constable’s Chief Finance Officer; 


•  Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement; this core statement 
summarises the resources that have been generated and consumed in 
providing policing and crime reduction services during the year. It includes all 
day to day expenses and related income on an accruals basis, as well as 
transactions measuring the value of fixed assets actually consumed and the 
real projected value of retirement benefits earned by employees in the year; 


•  Balance Sheet; this core statement shows the value as at the Balance Sheet 
date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Chief Constable.  As under 
the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act, the Chief Constable is 
unable to hold cash, the Chief Constable’s current assets and liabilities are 
balanced to nil via intra-group transfers between the Commissioner and Chief 
Constable which are eliminated from the Group accounts. The Police and 
Crime Commissioner owns the land, buildings and other assets used by the 
Force and therefore these are shown in the Balance Sheet included in the 
Statement of Accounts document produced by the Police and Crime 
Commissioner. 
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•  Notes to the financial statements are also included that set out the 
Accounting Policies used as the basis of preparing the financial statements 
and provide further information which is required by the Code of Practice. 


• A Movement in Reserves Statement is required as part of the Code and 
this would show the movement in the year on reserves held by the Chief 
Constable. As the Chief Constable does not hold reserves this statement is 
not required; 


• The Police Pension Fund Account is a statement that shows expenditure, 
income, assets and liabilities pertaining to Police Pensions in the year. The 
Chief Constable is responsible for administering pension schemes and for 
undertaking the appropriate maintenance and for the provision of the relevant 
accounts.   


• An Annual Governance Statement is included within this Statement of 
Accounts that sets out details of how the Chief Constable exercises 
governance over his affairs. The Statement is a statutory document which 
also includes an annual review of the adequacy of the Governance 
arrangements, and also provides assurance on the systems of internal 
control that the Chief Constable maintains. 


4.0 What these Financial Statements tell us 


4.1 All income received and collected for Policing the Dyfed Powys police area goes 
to the Police and Crime Commissioner. The Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement for the Chief Constable therefore focuses on spending 
only and it shows that the Chief Constable spent £114.4 million on providing 
policing services to the Public of Dyfed Powys Police in 2015/16 which is close to 
the original budget. This is around £3.1 million less than the comparable figure 
spent in the prior financial year.  


4.2 The Statement provides a split of this figure across the eleven main service 
components. For example, it can be seen that the largest element was spent on 
Local Policing which accounted for £57.2 million of the total in 2015/16. 


4.3 This Statement has been prepared on the basis of proper accounting practice 
and the requirements of the Code and this differs slightly from the budget that the 
Chief Constable is held accountable for on a day to day basis by the Police and 
Crime Commissioner which includes elements of income and also excludes some 
elements such as depreciation and movements on pension liabilities which under 
statute do not need to be financed fully in the year. 


4.4 The Balance Sheet for the Chief Constable is dominated by the long term liability 
of £1,012 million that exists in respect of future pension liabilities for police 
officers and staff. This represents the amount that the Chief Constable would 
need to set aside at the balance sheet date to cover future payments of pensions 
of all current serving and retired officers and staff. This figure has been calculated 
independently on an actuarial basis and takes account of future salary levels, 
inflation, mortality rates etc. It is important to note that all current and future police 
pension costs will be paid for by Government.  


4.5 The Balance Sheet also shows the value of uniform and other inventories held by 
the Chief Constable (£368K) and amounts owing to (£339K - Debtors) or owing 
by (£5.6 million creditors) the Chief Constable at year end. A fuller breakdown of 
these amounts is shown in the notes to the accounts. 


5.0 Performance in 2015/16 against the Chief Constable’s Revenue budget 
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5.1 As outlined above, the net budget that the Chief Constable is held accountable 
for on a day to day basis by the Police and Crime Commissioner is different to the 
amount that must be reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement under proper practice.  


5.2 A net budget of £91.4 million was set by the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
the Chief Constable for the year 2015/16 which incorporated a Council Tax 
reduction of 5% at band D and which relied upon the use of £3.0 million from 
reserves to support current spending. This was a particularly challenging 
settlement for the Chief Constable to deliver against. 


5.3 Within this baseline spending level also, the Force had already identified cost 
reductions of £3.6 million which were to be delivered in 2015/16 largely through 
“Public First” - a programme which sought to realign and make minimally efficient 
the structures supporting operational policing. Significant reductions in non- pay 
spending were also planned through a number of procurement and other cost 
reduction initiatives.  


5.4 The Table below sets out the final out-turn position for 2015/16 for the Chief 
Constable and compares this to the original budget.  A revised budget is also 
shown in the table that reflects additional budgets and movements agreed during 
the year.  


  
Original 
Budget 


Revised 
Budget 


Actual 
Variance 


(Negative 
for Saving) 


  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 


Expenditure         


Employee Related Costs 86,882 87,636 86,654 -228  


Premises Related Costs 3,401 3,563 3,706 305  


Transport Related Costs 2,771 2,740 2,142 -627  


Supplies & Services 8,602 8,176 8,334 -268  


Agency & Contracted Services 2,385 2,106 3,825 1,440  


Total operating expenses 104,041 104,222 104,661 622  


Add: Financing Costs 1,069 1,068  12,097  11,029  


 Total Expenditure 105,110 105,290 116,758 11,651  


Income         


Government grants  -6,844 -6,897 -7,067 -223  


Fees, charges & other income -3,926 -3,919 -4,806 -880  


Total Income -10,770 -10,816 -11,873 -1,103  


Net Expenditure Funded by PCC 94,340 94,474 104,885 10,548 


Contribution from Reserves -2,977 -3,602 -14,011  11,035  


  91,363 90,872 90,872 490 


This report is in a subjective analysis format which is used by internal management for reporting purposes. The format 
differs to the CIES Statement, and reconciliation between the two formats is shown in Note 12. 


5.5 It can be seen that a reduction in budget of £491K was approved in the year. This 
was in respect of the Driver Retraining Programme.  


5.6 In total, the Force required a transfer from reserves of £14.0 million compared to 
the original budget of £3.0 million. There has been a significant planned overspend 
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which has resulted in a reduction in financial reserves held by the Commissioner due 
to the following decisions taken by the Commissioner during 2015/16 that were not 
taken account of in the original budget; 


i. an additional repayment of £7.0 million of outstanding debt in our books which 
is saving £300K annually 


ii. the budgetary impact of the PFI contract buy out of £3.6 million which is 
saving £500K annually 


iii. an earmarked reserve of £0.8 million has been received in respect of Go Safe 
which the Force now administers. 


5.7 The underlying position in respect of contribution from reserves in respect of 
elements controlled by the Chief Constable were very close to the original budget 
as illustrated in the following table: 


Description £M 


Total actual contribution from reserves from Table above 14.0 


Less: Transfer from Reserves in respect of PFI Termination -3.6 


Less: Transfer from Reserves in respect of Borrowing repayment -7.0 


Less: Transfer from Reserves in respect of Capital Financing -1.3 


Less: Go Safe Transfer to Reserves from Flintshire Council +0.8 


Actual Transfer from Reserves from CC Activities 2.9 


Budgeted Transfer From Reserves 3.0 


 


5.8 A brief explanation of the main reasons for the variances in budget for 2015/16 is 
provided below: 


i. Employee Related Costs: Staffing costs are just £228K short of the original 
budget for 2015/16. Within this, variation has been apparent across pay, 
overtime and on-cost headings for all staff groups. Police Officer ill-health 
retirement spending was below budget for the year by around £412K 
which accounts for the majority of the net underspend. 


ii. Premises Headings: The Force has overspent by £305K against the 
original premises budget for the last financial year. A budget transfer into 
this heading was processed during the year from the “Agency and 
Contracted Services” heading to take account of the termination of the 
Ammanford PFI contract and the resulting need for the Force to pay 
running costs for this station directly from this heading from June 2015. 


iii. Transport Related Headings: The Force underspent against the original 
budget for transport costs by some £627K. The Force benefitted from 
significant reductions in fuel costs during the year which contributed some 
£320K towards this savings figure. In addition to this, the Force joined the 
National Police Air Service (NPAS) from January 2016 which has resulted 
in payments for helicopter maintenance and support being replaced with 
one composite payment from the “Agency and Contracted Services” 
heading from this date. 


iv. Supplies and Services Headings: The table above shows that the Force 
underspent against the original budget for this heading by some £268K. 
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There are a number of variations within this heading including savings 
against non-pay scientific support budgets. 


v. Agency and Contracted Services: This heading overspent by £1.440 
million being attributable largely to the additional net budgetary impact of 
the early termination of the Ammanford PFI contract. This was funded by 
an additional contribution from reserves. In addition a payment of £223K 
was paid for Air Support services to NPAS for the final quarter of the 
financial year. Some cost increases in the provision of medical support at 
custody units and the implementation of an appropriate adult service also 
contributed to this overspend position.  


vi. Capital Financing Costs: This heading has been affected by the 
Commissioner’s decision to repay all outstanding historic borrowing from 
earmarked reserves in the year. This resulted in an additional one off 
budgetary impact of £7.0 million. In addition, the overspend position 
against this heading is affected by the repayment of the outstanding 
liability held against the Ammanford PFI contract of £2.47 million. An 
additional sum of £1.25 million has been set aside from revenue as a 
contribution towards the funding of capital spending in the year. Although 
this was planned, this transfer was not reflected in the original Force 
revenue budget. 


vii. Income Headings: An earmarked reserve of £0.847 million has been 
received as income in respect of Go Safe which the Fore now administers. 
Additional income has also been identified as being due in respect of historic 
site sharing arrangements. 


6 Impact of the current economic climate on the Chief Constable 


6.1 Pensions Reform 


6.1.1 In March 2011, Lord Hutton was commissioned by the government to conduct an 
independent review into the future of public service pensions. As the cost of 
pensions has increased by a third in the last 10 years, he concluded that the 
existing scheme designs were not sufficiently robust to be sustainable. 


6.1.2 The Government has introduced a new Local Government Pension Scheme from 
April 2014 and a new Police Pension Scheme was implemented from April 2015. 
The key changes are: 


 A move from final salary to a Career Average Revalued Earnings scheme 


 The normal pension age will be 60 for police officers, whilst for police staff 
the normal pension age will be linked to the State Pension Age 


 The average member contribution will increase, with higher earners paying 
higher contributions than currently  


6.1.3 The reforms outlined above will shift the burden of cost from the employer 
(ultimately the taxpayer) to the employee, ensuring that pensions will be fairer 
and more sustainable in the future.    


6.1.4 The new Career Average Revalued Earnings Pension scheme introduced for 
Police Officers in April 2015 included transitional protection arrangements in 
respect of officers late in service and therefore the financial impact, although 
significant for some serving officers, will take some time to flow through.  


6.2 The Chief Constable’s Budget for 2016/17 and Medium Financial Plan 
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6.2.1 Under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act the Police and Crime 
Commissioner of Dyfed Powys is responsible for allocating a budget to the Chief 
Constable and the Dyfed Powys Police Force. He is also responsible for setting 
the precept for the Force area. Home Office Police Grant and Welsh Government 
funding are all received by the Police and Crime Commissioner. 


6.2.2 The Force has been allocated a net revenue budget of £91.4 million in 2016/17 
by the Police and Crime Commissioner. This will enable the Chief Constable to 
protect operational capacity in terms of Police Officer and staff numbers overall 
taking account of the work underway through the “Spending Wisely” Programme 
in relation to efficiency and the wider programme of work being taken forward 
around innovation, improvement, workforce planning and change.  


6.2.3 The financial position for 2016/17 is broadly flat compared with 2015/16 in 
funding terms with central grants reducing by -0.6% and with no increase in 
council tax at Band D. An increase in tax base of +0.7% means that the net 
budget for the Force is £22K higher in 2016/17 than in 2015/16. 


6.2.4 This figure is however net of a contribution of £3.1 million from reserves which 
cannot be sustained and will need to be addressed through the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy. There are some significant cost increases included in the 
Budget for 2016/17 that have needed to be financed through cost reductions 
including increases in National Insurance contributions as well as pay awards and 
inflationary pressures. The Force has needed to identify and is currently in the 
process of implementing the changes required to deliver cost reductions of 
£4million in 2016/17. 


6.2.5 The Force still retains floor or damping funding which accounts for £9 million of its 
total central government grant allocation of £50 million. The Home Office is in the 
process of conducting a review of Formula Funding arrangements however the 
outcome of this and impact on DPP is unclear at this stage. 


6.2.6 Whilst the Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) announcement was more 
favourable than feared, there are some significant financial challenges and risks 
that will persist for the Force beyond 2016/17 that will need to be addressed 
including: 


i. Formula Review 


Over the last 24 months, the Home Office has been reviewing the formula 
funding mechanism historically used to allocate resources between Police 
and Crime Commissioner areas in England and Wales. The Home Office 
had consulted on various options over the course of the summer 2015 and 
determinations originally suggested that the Force could lose around £0.6 
million in annual funding from a new proposed approach. Errors were 
identified in these calculations and alternate determinations suggested that 
the Force could lose around £7 million in central funding as a result of 
these changes.  


The original consultation was abandoned and a revised approach is now 
being formulated by the Home Office. The timing of this Review and of the 
implementation of any findings is unknown – however it is considered 
likely that the Review will impact the forward position in the medium term. 


ii. Other Funding Reductions 


The Chancellor during the Budget announcement in March 2016 has 
indicated a worsening of the predicted financial position for the Country. In 
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addition certain savings that were planned to arise through benefit 
changes are being reviewed by Government.  


In June 2016, the Country voted to leave the European Union which it has 
been reported may lead to further financial and political uncertainty which 
may require some mitigating action in the autumn to address.  


It is believed that additional spending reductions may well need to be 
found by Government over and above those announced at the time of the 
Comprehensive Spending Review.  


Whilst there is no indication at present that these changes would impact 
on the Police settlement arising from the CSR, it is possible that the 
position will be reconsidered. In addition there is some risk that 
settlements to Forces could be affected by further top slicing at Home 
Office level that cannot be discounted.  


The Force benefits from funding provided by the Welsh Government 
towards the School Liaison Programme and Police and Community 
Support Officers which could also be at risk should Welsh Government not 
support the continuation of this funding post the elections in May 2016. 


iii. Other Spending Pressures or Cost Reduction Plan Difficulties  


In addition to the above there is a risk that spending pressures over and 
above those built into the financial model could arise over the period being 
considered. In addition the savings planned through the “Spending Wisely” 
Programme could fail to materialise or be needed to build up operational 
capacity in other areas. 


6.2.7 The Force has modelled various financial scenarios to take account of potential 
financial losses and risks and produced a Medium Term Financial Strategy 
covering the period 2016/17 to 2020/21. It is apparent from this that additional 
pressures ranging from +£0.6 million to +£10 million are potentially possible over 
this period. Whist additional pressures at the higher and lower end of the scale 
seem unlikely, there is a reasonable likelihood that the final deficit position could 
well be in the range of £4million to £8million.  


6.2.8 The Force has been proactively looking to mitigate these risks and minimise their 
impact operational delivery for some time. In order to address the financial issues 
identified above, a five point plan has been formulated which is focused upon: 


i. Delivering against the plans already in place including the “Spending 
Wisely” Programme, for Collaborative Working, understanding demand 
and the Digital Policing Strategy 


ii. Identifying through the Senior Leadership Forum and other work further 
measures that can be considered to reduce demand and / or cost 


iii. Ensuring that the Force and PCC are in a position to lobby strongly in 
relation to the Review of the Funding Formula and over the timeframes for 
implementing any reductions that may be required from DPP 


iv. Working with Welsh Government to safeguard investment and grant 
funding for PCSOs and School Liaison officers  


v. Working with the PCC to ensure that future precept decisions take account 
of the position of DPP as the lowest funded Police Force in Wales and 
seek to ensure no worsening of this position in terms of the future 
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6.3 Value for Money 


6.3.1 Spending resources wisely remains a key priority for the Chief Constable and the 
focus of the work that has been ongoing in support of this has been to ensure that 
the resources at the disposal of the Force are channelled towards the delivery of 
strategic priorities in a way that supports the vision, mission and values of the 
Force going forward. 


6.3.2 The Force has a comprehensive Savings Plan covering the period 2016/17 to 
2018/19 and has established appropriate project management arrangements to 
deliver against this. The focus of this work is now on implementing reductions in 
sergeant positions, workforce modernisation, collaboration and further 
procurement savings. Further projects are also being implemented looking at 
demand and resourcing options across all activities of the Force. 


6.3.3 The Force has a Capital Programme that is driving some significant investment 
plans in relation to the Estates, ICT and Fleet Replacements which totals £7.8 
million in 2016/17 and which will total £27.5 million by 2019/20. The Capital 
Strategy reflects a planned and prioritised approach to our investments and these 
are closely linked to our priorities and focussed on efficiency and improvement.  


6.3.4 As a result of this Dyfed Powys Police officers are now digitally mobile. Some 663 
frontline police officers have been issued with smart phones, which allow them to 
carry out the majority of their everyday policing duties whilst out on patrol.  It has 
been estimated by the officers themselves that this is contributing to a significant 
increase in visibility through negating the need to return to police stations to 
undertake routine administrative functions. 


6.5 HMIC Profiles 2015 


6.5.1 Each autumn, HMIC produce a number of profiles that compare the budgets, 
people and operational performance of Forces in England and Wales against 
each other with a particular emphasis on Most Similar Group Forces; which for 
Dyfed Powys include the following: 


 Dyfed-Powys 


 Lincolnshire 


 Cumbria 


 Norfolk  


6.5.2 The latest dataset was received in October 2015 which was based on the 
2015/16 original budget. This is available at the following website; 


https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmic/publications/dyfed-powys-2015-value-for-
money-profile/ 


6.5.3 It can be seen from this data that Dyfed Powys Police spends a considerably 
higher proportion of its budget on the ‘operational front line’ than the vast majority 
of other Forces and that this is considerably higher than those Forces in its most 
similar group. It is apparent that the vast majority of the difference between DPP 
and its Most Similar Forces is accounted for in the ‘visible’ front line element. 


6.5.3 Similarly, the position on business support costs shows that Dyfed Powys spends 
considerably less on this as a proportion of its budget than the majority of other 
Forces and significantly less as a proportion of budget that the other Forces in its 
Most Similar Force grouping. This would suggest a good overall baseline position 
in terms of value for money in terms of channelling Force resources towards front 
line policing activity compared to most similar Forces. Areas for improvement 



https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmic/publications/dyfed-powys-2015-value-for-money-profile/

https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmic/publications/dyfed-powys-2015-value-for-money-profile/
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such as supervision ratios and overtime spending levels have been identified and 
these have already been incorporated into future savings plans for 2016/17 and 
beyond. 


7. Policing Performance 


7.1 In terms of Policing Performance, the Chief Constable is responsible to the public 
and supports the Police and Crime Commissioner in the delivery of the strategy 
and objectives set out in the Plan. The Police and Crime Plan includes the 
following priorities:  


 Preventing and dealing with incidents and crime  
 Protecting vulnerable people  
 Bringing people to justice  
 Enhancing access to policing services    
 Ensuring high standards of professionalism  
 Spending wisely  


7.2 The Commissioner set out a number of commitments within the Police and Crime 
Plan with regards to making data available to the public allowing them to judge 
progress made against the Plan.  An Annual Report is published by the 
Commissioner for this purpose which will be available at the following address:  


http://www.dyfed-powys.police.uk/en/about-us/policing-plan/ 
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Statement of Responsibilities  


The purpose of this statement is to set out the responsibilities of the Chief Constable 
and the Chief Financial Officer in respect of the Statement of Accounts. 


 


The Chief Constable’s responsibilities 


The Chief Constable is required to: 


 make arrangements for the proper administration of his financial affairs and to 
secure that one of his officers has the responsibility for the administration of 
those affairs, that officer is the Chief Financial Officer; 


 manage his affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of 
resources and safeguard its assets; and 


 approve the Statement of Accounts. 


I approve the Statement of Accounts for financial year 2015/16. 


   
  
        


Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys   Date 


 


The Chief Financial Officer’s responsibilities 


The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of 
Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code 
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code). 


In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial Officer has: 


 selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 


 made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and 


 complied with the Local Authority Code. 


The Chief Financial Officer has also: 


 kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and 


 taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities. 


I certify that the Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Chief Constable at the reporting date and of its expenditure and 
income for the year ended 31


st
 March 2016. 


 


 


    


  
           


Chief Financial Officer to the Chief Constable Date 


 


 







13 


 


 


Annual Governance Statement  


Scope of responsibility  
The Chief Constable (CC) is responsible for maintaining the Queen‘s Peace, and has 
direction and control over the force‘s officers and staff. The CC holds office under the 
Crown, but is appointed by the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC). He is 
accountable to the law for the exercise of police powers, and to the PCC for the delivery 
of efficient and effective policing, management of resources and expenditure by the 
Police Force. At all times the CC, his constables and staff, remain operationally 
independent in the service of the communities that they serve.  


The CC delivers operational policing in the Dyfed Powys area in accordance with the law 
and to proper standards. He has a duty to ensure that public money is safeguarded, 
properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively.   


Overview of Police Governance 


The CC is established under legislation as a legal entity or corporation sole in his own 
right. He has in place a governance framework that supports the effective exercise of his 
functions and for the management of risk. An overview of the Governance arrangements 
in being for the CC is shown in the chart below: 
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The governance framework has been in place at the Force throughout the year and up 
to the date of approval of the Statement of Accounts. 


This Annual Governance Statement includes a summary of the governance 
arrangements in place for the CC for each of the six core principles of good governance 
as identified in the revised “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government:  
Guidance Note for Police 2012”. 


Core principle 1 – Focusing on the purpose of the PCC and the Force, and on 
outcomes for the community, and creating and implementing a vision for the local 
area. 


The Force has been working to refresh its vision, mission and values in the context of 
seeking to embed the “Code of Ethics” into the Force.  


The purpose, vision and outcomes sought by the Force are encapsulated by the phrase 
“Safeguarding our Communities Together”. This is a well-established vision for Dyfed 
Powys Police that is very well understood by staff and encapsulates the collective 
purpose and mission of the Force.  


It was recognised that cultural change needed to be implemented alongside this work to 
ensure that officers and staff feel empowered to “do the right thing” in their dealings with 


Outline of Financial Governance Arrangements


Legislative Requirements
Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011


Policing Protocol 2011
Police Act 1996


Financial Management Code of Practice
CIPFA Statement of Role of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) PCC and CC


Police and Crime 
Panel


Police and 
Crime 


Commissioner


Chief 
Constable


Chief Officer Briefings
Force Performance Events


Programme Board
Policy Development
Scrutiny of Budgets


Workforce Issues
Matters Requiring Decision


Papers for Policing Board
Issues to be Taken to Policing 


Board


Chief Officer's Group


Policing Board


Police Accountability BoardPanel Meetings


Police and Crime Plan 
Revenue and Capital Budgets
Commissioning Framework


Corporate Governance Group


Corporate Governance 
Framework Document


Standing orders on contracts
Financial Regulations


Joint Audit Commitee
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the public and victims. A programme of leadership training has been progressing to 
embed these important developments during the 2015/16 financial year.  


The priorities for policing in the local area are detailed in the Police and Crime Plan 
(PCP). This document is compiled by the PCC in consultation with the CC and 
published. The priorities take account of the views of local people and partners as well 
as the PCC’s priorities as the elected representative. The PCC and CC also take 
account of Strategic Policing Requirements issued by the Home Secretary. The PCP is 
an important document that sets out six priorities for the PCC namely: 


1. Preventing and dealing with incidents and crime 


2. Protecting vulnerable people 


3. Bringing people to justice 


4. Enhancing access to policing services 


5. Ensuring high standards of professionalism 


6. Spending wisely 


The CC is responsible for supporting the PCC in the delivery of the priorities set out in 
the Police and Crime plan. His operational delivery, performance monitoring frameworks 
and financing decisions focus on these priorities.  


The Policing Board sits at the heart of the governance arrangements in Dyfed Powys 
Police. The Policing Board has met weekly and the papers focus on the above PCP 
Priorities. A Police Accountability Board has met on a monthly basis and focusses in 
more depth on one particular priority. This is a public meeting. The papers from this 
meeting flow through to the Police and Crime Panel meeting which scrutinises the 
performance of the PCC. 


The CC exercises governance over the Force predominantly through the Chief Officer 
Group.  This group enables the CC to maintain oversight of operational policing matters, 
risks, projects, operational performance and financial/ VFM outcomes. Core membership 
has been extended during 2015/16 to incorporate the Chief Superintendent 
Investigations and the Chief Superintendent Territorial Policing along with Staff 
Association representatives in order to enhance communication and strengthen oversite 
of decision making. 


Chief Officers receive a formal briefing once a week on key operational matters from 
senior police officers. The CC has his own Force Performance events which also focus 
on PCP priorities the structure and contents of which are currently under review as part 
of a wider reconsideration of Force governance. The PCC and CC have media 
strategies to ensure that priorities are communicated to the public. 


Neighbourhood Policing Teams regularly interact with the public to consider and 
respond to their local concerns and emerging policing issues. Force Tasking Meetings 
focus resources operationally using the National Intelligence Model Based upon the 
Strategic Assessment and PCP priorities. A THRIVE (Threat, Harm, Risk, Investigation, 
vulnerability and engagement) assessment process is applied in determining operational 
policing response requirements.  


There is a thorough focus on value for money (VFM) through the analysis of financial 
data e.g. HMIC VFM profiles to identify areas of high spend and resource to consider the 
extent to which resources are efficiently channelled towards delivering against PCP 
priorities. The Force has completed the implementation of the “Public First” programme 
which has reduced business support function costs and is now implementing a 
“Spending Wisely Programme” which is focussed upon making further changes to the 
workforce including workforce modernisation of police officer roles where appropriate 
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and a focus on supervisory ratios. It also involves taking forward further collaboration in 
procurement and across a range of other operational and business support functions. 
The focus throughout this time has been to maintain delivery against the Force vision 
and PCP priorities whilst responding to the significant financial challenges facing the 
Country. 


Core principle 2 - Leaders, officers and partners working together to achieve a 
common purpose with clearly defined functions and roles.  


The legal powers and duties of the CC are set out in the Policing Protocol Order 2011.  
The CC is responsible for maintaining the Queen’s peace and has direction and control 
over the officers and staff operating within the Dyfed Powys Police force.  The Policing 
Protocol Order 2011 sets out how his functions will be exercised in relation to the PCC. 


There are legislative requirements upon the CC to appoint a suitably qualified Chief 
Finance Officer (CFO) and this has been in place throughout the year. 


The Financial Management Code of Practice builds on the Policing Protocol and sets out 
the working relationship between the PCC and the CC and their CFO(s), having regard 
to the role performed by the PCC’s Chief of Staff.  The roles and responsibilities of the 
CFO(s) are set out in the Financial Management Code of Practice. 


The Corporate Governance Framework provides further details about the key roles of 
the PCC, Chief of Staff, CC and the CFO(s) and this has been in operation through the 
2015/16 financial year. 


Job description, role requirements and person specifications exist for all roles within the 
Force.  An updated Performance Development Review Framework applies to all staff 
and officers working for the CC. This sets specific objectives for each position holder in 
the Force. Employees are appraised against these objectives and performance 
throughout the year. 


The CC ensures that, when working in partnership, all employees are clear about their 
roles and responsibilities both individually and collectively, and in relation to the 
partnership and the Force. Decision making in relation to such matters are made at the 
Chief Officer Group and Policing Board.   


The Professional Standards Anti-Corruption Unit (ACU) is responsible for oversight of 
gifts and hospitality arrangements within the Force and issue gifts and hospitality 
guidance and maintains an online Gifts and Hospitality Register.  The ACU actively 
monitors any gifts and hospitality received and provides advice to officers on the realms 
of acceptability.  Professional Standards, via its Marking Plan, raises awareness of gifts 
and hospitality recording requirements. 


The Professional Standards Department has responsibility for a Business Interests and 
Secondary Employment Policy.  This Policy aims to ensure that no police officer or staff 
member has a business interest or secondary employment that adversely affects or acts 
as a conflict of interest with their role in the Force. 


The Force has fully embedded and embraced the “Code of Ethics” linking this directly to 
its vision mission and values. A working group had been established to take forward this 
work from the “ground up” within the organisation. Further work has been undertaken to 
assess the leadership changes that are necessary to be implemented alongside this and 
to ensure that the change in culture sticks so that officers and staff are empowered to 
“do the right thing” in their dealings with the public and victims. This included refreshing 
the Force’s vision, mission and value statements. The “Ethics” Committee” has a direct 
link to the Chief Constable and receives referrals from officers and staff for due 
consideration and action. 
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Internal Audit focusses on compliance with procedures and processes including 
compliance with the Corporate Governance Framework. Reporting arrangements exist 
via the Joint Audit Committee and the Corporate Governance Group.  


Programme management arrangements are established for all major projects in 
accordance with best practice and any significant risks or issues are escalated via  
Corporate risk Management arrangements. 


Core principle 3 - Promoting values for the PCC and demonstrating the values of 
good governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour. 


The Policing Protocol 2011 requires all parties to abide by the seven Nolan principles 
and these will be central to the conduct and behaviour of all. The PCC handles 
complaints and conduct matters in relation to the CC and monitors complaints against 
officers and staff. All police officers, including Chief Officers, are subject to the Police 
Conduct and Performance Regulations – Police (Conduct) Regulations 2008, Police 
(Performance) Regulations 2008, Police (Complaints and Misconduct) Regulations 2008 
and the relevant provisions of the Police (Amendment) Regulations 2008 


The Force has a published a Code of Conduct for Police Staff which defines the 
standards of behaviour expected of staff and the disciplinary procedure which would be 
adopted should the standards not be adhered to.  Staff are made aware during their 
induction of how they are expected to conduct themselves in a professional capacity and 
the disciplinary process that they would be subjected to if these Codes were breached. 


The “Ethics Committee” has a direct link to the Chief Constable and receives referrals 
from officers and staff for due consideration and action. 


The Professional Standards department records and investigates complaints made by 
members of the public about police officers and police staff.  It also investigates internal 
misconduct matters relating to police officers and coordinates investigation of on-duty 
criminal offences relating to police officers and police staff. The findings of a review of 
the Professional Standards Department were implemented during 2015/16 and some 
considerable improvements in the timeliness and completion of reviews can be 
evidenced.  The force maintains a strong working relationship with the IPCC which has a 
wider remit than previously in terms of investigation and complaints. 


Dyfed Powys was one of the first Forces to introduce a bespoke online system – the 
Dissatisfaction System (dis-sat) for the recording of low level dissatisfaction.  It gives 
responsibility to local policing areas to record and deal with low level dissatisfaction at 
source – this is in line with the ethos of the IPCC Statutory Guidance of ”getting things 
right first time” and it prevents matters being unnecessarily introduced into the formal 
legislative complaints process.  


The Force has a multi-departmental Learning the Lessons Working Group this is 
coordinated by the Legal and Compliance Directorate and chaired by the Deputy CC.  
The forum allows all departments but in particular the Professional Standards 
Department, to bring forward issues where learning has been identified (e.g. through 
public complaints or conduct investigations) and whereby lessons can be promulgated to 
the Force as is necessary. 


The Force has for many years operated a “Safecall” facility which provides a phone 
based system which is run by a private company for the confidential reporting of corrupt 
or unethical behaviour. The take up in terms of usage of this facility has traditionally 
been very low as people have tended not to want to telephone on the false assumption 
that they would be talking directly to a member of staff in PSD. 
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In addition therefore the Force operates a “Bad Apple” facility which provides an Internal, 
web based system through which staff can raise concerns around corruption 
anonymously and online. 
 
Having such confidential whistleblowing and complaints procedures in place encourages 
staff and the public to feel confident in raising concerns and to question and act upon 
concerns in practice.  It provides avenues for concerns to be raised in confidence and 
receive feedback on any action taken. 


Core principle 4 – Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to 
effective scrutiny and managing risk. 


The CC is committed to a clear, effective and robust accountability framework through 
the Chief Officer Group and Policing Board.  The Policing Board allows the CC to 
exercise his role in a transparent manner, providing a forum for accountability and 
decision making about issues central to the efficient functioning of the force.  


The CC receives independent legal advice from the Director of Legal and Compliance, 
who is an employee of the Force and heads up a Legal and Compliance Directorate.  


All decisions made by Chief Officer Group and Policing Board are properly documented, 
published on the Force and OPCC websites and available for inspection at any time.  
Such a process ensures that relevant legal, financial and other considerations are 
properly recorded and considered prior to a decision being taken.  The Publication 
Scheme establishes the means by which information relating to decisions is made 
available to local people, with those of greater interest receiving the highest level of 
prominence, except where operational and legal constrains exist. 


The Corporate Governance Framework identifies the parameters for decisions-making, 
including the delegations, financial limits for specific matters and standing orders for 
contracts. These limits are embedded into the main financial system so that purchase 
orders are appropriately budgeted and approved at the appropriate level of Authority. 
The Force publishes details of all contracts over £25K and transactions over £500 on-
line and all payments made to senior staff and officers are published in the Annual 
Statement of Accounts and online on a quarterly basis. The Force employs 3 
professionally qualified procurement staff to ensure compliance with lawful and 
transparent procurement processes. 


The decision making protocol sets out principles behind how decisions are taken by, and 
on behalf of the CC and the standards to be adopted.  This ensures that those making 
decisions are provided with information that is fit for purpose – relevant, timely and 
accurate and gives clear explanations of technical issues and their implications. 


The National Decision Model is applied to spontaneous incidents or planned operations, 
by officers or staff within the force as individuals or teams, and to both operational and 
non-operational situations. 


The risk management strategy establishes how risk is embedded throughout the 
organisation, with the CC and his staff and officers all recognising that risk management 
is an integral part of their job.  The risk register is a standing agenda item on the Chief 
Officer Group meetings and this has been strengthened and improved as a result of the 
Internal Audit Review of risk management. 


The CC observes all specific legislative requirements placed upon him, as well as the 
requirements of general law, and in particular to integrate the key principles of good 
administrative law – rationality, legality and natural justice into this procedures and 
decision making processes. 
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Core principle 5 – Developing the capacity and capability of the PCC, officers of 
the PCC and the Force to be effective in terms of governance 


A Performance Development Review system ensures that objectives are set, 
performance is reviewed and action plans include any training or development needs.   
The “Calon” Senior Leadership Forum is driving enhanced Leadership capacity across 
the organisation through the Force’s top 60 police officers and police staff leaders. A 
Senior Leaders Task Group has also been established with a more limited membership 
responsible for proposing changes to policy and new initiatives aimed at enhancing the 
efficiency and effectiveness of the Force. 


In response to continuing financial challenges, the Force has developed a four year 
workforce Plan that incorporates workforce changes resulting from the Spending Wisely 
Programme and this is directly linked to the Medium Terms Financial Plan which is 
updated regularly to take account of National developments.  


The CC ensures that his officers and staff receive appropriate induction and that training 
and development programmes are tailored to individual needs and opportunism, linked 
to the Performance Development Review system. 


This training plan ensures that skills are developed on a continuing basis to improve 
performance including the ability to scrutinise and challenge and to recognise when 
outside expert advice is needed. The Force has also invested significantly in upskilling 
the workforce to meet emerging demands including the development of Job families, 
multiskilling of staff through planned learning and development and the implementation 
of coaching and mentoring techniques in partnership with other public sector partners 
locally. 


The Force has committed at a Strategic level to maximising the use of information 
technology to streamline processes, to better engage with the public and release 
capacity amongst officers and staff. This has included expansion of mobile data 
provision, electronic case file provision, digital interviewing and plans to invest further 
sums in body worn video and in car telematics. This will also enable the Force to better 
understand demand and channel scarce policing resources towards strategic priorities at 
a local level. 


The public are regularly consulted with and individuals are encouraged from all sections 
of the community to engage with, contribute to and participate in the work of the force. 


Core principle 6 – Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure 
robust public accountability 


Victim satisfaction surveys are undertaken by interviewing a randomly selected sample 
of members of the public that have had contact with the Force.  The survey provides the 
force with valuable feedback about the experiences, perceptions and views of victims of 
crime and anti-social behaviour, which is invaluable in shaping the services provided. 


Crime Survey for England and Wales confidence data is published quarterly by the PCC.  
This provides an independent assessment of public perception and is contextualised to 
be comparable to other parts of the country. The results of these surveys are reported to 
the public via quarterly reporting of progress of the Police and Crime Plan. 


Of late the PCC has taken the lead in terms of strategic public consultation and 
engagement activity. The Force utilises the outcomes of these to inform operational 
policing delivery and broader strategic policing requirements. 


During the year the IT Strategy recognised the potential that social media has to receive 
feedback from and provide information to the public. The Force has developed a range 
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of engagement tools and is encouraging officers and staff to engage with the public on 
social media such as through Twitter, Facebook and Instagram regarding key events, to 
provide specific information or regarding operational incidents particularly where the help 
of the public is sought. The public can also rate and comment upon the services 
provided by Dyfed Powys Police online and any comments or issues are followed up 
and considered by staff and officers. 


A joint “Public Service Bureau” has been established by the CC and PCC to consider 
and respond to public feedback and concerns raised by the public on matters of service 
delivery.  


The “School Liaison Programme” provides a further mechanism for engagement and 
interaction with young people and children and this is used to inform long term crime 
prevention and harm reduction strategies.  


Review of effectiveness 


The CC has responsibility for conducting at least annually, a review of the effectiveness 
of the governance framework, including the system of internal control.   The review of 
effectiveness is informed by the work of the Corporate Governance Group, managers 
within the organisation who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of 
the governance environment, the head of internal audit’s annual report and also by 
comments made by the external auditor and other review agencies and inspectorates. 


Corporate Governance Group 


The Corporate Governance Group has been delegated responsibility for undertaking the 
process of maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the governance framework. 
The Corporate Governance Group has met four times in the last year to collate evidence 
and assess developments that could be considered to strengthen further corporate 
governance arrangements in the form of a Corporate Government Matrix, which is 
structured around the six core principles.  This matrix forms the evidence base for this 
Annual Governance Statement. 


The Group last met on the 8
th 


June 2016 to undertake an annual Review of the 
Corporate Governance arrangements and concluded that good progress had been 
made in taking forward the governance framework during 2015/16 particularly in relation 
to the following areas: 


 Risk Management Arrangements had been further embedded 


 A high level post implementation assessment of “Public First” had been 


completed 


 Implementing the “Code of Ethics” through a revision of the Force’s Vision, 


Mission and Values had been completed 


 A revised documents for inter Welsh Police Force collaboration governance 


structures had been agreed by the All Wales Policing Group 


 The Force has made progress in putting in place a formalised force wide 


business continuity plan that reflects the staff systems and accommodation 


changes made during the Public First Programme.  


Set against this progress the following issues had been noted and the following actions 
were noted 


 The HMIC Peel Inspection that took place in 2015 and which was formally 


reported upon in early 2016 assessed the Force as “Requires Improvement”. 


Some considerable work has been undertaken during the year to progress action 
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plans and to better prepare for the 2016 inspection. Delivery of elements of these 


remains in progress. 


 The Force had received negative press coverage in relation to the scale of 


relocation expenses paid under the Police Authority’s previous policy in 


accordance with Police Regulations. These policies have already been amended 


and a further Review is being undertaken.  


 An allegation has been referred to the IPCC and deemed suitable for local 


investigation by the West Mercia Constabulary concerning the consequences or 


otherwise of a former relationship between senior Force personnel on internal 


force matters. 


 The IPCC has an investigation underway following referral by the Force into 


allegations received against the Director of Legal and Compliance. The 


allegations relate to payments made by Dyfed Powys Police for legal services 


over a number of years to a barrister’s chamber where her then husband worked. 


The IPCC is investigating what role the Director of Legal and Compliance had in 


instructing the chambers, in signing off any invoices and whether a potential 


conflict of interest was declared when required in line with force policies and 


procedures.  


 In May 2016, Police and Crime Commissioner Elections resulted in Mr Dafydd 


Llywelyn being elected to the role. The Chief Constable Mr Simon Prince has 


announced that he plans to retire. A project has been initiated to look at any 


revisions to Corporate Governance arrangements that may be needed for the 


PCC and CC going forward.  


 The Force has self-referred details of information security breaches to the 


Information Commissioner’s Office involving the unintended release of 


confidential personal data to a third party by the Force. This arose as a result 


human error and weaknesses in Force systems involving auto population of email 


addresses.  As a result the Force has taken steps to address these significant 


issues however a fine of £150,000 has been imposed. 


Joint Audit Committee 
Joint Audit Committee members received training on their roles and responsibilities 
during 2015/16.  Under the terms of reference, the Joint Audit Committee is responsible 
for conducting, at least annually, a review of the governance framework, including the 
system of internal audit and the system of internal control. 


These reviews are completed and informed by the work of the Corporate Governance 
Group, internal auditors and also officers and staff within the Force, who have 
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment.  In 
addition comments made by external auditors and other review agencies and 
inspectorates inform this review. 


The Joint Audit Committee met on the 21st of June 2016 to consider the Corporate 
Governance Framework this Annual Governance Statement.  


Internal audit 


The primary role of internal audit is to give an assurance to the CC on the effectiveness 
of the controls in place to manage risks.  To this end the Internal Auditor delivers an 
annual opinion of the effectiveness of the controls reviewed by the internal audit team 
during the year.  This annual opinion, set out in the annual report of the Internal Auditor, 
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is one of the key sources of evidence in support of the Annual Governance Statement.  
With reference to 2015/16 the internal auditor, TIAA Ltd expressed the following opinion; 


“I am satisfied that sufficient internal audit work has been undertaken to allow me to 
draw a reasonable conclusion as to the adequacy and effectiveness of Dyfed Powys 
Police's risk management, control and governance processes. In my opinion, the OPCC 
and the Force has adequate and effective management, control and governance 
processes to manage the achievement of its objectives.” 


All audits conducted during 2015/16 received an overall assurance rating of reasonable 
or substantial and all but one of the highest priority agreed actions have been 
completed. The priority 1 action in relation to Business Continuity remains outstanding at 
this stage despite considerable work being undertaken and this is referred to in the 
action table below. Progress with implementing Audit recommendations is monitored by 
the Joint Audit Committee. 


External Audit 


The external auditor, the Wales Audit Office audits the financial statements of the CC 
and also reviews this Annual Governance Statement.  External audit plans and reports, 
including the Annual Audit letter, are considered by the Joint Audit Committee at 
appropriate times in the annul cycle of meetings.  


Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary (HMIC) 


The role of the HMIC is to inspect policing in the public interest and promote 
improvement in policing to make everyone safer.  HMIC also provides advice and 
support to the tripartite partners (Home Secretary, PCC and forces) and play an 
important role in the development of future leaders.  


During 2015/16, the force experienced a significant level of HMIC Inspection activity, 
with 8 Inspections carried out.  HMIC Inspection activity does provide an important level 
of governance and assurance over the management of the force, but the busy pace of 
Inspection activity over the last year has resulted in the force putting in place additional 
arrangements to co-ordinate and manage all HMIC related work within the force.  Some 
of the key Inspections carried out last year are as follows: 
 


 Police Effectiveness, Efficiency and Legitimacy – Leadership (April 2015) 


 Vulnerability (June 2015) 


 Child Sexual Exploitation (July 2015) 


 Honour Based Violence (July 2015) 


 National Child Protection (August 2015) 


 Police Effectiveness, Efficiency and Legitimacy – Regional Organised Crime 


Units (September 2015) 


HMIC reports are sent to the CC for consideration and appropriate action.  HMIC, 
working, alongside the Wales Audit Office play a key role in informing the PCC and the 
public on the operational efficiency and effectiveness of the Force and, in so doing, 
facilitate the accountability of the CC to the public. Updates and significant actions 
undertaken as a result of the HMIC activities are reported and monitored through the 
Chief Officer’s Group and the Joint Audit Committee.  


Significant governance issues and actions 


The Corporate Governance Framework was fully updated early in 2015/16 and this 


completes the action that was outstanding from the 2014/15 Annual Governance 
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Statement.  The CC has concluded that the governance framework was adequate in 


terms of the 2015/16 year however has recognised that it is in need of review and 


updating in the light of recent developments and the election of a new PCC. 


During the previous year the Force dealt appropriately with difficult issues following the   
debate reported in the media around the legality of a small number of discretionary 
payments and stopped such payments and took legal advice once it became apparent 
that there were questions over their legality. This matter has now been concluded. 


The Force has been advised on the implications of the results of the review of the 
effectiveness of the governance framework by the Corporate Governance Group, the 
Joint Audit Committee and that the arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for 
purpose. The areas already addressed during the year and those to be specifically 
addressed with new actions planned are outlined below. 


 


Governance area Action 


Risk Management Arrangements 
The Force has adopted new Risk 
Management arrangements based around 
the completion of a Dynamic and Corporate 
Risk Management reporting and monitoring.   


 
Completed 


Public First 
The “Public First” programme had been 
delivered successfully and concluded, 
however some learning needs to be 
captured.  


 
A high level post implementation 
assessment of “Public First” has been 
completed 


Code of ethics, leadership and culture 
To progress the work on-going around 
ethics, leadership and culture.   


 
Work to embed the “Code of Ethics” 
document and the new mission, vision 
and values has been completed and 
leadership development work is 
ongoing. 


Governance of Collaboration and 
Partnerships 
To reconsider corporate governance 
arrangements appropriate for collaboration 
following the publication of the findings of 
the Capita Review into further collaboration. 
To monitor and consider potential 
governance issues that could result from 
local government restructuring in Wales. 
 


 
 
A Collaborative Framework for the 
Governance of Collaboration across 
policing in Wales has been completed 
and signed off by the All Wales 
Policing Group.  
  
 
Work to enhance collaborative 
working with local public sector 
partners is being taken forward as part 
of a comprehensive Force 
Collaboration Strategy which is being 
formulated. 
 
 


Business Continuity 
The outstanding recommendation in relation 


 
Considerable progress has been 
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to Business Continuity needs to be 
addressed during 2015/16 and 2016/17.  


made in relation to the development of 
Departmental plans however this work 
remains in progress and on course for 
completion during 2016. 


Corporate Governance Framework 
Work has been initiated to review Corporate 
Governance arrangements of the Force and 
for the PCC.  


The Review is underway. This will 
also incorporate any learning that 
arises as a result of HMIC Peel 
inspection activity and the outcomes 
of the IPCC investigations referred to 
above which are currently ongoing. 


 
Declaration 


We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further 
enhance our governance arrangements.  We are satisfied that these steps will address 
the need for improvements that were identified in our reviews of effectiveness over the 
year and will monitor their implementation and operation as part of our next annual 
review. 


Signed: Signed: Signed: 


   


   


   


Simon Prince  Edwin Harries Gawain Evans 


Chief Constable 


Date: 


Chief Finance Officer 


Date: 


Chair of the Joint Audit 
Committee 


Date: 
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Auditor General for Wales’ report to the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


I have audited the accounting statements and related notes of the: 


 Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys; and  


 Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund. 


for the year ended 31 March 2016 under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.  
The Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys’ accounting statements comprise the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and Balance Sheet.  
The Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s accounting statements comprise the Fund 
Account and the Net Assets Statement. 
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable 
law and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2015-16 based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 


Respective responsibilities of the responsible financial officer and the 
independent auditor 


As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of 
Accounts as set out on page 12, the responsible financial officer is responsible for the 
preparation of the statement of accounts, including the Dyfed Powys Police Pension 
Fund’s accounting statements, which gives a true and fair view. 
My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements and related notes in accordance 
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those 
standards require me to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for 
Auditors. 


Scope of the audit of the accounting statements 


An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
accounting statements and related notes sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the 
accounting statements and related notes are free from material misstatement, whether 
caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting 
policies are appropriate to the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys and the Dyfed Powys 
Police Pension Fund’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and 
adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
the responsible financial officer; and the overall presentation of the accounting 
statements and related notes. 


In addition, I read all the financial and non-financial information in the Narrative Report to 
identify material inconsistencies with the audited accounting statements and related 
notes and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or 
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing 
the audit. If I become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies, I 
consider the implications for my report.
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Opinion on the accounting statements of the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys 


as at 31 March 2016 and of his income and expenditure for the year then ended; and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 


Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015-16.  


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund 


In my opinion, the Pension Fund accounts and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial transactions for Dyfed Powys Police Pension 


Fund during the year ended 31 March 2016 and of the amount and disposition of the 


fund’s assets and liabilities as at that date; and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 


Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015-16. 


Opinion on other matters 


In my opinion, the information contained in the Narrative Report is consistent with the 
accounting statements and related notes. 


Matters on which I report by exception 


I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters, which I report to you, if, in my 
opinion: 


 adequate accounting records have not been kept; 


 the accounting statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns;  


 I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit; or 


 the Annual Governance Statement contains material misstatements of fact or is 


inconsistent with other information I am aware of from my audit.  


Certificate of completion of audit 


I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts of Chief Constable for Dyfed Powys in 
accordance with the requirements of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and the Auditor 
General for Wales’ Code of Audit Practice. 
 
 
 
 
For and on behalf of      Wales Audit Office 
Huw Vaughan Thomas     24 Cathedral Road 
Auditor General for Wales     Cardiff 
29


th
 September 2016     CF11 9LJ 
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 


2014/15   2015/16 


Gross 
Expenditure 


Gross 
Income 


Net 
Expenditure 


 


N
o


te
 Gross 


Expenditure 
Gross 


Income 
Net 


Expenditure 


£’000 £’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 £’000 


59,752 0 59,752 Local Policing  57,247 0 57,247 


6,560 0 6,560 Dealing with the Public  7,562 0 7,562 


10,544 0 10,544 
Criminal Justice 
Arrangements 


 
11,611 0 11,611 


8,053 0 8,053 Road Policing  6,696 0 6,696 


4,117 0 4,117 Intelligence  4,257 0 4,257 


7,909 0 7,909 Operational Support  7,648 0 7,648 


11,250 0 11,250 Investigation  11,145 0 11,145 


3,190 0 3,190 Investigative Support  3,839 0 3,839 


5,779 0 5,779 National Policing  4,357 0 4,357 


325 0 325 Non Distributed Costs   0 0 0 


41 0 41 
Corporate and 
Democratic Core 


 
41 0 41 


117,520 0 117,520 Cost of Services  114,403 0 114,403 


0 0 0 
Other operating 
expenditure 


 
0 0 0 


39,221 0 39,221 
Financing and 
investment income and 
expenditure 


 


7 34,076 0 34,076 


0 (156,741) (156,741) 
Commissioning Costs 
(intra-group transfer) 


 


 
0 (148,479) (148,479) 


156,741 (156,741) 0 
(Surplus)/deficit on 
Provision of services 


 
148,479 (148,479) 0 


  126,037 Actuarial (gains)/losses 
on pension 
assets/liabilities 


   (66,541) 


  (126,037) Commissioning Costs 
(intra-group transfer) 


   66,541 


  0 Other comprehensive 
income and 
expenditure 


   0 


  0  Total comprehensive 
income and 
expenditure 


   0 
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Balance Sheet 


31
st


 March 2015   Note 31
st


 March 2016 


£’000   £’000 


0 Property, plant & equipment  0 


0 Investment property  0 


0 Intangible assets  0 


0 Assets held for sale  0 


1,046,972 Long term debtors 20 1,011,919 


1,046,972 Long term assets  1,011,919 


0 Short term investments  0 


402 Inventories 9 368 


273 Short term debtors 10 339 


0 Cash and cash equivalents  0 


(675) Intra-group transfer  (707) 


 Current assets   


0 Bank Overdraft  0 


0 Short term borrowing  0 


(3,835) Short term creditors 11 (5,607) 


0 Provisions  0 


3,835 Intra - group transfer  5,607 


 Current liabilities   


0 Long term creditors  0 


0 Long term borrowing  0 


(1,046,972) Other long term liabilities 20 (1,011,919) 


0 Provisions  0 


0 Grant receipts in advance  0 


(1,046,972) Long term liabilities  (1,011,919) 


0 Net assets/liabilities  0 


0 Usable reserves  0 


0 Unusable reserves  0 


0 Total reserves  0 
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Police Pension Fund  


 


Chief Constable Fund Account  Chief Constable 


2014/15   2015/16 


 £’000   £’000 £’000 


  Contributions receivable:    


(10,249)   Employer contributions  (10,348)  


(5,849)   Member contributions  (5,865)  


(800)  Transfers in from other pension funds  (772)  


(739)  Other income  (168)  


 (17,637)    (17,153) 


  Benefits payable:    


21,507   Pensions  22,557  


7,713   Commutations and lump sum 
retirement benefits 


 7,281  


595   Interest payable on back-dated lump 
sums 


 0  


 29,815    29,838 


  Payments to and on Account of 
Leavers: 


   


425  Transfers out to other pension funds  (476)  


0  Refunds of contributions  0  


159 584 Other expenditure  319 (157) 


 12,762 Net amount payable before transfer 
from the Police Fund 


  12,528 


 (12,762) Additional funding payable by Police 
Fund (re Home Office Grant) 


  (12,528) 


 0 Funding shortfall to be met by Police 
Fund 


  0 


 


 


Chief 
Constable  


Net Assets Statement Chief 
Constable  


2014/15  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


   


3,238 Short term debtors 49 


3,238 Net Current Assets 49 


   


(3,238) Short term provision 0 


0 Short term creditors (49) 


(3,238) Net Current Liabilities (49) 


   


0  0 


 


Details on how the Police Pension Fund is administered are included in the Explanatory 
Foreword and in the Accounting Policies Section of these accounts. 
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Funding Shortfall to be met by Police Fund 


In 2015/16 Employer Police Officer Pension scheme contributions reduced from 24.2% 
to 21.3%. The difference of 2.9% has been retained by the exchequer which represents  
the funding shortfall to be met by Police Fund. 
 


Milne v Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) court ruling 


Payments totalling £3,191k were made from the Police Pension Fund in 2015/16. An 
amount of approximately £49k is still to be paid in respect of three officers and a 
creditor for this amount has been included.  A debtor for the same amount has also 
been included reflecting a contribution from the Commissioner for income 
reimbursement, which was received as Home Office grant income by the 
Commissioner in 2015/16. 


Under HMRC rules, the above payments were classed as unauthorised payments and 
an additional charge was levied on all Police Forces.  The Home Office wrote to all 
Police Forces on 8


th
 December 2015 advising them that the costs relating to 


unauthorised payment charges would be dealt with centrally by Government and a 
payment was made by HM treasury on 29


th
 March 2016 to HMRC covering 95% of the 


outstanding amounts. The remaining 5% will be paid to HMRC by HM treasury in 
August 2016.   


As both the notional expenditure and income relating to Dyfed Powys Police’s share of 
the unauthorised payments charge would be included in the pension fund account, 
there would be an overall £nil impact on this account.  As a result these entries have 
not been made. 
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Notes to the Accounts 


1. Accounting policies  


 
General Principles  
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Chief Constable’s transactions for the 
2015/16 financial year and the position at the year-end of 31st March 2016. The Chief 
Constable is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and 
Audit (Wales) Regulations 2005 (as amended), which require them to be prepared in 
accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 and the 
Service Reporting Code of Practice 2015/16, supported by International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS).  
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally 
historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets 
and financial instruments.  
 
Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and 
Errors  
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to 
correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for 
prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not 
give rise to a prior period adjustment.  
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting 
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect 
of transactions, other events and conditions on the financial position or financial 
performance of the Chief Constable. Where a change is made, it is applied 
retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and 
comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.  
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by 
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.  
 
Accruals of Income and Expenditure  
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments 
are made or received. In particular:  


 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a 
gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption they are carried 
as inventories on the Balance Sheet. 


 Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by 
employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather 
than when payments are made. 


 Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been 
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the 
Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written 
down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected. 


 
Overheads and Support Services  
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the 
supply or service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service 
Reporting Code of Practice for Local Authorities (SeRCOP). The total absorption 
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costing principle is used – the full cost of overheads and support services are shared 
between users in proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of: 


 Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Office of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner’s status as a multi-functional, democratic organisation  


 Non Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to 
employees retiring early and impairment losses chargeable on Assets Held for 
Sale.  


These two cost categories are defined in SeRCOP and accounted for as separate 
headings in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as part of Net 
Expenditure on Continuing Services.  


 
Exceptional Items  
When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed 
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement (CIES) or in the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the 
items are to an understanding of the financial performance of the Chief Constable.  
 
Events after the Balance Sheet date  
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and 
unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the 
Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:  
 


 Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting 
period – the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events.  


 Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the 
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a 
category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of 
the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.  


 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the 
Statement of Accounts.  
 
Inventories  
Inventories are included in the balance sheet at current cost price. International 
Accounting Standard (IAS) 2 states that Inventories should be measured at the lower of 
cost and net realisable value. The policy does not therefore comply with IAS 2 but the 
difference is not material.  
 
Employee benefits  
 
Benefits Payable During Employment  
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-
end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick 
leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are 
recognised as an expense for services in the year in which the employees render 
service. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (including time off in lieu 
and flexi leave) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end, which 
employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at salary 
rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the 
employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves 
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Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which 
the holiday absence occurs.  
 
Termination Benefits  
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Chief 
Constable to terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an 
officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy or early retirement and are charged 
on an accruals basis to the appropriate service in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement when the Chief Constable is demonstrably committed to the 
termination of the employment of an officer or group of officers or making an offer to 
encourage voluntary redundancy.  
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions 
require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Chief 
Constable to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated 
according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves 
Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove 
the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and 
replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any 
such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.  
 
Post-Employment Benefits  
Police officers and police staff have the option of belonging to one of two separate 
pension schemes relevant to them: 


 Police Officers Pension Scheme, administered through a Police Pension Fund  


 Local Government Pensions Scheme, administered by Carmarthenshire County 
Council.  


Both schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and 
pensions), earned as employees worked for the Chief Constable.  
This Police Officer Pension scheme is “unfunded” which means that no investment 
assets are built up to pay pensions and other benefits in the future, and therefore no 
provision to meet the liability for future payments of benefits is included in the balance 
sheet. The relevant service is charged with the employer’s contributions payable to 
Police Officer Pensions in the year.  Information on the long term pensions liability can 
be found in Note 20.  
 
Local Government Pension Scheme  


The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:  


The liabilities attributable to the Chief Constable are included in the Balance Sheet on 
an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future 
payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by 
employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates etc. 
and projections of earnings for current employees.  


Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 3.6% 
(based on the indicative rate of return on a high quality corporate bond).  


The assets attributable to the Chief Constable are included in the Balance Sheet at 
their fair value:  


- Quoted securities – current bid price 


- Unquoted securities – professional estimate  


- Unitised securities – current bid price  
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- Property – market value.  


The change in the net pension’s liability is analysed into the following components:  


Service cost comprising: 


 Current service cost: the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service 
earned this year – allocated in the appropriate Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement to the services for which the employees worked.  


 Past service cost: the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment 
or curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – 
debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed 
Costs. 


 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), ie net interest expense for 
the Chief Constable – the change during the period in the net defined benefit 
liability (asset) that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement – this is calculated by applying the discount rate used to 
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net 
defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the period – taking into account 
any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a 
result of contribution and benefit payments.  


Re-measurements comprising: 


 The return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the net 
defined benefit liability (asset) – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 


 Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise 
because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial 
valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged to 
the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 


 Contributions paid to the pension fund: cash paid as employer’s contributions to 
the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.  


In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund 
balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Chief Constable to the pension 
fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the 
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means 
that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional 
debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash 
paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at 
the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby 
measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for 
retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by 
employees.  


 
Discretionary Benefits 
The Chief Constable also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of 
retirement benefits in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as 
a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to 
make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local 
Government Pension Scheme.  
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Leases  
The Chief Constable as Lessee (Operating Leases) 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from the use of leased 
property, plant or equipment.  Charges are made on a straight line basis over the life of 
the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. where there is a 
rent-free period at the commencement of the lease). 


 


2. Previous Period Adjustments 


There are no previous period adjustments in respect of the Chief Constable’s Accounts 
for 2015/16. 


 


3. Accounting Standards that have been issued but have  not yet been adopted 


The Code requires the Police and Crime Commissioner to disclose information 
relating to the impact of an accounting change that will be required by a new 
accounting standard that has been issued but not yet adopted by the Code.  The 
following changes will be required from 1 April 2016: 


 


 Amendments to IAS19 Employee Benefits (Defined Benefit Plans; Employee 
Contributions); 


 


 Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 – 2012 Cycle: 
 


o IFRS 2 Share-based Payment 
o IFRS 3 Business Combinations 
o IFRS 8 Operating Segments 
o IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 
o IAS16 Property, Plant and Equipment 
o IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures 
o IAS 38 Intangible Assets; 


 


 Amendment to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (Accounting for Acquisitions of 
Interests in Joint Operations); 
 


 Amendment to IAS16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS38 Intangible 
Assets (Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation); 


 


 Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 – 2014 Cycle: 
 


o IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations 
o IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 
o IAS19 Employee Benefits 
o IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting; 


 


 Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Disclosure 
Initiative); 
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 The changes to the format of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement and the introduction of the 
new Expenditure and Funding Analysis; 
 


 The changes to the format of the Pension Fund Account and the Net Assets 
Statement. 
 


In the Financial Statements for 2016/17, the effect of the changes will be assessed and 
where necessary, the comparative figures restated, however, it is anticipated that the 
changes will not have a material impact. 


 


4. Critical judgements in applying accounting policies  


Police Pension Legal Challenge - Career Average Revalued Earnings.  


The Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys, along with other Chief Constables and the Home 
Office, currently has 14 claims lodged against him with the Central London Employment 
Tribunal.  The claims are in respect of alleged unlawful discrimination arising from the 
Transitional Provisions in the Police Pension Regulations 2015.  The Tribunal is 
unlikely to consider the substance of the claims until 2017.  Legal advice suggests that 
there is a strong defence against these claims.  The quantum and who will bear the 
costs in the unlikely event that the challenge is successful are also uncertain and 
therefore at this stage it is not practicable to estimate the financial impact.  For these 
reasons, no provision has been made in the 2015/16 Accounting Statements and 
following agreement nationally, this has been accounted for as a Contingent Liability.  


 


5. Assumptions made about future and other major sources of estimation 
uncertainty 


The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions 
made by the Chief Constable about the future or that are otherwise uncertain.  
Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other 
relevant factors.  However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, 
actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates. 


The items in the Chief Constable’s Balance Sheet at 31
st
 March 2016 for which there is 


a significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 


 


Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ from 
assumptions 


Pensions 
liability 


Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions 
depends on a number of complex judgements 
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which 
salaries are projected to increase, changes in 
retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns 
on pension fund assets.  A firm of consulting 
actuaries is engaged to provide expert advice about 
the assumptions to be applied. 


The effects on the net pensions liability of 
changes in individual assumptions can be 
measured.  For instance, an increase of 0.1% 
in pay award for the police officer pension 
scheme would result in an increase to the 
pension liability of £5.191 million. 


 


6. Events after the balance sheet date  


There are no events after the balance sheet date that would affect the Chief 
Constable’s financial position for 2015/16. 
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7. Financing and investment income and expenditure 


This line contains corporate items of income and expenditure arising from 
involvement in financial instruments and similar transactions involving interest. 
 


2014/15  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


0 Interest payable and similar charges 0 


39,221 Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions assets 34,076 


0 Interest receivable and similar income 0 


0 Investment Properties income and expenditure 0 


0 Specific capital grants available during year 0 


39,221 Total 34,076 


 


8. Financial Instruments 


A Financial Instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity 
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Non-exchange 
transactions, such as those relating to taxes and government grants, do not give 
rise to financial instruments. 
 
Financial Liabilities 
A Financial Liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the 
Chief Constable and can be represented by a contractual obligation to deliver cash 
or financial assets or an obligation to exchange financial assets and liabilities with 
another entity that are potentially unfavourable to the Chief Constable. 
The Chief Constable’s non-derivative financial liabilities held during the year are 
measured at amortised cost and comprised: 
 


 Trade Payables (Creditors), 


 Liability related to Defined Benefit Pension Scheme. 
 


Financial Assets 
A Financial Asset is a right to future economic benefits controlled by the Chief 
Constable that is represented by cash or other instruments or a contractual right to 
receive cash or another financial asset. The financial assets held by the Chief 
Constable during the year are held under the following classification: 


 Loans and receivables (financial assets that have fixed or determinable 
payments and not quoted in an active market) comprising: 


 Trade Receivables (Debtors) 
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Financial Instruments – Balances 


The financial assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet are analysed across the 
following categories: 


 


*An intra-group transfer will take place from the Chief Constable’s Accounts to the 
Commissioner’s accounts based on the net current asset position as the Chief Constable is 
unable to hold cash balances. 


**An intra-group transfer will take place from the Chief Constable’s Accounts to the 
Commissioner’s accounts for the pensions liability related to the Chief Constable’s staff. 


 


Income, Expense, Gains and Losses  


No gains and losses have been recognised in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in relation to financial instruments. 


 


Fair Values  


The Chief Constable’s long-term financial liabilities are carried in the Balance Sheet at 
amortised cost.  


The 2010 Code of Practice requires the Fair Values of these assets and liabilities to be 
disclosed for comparison purposes.  Fair Value is defined in Financial Reporting 
Standard 26 (FRS 26) as the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a 
liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.  
The Fair Value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is generally the transaction 
price.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 Long Term Current 


 31
st


  March 
2015 


31
st


  March 
2016 


31
st


  March 
2015 


31
st


  March 
2016 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Trade Payables (Creditors)* 0 0 (1,293) (1,266) 


Liability related to Defined 
Benefit Pension Scheme** 


(1,047,283) (1,011,819) 0 0 


Total Financial Liabilities (1,047,283) (1,011,819) (1,293) (1,266) 


Loans and receivables:     


Trade Receivables (Debtors)* 0 0 273 338 


Total Financial Assets 0 0 273 338 
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Carrying 
amount 


Fair value 


 


Carrying 
amount 


Fair value 


31
st


   March 
2015 


31
st


 March 
2015 


31
st


   March 
2016 


31
st


 March 
2016 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


  Financial Liabilities:   


(1,047,283) (1,047,283) 
Liability related to Defined Benefit 


Pension Scheme 
(1,011,819) (1,011,819) 


311 311 
Actuarial (gains)/losses on pension 


assets/liabilities 
(100) (100) 


(1,293) (1,293) Trade Payables (Creditors) (1,266) (1,266) 


(1,048,265) (1,048,265) 
Total 


Financial Liabilities 
(1,013,185) (1,013,185) 


  Financial Assets:   


273 273 Trade Receivables (Debtors) 338 338 


273 273 Total Financial Assets 338 338 


Financial Liabilities 


The liability related to the Defined Benefit Pension Scheme has been assessed on an 
actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the pensions that will be 
payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels 
etc.  The fair value of this liability at the Balance Sheet date is therefore the same as 
the carrying amount. 
 
For trade payables, the carrying value has been used as a reasonable approximation of 
fair value therefore the fair value at the Balance Sheet date is the same as the carrying 
amount. 


 
Financial Assets 
For trade receivables, the carrying value has been used as a reasonable approximation 
of fair value therefore the fair value at the Balance Sheet date is the same as the 
carrying amount. 
 


9. Inventories 


 Franking and uniform 
consumable stores 


Fleet maintenance 
materials 


Total 


 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Balance outstanding at start of 
year: 


358 322 86 80 444 402 


Purchases 362 316 229 247 591 563 


Recognised as an expense in the 
year 


(372) (336) (225) (251) (597) (587) 


Written off balances (26) (10) (10) 0 (36) (10) 


Reversals of write offs in previous 
year/average price adjustment 


0 0 0 0 0 0 


Balance outstanding at year end 
322 292 80 76 402 368 
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10. Short-term Debtors  


 


31
st


 March 2015 - 
Restated 


 31
st


 March 2016 


£’000  £’000 


0 Central Government bodies 0 


0 Local authorities 3 


23 Other Police Bodies 0 


8 Other Public Bodies 0 


242 Limited Companies 327 


0 Other entities and individuals 9 


0 Value added tax claims 0 


273 Total 339 


 


11.  Short-term Creditors 


 


31
st


 March 2015  31
st


 March 2016 


£’000  £’000 


658 Central Government bodies 379 


577 Local authorities 692 


418 Other Police Bodies 1,848 


45 Other Public Bodies 36 


1,071 Limited Companies 1,400 


1,066 Other entities and individuals 1,252 


3,835 Total 5,607 


 


12.  Amounts reported for resource allocation decisions 


The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement is that specified by the Service Reporting Code of 
Practice (SeRCOP). However, decisions about resource allocation are taken by the 
Chief Constable on the basis of budget reports analysed across subjective headings. 


These reports are prepared on a different basis from the accounting policies used in the 
financial statements.  In particular: 


 no charges are made in relation to capital expenditure (whereas depreciation, 
revaluation and impairment losses in excess of the balance on the Revaluation 
Reserve and amortisations are charged to services in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement) 


 the cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of employer’s 
pensions contributions) rather than current service cost of benefits accrued in the 
year 


 expenditure on some support services is budgeted for centrally and not charged to 
Divisions and Departments. 


The income and expenditure of the Chief Constable’s principal directorates recorded in 
the budget reports for the year is as follows:  
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Directorate Income and Expenditure 2015/16 


 Territorial 
Policing 


Investigations Central Total 
Directorate 


Analysis 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


0 0 
0 


0 


Government grants 0 0 0 0 


Total Income 0 0 0 0 


Employee costs 48,706 17,828 6,221 72,755 


Premises costs 67 65 108 240 


Transport costs 732 173 345 1,250 


Supplies & services 2,302 1,528 201 4,031 


Agency & contracted 
services 


66 128 1,638 1,832 


Total Expenditure 51,873 19,722 8,513 80,108 


Net Expenditure 51,873 19,722 8,513 80,108 


Directorate Income and Expenditure 2014/15  


 Territorial 
Policing 


Investigations Central Total 
Directorate 


Analysis 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


0 0 0 0 


Government grants 0 0 0 0 


Total Income 0 0 0 0 


Employee costs 43,235 12,361 21,935 77,531 


Premises costs 347 97 97 541 


Transport costs 1,207 170 166 1,543 


Supplies & services 2,049 1,465 127 3,641 


Agency & contracted 
services 


54 145 1,192 1,391 


Total Expenditure 46,892 14,238 23,517 84,647 


Net Expenditure 46,892 14,238 23,517 84,647 


 


Reconciliation of Directorate Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 


This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of Directorate income and 
expenditure relate to the amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 


Chief 
Constable 


2014/15 


 Chief 
Constable 


2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


84,647 Net expenditure in the Directorate Analysis 80,108 


21,175 
Net amounts of services and support services not 
included in the Analysis 


24,724 


11,698 
Amounts in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement not reported to management in 
the Analysis 


9,571 


0 
Amounts included in the Analysis not included in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 


0 


117,520 
Cost of services in Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 


114,403 
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Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis 


This reconciliation shows how the figures in the Directorate Analysis of Income and 
Expenditure relate to a subjective analysis of the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 


 


Financial year 2015/16 
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


0 0 0 0 0 0 


Interest & investment 
income 


0 0 0 0 0 0 


Income from council tax 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Government grants & 
contributions 


0 0 0 0 0 0 


Gain or loss on disposal 
of non-current assets 


0 0 0 0 0 0 


Intra-Group Transfer 0 0 0 0 (148,479) (148,479) 


Total Income 0 0 0 0 (148,479) (148,479) 


Employee costs 72,755 15,749 (1,166) 87,338 0 87,338 


Premises costs 240 3,265 (228) 3,277 0 3,277 


Transport costs 1,250 893 (145) 1,998 0 1,998 


Supplies & services 4,031 4,296 76 8,403 0 8,403 


Agency & contracted 
services 


1,832 521 150 2.503 0 2,503 


Pension costs 0 0 7,834 7,834 34,076 41,910 


Charge for Use of Non-
Current Assets 


0 0 3,050 3,050 0 3,050 


Total Expenditure 80,108 24,724 9,571 114,403 34,076 148,479 


Surplus or deficit on the 
provision of services 


80,108 24,724 9,571 114,403 (114,403) 0 
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Financial year 2014/15  
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


0 0 0 0 0 0 


Interest & investment 
income 


0 0 0 0 0 0 


Income from council tax 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Government grants & 
contributions 


0 0 0 0 0 0 


Gain or loss on disposal of 
non-current assets 


0 0 0 0 0 0 


Intra-Group Transfer    0 (156,741) (156,741) 


Total Income 0 0 0 0 (156,741) (156,741) 


Employee costs 77,531 12,954 1,288 91,773 0 91,773 


Premises costs 541 2,787 149 3,477 0 3,477 


Transport costs 1,543 840 179 2,562 0 2,562 


Supplies & services 3,641 4,037 438 8,116 0 8,116 


Agency & contracted 
services 


1,391 557 (840) 1,108 0 1,108 


Pension costs 0 0 7,178 7,178 39,221 46,399 


Charge for use of Non-
Current Assets 


0 0 3,306 3,306 0 3,306 


Total Expenditure 84,647 21,175 11,698 117,520 39,221 156,741 


Surplus or deficit on the 
provision of services 


84,647 21,175 11,698 117,520 (117,520) 0 
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13. Agency services 


Pension services provided by Carmarthenshire County Council  


The council administer the Local Government and Police Pension schemes and levy 
an annual fee based on the number of active and deferred members, as well as 
actual pensioners. A cost is also incurred for maintenance and the annual benefit 
statements. 


 


2014/15  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


62 Expenditure incurred in administering the Police and 
Local Government Pension Schemes 


82 


62 Net surplus arising on the agency arrangements 82 


14. Collaborative Arrangements  


Police forces in Wales have a long, successful history of collaborating to develop 
specialist areas of policing. This included those under the remit of the former Police 
Authorities of Wales Joint Committee. Future collaboration will be driven by the need 
to satisfy the Strategic Policing Requirement and by the outcomes of the Regional 
Strategic Assessment of threats, risks and harm to the southern region of Wales.  
 
The Police and Crime Commissioner for each Police Force will be responsible for 
ensuring the Strategic Policing Requirement is met.  As part of this, he will look to 
work in collaboration with other Commissioner’s and forces to provide the most 
effective service possible. Such agreements are regulated by Section 22A of the 
Police Act 1996, as amended by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 
2011.  
 
The collaborative services and their funding continue under revised Commissioner 
and Force Governance arrangements. These are in effect considered as ‘Pooled 
Budgets’ with agreements for Funding Contributions, made and varied from time to 
time, and certain Specific Government Grants. The pooled budgets are effectively 
hosted by the Commissioner and Force for South Wales Police on behalf of the four 
police forces in Wales.   
The CIPFA guidance on “Accounting for Collaboration requires the Commissioner 
and Force to assess all collaborative activity and categorise these into either joint 
operations or joint ventures and account for their fair share of expenditure income, 
assets and liabilities in their individual accounts.  
 
The Expenditure and Income Statements for the main collaborative arrangements 
are provided below:  
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Pay Expenditure 4,179 411 2,389 3,610 1,873 9,670 22,132 


Non Pay Expenditure 1,504 29 172 965 627 1,569 4,866 


Gross Expenditure 5,683 440 2,561 4,575 2,500 11,239 26,998 


Specific Grant Income (5,664) (440) (2,556) (2,613) (500) 0 (11,773) 


Income (19) 
 


0 (5) (274) (99) (16) (413) 


Total Income & Grants (5,683) (440) (2,561) (2,887) (599) (16) (12,186) 


Force Contributions (Net) 0 0 0 (1,688) (1,901) (11,223) (14,812) 


(Surplus) or Deficit 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


 
Finance representatives from all Forces in Wales met with representatives of the 
Wales Audit Office on the 29


th
 January 2016.  At this meeting, the cost 


apportionment method for each Collaborative Arrangement was agreed.  The tables 
below show each Force’s contribution towards Expenditure and Income:  
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Dyfed-Powys 950 74 552 986 525 3,182 6,269 


Gwent 1,067 83 620 1,107 625 2,764 6,266 


North Wales 1,276 99 Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 1,375 


South Wales 2,390 184 1,389 2,482 1,350 5,293 13,088 


Gross Expenditure   5,683 440 2,561 4,575 2,500 11,239 26,998 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Dyfed-Powys (950) (74) (552) (622) (126) (4) (2,328) 


Gwent (1,067) (83) (620) (699) (150) (4) (2,623) 


North Wales (1,276) (99) Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 (1,375) 


South Wales (2,390) (184) (1,389) (1,566) (323) 
 


(8) (5,860) 


Total Income & Grants  
(5,683) (440) (2,561) (2,887) (599) (16) (12,186) 







 Single Entity Statement of Accounts 2015/16 
 
 


45 


 


Note 1: North Wales Police are basing their costs and income on actual costs rather than an allocation on 
Welsh population.  Furthermore, they are not included in the Regional Task Force, which operates in the 
Southern Welsh Forces and for the Regional Organised Crime Unit, they contribute to the North West region 
of England and North Wales. 


 


Each force may hold their own reserves for collaborative purposes.
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15.  Officers’ remuneration  


Senior employees - The remuneration paid to the Chief Constable’s senior employees is as follows: 


 


      


Salary 
(including fees 


and 
allowances) 


Benefits in 
kind - lease 


cars 


Benefits in 
kind - 


relocation 
expenses 


Other Payments 


Total 
remuneration 


excluding 
pension 


contributions 


Pension 
contributions 


Total 
remuneration 


including 
pension 


contributions 


          Note 1         


  Year Note £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 


Chief Constable  
2015/16   127,465 4,192 0 0 131,657 27,517 159,174 


2014/15   126,237 4,425 0 0 130,662 29,733 160,395 


Deputy Chief Constable  
2015/16 2 115,856 3,501 0 0 119,357 27,034 146,391 


2014/15 3 113,978 4,106 0 5,593 123,677 26,766 150,443 


T/Deputy Chief Constable  
2015/16 4 44,558 1,570 0 0 46,127 10,783 56,910 


2014/15   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Assistant Chief Constable  
2015/16 5 36,669 2,382 30,139 0 69,190 8,874 78,064 


2014/15   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


T/Assistant Chief Constable 
2015/16 6 64,014 1,846 0 0 65,860 13,953 79,813 


2014/15 7 50,130 2,184 0 0 52,314 11,765 64,079 


Director of Finance / Chief 
Financial Officer to the Chief 
Constable 


2015/16   68,007 0 0 0 68,007 7,889 75,896 


2014/15   64,647 0 0 0 64,647 7,499 72,146 


Director of Resources 
2015/16   68,007 0 0 0 68,007 7,889 75,896 


2014/15 8 42,065 0 0 0 42,065 4,846 46,911 


Director of Legal and 
Compliance 


2015/16   69,498 0 0 0 69,498 0 69,498 


2014/15   68,175 0 0 0 68,175 0 68,175 


Total 2015/16     594,074 13,491 30,139 0 637,704 103,939 741,642 


Total 2014/15     465,232 10,715 0 5,593 481,540 80,609 562,149 
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Note 1: Under the Chief Officer Relocation Package Policy, Chief Officers who relocate their main home to the force 
area are entitled to receive reimbursement of their relocation expenses. This is in accordance with Winsor 
Recommendation 37, which states that Police and Crime Commissioners "should be required to pay all reasonable 
costs arising from the sale and purchase of a chief officer's house and should pay all tax liabilities arising from any 
relocation packages, so that, for the chief officer concerned, there is no personal financial disadvantage.” 


Note 2: The Deputy Chief Constable was seconded to the role of "DCC - All Wales" from 08/11/15 - present. There 
was no change in remuneration as a result of this appointment.       


Note 3:  The figure of £5,593 in the 'Other Payments' column relates to reimbursement of the benefit in kind tax 
liability that was incurred as a result of relocation expenses paid to the Deputy Chief Constable in 2012/13 and the 
resultant change in tax code.  This was in accordance with Winsor Recommendation 37 (see note 1). 


Note 4: The Assistant Chief Constable was promoted to Temporary Deputy Chief Constable from 08/11/2015 
onwards. The annualised salary for this post in 2015/16 was £112,173.      


Note 5: The Assistant Chief Constable was appointed on 29/06/15 and was in post until 07/11/2015 (see note 4).  
The annualised salary for this post in 2015/16 was £102,822.       


Note 6: The Temporary Assistant Chief Constable was in post between 01/04/2016 - 27/06/2015 and 15/11/2015 - 
31/03/2016. The annualised salary for this post in 2015/16 was £102,822.     


Note 7: The Temporary Assistant Chief Constable was appointed on 28/09/2014.  The annualised salary for this post 
in 2014/15 was £95,245.          


Note 8:  The Director of Resources was appointed on 11/08/2014.  The annualised salary for this post in 2014/15 
was £65,229.           
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Other employees 


The other Chief Constable employees receiving more than £60,000 remuneration for 
the year (excluding employer’s pension contributions) were paid the following 
amounts: 


2014/15  2015/16 


Number of employees  Number of employees 


6 £60,000 - £64,999* 4 


5 £65,000 - £69,999 5 


1 £70,000 - £74,999* 1 


4 £75,000 - £79,999 3 


3 £80,000 - £84,999 3 


1 £85,000 - £89,999 2 
 


*In 2014-15 the remuneration paid to two individuals, one in the £60,000 - £64,999 bracket and the other in the £70,000 - 
£74,999 bracket, included compensation for loss of office.   


Ratio of Chief Constable Remuneration 


The revision to the Accounts and Audit Regulations (Wales) in 2014 has added a new 
requirement to report the following remuneration ratio information.  Remuneration 
includes Basic salary, overtime, allowances and benefits in kind: 
 


a. the remuneration of the body’s Chief Constable during the year to which the 
accounts relate 


b. the median full-time equivalent remuneration of all the body’s employees in post 
at 31


st
 March 2015; and 


c. the ratio of the amount in sub-paragraph (a) to the amount in sub-paragraph (b);  
 


The remuneration of the Chief Constable for 2015/16 was £131,657. 


The median full-time equivalent remuneration of all the Chief Constable’s 
employees as at 31


st
 March 2016 was £35,254. 


The ratio of the Chief Constable’s remuneration to the median Chief Constable 
employee’s remuneration was 3.75:1. 


 


Exit Packages 


The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the 
redundancies during 2015/16 is set out in the table below: 


Exit package cost 
band 


Number of Voluntary 
Redundancies in each 


band 
Cost of Redundancies in each band 


No. 
Redundancy Pension Strain Total 


£’000 £’000 £’000 


£0 - £20,000 1* 6 0 6 


£20,001 - £40,000 0 0 0 0 


£40,001 - £60,000 0 0 0 0 


£60,001 - £80,000 0 0 0 0 


£80,001 - £100,000 0 0 0 0 


£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 


£150,000+ 0 0 0 0 


  1 6 0 6 
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*No staff exited the organisation during 2015/16; however, a member of staff who exited 
the organisation in 2014/15 received an increase to their exit package in 2015/16. 


The total cost of the exit packages in the table above has been charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account in the current year. The cost of the 
Redundancies is included in the Service Analysis and the Pension Strain as a Non 
Distributed Cost. 


In comparison, the number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the 
redundancies during 2014/15 is set out in the table below: 


Exit 
package 


cost band 


Number of Voluntary 
Redundancies in each 


band 
Cost of Redundancies in each band 


No. 
Redundancy Pension Strain Total 


£’000 £’000 £’000 


£0 - £20,000 28 321 84 405 


£20,001 - £40,000 13 374 91 465 


£40,001 - £60,000 1 45 0 45 


£60,001 - £80,000 0 0 0 0 


£80,001 - £100,000 0 0 0 0 


£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 


£150,000+ 0 0 0 0 


  42 740 175 915 


 


Audit Committee members 


The Commissioner and Chief Constable have appointed a Joint Audit Committee to 
provide an additional source of assurance to the Commissioner and the Chief Constable 
that systems of internal control are working effectively and that internal audit are 
operating within their Code of Practice. Payments made to these members are included 
within this note. 


The Scheme of Governance states that the Joint Audit Committee members’ expenses 
should be split equally between the Commissioner and Chief Constable. In 2015/16, 
50% of the cost of allowances and expenses paid is not material and has not been 
accounted for in the Chief Constable’s accounts. 


 


16. External audit costs 


The Chief Constable has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the 
Statement of Accounts, certification of grant claims and statutory inspections and to non-
audit services provided by the Chief Constable’s external auditors: 
 


2014/15  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


41 Fees payable to the Auditor General for Wales with regard to external audit services 
carried out under the Code of Audit Practice prepared by the Auditor General for 
Wales 


41 


0 Fees payable to the Auditor General for Wales in respect of statutory inspections 0 


0 Fees payable to the Auditor General for Wales for the certification of grant claims and 
returns for the year 


0 


41 Total 41 
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In 2014/15 the Group received a payment of £15,772 as a result of a redistribution of 
reserves to local government / police bodies and a refund of £3,381 in respect of the 
2013/14 performance fee. These amounts have not been reflected in the figures 
above.  


 


17. Related parties 


The Chief Constable is required to disclose material transactions with related parties, 
i.e. bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Chief 
Constable or to be controlled or influenced by the Chief Constable.  Disclosure of 
these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Chief Constable 
might have been constrained in his ability to operate independently or might have 
secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Chief 
Constable. 


Central Government 


Central government has significant influence over the general operations of the Chief 
Constable; it is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the 
Chief Constable operates and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that 
the Chief Constable has with other parties.   


The Chief Constable has business relationships with Central Government Bodies, 
giving rise to income and expenditure transactions as follows:  


 


2014/15  2015/16 


Income Expenditure  Income Expenditure 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


0 455 Home Office 0 764 


0 6 Welsh Government 0 3 


 


Joint Audit Committee Members 


The Joint Audit Committee provides an additional source of assurance to the 
Commissioner and the Chief Constable that systems of internal control are working 
effectively and that internal audit is operating within their Code of Practice. 


None of the Joint Audit Committee members, or parties related to them, have 
undertaken any material transactions with the Chief Constable in 2015/16.   


Senior Officers 


The IPCC has an investigation underway following referral by the Force into 


allegations received against the Director of Legal and Compliance. The allegations 


relate to payments made by Dyfed Powys Police for legal services over a number of 


years to a barrister’s chamber where her then husband worked. The IPCC is 


investigating what role the Director of Legal and Compliance had in instructing the 


chambers, in signing off any invoices and whether a potential conflict of interest was 


declared when required in line with force policies and procedures.  


Payments totalling £14,461 were made to these chambers for legal services carried 
out during 2015/16. 


There were no material transactions between the Group/Commissioner and other 
Senior Officers, or parties related to them.  
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Other Public Bodies (subject to common control by central government) 


The Chief Constable has business relationships with the Precepting Bodies, giving 
rise to income and expenditure transactions as follows: 


 


2014/15  2015/16 


Income Expenditure  Income Expenditure 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


0 930 Carmarthenshire County Council 0 4,300 


0 146 Ceredigion County Council 0 139 


0 175 Pembrokeshire County Council 0 264 


0 142 Powys County Council 0 197 


 


Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Chief Constable 


There are no entities controlled or significantly influenced by the Chief Constable. 


 


18.  Leases 


Chief Constable as Lessee 


Finance Leases 


The Chief Constable does not have any Finance Leases. 


Operating Leases 


The Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys leases property from other property owners 
where appropriate and affordable, to provide suitable accommodation for operational 
policing and support. Dyfed Powys also has operating leases for plant and 
equipment which includes photocopiers.  


The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future 
years are: 


 


31st March 2015  31st March 2016 


£’000  £’000 


181 Not later than one year 168 


551 Later than one year and not later than five years 416 


1,146 Later than five years 977 


1,878 Total 1,561 


 


The expenditure charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
during the year in relation to these leases was: 


 


2014/15  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


292 Minimum lease payments 235 


0 Contingent rents 0 


0 (Sublease payments receivable) 0 


292 Total 0 
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Chief Constable as Lessor 


Finance Leases 


The Chief Constable does not have any finance leases. 


Operating Leases 


The Chief Constable does not have any operating leases. 
 


19. Termination benefits  


During 2015/16 no staff exited the organisation under redundancy. However, one 
individual who exited the organisation in 2014/15 received an increase to their exit 
package during 2015/16, which cost the Chief Constable £6k. This was funded from 
the recurring revenue budget.  


Further details regarding exit packages payable to senior officers are included within 
note 14. 


20.  Defined benefit pension schemes  


Participation in Pension schemes 


As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Chief Constable 
makes contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits.  Although these 
benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Chief Constable has a 
commitment to make the payments that needs to be disclosed at the time that 
employees earn their future entitlement. 


 


The Chief Constable participates in two post-employment schemes: 


 The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered locally by 
Carmarthenshire County Council – this is a funded defined benefit final salary 
scheme, meaning that the Chief Constable and employees pay contributions into 
a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with 
investment assets. It should be noted that all staff are employed by the PCC, 
however for the majority of staff direction and control lies with the Chief 
Constable. Costs have been apportioned to reflect this. 


 The Police Officer Pension Scheme – this is an unfunded defined benefit final 
salary scheme, consequently the fund has no investment assets. Benefits 
payable are funded by contributions from employers and employees with any 
difference between benefits payable and contributions receivable being met by 
the top-up grant from the Home Office via the Commissioner. 


Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits 


The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the reported cost of services when 
they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as 
pensions. 


These costs are reversed out of the Chief Constable’s accounts into the 
Commissioner’s accounts as the Chief Constable is not responsible for holding any 
reserves. This is shown below as an intra-group transfer: 
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 Local Government 
Pension Scheme 


Police Pension Scheme 


  2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 


  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement: 


     


Cost of services:      


 Current service cost  (2,949) (4,189) (19,153) (19,508) 


 Past service cost  (230) 0 (0) (3,199) 


 Other  (92) (94) (0) (0) 


Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure: 


     


 Net interest cost  (596) (988) (38,625) (33,088) 


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to 
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services 


 (3,867) (5,271) (57,778) (55,795) 


Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement: 


     


Re-measurement of the net defined benefit 
liability comprising: 


     


 Return on plan assets (excluding the 
amount included in the net interest 
expense) 


 8,348 (3,960) (0) (0) 


 Experience (gain)/loss  (0) (0) 35,173 0 


 Re-measurement gains and losses 
arising on changes in demographic 
assumptions 


 0 0 0 0 


 Re-measurement  gains and losses 
arising on changes in financial 
assumptions 


 (23,160) 8,711 (146,398) 61,790 


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to 
the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 


 (18,679) (520) (169,003) 5,995 


Commissioning Costs (intra–group 
transfer) 


 18,679 520 169,003 (5,995) 


Total net cost  0 0 0 0 


Movement in Reserves Statement:      


 Reversal of net charges made to the 
Surplus or Deficit for the Provision of 
Services for post employment 
benefits in accordance with the 
Code 


 0 0 0 0 


Actual amount charged against the General 
Fund Balance for pensions in the year: 


     


 Employers’ contributions payable to 
scheme 


 0 0   


 Employers’ contributions payable to 
scheme  


   0 0 


 


An intra-group transfer has been processed to the Chief Constable’s accounts, as the 
Chief Constable is not responsible for managing reserves. 
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Pensions Assets and Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet 


The majority of the employment costs are incurred by the Chief Constable, therefore 
assets and liabilities relating to post-employment benefits remain within the Chief 
Constable accounts. 


The net liability arising from the defined benefit obligation: 


 


 Local Government Pension 
Scheme 


Police Pension Scheme 


2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 


£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Present value of the defined 
benefit obligation 


(124,805) (123,284) (1,016,308) (982,911) 


Fair value of plan assets 93,830 94,376 0 0 


Net liability arising from 
defined benefit obligation 


(30,975) (28,908) (1,016,308) (982,911) 


 


The total liability recorded in the Chief Constable’s accounts is £1,011,919 million.  
Due to materiality levels no split is available between the Chief Constable’s and 
Commissioner’s accounts, therefore the figure stated above is for the Group. 


 


Reconciliation of the movements in the Fair value of Scheme (Plan) Assets: 


 


 Local Government Pension 
Scheme 


Police Pension Scheme 


2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 


£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Opening fair value of scheme 
assets 


80,472 93,830 0 0 


Interest income 3,733 3,214 0 0 


Re-measurement gain / (loss)     


 The return on plan 
assets, excluding the 
amount included in the 
net interest expense 


8,348 (3,960) 0 0 


Contributions from employer 2,641 2,596 0 0 


Contributions from employees 
into the scheme 


1,205 1,238 0 0 


Benefits paid (2,477) (2,448) 0 0 


Other (if applicable) (92) (94) 0 0 


Closing fair value of scheme 
assets 


93,830 94,376 0 0 
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Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation): 


 


 Funded Liabilities: Local 
Government Pension Scheme 


Unfunded Liabilities: Police 
Pension Scheme 


2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 


£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Opening Balance at 1st April: (95,019) (124,805) (869,128) (1,016,308) 


Current service cost (3,011) (4,277) (19,153) (19,508) 


Interest cost (4,341) (4,223) (38,625) (33,088) 


Contributions from scheme participants (1,205) (1,238) (5,849) (5,862) 


Actuarial gains and (losses)     


 Actuarial gains / losses arising 
from changes in demographic 
assumptions 


0 0 0 0 


 Actuarial gains / losses arising 
from changes in financial 
assumptions 


(23,471) 8,811 (146,398) 61,790 


 Other (if applicable) 0 0 35,173 0 


Past service cost 0 0 0 (3,199) 


Losses / (gains) on curtailment (where 
relevant) 


(235) 0 0 0 


Benefits Paid 2,477 2,448 27,672 33,264 


Liabilities extinguished on settlements 
(where relevant) 


(0) (0) (0) (0) 


Closing balance at 31st March (124,805) (123,284) (1,016,308) (982,911) 


 


Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised: 


 


 Fair value of Scheme assets 


2014/15 2015/16 


£’000 £’000 


Cash and cash equivalents 695 397 


Equity instruments 64,104 65,214 


Bonds 19,385 18,252 


Property 9,646 10,513 


Total Assets 93,830 94,376 


 


Basis for estimating Assets and Liabilities 


Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit 
method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on 
assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels etc. 


Both the LGPS and Police Officer pension scheme liabilities have been estimated by 
Mercer Human Resource Consulting, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the 
LGPS Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2014. 


The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been: 
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 Local Government Pension 
Scheme 


Police Pension Scheme 


 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 


Mortality assumptions:     


Longevity at 65 (60 for police scheme) 
for current pensioners: 


    


 Men 23.3 23.4 27.2 27.6 


 Women 25.8 25.9 29.7 30.2 


Longevity at 65 (60 for police scheme) 
for future pensioners: 


    


 Men 25.5 25.7 29.7 30.3  


 Women 28.1 28.2 32.2 


 


32.5 


Other assumptions:     


Rate of  inflation 2.1% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 


Rate of increase in salaries 3.6% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 


Rate of increase in pensions 2.1% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 


Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 3.4% 3.6% 3.3% 3.6% 


 


The estimation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to actuarial assumptions 
set out in the table above.  


The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonable possible 
changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and 
assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other 
assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume 
that life expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In practice, this is 
unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The 
estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the 
scheme i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The 
methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below 
did not change from those used in the previous period. 


 


Local Government Police Scheme 2015/16 Impact on the defined benefit obligation in the 
scheme 


Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption 


£’000 £’000 


Longevity (increase or decrease by 1 year) 2,296 0 


Rate of inflation (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 2,869 0 


Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 1,012 0 


Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease 
by 0.1%) 


0 2,805 


Police Pension Scheme 2015/16 Impact on the defined benefit obligation in the 
scheme 


Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption 


£’000 £’000 


Longevity (increase or decrease by 1 year) 18,928 0 


Rate of inflation (increase of decrease by 0.1%) 20,191 0 


Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 5,191 0 


Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease 
by 0.1%) 


0 19,752 
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Impact on the Group’s Cash flows 


The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a 
rate as possible. The Group has agreed a strategy with the scheme’s actuary to 
achieve a funding level of 100% over the next 3 years. The triennial valuation was 
completed on 31


st
 March 2014 and details of the future employers’ rates are shown 


below: 


 


Year Employer rate 


2016/17 11.6% 


 


21. Contingent Liabilities 


The Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys, along with other Chief Constables and the 
Home Office, currently has 14 claims lodged against them with the Central London 
Employment Tribunal.  The claims are in respect of alleged unlawful discrimination 
arising from the Transitional Provisions in the Police Pension Regulations 2015.  The 
Tribunal is unlikely to consider the substance of the claims until 2017.  Legal advice 
suggests that there is a strong defence against these claims.  The quantum and who 
will bear the cost is also uncertain, if the claims are partially or fully successful and 
therefore at this stage it is not practicable to estimate the financial impact.  For these 
reasons, no provision has been made in the 2015/16 Accounting Statements. 
 
Police Officers who have accrued 30 years’ service are entitled to opt out from the 
Pension Scheme. This only applies to officers who are members of the 1987 pension 
scheme. There is the potential that some officers may claim that they have overpaid 
pension contributions and as such, they might be entitled to make a claim. No claims 
have been submitted to date and it would be difficult to provide a reliable estimate for 
such costs at this point in time. We have estimated that there would be a maximum 
of 5 Dyfed-Powys Police Officers affected.  


 


22. Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments 


Credit Risk 


Trade Receivables 


The following analysis summarises the Chief Constable’s potential maximum 
exposure credit risk, based on the experience gathered over the last five financial 
years on the level of default on trade debtors, adjusted for current market 
conditions. As per the Code of Practice requirements, the disclosure below includes 
details only of debtors that have arisen as a result of trading activities. Balances and 
transactions arising from statutory functions (i.e. tax and NNDR payments) are 
excluded from this disclosure note, as they have not arisen from contractual trading 
activities. 


 


Group Gross Debtors 


£’000 


 


Bad Debt Provision for 
the Group 2015/16 


£’000 


Bad Debt Provision for 
2015/16 as a % of 


Group Trade Debtors 


1,743 109 6.25 
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Glossary of Terms 
 


Term Definition 


2014/15 This refers to the period covered by these accounts – 1 April 
2015 to 31 March 2016 


2015/16 This refers to the period covered by these accounts - 1 April 
2014 to 31 March 2015. 


Accounting policies These are a set of rules and codes of practice the used when 
preparing the accounts. 


Actuarial gains and losses For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial 
deficits or surpluses that arise because: 


 Events have not coincided with the actuarial 
assumptions made in the last valuation ;or 


 The actuarial assumptions have changed. 


Carrying value The carrying value of an asset is the value of the asset included 
in the Balance Sheet. 


CIPFA The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, one 
of the professional accountancy bodies in the UK.  CIPFA 
specialises in the public services and has responsibility for 
setting accounting standards for these services. 


Commissioning The entire cycle of assessing the needs of people in a local 
area, designing services, and then securing them. 


Consumer Price Index (CPI) Official measure of the general level of inflation as reflected in 
the retail price of goods and services – excludes mortgage 
interest payments, council tax and other housing costs. 


Contingent liabilities These exist where: 


 a possible obligation arises from past events and whose 
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the 
organisations control; or 


 a present obligation arises from past events but is not 
recognised because: 


i. it is not probable that a transfer of economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, 
or 


ii. the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
with sufficient reliability. 


Corporate and democratic 
core costs 


 


These represent the costs of delivering public accountability and 
representation in policy-making and meeting the 
Commissioner’s statutory reporting obligations. 


Corporation sole A corporation sole is a legal entity consisting of a single ("sole") 
incorporated office, occupied by a single ("sole") man or woman 
i.e. the Commissioner and Chief Constable are both 
corporations sole under the PRSRA. 


Current assets 


 


Current assets are items that can be readily converted into cash.  


By convention the items are ordered by reference to the ease 
that such conversion into cash can be carried out. 



http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Juristic_person
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Term Definition 


Current liabilities 


 


Current liabilities are items that are due immediately or in the 
short – term. 


Current service cost 
(Pensions) 


The increase in the present value of a defined benefit scheme’s 
liability expected to arise from employee service in the current 
period. 


Curtailment Changes in liabilities relating respectively to actions that relieve 
the employer of primary responsibility for a pension obligation 
(e.g. a group of employees being transferred to another 
scheme) or events that reduce the expected years of future 
service of employees or reduce the accrual of defined benefits 
over their future service for some employees (e.g. closing a 
business unit). 


Defined benefit scheme A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a 
defined contribution scheme. Usually, the scheme rules define 
the benefits independently of the contributions payable, and the 
benefits are not directly related to the investments of the 
scheme. The schemes may be funded or unfunded. 


Defined contribution 
scheme 


A pension or other retirement benefit scheme into which an 
employer pays regular contributions fixed as an amount or as a 
percentage of pay and will have no legal or constructive 
obligation to pay further contributions if the scheme does not 
have sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to 
employee service in the current and prior periods. 


Delegation Is the partnership of authority and responsibility to another 
person to carry out specific activities. The person who delegated 
the work remains accountable for the outcome of the delegated 
work. 


Fair value The fair value of an asset is the price at which it could be 
exchanged in an arm’s length transaction less, where 
applicable, any grants receivable towards the purchase of the 
asset. 


Finance lease A lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership of a non-current asset to the lessee. Such a transfer 
of risks and rewards may be presumed to occur if at the 
inception of the lease the present value of the minimum lease 
payments, including any initial payment, amounts to 
substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset. 


Financial instrument Any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one entity 
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 


A derivative financial instrument is a financial contract that 
derives its value from changes in underlying assets or indices. 


FRS Financial Reporting Standards, as agreed by the UK 
accountancy profession and the Accounting Standards Board.  
These include Statements of Standard Accounting Practice 
(SSAPs). 


Group accounts The financial statements of the group i.e. the two corporations 
sole, presented as a single economic entity. 
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Term Definition 


Interest cost (Pensions) For a defined benefit scheme, the expected increase during the 
period in the present value of the scheme liabilities because the 
benefits are one period closer to settlement. 


Merger accounting Merger accounting should be applied where there is a transfer of 
functions in full from the responsibility of one authority to 
another. Where merger accounting applies it is assumed that 
the merger took place at the beginning of the accounting period. 


National Non Domestic 
Rates (NNDR) 


The non-domestic rates, or business rates, collected by local 
councils are the means by which businesses and others who 
occupy non-domestic property make a contribution towards the 
cost of local services. The rates are pooled by central 
government and redistributed to local councils and 
Commissioner according to a formula. 


Past service cost For a defined benefit scheme, the increase in the present value 
of the scheme liabilities related to employee service in prior 
periods arising in the current period as a result of the 
introduction of, or improvement to, retirement benefits. 


Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act (PRSRA) 


An Act of the Parliament of the United Kingdom which 
transferred the control of police forces from police authorities to 
elected Police and Crime Commissioners 


Prudential borrowing  Borrowing by local authorities without government financial 
support, but in accordance with the CIPFA prudential code of 
local authority borrowing  


Retail Price Index (RPI) Official measure of the general level of inflation as reflected in 
the retail price of a basket of goods and services, including 
mortgage costs, council tax and other household costs. 


Revenue Budget The estimate of annual income and expenditure requirements, 
which sets out the financial implications of policies and the basis 
of the annual precept to be levied on collection funds. 


Revenue Support Grant 
(RSG) 


A general government grant in support of local authority 
expenditure (including Commissioners) and fixed each year in 
relation to spending levels. 


Senior Employee An employee whose salary is more than £150,000 per year, or 
one whose salary is at least £60,000 per year (calculated pro 
rata for a part-time employee) and who is the designated head 
of paid service, chief of staff or a statutory chief officer. Typically 
the Commissioner’s Chief of Staff and statutory Chief Officers. 


Single entity accounts The individual accounts of each corporation sole. 


 



http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Act_of_Parliament

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Parliament_of_the_United_Kingdom

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Police_and_Crime_Commissioner
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Narrative Report 
 
Introduction 
On 15


th
 November 2012 Mr Christopher Salmon was elected as Police and Crime 


Commissioner for Dyfed-Powys and took up office on the 22nd November 2012, at 
which time Dyfed-Powys Police Authority ceased to exist.  The primary role of the 
Commissioner is to secure the maintenance of an efficient and effective police force 
across Carmarthenshire, Pembrokeshire, Ceredigion and Powys and to hold the Chief 
Constable of Dyfed-Powys to account for the exercise of operational police duties under 
the Police Act 1996. 
On 5


th
 May 2016 Mr Dafydd Llywelyn was elected as the new Police and Crime 


Commissioner for Dyfed-Powys and will approve the Statement of Accounts although he 
did not take office until after the end of the 2015/16 financial year. 
The purpose of the foreword is to provide an insight into the most significant aspects of 
the Commissioner’s performance (Mr Christopher Salmon was in office for the whole of 
the 2015/16 financial year) and the financial position which are presented in detail in the 
Statement of Accounts that follow.  All references to the Commissioner that follow relate 
to Mr Christopher Salmon. 
 
Statement of Accounts 
These are the fourth statutory accounts prepared under the new governance 
arrangements.  Both the Commissioner and Chief Constable as separate legal entities 
(corporations sole) must produce their own Statement of Accounts, with the 
Commissioner also being responsible for production of the Group Accounts (within 
which the Commissioner’s accounts are contained). 
The following is an explanation of the statements that follow, their purpose and the 
relationship between them: 
 


•  Independent Auditor’s Report, this sets out the opinion of the external auditor, the 
Wales Audit Office, on whether the Group accounts presented give a ‘true and fair 
view’ of the financial position and operations of the Commissioner for 2015/16; 


•  Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts - this statement 
sets out the responsibilities of the Commissioner and his Chief Finance Officer; 


•  Annual Governance Statement - this statement is not a part of the Statement of 
Accounts but is published alongside the Statement of Accounts.  This statement 
describes how the Group conducts business in accordance with proper standards 
and presents the findings from the annual review of the effectiveness of the systems 
of internal control; 


•  Movement in Reserves Statement - this statement shows the movement in the 
year on the reserves held by the Group, analysed into “usable reserves” (monies 
which can be applied to fund capital expenditure or to reduce local taxation) and 
unusable reserves (monies that cannot be used to provide services and exist 
through the application of accounting standards, for example, the pension reserve 
that matches the pension liability); 


•  Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - this statement summarises 
the resources that have been generated and consumed in providing policing and 
crime reduction services during the year. It includes all day to day expenses and 
related income on an accruals basis, as well as transactions measuring the value of 
fixed assets actually consumed and the real projected value of retirement benefits 
earned by employees in the year; 


•  Balance Sheet – this shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of assets and 
liabilities recognised by the Group.  The net assets (assets less liabilities) are 
matched by the usable and unusable reserves; 
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•  Cash Flow Statement – this statement summarises changes to cash and cash 
equivalents during the reporting period; 


•  Police Pension Fund - this summarises the income and expenditure during the 
reporting period relating to police pensions.  The account shows the top up grant 
due from the Group to the Pension Fund Account.  Subsequently the Home Office 
reimburses the Group for money paid over to the Pension Fund Account and 
effectively underwrites the deficit on the Pension Fund Account.  This practice would 
work in reverse if the Pensions Fund Account were to show a surplus at the end of 
the year; 


•  Notes to the Accounts – these provide additional information that further explains 
items included within the main financial statements with an aim of improving the 
reader’s understanding of the main financial statements; 


•  Glossary of Terms – this is not a part of the Statement of Accounts but is included 
to assist the reader’s understanding of the Statement of Accounts. 


 
Financial Performance of the Group 
In February 2015, the Police and Crime Commissioner set a revenue budget for the 
financial year 2015/16 of £93.332m.  After receiving a Home Office Grant of £37.511m, 
National Non-Domestic Rates of £11.362m and a Revenue Support Grant of £1.426m, 
£43.033m was raised from Council Tax. 
 
The Table below sets out the final out-turn position for 2015/16 compared with the 
revised budget for the Chief Constable, Commissioner and for the Group as a whole.  
Overall the Group delivered a balanced budget.  
 
This report is in a subjective analysis format which is used by internal management for 
reporting purposes against the budget. The format differs to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement and a reconciliation between the two formats is shown in the 
Amounts reported for resource allocation decisions note. 
 


 
 


Revenue Account - explanatory foreword


Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance


£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000


Employee Costs 1 88,489 87,395 1,094 853 741 112 87,636 86,654 982


Premises Costs 2 3,563 3,706 (143) 0 0 0 3,563 3,706 (143)


Transport Costs 3 2,757 2,155 602 17 13 4 2,740 2,142 598


Supplies & Services 4 8,395 8,480 (85) 219 147 72 8,176 8,333 (157)


Agency & Contracted Services 5 3,667 5,175 (1,508) 1,560 1,350 210 2,106 3,825 (1,719)


Total operating expenses 106,871 106,911 (40) 2,649 2,251 398 104,222 104,660 (438)


Capital Financing Costs 6 493 12,121 (11,628) 0 41 (41) 493 12,080 (11,587)


Impairment 14 0 (40) 40 0 0 0 0 (40) 40


Gain/Loss on disposal of non-current assets 12 0 (268) 268 0 0 0 0 (268) 268


Interest payments on external borrowing 13 575 325 250 0 0 0 575 325 250


Capital Financing and impairment 1,068 12,138 (11,070) 0 41 (41) 1,068 12,097 (11,029)


Appropriations:


Appropriations to/from pensions fund 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Contributions to/from reserves 9 (3,054) (12,507) 9,453 548 1,505 (957) (3,602) (14,012) 10,410


Appropriations (3,054) (12,507) 9,453 548 1,505 (957) (3,602) (14,012) 10,410


Fees, charges & other service income 7 (4,080) (5,524) 1,445 (161) (718) 557 (3,919) (4,806) 887


Government grants (Revenue & Capital) 8 (7,474) (7,686) 212 (576) (619) 43 (6,897) (7,067) 170


Total Income (11,554) (13,210) 1,657 (737) (1,337) 600 (10,816) (11,873) 1,057


Budget Requirement 93,332 93,332 0 2,460 2,460 0 90,872 90,872 0


Financed By:


Police Grant 800 (37,511) (37,511) 0


National Non- Domestic Rates 801 (11,362) (11,362) 0


Revenue Support Grant 802 (1,426) (1,426) (0)


Council Tax 803 (43,033) (43,033) 0


Total financing (93,332) (93,332) (0)


Group Commissioner Chief Constable
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Key points to note on the table that follows are: 
 
Commissioner 


 The Commissioner’s Office spent £112k less than budgeted on employee 
expenditure.  This is due to difficulties experienced in filling empty posts at the 
beginning of the year and due to making a change to the departmental structure 
during the year. 


 Non-pay (excluding commissioning) expenditure was £76k under budget.  This is 
predominantly due to £36k of expenditure made on a software system meeting 
the criteria to be capitalised and therefore not needing to be funded from the 
revenue budget.  In addition, restraint was applied towards the end of the 
financial year during the pre-election period.    


 Overall, commissioned services have cost £210k less than the budget.  This is 
due to a combination of many factors – a delay in the start of the alcohol liaison 
scheme and alcohol diversionary scheme resulted in expenditure of £60k being 
rolled forward into 2016/17.  Work on the resettlement panel for youth offenders 
will not begin until 2016/17 and a volunteer support scheme was terminated 
early.  These factors combined with staff savings made up the remainder of the 
underspend.  


 The Commissioner received more income than budgeted from driver retraining 
courses held during the year and as a result £557k was transferred to reserves.    
The Commissioner carried out a public consultation during 2015 to determine 
how the money should be spent and the public voted for these funds to be 
reinvested in road safety schemes.  Therefore the Road to Safety scheme was 
launched and funds initiatives that help make the roads in Dyfed Powys safer.  


 
 
Chief Constable 
 


 Employee Costs:  Actual staffing costs were £982k under the revised budget set 
for 2015/16. Within this, variation was been apparent across pay, overtime and 
on-cost headings for all staff groups. Police Officer ill-health retirement spending 
was below budget for the year by around £412k.  This category accounts for the 
largest underspend within employee costs. 


 Premises Costs: The Force overspent £143k against the revised premises 
budget for the last financial year. Part of the overspend was as a result of the 
capital programme of works for the Carmarthenshire custody facility rebuild being 
put on hold.  This has resulted in greater revenue costs but lower capital costs 
than predicted when the budget was set. 


 Transport Costs: The Force underspent against the original budget for transport 
costs by some £598k. The Force benefitted from significant reductions in fuel 
costs during the year which contributed some £320k towards this savings figure. 
In addition to this, the Force joined the National Police Air Service (NPAS) from 
January 2016 which has resulted in payments for helicopter maintenance and 
support being replaced with one composite payment from the “Agency and 
Contracted Services” heading from this date. 


 Supplies & Services: The table above shows that the Force overspent against the 
revised budget by £157k. This small overspend of just under 2% was as a result 
of a number of smaller variations spread across a number of budget codes. 
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 Agency and Contracted Services: This heading overspent by £1.719m being 
attributable largely to the additional net budgetary impact of the early termination 
of the Ammanford Police Station PFI contract. This was funded by an additional 
contribution from reserves. In addition a payment of £222K was paid for Air 
Support services to NPAS for the final quarter of the financial year. Some cost 
increases in the provision of medical support at custody units and the 
implementation of an appropriate adult service also contributed to this overspend.  


 Capital Financing: This heading has been affected by the Commissioner’s 
decision to repay all outstanding historic borrowing from earmarked reserves in 
the year. This resulted in an additional one off budgetary impact of £7.0m. In 
addition, the overspend position against this heading is affected by the 
repayment of the outstanding liability held against the Ammanford PFI contract of 
£2.470m. An additional sum of £1.250m has been set aside from revenue as a 
contribution towards the funding of capital spending in the year. Although this 
was planned, this transfer was not reflected in the original Force revenue budget. 


 Income Headings: An earmarked reserve of £848k was transferred to the Chief 
Constable’s accounts from the Go Safe partnership, which the Fore now administers. 
Additional income was also received in respect of historic site sharing arrangements. 


Further details relating to the Chief Constable’s operations are provided in the Chief 
Constable Statement of Accounts 2015/16. 


 


Reserves 


During the 2015/16 financial year, usable reserves reduced by £12.6m from £45.5m to 
£32.9m.  The two most significant transactions that accounted for the majority of the 
decrease in reserves were: 


 A repayment of the Capital Financing Requirement.  The repayment amounted to 
£7.3m with £7m funded by reserves and a further £0.3m from the revenue 
budget.  This transaction will save having to make Minimum Revenue Provision 
payments of £300k annually. 


 The termination of the Ammanford Police Station PFI.  This PFI was terminated 
on 19


th
 June 2015.  £3.6m of reserves were utilised to fund the termination and 


doing so will make annual revenue savings in the order of £500k.  


The remaining reduction in reserves is the net effect of revenue and capital activities 
during the year in addition to taking on the administration of the Go Safe partnership 
which resulted in a transfer of their £848k reserve onto our books. 


 


Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 


In addition to revenue expenditure, money is incurred on capital assets such as 
buildings and vehicles which have a long term value to the Commissioner.  


Each year the Commissioner approves a capital programme which details where capital 
expenditure will be incurred. In 2015/16 the capital budget of £9.373m was adopted by 
the Commissioner. 


During 2015/16 actual capital expenditure amounted to £2,920m million. The main 
variations from the budget are shown below: 
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 Capital 
Expenditure 


Budget Actual (Over) / 
Under 


Reason for over/under spend 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Land and Buildings 4,690 169 4,521 The provision of a new 
Carmarthenshire custody facility 
has been put on hold after failing to 
purchase suitable land to 
accommodate the new facility.  
Contract delays and procurement 
issues have also delayed the 
estates wide refurbishment 
programme.  This has resulted in 
greater revenue costs but lower 
capital costs than predicted when 
the budget was set. 


Vehicles 1,535 1,454 81 Some delays in the delivery of 
vehicles have caused a slight 
slippage in this programme. 


Furniture and 
Equipment 


3,148 1,297 1,851 There have been delays in 
delivering body-worn video and in-
car video.  This programme is now 
progressing with budget rolled 
forward into 2016/17. 


Total 9,373 2,920 6,453  


 


This capital expenditure was financed as follows: 


Capital Financing Budget Actual (Over) / 
Under 


Reason for over/under spend 


 £’000 £’000 £’000  


Capital Receipts 


1,500 34 1,466 


It was expected that Carmarthen 
Police Station would be sold 
during the year however the sale 
has yet to be completed.  Delays 
in the refurbishment programme 
have also resulted in the sale of 
other properties being delayed. 
A reduced programme of capital 
works did not necessitate 
funding to be drawn from capital 
receipts as budgeted. 


Direct Revenue 
Financing 


418 816 (398) 
A greater than expected 
contribution was made.  


NPAS Capital Credit 


114 29 85 


Delays in joining NPAS has 
resulted in a smaller credit being 
paid in 2015/16 with a credit of 
£114k now due in 2016/17. 


Borrowing 520 0 520 This was not required. 


Capital Reserves 


5,696 1,436 4,260 


Due to the delays in capital 
programmes, it was not 
necessary to utilise reserves to 
the extent predicted when the 
budget was set. 


Capital Grant and 
Contributions 


1,125 605 520 
Grant funded mobile data spend 
was less than budgeted. 


Total 9,373 2,920 6,453  
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Discretionary Payments 


Nationally, concerns arose during 2013/14 about the legality of some discretionary 
allowances paid to a small number of chief officers at forces throughout England and 
Wales which included Dyfed Powys Police.  Prompt action was taken to stop any further 
discretionary allowances being paid until such time as the legal position was fully 
clarified.  Some of these payments related to amounts paid in 2013/14 and these are 
highlighted in Note 32, Officers’ remuneration. 


During 2014/15 further work was carried out to ascertain the legal position of these 
payments and a police force in England was due to bring this issue to court during 
March 2015.  The Commissioner decided that it would be prudent and cost effective to 
await the outcome of the court case before progressing further with this matter in Dyfed-
Powys.  However, the issue did not reach the court and a definitive decision was not 
reached.  The Commissioner subsequently reviewed the available information and 
concluded that it would not be in the interest of the organisation to pursue this matter 
further.  Letters were sent to all those affected by this issue, notifying them of the 
decision and thereby bringing the matter to a close.    


 


Looking Ahead 


The grant settlement for the 2016/17 financial year was somewhat better than expected 
with a reduction of 0.6% in cash terms in the core grant.  However concerns still exist of 
the potential impact of a formula funding review.  A consultation on a new formula began 
during 2015/16 but was halted after errors were discovered in the Home Office’s 
formula.  A change in the formula could significantly affect the level of funding that the 
Commissioner currently receives.  We are awaiting further information on the timing of 
any future consultation/implementation of a new formula. 
 
In setting the police element of council tax (known as the precept) the Commissioner 
was conscious of balancing the pressures on household budgets against the need to 
provide an effective public policing service. He also took into account the current level of 
reserves.  This resulted in a freeze in the council tax precept payable by residents of 
Dyfed-Powys at 2015/16 levels.   
 
The outline budget allocated for 2016/17 includes annual recurring cost reductions of 
£3.129m to be made within the Force. The Medium Term Financial Plan covering the 
period 2016/17 to 2019/20 was published alongside the budget for 2016/17 and this 
highlights a significant degree of uncertainty over the level of funding which will be 
available to the Commissioner over this period.  Due to the Commissioner’s decision to 
reduce the level of reserves by not increasing the precept over the last couple of years 
and due to the effect of a significant estates capital programme, reserves are expected 
to decrease from a total of £32.862m in usable reserves at this year-end to £6.018m at 
the end of 2019/20. 
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Statement of Responsibilities  


The purpose of this statement is to set out the responsibilities of the Commissioner and 
the Chief Financial Officer in respect of the Statement of Accounts. 


The Commissioner’s responsibilities 


The Commissioner is required to: 


 make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to 
secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those 
affairs, that officer is the Chief Financial Officer; 


 manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources 
and safeguard its assets; and 


 approve the Statement of Accounts. 


I approve the Statement of Accounts for financial year 2015/16. 


   
   
     
          
 
Police & Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys  Date 


 


The Chief Financial Officer’s responsibilities 


The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of 
Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code). 


In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial Officer has: 


 selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 


 made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and 


 complied with the Local Authority Code. 


The Chief Financial Officer has also: 


 kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and 


 taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities. 


I certify that the Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Group/Commissioner at the reporting date and of its expenditure and 
income for the year ended 31


st
 March 2016. 


 


  


 


  


         
            


Chief Finance Officer     Date  
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Annual Governance Statement  
 
The annual governance statement is a statutory document which explains the processes 
and procedures in place to enable the Dyfed-Powys Police and Crime Commissioner 
(Commissioner) to carry out his functions effectively.  
 
This statement explains how the Commissioner has complied with the CIPFA/SOLACE 
Framework: “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government (Guidance Note for 
Police)” and also meets the requirements of regulation 4(2) of the Accounts and Audit 
(Wales) Regulations 2010 in relation to the publication of a statement of internal control. 
 
New CIPFA/SOLACE guidance for police is expected to be published in June 2016 and 
will apply from 2016/17 onwards; however, this review follows the guidance in place for 
2015/16.  
 
The statement is produced following a review of the governance arrangements and 
includes an outline of actions to be undertaken to address any significant governance 
issues identified.  
 
Scope of Responsibility 
 
Both the Commissioner and the Chief Constable are corporations sole and the Policing 
Protocol Order 2011 sets out the policing governance arrangements, clarifying the role 
and responsibilities of the Commissioner, the Chief Constable and the Police and Crime 
Panel and how they should work together to address crime and improve policing. 
 
The Commissioner is responsible for performing his functions as set out in the Police 
Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 and must hold the Chief Constable to 
account for the exercise of his functions.  This includes ensuring that a sound system of 
internal control is maintained through the year and that arrangements are in place for 
the management of risk. 
 
During 2013/2014 a joint Code of Corporate Governance was written.  This was adopted 
on 1


st
 April 2014 and is included within the Corporate Governance Framework.  


 
Copies of the above documents are available on the Commissioner’s website or can be 
obtained from the Office for the Dyfed-Powys Police and Crime Commissioner at PO 
Box 99, Llangunnor, Carmarthen SA31 2PF. 
 
 
The Purpose of the Corporate Governance Framework (CGF) 
 
The CGF comprises the systems and processes, culture and values by which the force 
is directed and controlled by the Chief Constable and its activities through which it 
accounts to, engages with and leads its communities.  It enables the Commissioner to 
monitor the achievement of his strategic objectives and to consider whether those 
objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate services and value for money. 
 
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level.  It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve 
policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not 
absolute assurance of effectiveness.  The system of internal control is based on an on-
going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of policies, 
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aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood and potential impact of those risks being 
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 
 
The Governance Framework 
 
An overview of the governance arrangements in being for the financial year is shown in 
the chart below: 
 


 
 
 
The key elements of the governance framework are explained below: 
 
The Commissioner   
 
On 12


th
 May 2016 Dafydd Llywelyn took office as the new Police and Crime 


Commissioner for Dyfed-Powys.  However, this report covers the 2015/16 financial year.  
Christopher Salmon was the incumbent Commissioner for the whole of 2015/16 and, 
unless indicated otherwise, all further references to the Commissioner refer to 
Christopher Salmon’s term of office. 
Before commencing in office, the Commissioner took an oath to represent all of the 
people of Dyfed-Powys impartially, without fear or favour and in making his decisions, he 
signs off that he has no personal or prejudicial interest in the matter.  Both the 
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Commissioner and Deputy Commissioner (of Christopher Salmon) have agreed to abide 
by a Code of Conduct providing guidance on ethical standards and behaviour. 
A Memorandum of Understanding between the Commissioner and Chief Constable 
defines the nature of their relationship, providing details of respective responsibilities 
and expected conduct.   
Registers of gifts and hospitality and interests are maintained and the Commissioner’s 
expense claims are disclosed.  Staff are subject to vetting, the level of which reflects 
their access to information.   
 
Police and Crime Plan 
 
In May 2013, the Commissioner issued a five year Police and Crime Plan (Plan).  The 
Plan is updated annually and outlines the vision, police and crime objectives and the 
strategic direction for policing.  The Plan identifies six priorities focusing on making safe 
neighbourhoods, protecting victims and spending wisely.  The Plan was launched via a 
series of events to ensure that the Commissioner’s vision was clearly communicated to 
the Force, partners and to the public.  Each year, the Commissioner issues an annual 
report summarising progress against each priority within the plan. 
 
Police and Crime Panel 
 
The Police and Crime Panel scrutinises and supports the work of the Commissioner on 
an ongoing basis.  The Panel comprises twelve County Councillors and two 
Independent Members. The Panel carries out its work through public meetings that are 
recorded with the agenda and minutes made available to the public via the 
Commissioner’s website.  The Panel reviews complaints against the Commissioner.  
During 2015/16 the Panel referred one complaint against the Commissioner for 
investigation by the Independent Police Complaints Commission (IPCC).  That 
investigation has now concluded and the investigation report has been published.  
Further information about the Police and Crime Panel, including its terms of reference 
are available online.   
 
Joint Audit committee 
 
The Joint Audit Committee (JAC) currently comprises of four members and exists to 
provide independent assurance that there are adequate controls in place to mitigate key 
risks and to provide assurance that the Commissioner and Chief Constable are 
operating effectively.  The JAC met four times during 2015/2016 and their judgements 
are informed by the results of scrutiny activity by Internal Audit, Wales Audit Office, Her 
Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary (HMIC) and other ad-hoc reviews or inspections.  
JAC also review the Statutory Accounts and medium term financial plan that is produced 
annually at the time the precept is set.  Each year JAC writes an annual report that 
summarises the activities that they undertook during the year and also set out their 
priorities for the forthcoming year.  The JAC’s terms of reference are available on the 
Commissioner’s website.   
 
Internal Audit 
 
The role of internal audit is to provide independent assurance that an organisation’s risk 
management, governance and internal control processes are operating effectively. 
Our internal auditors carried out audits in 16 different areas of the business, focussing 
on some of the most significant financial and operational risks.  These audits resulted in 
4 reviews receiving substantial assurance and 12 receiving reasonable. 
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The Head of Audit’s Annual Opinion concluded that there are “adequate and effective 
management, control and governance processes to manage the achievement of its 
objectives”.  Of particular note is that the audit carried out on governance - strategic 
planning received an opinion of substantial assurance.  The result of which is covered 
more fully below under “Review of Effectiveness”. 
 
Wales Audit Office  
 
The Wales Audit Office (WAO) in carrying out its review of the financial statements 
provides comments on the system of internal controls that are in place.  WAO also 
report on how services are being delivered, assess whether value for money is being 
achieved and checks on how organisations are planning and delivering improvements.  
Again, the result of their work is summarised below under Review of Effectiveness. 
 
Policing Board 
 
A Policing Board has been established with its inaugural meeting held on the 3


rd
 April 


2013.  The Policing Board is an internal system providing a robust process for the 
Commissioner to hold the Chief Constable to account in delivering the Police and Crime 
Plan.  The Policing Board meets on a weekly basis and in addition, monthly meetings 
focusing on the delivery of each of the six priorities identified in the Police and Crime 
Plan ensure that performance against the priorities are adequately monitored and 
challenged.  This ensures that the Force is regularly challenged leading to an 
environment of continuous improvement.  The Policing Board charter is published as 
section 6 (Decision Making) of the new Corporate Governance Framework. 
 
Public Decision Logs 
 
The Commissioner produces a public log of decisions made.  Each decision is signed by 
the Commissioner who agrees to abide by the seven principles set out in the Standards 
in Public Life – the NOLAN Principles – in making his decisions. 
 
Corporate Governance Group 
 
The Corporate Governance Group has delegated responsibility for undertaking the 
process of maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the governance framework.  
Membership currently includes the Chair of the JAC, the Deputy Chief Constable, the 
Commissioner’s Monitoring Officer and both the Chief Finance Officers for the 
Commissioner, the Director of Resources and the Director of Legal & Compliance.  
 
Code of Corporate Governance 
 
The new joint CGF was implemented on 1


st
 April 2014.  The joint Code of Corporate 


Governance sets out how the Commissioner and the Chief Constable govern their 
organisations both jointly and separately in accordance with the six core principles that 
underpin effective and ethical corporate governance in public service as outlined in The 
good Governance Standard for Public Services (2004).  The Scheme of Corporate 
Governance (also contained within the CGF) sets out the key roles of the Commissioner, 
the Chief Constable and their statutory officers. 
Public Engagement 
 
Views of the public and service users are collected through a number of different ways 
including: 
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 Citizen’s Panels; 


 User satisfactions surveys; 


 “Your Voice” days (public surgeries held across the Dyfed-Powys area); 


 Public Services Bureau previously Quality of Service team (handling complaints 
and compliments); 


 Precept consultation; 


 Attendance at key local events for example, the Royal Welsh Show. 
 
Frequent and meaningful engagement with the public enables the Commissioner to 
understand the needs of the people of Dyfed-Powys to help develop his vision for the 
local area and also ensures robust public accountability.  
 
Review of Effectiveness 
The Commissioner has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control.  As 
detailed above, the Corporate Governance Group has delegated responsibility for 
reviewing the corporate governance framework and also oversees its implementation.   
The review of effectiveness was carried out by the Corporate Governance Group and 
has been informed by: 


 Police and Crime Panel views; 


 Joint Audit Committee views; 


 Internal Audit work; 


 Wales Audit Office review and work; 


 Policing Board discussions and actions; 


 HMIC reviews and reports; 


 Other reviews; 


 National issues; 


 Risks as identified on the corporate and dynamic risk registers; 


 Issues raised in the Chief Officer Group meetings; 


 Complaints recorded by the Public Services Bureau. 


 
Findings and Actions 
The following summarises the most significant governance issues that were identified or 
addressed during the 2015/2016 financial year: 
Issues previously identified 


 CGF - The new joint CGF was introduced on the 1
st
 April 2014.  An updated 


version was introduced at the beginning of 2015/16 after the CGF was reviewed 


to assess its suitability and success.  The CGF is now embedded within the 


organisation and will be reviewed, as a minimum, on an annual basis.  During 


2016/17 the CGF will be comprehensively reviewed in order to ensure it meets 


the requirements of the new Commissioner and, in time, the new Chief 


Constable.    


 


 Risk management – During 2014/15 a new risk framework was developed with 


both the Commissioner and Chief Constable adopting a corporate risk register 


and then dynamic risk registers to record and manage risks within the 


organisation.  The dynamic risk registers have been introduced into new areas of 


the business during 2015/16.  The Force has adopted the new risk management 


arrangements and developed its Force wide risk appetite and now considers this 
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action completed.  The Commissioner has ongoing work to firmly embed its 


registers into the organisation and is currently looking at developing risk appetites 


for each risk on the corporate register. 


 


 Partnership Working – The Chief Constable is currently looking at opportunities 


to collaborate with the other police forces in Wales in line with recommendations 


made in the summer of 2015 by external consultants that were jointly 


commissioned to review such opportunities across welsh police forces.  On 1
st
 


January 2016 Dyfed-Powys joined the National Police Air Service (NPAS).  


These new arrangements are currently being monitored for their effectiveness 


and the governance arrangements of this and any other new collaborations will 


be scrutinised and monitored throughout the coming financial year.  Work to 


enhance collaborative working with local public sector partners is being taken 


forward as part of a comprehensive Force Collaboration Strategy which is 


currently being formulated. 


  


 Public First Programme – This programme of back office restructuring is now 


complete with staffing and structures in place.  Performance monitoring across 


newly formed functions, as in all other departments, is ongoing and the post 


implementation assessment of the programme has been carried out.  This issue 


is now considered closed.  


 


 Discretionary payments - Nationally, concerns have been raised over the legality 


of some discretionary allowances paid to a small number of chief officers in 


forces throughout England and Wales.  Dyfed-Powys Police Authority approved 


the Chief Officers Benefits Policy but following the concerns raised, legal advice 


as to the legality of the discretionary payments was sought by the Commissioner.  


The advice confirmed that the discretionary payments could be unlawful and in 


light of this, such allowances payable to chief officers were stopped until such 


time as the legal position was fully clarified.  However, the first test case on this 


matter did not progress to court as anticipated and therefore, having reviewed 


this issue, the available options, the costs and likely outcomes, the 


Commissioner decided not to pursue this matter further and Chief Officers who 


had received such allowances were informed of this decision, drawing this matter 


to a close. 


 


 Ethics – the College of Policing’s Code of Ethics has been embedded throughout 


the organisation during the year.  A working group was established to take 


forward this work from the “ground up” within the Force.  Further work has been 


undertaken to assess the leadership changes that are necessary to be 


implemented alongside this and to ensure that the change in culture remains and 


that officers and staff are empowered to “do the right thing” in their dealings with 


the public and victims.  An Ethics Committee has been established and receives 


referrals from officers and staff for due consideration and action.   


 


 Business Continuity – Internal Audit have raised a priority 1 (urgent) action point 


in relation to business continuity.  This action remains outstanding although 
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progress has been made in relation to the development of departmental plans 


and this work remains on track to be completed during 2016. 


 
 


Other Governance Matter 


 Internal Audit carried out an audit of governance – strategic planning during 


2015/16.  No recommendations were made and only two operational 


observations were received.  The internal auditors provided a substantial level of 


assurance on this area of the business.   


 
 
New Issues Identified During the Year 


  


 HMIC carried out a significant number of inspections during 2015/16.  In 


particular, the HMIC Police Effectiveness, Efficiency and Legitimacy (PEEL) 


Inspection that took place in 2015 was formally reported upon in early 2016 and 


assessed the Force as “Requires improvement”.  The Force has action plans in 


place to deliver improvements and this work is still ongoing in 2016/17. 


 


 During 2015/16, the Force received negative press coverage in relation to the 


scale of relocation expenses paid under the Police Authority’s previous policy.  


All payments were made in accordance with the policy in place at the time.  Such 


policies are periodically reviewed and updated and a review of chief officer 


packages is currently being undertaken.  


 


 An allegation has been referred to the IPCC and deemed suitable for local 


investigation by the West Mercia Constabulary concerning the consequences or 


otherwise of a former relationship between senior Force personnel on internal 


force matters.  Once the conclusions have been reached, the Corporate 


Governance Group will consider whether any actions need to be taken to 


address any issues raised. 


 


 The IPCC has an investigation underway following referral by the Force into 


allegations received against the Director of Legal and Compliance. The 


allegations relate to payments made by Dyfed Powys Police for legal services 


over a number of years to a barrister’s chamber where her then husband worked. 


The IPCC is investigating what role the Director of Legal and Compliance had in 


instructing the chambers, in signing off any invoices and whether a potential 


conflict of interest was declared, when required, in line with force policies and 


procedures.  Again, once the IPCC has completed its investigation, the Corporate 


Governance Group will consider what actions, if any, need to be taken to address 


the issues raised. 


 


 The Force has self-referred details of information security breaches to the 


Information Commissioner’s Office involving the unintended release of 


confidential personal data to a third party by the Force. This arose as a result 


human error and weaknesses in Force systems involving auto population of 
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email addresses.  As a result the Force has taken steps to address these 


significant issues however a fine of £150,000 has been imposed.  The outcome 


of the investigations into the other security breaches will be reviewed and, if 


appropriate, an action plan drawn up to address any issues raised. 


 


 The Wales Audit Office issued unqualified opinions on the 2014/15 financial 


statements of both the Police & Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable for 


Dyfed Powys Police. They also confirmed that the Commissioner and Chief 


Constable had appropriate arrangements in place in the year to secure economy, 


efficiency and effectiveness in their use of resources.  They also noted that whilst 


progress had been made on developing plans to manage the financial pressures 


over the medium and longer term, further work was required.  This work will 


continue over the course of 2016/17.  


 


 
Conclusion 
Having carried out the review, we believe that the governance arrangements that are in 
place continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the governance 
framework.  A number of issues previously identified have been successfully addressed 
and closed as detailed above.  That said, the review has also highlighted a number of 
new issues that must be specifically addressed over the coming financial year. 
These issues and related actions will be monitored by the Corporate Governance Group 
and the Joint Audit Committee over the next twelve months to ensure that governance 
arrangements are monitored and further strengthened. 
We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further 
enhance our governance arrangements.  We are satisfied that these steps will address 
the need for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will 
monitor their implementation and operation as part of our next annual review. 
 
Signed: Signed: Signed: 


   


   


   


Dafydd Llywelyn Jayne Woods Gawain Evans 


Police and Crime 
Commissioner 


Date: 


Chief Finance Officer 


Date: 


 


Chair of the Joint Audit 
Committee 


Date: 
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Auditor General for Wales’ report to the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed 
Powys  


I have audited the accounting statements and related notes of the: 


 Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys; 


 Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Group; and  


 Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund  


for the year ended 31
st
 March 2016 under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.  


The Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys’ accounting statements comprise 
the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, the Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement.   
The Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys’ Group accounting statements 
comprise the Group Movement in Reserves Statement, the Group Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement, the Group Balance Sheet and the Group Cash Flow 
Statement.  
The Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund’s accounting statements comprise the Fund 
Account, and the Net Assets Statement.  
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable 
law and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2015-16 based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 


Respective responsibilities of the responsible financial officer and the Auditor 
General for Wales 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of 
Accounts as set out on page 10, the responsible financial officer is responsible for the 
preparation of the statement of accounts, including the Police and Crime Commissioner 
for Dyfed Powys’ Group accounting statements and the Dyfed Powys Police Pension 
Fund’s accounting statements, which gives a true and fair view. 
My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements and related notes in accordance 
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those 
standards require me to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standards 
for Auditors. 


Scope of the audit of the accounting statements 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
accounting statements and related notes sufficient to give reasonable assurance that 
the accounting statements and related notes are free from material misstatement, 
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the 
accounting policies are appropriate to the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed 
Powys’, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Group and the Dyfed 
Powys Police Pension Fund’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and 
adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
the responsible financial officer and the overall presentation of the accounting 
statements and related notes. 
 
In addition, I read all the financial and non-financial information in the Narrative Report 
to identify material inconsistencies with the audited accounting statements and related 
notes and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or 
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing 
the audit. If I become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies, I 
consider the implications for my report.  
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Opinion on the accounting statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Dyfed Powys 
In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Police and Crime 


Commissioner for Dyfed Powys as at 31 March 2016 and of his income and 


expenditure for the year then ended; and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 


Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015-16. 


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Dyfed Powys Police Group 
In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Police and Crime 


Commissioner for Dyfed Powys Police Group as at 31 March 2016 and of its 


income and expenditure for the year then ended; and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 


Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015-16. 


Opinion on the accounting statements of the Police Pension Fund 
In my opinion, the pension fund accounts and related notes:  


 give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the Dyfed Powys Police 


Pension Fund during the year ended 31 March 2016 and of the amount and 


disposition of the Fund’s assets and liabilities as at that date;
 
and 


 have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local 


Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015-16. 


Opinion on other matters 
In my opinion, the information contained in the Narrative Report is consistent with the 
accounting statements and related notes. 


Matters on which I report by exception 
I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters, which I report to you, if, in my 
opinion: 


 adequate accounting records have not been kept; 


 the accounting statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 


returns; or 


 I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit; 


 the Governance Statement does not reflect compliance with guidance.  
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Certificate of completion of audit 
I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Dyfed Powys, Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys 
Police Group and Dyfed Powys Police Pension Fund in accordance with the 
requirements of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and the Auditor General for Wales’ 
Code of Audit Practice. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
For and on behalf of      Wales Audit Office 
Huw Vaughan Thomas     24 Cathedral Road 
Auditor General for Wales     Cardiff 
29 September 2016      CF11 9LJ  
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Movement in Reserves Statement  


Financial Year 2015/16 
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  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Balance at 31
st
 March 


2015 carried forward 
 


4,500 22,849 17,528 627 45,504 13,191 50,908 0 0 (534) (1,047,283) (983,718) (938,214) 


Movement in reserves 
during 2015/16: 


 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Surplus or (deficit) on 
the provision 


of services 


CIES (35,328) 0 0 0 (35,328) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (35,328) 


Other Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 


CIES 0 0 0 0 0 347 0 0 0 0 66,641 66,988 66,988 


Total Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 


 (35,328) 0 0 0 (35,328) 347 0 0 0 0 66,641 66,988 31,659 


Adjustments between 
accounting basis and 
funding basis under 
Regulations 


8 22,808 0 0 (122) 22,686 (285) 8,374 205 165 31 (31,177) (22,686) 0 


Net 
Increase/(Decrease) 
before Transfers to 
Earmarked Reserves 


 (12,520) 0 0 (122) (12,642) 62 8,374 205 165 31 35,464 44,301 31,659 


Transfers to/from 
earmarked reserves 


9 12,520 (13,675) 1,155 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Increase/Decrease in 
2015/16 


 
0 (13,675) 1,155 (122) (12,642) 62 8,374 205 165 31 35.464 44,301 31,659 


Balance at 31
st
 March  


2016 carried forward 


 
4,500 9,174 18,683 505 32,862 13,253 59,282 205 165 (503) (1,011,819) (939,417) (906,555) 
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Financial Year 2014/15 
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  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Balance at 31
st
 March 


2014 carried forward 
 


4,500 22,625 14,947 0 1,004 43,076 13,476 51,651 (557) (883,675) (819,105) (776,029) 


Movement in 
reserves during 
2014/15: 


 
            


Surplus or (deficit) on 
the provision 


of services 


CIES (35,837) 0 0 0 0 (35,837) 0 0 0 0 0 (35,837) 


Other Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 


CIES 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (126,348) (126,348) (126,348) 


Total Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 


 (35,837) 0 0 0 0 (35,837) 0 0 0 (126,348) (126,348) (162,185) 


Adjustments between 
accounting basis and 
funding basis under 
Regulations 


8 38,642 0 0 0 (377) 38,265 (285) (743) 23 (37,260) (38,265) 0 


Net 
Increase/(Decrease) 
before Transfers to 
Earmarked Reserves 


 2,805 0 0 0 (377) 2,428 (285) (743) 23 (163,608) (164,613) (162,185) 


Transfers to/from 
earmarked reserves 


9 (2,805) 224 2,581 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Increase/Decrease in 
2014/15 


 
0 224 2,581 0 (377) 2,428 (285) (743) 23 (163,608) (164,613) (162,185) 


Balance at 31
st
 March 


2015 carried forward 
 


4,500 22,849 17,528 0 627 45,504 13,191 50,908 (534) (1,047,283) (983,718) (938,214) 
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 2015/16 


Group  Commissioner 


Gross 
Expenditure 


Gross 
Income 


Net 
Expenditure 


 


N
o


te
 Gross 


Expenditure 
Gross 


Income 
Net 


Expenditure 


£’000 £’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 £’000 


57,885 (3,984) 53,901 Local Policing  638 (3,984) (3,346) 


7,562 (71) 7,491 Dealing with the Public  0 (71) (71) 


11,611 (211) 11,400 
Criminal Justice 
Arrangements 


 
0 (211) (211) 


6,696 (2,181) 4,515 Road Policing  0 (2,181) (2,181) 


4,257 (52) 4,205 Intelligence  0 (52) (52) 


7,648 (156) 7,492 Operational Support  0 (156) (156) 


11,145 (330) 10,815 Investigation  0 (330) (330) 


3,839 (46) 3,793 Investigative Support  0 (46) (46) 


4,357 (3,750) 607 National Policing  0 (3,750) (3,750) 


0 0 0 Non Distributed Costs   0 0 0 


2,193 (68) 2,125 
Corporate and Democratic 
Core 


 
5,201 (3,117) 2,084 


   Exceptional items -      


(34) 0 (34) 
Non-current assets 
revaluation 


 
(34) 0 (34) 


1,469 0 1,469 PFI Contract Termination  1,469  1,469 


(40) 0 (40) 
 Icelandic Banks 
impairment 


 
(40) 0 (40) 


118,588 (10,849) 107,739 Cost of Services  7,234 (13,898) (6,664) 


0 (11,806) (11,806) 
Other operating 
income/expenditure 


10 
0 (11,806) (11,806) 


34,622 (1,275) 33,347 
Financing and investment 
income and expenditure 


11 
546 (1,275) (729) 


0 (93,952) (93,952) 
Taxation and non-specific 
grant income 


12 
0 (93,952) (93,952) 


0 0 0 
Commissioning Costs 
(intra-group transfer) 


 
148,479 0 148,479 


153,210 (117,882) 35,328 
(Surplus)/deficit on 
Provision of services 


 
156,259 (120,931) 35,328 


  (346) 
Surplus or deficit on 
revaluation of non-current 
assets 


 
 


 
(346) 


  (66,641) 
Actuarial (gains)/losses on 
pension assets/liabilities 


 
 


 
(100) 


  0 
Commissioning Costs 
(intra-group transfer) 


 
  (66,541) 


  (66,987) 
Other comprehensive 
income and expenditure 


 
 


 
(66,987) 


  (31,659) 
 Total comprehensive 
income and expenditure 


 
 


 
(31,659) 


 


 


 


 


 







Group Statement of Accounts 2015/16 


 


 25 


 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 2014/15 


Group  Commissioner 


Gross 
Expenditure 


Gross 
Income 


Net 
Expenditure 


 


N
o


te
 Gross 


Expenditure 
Gross 


Income 
Net 


Expenditure 


£’000 £’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 £’000 


60,671 (3,551) 57,120 Local Policing  919 (3,551) (2,632) 


6,568 (48) 6,520 Dealing with the Public  0 (48) (48) 


10,544 (379) 10,165 
Criminal Justice 
Arrangements 


 
0 (379) (379) 


8,053 (1,859) 6,194 Road Policing  0 (1,859) (1,859) 


4,117 (31) 4,086 Intelligence  0 (31) (31) 


7,909 (920) 6,989 Operational Support  0 (920) (920) 


11,250 (336) 10,914 Investigation  0 (336) (336) 


3,190 (26) 3,164 Investigative Support  0 (26) (26) 


5,779 (5,189) 590 National Policing  0 (5,189) (5,189) 


328 0 328 Non Distributed Costs   3 0 3 


2,230 (61) 2,169 
Corporate and Democratic 
Core 


 
5,504 (3,368) 2,136 


   Exceptional items -      


0 0 0 
Non-current assets 
revaluation 


 
0 0 0 


0 0 0  Icelandic Banks  0 0 0 


120,639 (12,400) 108,239 Cost of Services  6,426 (15,707) (9,281) 


0 (12,766) (12,766) 
Other operating 
expenditure 


10 
0 (12,766) (12,766) 


40,162 (1,148) 39,014 
Financing and investment 
income and expenditure 


11 
941 (1,148) (207) 


0 (98,650) (98,650) 
Taxation and non-specific 
grant income 


12 
0 (98,650) (98,650) 


0 0 0 
Commissioning Costs 
(intra-group transfer) 


 
156,741 0 156,741 


160,801 (124,964) 35,837 
(Surplus)/deficit on 
Provision of services 


 
164,108 (128,271) 35,837 


  0 
Surplus or deficit on 
revaluation of non-current 
assets 


 
 


 
0 


  126,348 
Actuarial (gains)/losses on 
pension assets/liabilities 


 
 


 
311 


  0 
Commissioning Costs 
(intra-group transfer) 


 
  126,037 


  126,348 
Other comprehensive 
income and expenditure 


 
 


 
126,348 


  162,185 
 Total comprehensive 
income and expenditure 


 
 


 
162,185 
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Balance Sheet  


Group 
2014/15  


Commissioner 
2014/15  


 Note Group 
2015/16 


Commissioner 
2015/16 


£’000 


 


£’000   £’000 £’000 


68,851 68,851 
Property, plant & 
equipment 


13 
66,655 66,655 


4,580 4,580 Investment property 14 4,579 4,579 


51 51 Intangible assets 16 260 260 


0 0 Surplus Assets  1,040 1,040 


430 430 Assets held for sale 22 0 0 


0 0 Long term debtors 17 91 91 


73,912 73,912 Long term assets  72,625 72,625 


36,062 36,062 Short term investments 18 36,220 36,220 


402 0 Inventories 19 368 0 


9,533 9,260 Short term debtors 20 6,489 6,149 


6,427 6,427 Cash and cash 
equivalents 


21 1,921 1,921 


0 675 Intra-group transfer  0 708 


52,424 52,424 Current assets  44,998 44,998 


(144) (144) Short term borrowing 18 (157) (157) 


(10,149) (6,314) Short term creditors 23 (8,078) (2,471) 


(1,073) (1,073) Provisions 24 (939) (939) 


0 (3,835) Intra - group transfer  0 (5,607) 


(11,366) (11,366) Current liabilities  (9,174) (9,174) 


0 (1,046,972) Long term creditors  0 (1,011,919) 


(2,469) (2,469) Long term borrowing 18 (2,312) (2,312) 


(1,049,787) (2,815) Other long term 
liabilities 


18 (1,011,819) 100 


(928) (928) Provisions 24 (873) (873) 


(1,053,184) (1,053,184) Long term liabilities  (1,015,004) (1,015,004) 


(938,214) (938,214) Net assets/liabilities  (906,555) (906,555) 


(45,504) (45,504) Usable reserves 25 (32,862) (32,862) 


983,718 983,718 Unusable reserves 26 939,417 939,417 


938,214 938,214 Total reserves  906,555 906,555 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Group Statement of Accounts 2015/16 


 


 27 


 


Cash Flow Statement  


Group 
2014/15  


Commissioner 
2014/15  


 Note Group 
2015/16 


Commissioner 
2015/16 


 £’000    £’000 


35,837 35,837 Net (surplus) or deficit on 
the provision of services 


 35,328 35,328 


(42,304) (42,304) Adjustments to net surplus or 
deficit on the provision of 
services for non-cash 
movements 


 (33,753) (33,753) 


434 434 Adjustments for items 
included in the net surplus or 
deficit on the provision of 
services that are investing 
and financing activities 


 (317) (317) 


(6,033) (6,033) Net cash flows from 
Operating Activities 


27 1,258 1,258 


3,716 3,716 Investing Activities 28 2,109 2,109 


279 279 Financing Activities 29 1,139 1,139 


(2,038) (2,038) Net increase or decrease in 
cash and cash equivalents 


 4,506 4,506 


4,389 4,389 Cash and cash equivalents 
at the beginning of the 
reporting period 


 6,427 6,427 


6,427 6,427 Cash and cash equivalents 
at the end of the reporting 
period 


21 1,921 1,921 
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Police Pension Fund  


 


Group 
2014/15 


Commissioner 
2014/15 


Fund Account Group 
2015/16 


Commissioner 
2015/16 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


  Contributions receivable:   


(10,249) 0  Employer contributions (10,348) 0 


(5,849) 0  Member contributions (5,865) 0 


(800) 0 Transfers in from other pension funds (772) 0 


(739) 0 Other income (168) 0 


(17,637) 0  (17,153) 0 


  Benefits payable:   


21,507 0  Pensions 22,557 0 


7,713 0  Commutations and lump sum 
retirement benefits 


7,281 0 


595   Interest payable on back-dated 
lump sums 


0  


29,815 0  29,838 0 


  Payments to and on Account of 
Leavers: 


  


425 0 Transfers out to other pension funds (476) 0 


0 0 Refunds of contributions 0 0 


159 0 Other expenditure 319 0 


584 0  (157) 0 


12,762 (12,762) Net amount payable before transfer 
from the Police Fund 


12,528 (12,528) 


(12,762) 12,762 Additional funding payable by Police 
Fund (re Home Office Grant) 


(12,528) 12,528 


0 0 Funding shortfall to be met by Police 
Fund  


0 0 


 


Group 
2014/15 


Commissioner 
2014/15 


Net Assets Statement Group 
2015/16 


Commissioner 
2015/16 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


     


3,238 0 Short term debtors  49 0 


3,238 0 Net Current Assets 49 0 


     


(3,238) 0 Short term provision 0 0 


0 0 Short term creditors (49) 0 


(3,238) 0 Net Current Liabilities (49) 0 


     


0 0  0 0 
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Funding Shortfall to be met by Police Fund 


In 2015/16 Employer Police Officer Pension scheme contributions reduced from 24.2% 
to 21.3%. The difference of 2.9% has been retained by the exchequer which represents 
the funding shortfall to be met by Police Fund. 
 
Pensions Liability 
The Pensions Liability which is disclosed on the Group Balance Sheet reflects the 
underlying commitments that the Chief Constable has in the long run to pay retirement 
benefits. In 2015/16 this amounts to £1,011,819 million compared to £1,047,283 million 
in 2014/15. 
 
Recognition of the total liability has a substantial impact on the net worth as recorded in 
the Balance Sheet. However statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the 
financial position of the Group remains healthy. This is because to finance the liability the 
Chief Constable makes a pension contribution of 21.3% for police officers and 11.6% for 
police staff, with the actual pensions and commuted lump sums being met directly by the 
Police Pension Fund Account, which is funded by the Home Office via the 
Commissioner. 
 


Milne v Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) court ruling 


Payments totalling £3,191k were made from the Police Pension Fund in 2015/16. An 
amount of approximately £49k is still to be paid in respect of three officers and a creditor 
for this amount has been included.  A debtor for the same amount has also been 
included reflecting a contribution from the Commissioner for income reimbursement, 
which was received as Home Office grant income by the Commissioner in 2015/16. 


Under HMRC rules, the above payments were classed as unauthorised payments and 
an additional charge was levied on all Police Forces.  The Home Office wrote to all 
Police Forces on 8


th
 December 2015 advising them that the costs relating to 


unauthorised payment charges would be dealt with centrally by Government and a 
payment was made by HM treasury on 29


th
 March 2016 to HMRC covering 95% of the 


outstanding amounts. The remaining 5% will be paid to HMRC by HM treasury in August 
2016.   


As both the notional expenditure and income relating to Dyfed Powys Police’s share of 
the unauthorised payments charge would be included in the pension fund account, there 
would be an overall £nil impact on this account.  As a result these entries have not been 
made. 
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Notes to the Accounts 


 


1. Accounting policies 
 
General Principles  
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Group’s transactions for the 2015/16 
financial year and its position at the year-end of 31st March 2016. The 
Commissioner is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts for himself 
and the Group by the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2005 (as amended), 
which require them to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. 
These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 and the Service Reporting Code of 
Practice 2015/16, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).  
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally 
historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current 
assets and financial instruments.  
 
Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and 
Errors  
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or 
to correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for 
prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not 
give rise to a prior period adjustment.  
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting 
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the 
effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the financial position or 
financial performance of the Group. Where a change is made, it is applied 
retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and 
comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been 
applied.  
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by 
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.  
 
Accruals of Income and Expenditure  
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash 
payments are made or received. In particular:  


 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Group transfers the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable 
that economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will 
flow to the Group.  


 Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Group can 
measure reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is 
probable that economic benefits or service potential associated with the 
transaction will flow to the Group. 


 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there 
is a gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption they 
are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet. 


 Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by 
employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather 
than when payments are made. 
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 Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for 
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest 
rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or 
determined by the contract. 


 Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been 
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the 
Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is 
written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be 
collected. 


 
Overheads and Support Services  
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from 
the supply or service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service 
Reporting Code of Practice for Local Authorities (SeRCOP).  
 
Exceptional Items  
When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is 
disclosed separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement (CIES) or in the notes to the accounts, depending on how 
significant the items are to an understanding of the financial performance of the 
Group.  
 
Events after the Balance Sheet date  
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and 
unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when 
the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be 
identified:  
 


 Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the 
reporting period – the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such 
events.  


 Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – 
the Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a 
category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the 
notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.  


 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the 
Statement of Accounts.  
 
Property, plant and equipment  
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and 
equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis. Expenditure that maintains but does 
not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or service 
potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it incurred.  
 
Expenditure falling below a de-minimis level of £6,000 per item is treated as 
Revenue and charged when it is incurred.   
 
Assets are initially measured at cost and are then carried in the Balance Sheet 
using the following measurement bases:  


 Assets under construction – depreciated historical cost;  


 Dwellings – fair value (revalued every five years), determined using the basis 
of existing use value for social housing;  
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 All other assets – fair value (revalued every five years), determined as the 
amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use.  


 
Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to 
recognise unrealised gains. The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains 
recognised since 1st April 2007 only, the date of its formal implementation. Gains 
arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment 
Account.  
 
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an 
asset may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are 
estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, 
where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is 
recognised for the shortfall.  
 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows:  
 


 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation 
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that 
balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains).  


 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient 
balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant 
service lines in the CIES.  


 
Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the 
systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives.  The 
useful economic lives and residual value of assets are summarised in the Property, 
Plant and Equipment note.   
 
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose 
cost is significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are 
depreciated separately.  
 
The Group has applied the following de-minimis limits, below which, the component 
is not separately quantified:  
 


Life of 
component 
(years) 


0-
10 


10-
15 


15-
20 


20-
30 


30-
40 


Over 
40  


De-minimis 
(£’000) 


50 100 200 300 750 1,000 


 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference 
between current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that 
would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each 
year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.  
 
Surplus Assets 
Surplus assets are those that are not being actively used in the business (such as 
vacant properties) and that cannot be classed as “assets held for sale”.  Surplus 
assets will be measured at fair value at each reporting date, based on the amount 
at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s-
length. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and 
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Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES. The same treatment is 
applied to gains and losses on disposal.  
 
Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale  
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is 
reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before 
reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less 
costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, 
the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the CIES.  
Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses 
recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not 
charged on Assets Held for Sale.  
 
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital 
receipts. The balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts 
reserve, and can only be used for new capital investment (or set aside to reduce 
the Group’s underlying need to borrow – the capital financing requirement).  
 
Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets  
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following 
amounts to record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year:  
Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service.  
Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are 
no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be 
written off. 
  
Investment property  
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for 
capital appreciation. Investment properties are measured initially at cost and 
subsequently at fair value, based on the amount at which the asset could be 
exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s-length. Gains and losses on 
revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 
line in the CIES. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.  
 
Intangible assets  
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are 
controlled by the Group as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is 
capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will 
flow from the intangible asset to the Group. 
 
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where 
the fair value of the assets held by the Group can be determined by reference to an 
active market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Group meets this 
criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost.  
 
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service  
The Group is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual 
contribution from revenue towards the reduction in his overall borrowing 
requirement. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are 
therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance by way of an 
adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.  
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Financial Instruments  
 
Financial Liabilities  
These are initially measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. 
Annual charges to the Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are 
based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of 
interest for the instrument. The amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the 
outstanding principal plus accrued intererantsst.  
 
Financial Assets  
Loans and Receivables are initially measured at fair value and carried at their 
amortised cost. Annual credits to the Income and Expenditure Statement for 
interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the 
effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the loans that the Group has 
made, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the 
outstanding principal receivable plus accrued interest.    
 
Foreign currency translation  
Where the Group has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, 
the transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the 
date the transaction was effective.  
 
Inventories  
Inventories are included in the balance sheet at current cost price. International 
Accounting Standard (IAS) 2 states that Inventories should be measured at the 
lower of cost and net realisable value. The policy does not therefore comply with 
IAS 2 but the difference is not material.  
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions 
repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours.  
Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments held at the balance 
sheet date that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash on the balance 
sheet date and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.  
 
Provisions 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Group a legal 
or constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of 
economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation.  
 
Reserves  
Amounts set aside for purposes falling outside the definition of provisions are 
considered as reserves.  Revenue reserves are available to finance expenditure.  
Certain capital reserves created as a result of the capital accounting scheme are 
not available to meet current expenditure and include: 
 


 Revaluation Reserve which records the accumulated gains on the fixed 
assets held by the Group arising from increases in value, to the extent that 
these gains have not been consumed by subsequent downward movements 
in value; 
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 Capital Adjustment Account, which provides a balancing mechanism between 
the different rates at which assets are depreciated and are financed through 
the capital controls system, by accumulating: 
o On the debit side – the write-down of the historical cost of fixed assets as 


they are consumed by depreciation and impairments or written off on 
disposal; 


o On the credit side – the resources that have been set aside to finance 
capital expenditure. 


 
Collaborative Arrangements 
CIPFA issued new guidance on “Accounting for Collaboration” applicable for the 
2014/15 financial year onwards. This required the Commissioner and Force to 
assess all collaborative activity and categorise these into either joint operations or 
joint ventures and account for their fair share of expenditure, income, assets and 
liabilities in their individual accounts.  Further details can be found under the 
Collaborative Arrangements note. 
 
Employee benefits  
Benefits Payable During Employment  
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the 
year-end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and 
paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current 
employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which the 
employees render service. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements 
(including time off in lieu and flexi leave) earned by employees but not taken before 
the year-end, which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The 
accrual is made at salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being 
the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the 
Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue 
in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.  
 
Termination Benefits  
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the 
Commissioner and Chief Constable to terminate an officer’s employment before the 
normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy.  
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory 
provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount 
payable by the Group to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount 
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in 
Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions 
Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement 
termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension 
fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.  
 
Post-Employment Benefits  
Police officers and police staff have the option of belonging to one of two separate 
pension schemes relevant to them: 


 Police Officers Pension Scheme, administered through a Police Pension 
Fund  


 Local Government Pensions Scheme, administered by Carmarthenshire 
County Council.  


Both schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and 
pensions), earned as employees worked for the Group.  
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This Police Officer Pension scheme is “unfunded” which means that no investment 
assets are built up to pay pensions and other benefits in the future, and therefore 
no provision to meet the liability for future payments of benefits is included in the 
balance sheet. The liabilities of the Local Government Scheme that are attributable 
to the Group are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the 
projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be 
made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on 
assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates etc. and projections of 
earnings for current employees.  
 
Discretionary Benefits 
The Commissioner and Chief Constable also have restricted powers to make 
discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early retirements. Any 
liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are 
accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the 
same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.  
 
Government grants and contributions  
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third 
party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Group when there is 
reasonable assurance that:  
 


 The Group will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and  


 The grants or contributions will be received.  
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been 
satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are 
satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service (attributable 
revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 
(non-ring fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the CIES.  
 
Where capital grants are credited to the CIES, they are reversed out of the General 
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to 
be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied 
reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital 
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.  
 
Leases  
The rentals payable/receivable are charged to the CIES on an accruals basis. 
 
Private Finance Initiatives (PFI) and Similar Contracts  
PFI and similar contracts are agreements to receive services, where the 
responsibility for making available the property, plant and equipment needed to 
provide the services passes to the PFI contractor. As the Group is deemed to 
control the assets that are provided under its PFI scheme, and as ownership of the 
property, plant and equipment will pass to the Group at the end of the contract for 
no additional charge, the Group carries the assets used under the contract on its 
Balance Sheet as part of property, plant and equipment.  
The original recognition of these assets at fair value (based on the cost to purchase 
the property, plant and equipment) was balanced by the recognition of a liability for 
amounts due to the scheme operator to pay for the capital investment. 
Non-current assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated 
in the same way as property, plant and equipment owned by the Group.  
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The amounts payable to the PFI operator each year are analysed into five 
elements:  


 Fair value of the services received during the year; 


 Finance cost; 


 Contingent rent;  


 Payment towards liability;  


 Lifecycle replacement costs.  
 
However during the year the Group’s PFI was terminated.  Further details on the 
accounting treatment of the termination of the PFI and subsequent recognition of 
the asset in the accounts is provided under the “Private Finance initiatives and 
similar contracts” note.  
 
Value Added Tax (VAT)  
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable 
from Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs by the Group. VAT receivable is 
excluded from income. 


 
2. Previous period adjustments 


 
Note 13 – Property Plant and Equipment 
 
Following the revaluation exercise that was undertaken in 2013/14 an error was made in 
the classification of land and buildings totalling £199k. 
An adjustment to the valuation of land and buildings has been made to the April 2014 
valuation. 
This has had no effect on the total value of Fixed Assets. 
 
Buildings 


Previous 
Amount 


£’000 


 Restated Amount 
£’000 


Difference 
 


£’000 


57,391 Cost or valuation at 1
st
 April 2014 57,590 199 


878 Additions 878 0 


58,269 Cost or valuation at 31
st
 March 2015 58,468 199 


(1,319) Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment at 31


st
 March 2015 


(1,319) 0 


56,950 Net book value at 31
st
 March 2015 57,149 199 


 
Land 


Previous 
Amount 


£’000 


 Restated Amount 
£’000 


Difference 
 


£’000 


4,569 Cost or valuation at 1
st
 April 2014 4,370 (199) 


0 Additions 0 0 


4,569 Cost or valuation at 31
st
 March 


2015 
4,370 (199) 


0 Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment at 31


st
 March 2015 


0 0 


4,569 Net book value at 31
st
 March 2015 4,370 (199) 
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Note 13 – Property Plant and Equipment 


An issue has been identified regarding a note to the accounts whereby the historic 
gross book value of vehicles and plant included in a note have not been reduced as 
required on disposal.  


This has had no impact on the Balance Sheet carrying value. This has been corrected 
on 2015/16 and restated for 2014/15.  


The impact of this is illustrated below:- 


Previous 
Amount 


£’000 


Vehicles Restated 
Amount 


£’000 


Difference 


£’000 


 


11,050 Cost or Valuation at 1
st
 April 2014 11,050 0 


1,319 Additions 1,319 0 


(27) Derecognition – disposals (4,193) 4,166 


12,342 Cost or Valuation at 31
st
 March 2015 8,176 4,166 


(8,583) Accumulated depreciation and impairment 
at 1


st
 April 2014 


(8,583) 0 


(911) Depreciation Charge (911) 0 


0 Derecognition - disposals 4,166 4,166 


(9,494) Accumulated Depreciation and impairment 
at 31


st
 March 2015 


(5,328) 4,166 


2,848 Net Book value at 31
st
 March 2015 2,848 0 


 


3. Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted 


The Code requires the Police and Crime Commissioner to disclose information 
relating to the impact of an accounting change that will be required by a new 
accounting standard that has been issued but not yet adopted by the Code.  The 
following changes will be required from 1 April 2016: 


 


 Amendments to IAS19 Employee Benefits (Defined Benefit Plans; Employee 
Contributions); 


 


 Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010 – 2012 Cycle: 
 


o IFRS 2 Share-based Payment 
o IFRS 3 Business Combinations 
o IFRS 8 Operating Segments 
o IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 
o IAS16 Property, Plant and Equipment 
o IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures 
o IAS 38 Intangible Assets; 


 


 Amendment to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (Accounting for Acquisitions of 
Interests in Joint Operations); 
 


 Amendment to IAS16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS38 Intangible 
Assets (Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation); 
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 Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 – 2014 Cycle: 
 


o IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations 
o IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 
o IAS19 Employee Benefits 
o IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting; 


 


 Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Disclosure 
Initiative); 
 


 The changes to the format of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement and the introduction of the 
new Expenditure and Funding Analysis; 
 


 The changes to the format of the Pension Fund Account and the Net Assets 
Statement. 


 
In the Financial Statements for 2016/17, the effect of the changes will be assessed 
and where necessary, the comparative figures restated, however, it is anticipated 
that the changes will not have a material impact. 


 


4. Critical judgements in applying accounting policies  


In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Commissioner has had to 
make certain judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty 
about future events. The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are: 


 Future funding position 


There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for the Police 
and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys. However, the Commissioner has 
determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that 
the assets might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce 
levels of service provision. 


 Ammanford Public Finance Initiative (PFI) contract termination 


The Police Authority entered into a contract with Dolef Cyf for the design, 
construction, maintenance and operation of Ammanford Police Station. This 
contract was novated to the Commissioner upon his appointment to office. The 
accounting policies for PFI schemes and similar contracts were applied to the 
arrangement and the police station (valued at £3.781 million) has been 
recognised as Property, Plant and Equipment on the Commissioner’s Balance 
Sheet.  This PFI agreement was terminated on 19


th
 June 2015.  Please see Note 


6 for further details. 


 Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI) 


MMI is a former insurer of public bodies which ceased trading in 1992.  At the time 
that the company ceased trading, a number of health related claims were 
outstanding and in common with many other local authorities, the Authority and 
subsequently the Commissioner, is in a scheme of arrangement to meet all 
outstanding claims.  This scheme is still in place and its claim Director originally 
advised that the maximum liability to fall on the Commissioner would be £608,900. 


The Scheme Administrator wrote to the Commissioner on the 13
th
 May 2013, 


stating that following the triggering of MMI’s Scheme of Arrangement, he 
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determined that initially, a Levy rate of 15% would be required, and as such, an 
amount of £91,335 was paid in 2013/14. A further amount of £60,890 was paid in 
2015/16 at a levy rate of 10%. Despite correspondence suggesting that the 
provision in the accounts can be reduced, a prudent approach has been adopted 
and the Commissioner has included a long-term provision of £456,675 in the 
2015/16 accounts.  This is made up of the maximum liability amount of £608,900, 
less the two payments that have been made.  


 Icelandic Impairments 


The Police Authority had £2m deposited with the UK subsidiaries of the Icelandic 
Banks – Heritable and Kaupthing Singer and Friedlander (KSF) which went into 
administration in October 2008. The current situation with regards to recovery of 
the sums deposited varies between each institution. As the available information 
is not definitive as to the amounts and timings of payments to be made by the 
administrators, it is likely that adjustments to the impairment for the deposits will 
be necessary. To date 97.98% has been repaid by Heritable and 83.75% by KSF. 


 National Police Air Service (NPAS)  


The Force joined the NPAS in January 2016. A payment of some £222K has been 
made from the revenue budget to cover the provision of the air support from 
NPAS for the final quarter of the financial year. The carrying value of the aircraft 
of around £0.9 million has been written out of the balance sheet and a deferred 
capital receipt of £0.2 million has been received from NPAS (as income) in 
respect of this. There has been no impact on the carrying value of the Pembrey 
facility which is still in regular use and no further capital funding is required in 
respect of a replacement aircraft. 


 New Requirements for Valuation of Investment Properties 


Certain assumptions and estimates have been made in assessing the fair value of 
investment properties and available for sale financial instruments. Further 
information on these assumptions are included in the Investment Properties Note 
and Financial Instruments Note. 


 Repayment of the Capital Financing Requirement 


In 2015/16 reserves were utilised to repay the capital financing requirement. An 
assessment has been made of available reserves to ensure that the transaction 
will leave the Group with adequate reserves. 


 Police Pension Legal Challenge - Career Average Revalued Earnings.  


The Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys, along with other Chief Constables and the 
Home Office, currently has 14 claims lodged against him with the Central London 
Employment Tribunal.  The claims are in respect of alleged unlawful 
discrimination arising from the Transitional Provisions in the Police Pension 
Regulations 2015.  The Tribunal is unlikely to consider the substance of 
the claims until 2017.  Legal advice suggests that there is a strong defence 
against these claims.  The quantum and who will bear the costs in the unlikely 
event that the challenge is successful are also uncertain and therefore at this 
stage it is not practicable to estimate the financial impact.  For these reasons, no 
provision has been made in the 2015/16 Accounting Statements and following 
agreement nationally, this has been accounted for as a Contingent Liability.  


5. Assumptions made about future and other major sources of estimation 
uncertainty 


The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on 
assumptions made by the Commissioner about the future or that are otherwise 
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uncertain.  Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current 
trends and other relevant factors.  However, because balances cannot be 
determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the 
assumptions and estimates. 


The items in the Balance Sheet at 31st March 2016 for which there is a significant 
risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows: 


Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ from 
assumptions 


Property, plant 
and equipment 


Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are 
dependent on assumptions about the level of 
repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in 
relation to individual assets.  The current economic 
climate makes it uncertain that the Commissioner 
will be able to sustain his current spending on 
repairs and maintenance, bringing into doubt the 
useful lives assigned to assets. 


Estimates of remaining useful life were obtained in 
13/14 and depreciation calculations rely on these 
estimations. The Commissioner has used 
depreciated historical cost as a proxy for furniture, 
plant and equipment. 


If the useful life of assets is reduced, 
depreciation increases and the carrying 
amount of the assets falls. 


It is estimated that the total annual 
depreciation charge for buildings would 
increase by £45k if the useful life of each 
building was reduced by 1 year. 


 


Accumulated 
Absences 
Fund 


In determining the liability in respect of 
accumulated absences, information in respect of 
annual leave and flexi leave was obtained from the 
system.  


A sampling approach was adopted in order to 
arrive at the liability. A representative sample of 
employees was selected and electronic records 
obtained detailing the number of days carried 
forward from the previous year. The average 
number of days carried forward was used to 
calculate the required liability, based on the 
number of employees at the previous year end and 
the average salary in the following financial year, 
adjusted to include employer’s national insurance 
and pension contributions. 


The largest category of accumulated 
absences at the 31st March 2016 is 
police officer annual leave. If the 
average number of days carried forward 
from the previous year was increased by 
one day per officer, this would increase 
the liability by approximately £154k. 


Insurance 
Provision 


The Commissioner has provided £416k for 
insurance claims incurred at the 31st March which 
are likely to be paid. The assessment is made 
based on the likely settlement and the probability 
of a known claim against the Commissioner being 
successful. 


The average amount provided per claim 
amounts to £11k with the maximum 
exposure per claim being £50k. Any 
amount above £50k is met by the 
Commissioner’s insurance company. 


Pensions 
liability 


Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions 
depends on a number of complex judgements 
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which 
salaries are projected to increase, changes in 
retirement ages, mortality rates and expected 
returns on pension fund assets.  A firm of 
consulting actuaries is engaged to provide expert 
advice about the assumptions to be applied. 


The effects on the net pensions liability 
of changes in individual assumptions 
can be measured.  For instance, an 
increase of 0.1% in pay award for the 
police officer pension scheme would 
result in an increase to the pension 
liability of £5.191 million. 


Ill Health 
Retirement 
Provision 


The Commissioner has provided £221k for three 
Officers who are on long term sick leave as at 31


st
 


March where it is ‘probable’ or ‘more likely than 
not’ that they will retire due to ill heatlh. 


If the number of officers retiring due to ill 
health was one less than anticipated, the 
liability would be approximately £74k 
less. 


Ill Health 
Retirement 
Reserve 


An amount of £722k has been included in 
Reserves to meet the cost of possible ill health 
retirements in respect of officers who have been, 
or are anticipated to be, on restricted duties. In 
light of recent changes to Police Regulations, an 
exercise is currently underway to medically assess 
officers on restricted duties.  


The Reserve would cover the cost of 
nine to ten ill health retirements, 
depending upon the officer’s rank and 
pay cost.  So, for every one officer less 
that retires due to ill health, the amount 
payable would reduce by approximately 
£74k. 
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6. Material items of income and expense 


The following are included as material exceptional items, included on the face of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  


 
Revaluation and Impairment of non-current assets  
The Commissioner carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, 
Plant and Equipment required to be measured at fair value is re-valued at least every 
five years. Valuations of land and buildings are carried out in accordance with the 
methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the 
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. A full revaluation of investment properties 
was undertaken in 2015/16, along with the revaluation of certain assets which have 
been reclassified as ‘Surplus Assets’.  These revaluations amount to £380k.  
The accounting entries in respect of the revaluations are as follows:  
 


  
2015/16 


£'000 


Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 


Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services (Exceptional Item) -34 


Movement In Reserves Statement   


Surplus/Deficit on Revaluation 34 


Balance Sheet   


Land and Buildings 380 


Capital Adjustment Account -34 


Revaluation Reserve -346 


    
Icelandic Impairments 
Based on the latest information available the Commissioner has adjusted the 
impairment for the deposits by £40k to reflect the better than anticipated repayment 
of the investments. 
 
PFI Termination 
On 19


th
 June 2015, the Commissioner terminated the PFI agreement with Dolef Cyf 


for the design, construction, maintenance and operation of Ammanford Police 
Station. A payment of £3.963m was made to terminate the PFI early.  On termination, 
the Commissioner took ownership of the station and became responsible for its 
maintenance and operation.  The impact of the above on the 2015/16 Statements is 
as follows: 
 


  
2015/16 


£'000 


Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 


Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services (Exceptional Item) - Termination payment 3,963 


Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services (Exceptional Item) - Write off Liability -2,494 


Movement In Reserves Statement   


Transfer to/from Earmarked Reserves -3,963 


Minimum Revenue Provision 2,494 


Balance Sheet   


Cash -3,963 


PFI Finance Lease Liability 2,494 


Capital Adjustment Account -2,494 


Reserves 3,963 
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7. Events after the Balance Sheet Date  


There are no events after the balance sheet date that would affect the Group’s 
financial position for 2015/16. 


 


8. Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under 
Regulations 


This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and 
expenditure recognised by the Group/Commissioner in the year in accordance with 
proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as 
being available to the Commissioner to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. 
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Adjustments primarily involving the 
Capital Adjustment Account 


    
 


 
       


Reversal of items debited or 
credited to the CIES: 


            


Charges for depreciation and 
impairment of non-current assets 


3,678 0 0 3,678 (285) (3,393) 0 0 0 0 (3,678) 0 


Revaluation losses on property, plant 
and equipment (34) 0 0 (34) 0 34 0 0 0 0 34 0 


Amortisation of intangible assets 10 0 0 10 0 (10) 0 0 0 0 (10) 0 


Capital grants and contributions 
applied (817) 0 0 (817) 0 817 0 0 0 0 817 0 


Amounts of non-current assets written 
off on disposal or sale as part of the 
gain/loss on disposal to the CIES 


786 0 0 786 0 (786) 0 0 0 0 (786) 0 


Insertion of items not debited or 
credited to the CIES: 


            


Statutory provision for the financing of 
capital investment 


(9,813) 0 0 (9,813) 0 9,813 0 0 0 0 9,813 0 


Capital expenditure charged against 
the General Fund 


(2,041) 0 0 (2,041) 0 2,041 0 0 0 0 2,041 0 


Adjustments primarily involving the 
Capital grants unapplied account 


            


Application of grants to capital 
financing transferred to the Capital 
Financing Account 


122 (122)  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Adjustments primarily involving the 
Capital receipts reserve 


            


Transfer of cash sale proceeds 
credited as part of the gain/loss on 
disposal to the CIES 


(63) 0 63 0 0 (205) 205 0 0 0 0 0 


Use of Capital receipts reserve to 
finance new capital expenditure 


0 0 
(63


) 
(63) 0 63 0 0 0 0 63 0 


Adjustments involving the Financial 
Instruments Adjustment Account 


            


Amount by which finance costs 
charged to the CIES are different from 
finance costs chargeable in the year in 
accordance with statutory 
requirements 


(165) 0 0 (165) 0 0 0 165 0 0 165 0 


Adjustments primarily involving the 
Pensions reserve 


            


Reversal of items relating to retirement 
benefits debited or credited to the 
CIES 


(12,529) 0 0 (12,529) 0 0 0 0 0 12,529 12,529 0 


Employer’s pensions contributions and 
direct payments to pensioners payable 
in the year 


43,705 0 0 43,705 0 0 0 0 0 (43,705) (43,705) 0 


Adjustments primarily involving the 
Accumulated balances account 


            


Amount by which officer remuneration 
charged  to the CIES on an accruals 
basis is different from remuneration 
chargeable in the year in accordance 
with statutory requirements 


(31) 0 0 (31) 0 0 0 0 31 0 31 0 


Total adjustments 22,808 (122) 0 22,686 (285) 8,374 205 165 31 (31,176) (22,686) 0 
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9. Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 


This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balance in 
earmarked reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and the 
amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund expenditure in 
2015/16. 
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  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Revenue Reserves – Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Dyfed-Powys 


25 22,849 (2,013) (12,629) 662 8,869 


Revenue Reserves – ‘Go Safe’ * 25 0 0 0 305 305 


Capital Reserves – Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Dyfed-Powys  


25 17,528 2,013 (1,465) 64 18,140 


Capital Reserves – ‘Go Safe’ * 25 0 0 0 543 543 


Total  40,377 0 (14,094) 1,574 27,857 


*Reserves held on behalf of the ‘Go Safe’ Partnership.  Originally transferred from Flintshire County Council 


and adjusted for any surplus/deficit on activities in the year. Please refer to Note 31 ‘Agency Services’ for 
further information    


 


10. Other operating expenditure 


This line contains corporate items of income and expenditure that cannot reasonably 
be allocated or apportioned to services. 


Group 


2014/15 


Commissioner 
2014/15 


 Group 
2015/16 


Commissioner 


2015/16 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


(4) (4) (Gain)/Loss on the disposal of non-current assets 723 723 


(12,762) (12,762) Home Office Police Officers Pensions top-up grant (12,529) (12,529) 


(12,766) (12,766) Total (11,806) (11,806) 
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11. Financing and investment income and expenditure 


This line contains corporate items of income and expenditure arising from 
involvement in financial instruments and similar transactions involving interest. 


 


Group 


2014/15 


Commissioner 
2014/15 


 Note Group 
2015/16 


Commissioner 


2015/16 


£’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 


604 604 Interest payable and similar charges 18 325 325 


39,233 12 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability 42 34,097 21 


(193) (193) Interest receivable and similar income 18 (218) (218) 


(413) (413) Income and expenditure in relation to 
investment properties and changes in their 
fair value 


14 (617) (617) 


(217) (217) Specific capital grants available during the 
year 


35 (75) (75) 


0 0 Gain on revaluation (available for sale 
financial instruments) 


18 (165) (165) 


39,014 (207) Total  33,347 (729) 


 


12. Taxation and non-specific grant incomes 


This item consolidates all the grants and contributions receivable that cannot be 
identified to particular service expenditure.  


Group 


2014/15 


Commissioner 
2014/15 


 Note Group 
2015/16 


Commissioner 


2015/16 


£’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 


(44,886) (44,886) Council tax income  (43,033) (43,033) 


(12,389) (12,389) National Non Domestic Rates 
(NNDR) 


 (11,362) (11,362) 


(40,618) (40,618) Non ring fenced government grants 35 (38,937) (38,937) 


(757) (757) Capital grants and contributions 35 (620) (620) 


(98,650) (98,650) Total  (93,952) (93,952) 
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13. Property, plant and equipment 


Movement on balances in financial year 2015/16: 


 Property Plant and Equipment Investment Properties  
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  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 £’000 


Cost or valuation at 1
st
 April 2015:   4,370 58,468 172 3,253 8,176 19,139 2,992 480 1,793 0 430 365 99,638 


Additions   0  168 0 98 1,356 1,079 0 0 0 0 0 219 2,920 


Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve 


   0 (69) 0 0 0 0 78 0 255 13 0 0 277 


Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in 
surplus/deficit on the Provision of Services 


   0 0 0 0 0 0 31 10 0 63 0 0 104 


Derecognition – disposals    0 0 0 (3,351) (870) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (4,221) 


Assets reclassified    0 (159) 20 0 (20) 0 0 (170) (205) 964 (430) 0 0 


Write off of Accumulated Depreciation on revaluation    0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


At 31st March 2016  4,370 58,408 192 
0 
 


8,642 20,218 3,101 320 1,843 1,040 0 584 98,718 


Accumulated depreciation and impairment 
at 1


st
 April 2015 


  0 (1,319) (10) (2,286) (5,328) (15,784) (500) (185) 0 0 0 (314) (25,726) 


Depreciation charge    0 (1,063) (14) (108) (963) (1,245) 0 0 0 0 0 (10) (3,403) 


Depreciation written out to Revaluation Reserve   0  (285) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (285) 


Impairment (losses)/ reversals recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve 


   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Derecognition disposals  0 0 0 2,394 836 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,230 


Impairment (losses)/ reversals recognised in the 
Surplus/ Deficit on the Provision of Services 


  0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Accumulated depreciation and impairment at 31
st


 
March 2016 


  0 (2,667) (24) 0 (5,455) (17,029) (500) (185) 0 0 0 (324) (26,184) 


Net book value  - at 31
st
 March 2016   4,370 55,741 168 0 3,187 3,189 2,601 135 1,843 1,040 0 260 72,534 


Net book value  - at 31
st
 March 2015   4,370 57,149 162 967 2,848 3,355 2,492 295 1,793 0 430 51 73,912 


 


 







POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DYFED POWYS 
 


 48 


 


 Property Plant and Equipment  Investment Properties 


A
s
s
e
ts


 H
e
ld


 f
o


r 
S


a
le


 


In
ta


n
g


ib
le


 


T
o


ta
l 


 


N
o


te
 


L
a


n
d


 


B
u


il
d


in
g


s
 


A
s
s
e
ts


  


U
n


d
e


r 
C


o
n


s
tr


u
c
ti


o
n


 


H
e
li


c
o


p
te


r 


V
e
h


ic
le


s
 


E
q


u
ip


m
e
n


t 


B
o


a
t 


M
a


s
ts


 


H
o


u
s


e
s
 


B
u


il
d


in
g


s
 


  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Cost or valuation at 1
st
 April 2014:  4,370 57,590 0 3,253 11,050 18,366 172 2,992 480 1,793 567 314 100,947 


Additions  0 878 0 0 1,319 773 0 0 0 0 0 51 3,021 


Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised 
in the Revaluation reserve 


 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised 
in surplus/deficit on the Provision of Services 


 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Derecognition – disposals  0 0 0 0 (4,193) 0 0 0 0 0 (137) 0 (4,330) 


Assets reclassified  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Write off of Accumulated Depreciation on 
revaluation 


 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


At 31st March 2015  4,370 58,468 0 3,253 8,176 19,139 172 2,992 480 1,793 430 365 99,638 


Accumulated depreciation and impairment 
at 1


st
 April 2014 


 
0 0 0 (2,178) (8,583) (13,920) 0 (500) (185) 0 0 (302) (25,668) 


Depreciation charge  0 (1,034) 0 (108) (911) (1,864) (10) 0 0 0 0 (12) (3,939) 


Depreciation written out to Revaluation reserve  0 (285) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (285) 


Write off of Accumulated Depreciation on 
revaluation 


 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Derecognition disposals  0 0 0 0 4,166 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,166 


Impairment (losses)/ reversals recognised in 
the Revaluation Reserve 


 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Impairment (losses)/ reversals recognised in 
the Surplus/ Deficit on the Provision of 
Services 


 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Accumulated depreciation and impairment 
at 31


st
 March 2015 


 
0 (1,319) 0 (2,286) (5,328) (15,784) (10) (500) (185) 0 0 (314) (25,726) 


Net book value  - at 31
st
 March 2015  4,370 57,149 0 967 2,848 3,355 162 2,492 295 1,793 430 51 73,912 


Net book value  - at 31
st
 March 2014  4,370 57,590 0 1,075 2,467 4,446 172 2,492 295 1,793 567 12 75,279 
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Depreciation 


 


Revaluations 


The Commissioner carries out a programme that ensures assets required to be measured at 
fair value are normally measured once every five years for each class of asset.  A revaluation 
was carried out in 2013/14.    


Valuations of vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment are based on current prices where there 
is an active second-hand market or latest list prices adjusted for the condition of the asset. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 Depreciation 2014/15 Depreciation 2015/16 


Category of Asset Years Residual Value Charge Years Residual Value Charge 


   £’000   £’000 


Property 


 Land No Depreciation  0 No Depreciation 0 


 Operational 
Buildings 


 


Over Remaining Life 1,319 Over Remaining Life 1,348 


 Assets Under  
Construction 


No Depreciation 0 No Depreciation 0 


 Investment 
Properties 


No Depreciation 0 No Depreciation 0 


Helicopter : 


 


  


 Airframe 20 Nil 79 0 Nil 79 


  Main Gear box 5 Nil 21 0 Nil 21 


 Helicopter 
Engines 


8.75 Nil 0 0 Nil 0 


 Helicopter 
Equipment 


5 Nil 8 0 Nil 8 


Boat:       


 Hull 32 Nil 3 0 Nil 3 


 Engine 12 Nil 7 0 Nil 11 


Vehicles 


 Rapid 
Response 


3 Nil 167 0 Nil 181 


 Other 


 


5 


 


Nil 


 


744 0 


 


Nil 


 


782 


Equipment 


Computer /other 
equipment 


 


5 


 


Nil 


 


1,864 0 


 


Nil 


 


1,245 


Intangible assets 


 


5 


 


Nil 


 


12 0 


 


Nil 


 


10 


Total   4,224   3,688 
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Property Plant and Equipment Investment Properties  
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


Carried at 
historical cost: 


4,370 53,653 0 0 3,239 3,154 168 5,835 206 1,786 1,183 260 73,854 


Valued at fair 
value at: 


          
 


  


31
st
 March 2016 0 (69) 0 0 0 0 0 109 10 255 76 0 381 


31
st
 March 2015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


31
st
 March 2014 0 (1,202) 0 0 0 0 0 244 (25) 17 60 0 (906) 


31
st
 March 2013 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (329) 0 (329) 


31
st
 March 2012 0 509 0 0 (15) 35 0 0 0 0 50 0 579 


31
st
 March 2011 0 2,288 0 0 0 0 0 (315) 16 (215) 0 0 1,774 


31
st
 March 2010 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


31
st
 March 2009 0 562 0 0 (37) 0 0 (3,272) (72) 0 0 0 (2,819) 


31
st
 March 2008 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Total cost or 
valuation: 


4,370 55,741 0 0 3,187 3,189 168 2,601 135 1,843 1,040 260 72,534 


 


14. Investment properties 


Some of the Commissioner’s property is being held solely to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation purposes rather than for use in administrative purposes. This includes masts 
and some houses.  


 


2014/15  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


623 Rental income from investment property 817 


(210) 
Direct operating expenses arising from investment 


property 
(200) 


413 Net gain/(loss) 617 


 


The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment 
properties over the year: 


 
 


2014/15  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


4,580 Balance at start of year: 4,580 


0 Additions: 0 


0 Purchases 0 


0 Net gains/losses from fair value adjustments 374 


 Transfers:  


0  (To)/from property, plant and equipment (170) 


0  To Surplus Assets (205) 


4,580 Balance at end of year 4,579 
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 Investment Properties are measured at Fair value based on market evidence. 


Details of the Commissioners investment properties and information about the fair 
value hierarchy as at 31 March 2016 and 31


st
 March 2015 are as follows:- 


31
st


 March 2016 


 Quoted Prices in 
active markets for 
identical assets 
(Level 1) 


Other significant 
observable inputs 
(level 2) 


Significant 
unobservable 
inputs (level 3) 


Fair Value as at 
31


st
 March 2016 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Radio Mast Sites 0 2,601 0 2,601 


Office Units 0 1,843 0 1,843 


Houses 0 135 0 135 


 


31
st


 March 2015 


 Quoted Prices in 
active markets for 
identical assets 
(Level 1) 


Other significant 
observable inputs 
(level 2) 


Significant 
unobservable 
inputs (level 3) 


Fair Value as at 
31


st
 March 2015 


 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Radio Mast Sites 0 2,492 0 2,492 


Office Units 0 1,793 0 1,793 


Police Houses 0 295 0 295 


There were no transfers between level 1 and 2 during the year. 


Valuation Techniques used to determine level 2 and 3 Fair Values for Investment 
Properties 


Significant observable inputs – level 2. 


The fair value for the Radio Mast Units and Office Units has been based on the market 
approach using current market conditions, the duration of leases and rental income. 


The fair value for the Police House is based on the market approach using current 
market conditions and recent sales prices. 


  


15. Capital Commitments 


As at 31 March 2016 the Commissioner has entered into some commitments associated 
with building schemes and major projects undertaken as part of the Capital Programme.  
The most significant of these commitments is: 


 Telematics project – equipment has been purchased in 2015/16 with installation of 
equipment to be made to vehicles in 2016/17. Total estimated cost of project is 
£292,500. 


 The Commissioner currently has a contract for the design of custody facilities 
within Carmarthenshire. The remaining value of the contract as of the 31


st
 


March was £293,284. 


16. Intangible assets 


The Commissioner accounts for software and licenses as intangible assets, to the extent that 
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the software is not an integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of the 
hardware. Intangible assets include both purchased licenses and internally generated 
software. 


The useful life assigned to the major software used by the Group/Commissioner is 5 years and 
the assets are amortised on a straight-line basis. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


There are no items of capitalised software that are individually material to the financial 
statements. 


 


17. Long-Term Debtors 


 


Group Commissioner  Group Commissioner 


31
st 


March 2015  31
st


 March 2015  31
st


 March 
2016 


31
st


 March 2016 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000  


0 0 Other Police Bodies 91 91 


0 0 Total 91 91 


 
 


18. Financial Instruments 


A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Non-exchange transactions such as 
those relating to taxes and government grants, do not give rise to financial instruments. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


2014/15  2015/16 


Internally 
generated 


assets 


Other 
assets 


Total  Internally 
generated 


assets 


Other assets Total 


£’000 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 £’000 


   Balance at start of year:    


0 314 314  Gross carrying amounts 0 365 365 


0 (302) (302)  Accumulated amortisation 0 (314) (314) 


0 12 12 Net carrying amount at start of year: 0 51 51 


0 51 51 Additions: 0 219 219 


0 (12) (12) Amortisation for the period 0 (10) (10) 


0 51 51 Net carrying amount at end of year 0 260 260 


Comprising: 31/3/2011 31/3/2012 31/3/2013 31/3/2014 31/3/2015 31/3/2016 


Gross carrying amounts (£’000) 297 314 314 314 365 584 


Accumulated amortisation (£’000) (263) (276) (289) (302) (314) (324) 
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Financial Instrument - Balances 


Group: 


 


 An intra-group transfer will take place from the Chief Constable’s Accounts to the Commissioner’s 
Accounts for the pensions liability related to the Chief Contable’s staff. 


 


Commissioner: 


 


 Long Term Current 


 31
st


  
March 
2015 


31
st


  
March 
2016 


31
st


  
March 
2015 


31
st


  
March 
2016 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Borrowing (PWLB) – principal sum borrowed (2,455) (2,299) (144) (157) 


Borrowing (PWLB) – accrued interest (14) (13) 0 0 


Trade Payables (Creditors) 0 0 (1,553) (1,559) 


PFI  Liability (2,504) 0 0 0 


Liability related to Defined Benefit Pension Scheme* (1,047,283) (1,011,819) 0 0 


Total Financial Liabilities (1,052,256) (1,014,131) (1,697) (1,716) 


Loans and receivables:     


Fixed term investments – Principal at amortised cost 0 0 40,000 20,000 


Fixed term investments – Accrued interest 0 0 39 23 


Fixed term investments – Impaired investments 0 0 23 12 


Available for Sale Investments  0 0 0 16,164 


Available for  Sale Investments – Accrued Interest 0 0 0 21 


Trade Receivables (Debtors) 0 0 1,542 1,743 


Total Financial Assets 0 0 41,604 37,963 


 Long Term Current 


 31
st


  
March 
2015 


31
st


  
March 
2016 


31
st


  
March 
2015 


31
st


  
March 
2016 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Borrowing (PWLB) – principal sum borrowed (2,455) (2,299) (144) (157) 


Borrowing (PWLB) – accrued interest (14) (13) 0 0 


Trade Payables (Creditors) 0 0 (260) (293) 


PFI  Liability (2,504) 0 0 0 


Liability related to Defined Benefit Pension Scheme* (311) 100 0 0 


Total Financial Liabilities (5,284) (2,212) (404) (450) 


Loans and receivables:     


Fixed term investments – Principal at amortised cost 0 0 40,000 20,000 


Fixed term investments – Accrued interest 0 0 39 23 


Fixed term investments – Impaired investments 0 0 23 12 


Available for Sale Investments – At Fair Value 0 0 0 16,164 


Available for  Sale Investments – Accrued Interest 0 0 0 21 


Trade Receivables (Debtors) 0 0 1,270 1,404 


Total Financial Assets 0 0 41,332 37,624 
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Financial Instruments – Gains and Losses 


The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 
relation to financial instruments consist of the following items: 


 


Income, Expense, Gains and Losses  


 


2014/15 


 


Total £’000s 


 Financial Liabilities Financial Assets 2015/16 


 


Total 


£000s 


 Liabilities measured at 
amortised cost 


£000s 


Loans and 
receivables 


£000s 


£’000  £’000 £’000 £’000 


(604) Interest expense (325) 0 (325) 


(604) Interest payable and similar charges (325) 0 (325) 


192 Interest income 0 218 218 


1 Impairment gain (Icelandic Banks) 0 (40) (40) 


193 Interest and investment income 0 178 178 


(411) Net gain/(loss) for the year (325) 178 (147) 


 


Fair Values  


Financial assets classified as available for sale and all derivative assets and liabilities 
are carried in the Balance Sheet at fair value. For most assets, including bonds, 
treasury bills and shares in money market funds and other pooled funds, the fair value 
is taken from the market price. The fair values of other instruments have been 
estimated calculating the net present value of the remaining contractual cash flows at 
31


st
 March 2016, using the following methods and assumptions: 


 Certificates of deposit and forward loan contracts have been discounted at market 


interest rates for instruments of similar credit quality and remaining term to 


maturity. 


 The Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) has provided the Commissioner with Fair Value 
amounts in relation to its debt portfolio.  The PWLB has assessed the Fair Values by 
calculating the amounts the Commissioner would have had to pay to extinguish the loans 
on these dates. 


 No early repayment or impairment is recognised for any financial instrument. 


 The fair value of short-term instruments, including trade payables and receivables, 


is assumed to approximate to the carrying amount. 


 For trade payables and trade receivables, the carrying value has been used as a 
reasonable approximation of fair value.  


 The PFI liability has been measured at the present value of the minimum lease 
payments in respect of the property, discounted by the interest rate implicit in the 
contract. 


 The liability related to the Defined Benefit Pension Scheme has been assessed on an 
actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the pensions that will 
be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary 
levels etc. The fair value of this liability at the Balance Sheet date is therefore the 
same as the carrying amount.  
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Fair values are shown in the table below, split by their level in the fair value hierarchy: 


 Level 1 – fair value is only derived from quoted prices in active markets for 


identical assets or liabilities, e.g. bond prices 


 Level 2 – fair value is calculated from inputs other than quoted prices that are 


observable for the asset or liability, e.g. interest rates or yields for similar 


instruments 


 Level 3 – fair value is determined using unobservable inputs, e.g. non-market data 


such as cash flow forecasts or estimated creditworthiness 


 


2015/16 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Group  Commissioner 


Carrying 
amount 


Fair value 


 


Fair Value 
Level 


Carrying 
amount 


Fair value 


31
st
   March 
2016 


31
st
 March 2016 


31
st
   March 
2016 


31
st
 March 2016 


£’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 


  Financial Liabilities:    


      


(2,312) (3,691) Long Term Borrowing 2 (2,312) (3,691) 


  
Liabilities for which Fair Value is 


not disclosed 


   


(157) (157) Short Term Borrowing  (157) (157) 


(1,011,819) (1,011,819) 
Liability related to Defined Benefit 


Pension Scheme 


 100 100 


(1,599) (1,599) Trade Payables (Creditors)  (293) (293) 


(1,015,887) (1,017,226) Total Financial Liabilities  (2,662) (4,041) 


  Financial Assets:    


8,011 8,166 Corporate and Government Bonds 2 8,011 8,166 


8,009 8,019 Certificates of Deposit 2 8,009 8,019 


  
Assets for which Fair Value is not 


disclosed 
 


  


20,035 20,035 Short Term Investments  20,035 20,035 


1,743 1,743 Trade Receivables (Debtors)  1,404 1,404 


37,798 37,963 Total Financial Assets  37,459 37,624 
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2014/15 


 


Group  Commissioner 


Carrying amount Fair value 


 


Carrying 
amount 


Fair value 


31
st


   March 2015 
31


st
 March 


2015 
31


st
   March 
2015 


31
st


 March 
2015 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


  Financial Liabilities:   


(144) (144) Short Term Borrowing (144) (144) 


(2,469) (3,970) Long Term Borrowing (2,469) (3,970) 


(2,504) (2,504) PFI Liability (2,504) (2,504) 


(1,047,283) (1,047,283) 
Liability related to Defined Benefit 


Pension Scheme 
(311) (311) 


(1,553) (1,553) Trade Payables (Creditors) (260) (260) 


(1,053,953) (1,055,454) 


Total 


Financial Liabilities 
(5,688) (7,189) 


  Financial Assets:   


40,062 40,062 Short Term Investments 40,062 40,062 


1,542 1,542 Trade Receivables (Debtors) 1,270 1,270 


41,604 41,604 Total Financial Assets 41,332 41,332 


 


Please note that fair value level disclosures are not required to be applied to 
comparative information provided for periods before the 1


st
 April 2015. 


 


19. Inventories 


 Franking and uniform 
consumable stores 


Fleet maintenance 
materials 


Total 


 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Balance outstanding at start of 
year: 


358 322 86 80 444 402 


Purchases 362 316 229 247 591 563 


Recognised as an expense in the 
year 


(372) (336) (225) (251) (597) (587) 


Written off balances (26) (10) (10) 0 (36) (10) 


Reversals of write offs in previous 
year/average price adjustment 


0 0 0 0 0 0 


Balance outstanding at year end. 322 292 80 76 402 368 


All inventories are held on the Chief Constable’s balance sheet. 
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20. Short-Term Debtors 


Group Commissioner  Group Commissioner 


31
st 


March 2015  31
st
 March 2015  31


st
 March 2016 31


st
 March 2016 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000  


6,098 6,098 Central Government bodies 3,999 3,999 


261 261 Local authorities 3 0 


683 660 Other Police Bodies 742 742 


314 307 Other Public Bodies 200 200 


638 395 Limited Companies 1,239 912 


46 46 Other entities and individuals 112 102 


1,493 1,493 Value added tax claims 194 194 


9,533 9,260 Total 6,489 6,149 


21. Cash and Cash Equivalents 


31
st
 March 2015  31


st
 March 2016 


£’000  £’000 


19 Cash held 19 


2,408 Bank current accounts 1,902 


4,000 Short-term deposits 0 


6,427 Total 1,921 


22. Assets held for sale 


 Non - current 


 31
st
 March 2015 31


st
 March 2016 


 £’000 £’000 


Balance outstanding at start of year: 567 430 


Assets newly classified as held for sale:   


 Property, plant and equipment 0 0 


 Other assets/liabilities in disposal groups 0 0 


Assets reclassified as Surplus assets 0 (430) 


Revaluation losses 0 0 


Revaluation gains 0 0 


Assets sold (137) 0 


Balance outstanding at year end 430 0 


23. Short-Term Creditors 


Group Commissioner  Group Commissioner 


31
st
 March 2015 31


st
 March 2015  31


st
 March 2016 31


st
 March 2016 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


3,089 2,430 Central Government bodies 2,361 1,982 


635 58 Local authorities 713 21 


454 36 Other Police Bodies 1,871 23 


122 76 Other Public Bodies 116 80 


1,401 330 Limited Companies 1,680 280 


4,448 3,384 Other entities and individuals 1,337 85 


10,149 6,314 Total 8,078 2,471 
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24. Provisions 


Short Term Provisions 


The following amounts are expected to be paid within 12 months of the reporting period: 


 Statutory 
Funds 


Ill Health 
Retirements 


Other 
Provisions 


Total 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Balance outstanding at start of 
year: 


876 134 63 1,073 


Additional provisions made in  
2015/16 


206 221 0 427 


Amounts used in  2015/16 (429) 0 2 (427) 


Unused amounts reversed in  
2015/16 


0 (134) 0 (134) 


Balance outstanding at year 
end: 


653 221 65 939 


Statutory Funds -Money Held Pending Reclaim 


The Commissioner is empowered to seize monies or property used, or intended 
for use, for the purpose of crime.  These seized monies are held within the 
“Money Held Pending Reclaim” fund, pending a ruling by the Courts.  Once this 
ruling is made the funds can be disposed of in line with relevant legislation. 


Ill Health Retirements 


A provision has been established to meet the cost of ill health retirement payments for 
those employees who, at the year end, were deemed unlikely to return to work but for 
whom the full health assessment had yet to be completed. 


Other Provisions 


At the year end, £55k relates to obligations to existing members of the Force 
Presentation Fund.  


        Long Term Provisions 


The following amounts are expected to be paid more than 12 months after the reporting 
period:  


 Insurance 
provision 


Municipal Mutual 
Insurance Ltd 


Total 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Balance outstanding at start of 
year: 


410 518 928 


Additional provisions made in  
2015/16 


188 0 188 


Amounts used in  2015/16 (182) (61) (243) 


Balance outstanding at year 
end: 


416 457 873 


Insurance Provision 


This is an assessment of the likely settlement of insurance claims to be made by the 
Commissioner. 


Municipal Mutual Insurance Ltd 


For further information, please refer to Note 4. 
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25. Usable reserves 


Movements in the Commissioner’s usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and in this note. 


31
st


 March 2015   31
st


 March 2016 


£’000  £’000 


4,500 General Reserve 4,500 


22,849 Earmarked Revenue Reserves 9,174 


17,528 Earmarked Capital Reserve 18,683 


0 Capital Receipts Reserve 0 


627 Capital Grants Unapplied 505 


45,504 Total 32,862 


 


General Reserve 


The Commissioner maintains a General Reserve of £4.5m to act as:  


 a working balance to help cushion the impact of uneven cash flows and avoid 
unnecessary temporary borrowing;  


 a contingency to cushion the impact of unexpected events or emergencies. 


Earmarked Revenue Reserves  


This reserve includes a significant sum of money set aside to support the revenue 
budget in the medium term plan.  This is as a result of the Commissioner wishing to 
return surplus reserves held to the public.  This was achieved through reducing the 
council tax precept payable for a band D property by 5% in 2014/15 (compared with 
the previous year) and by freezing the council tax precept in 2015/16.  This has 
resulted in £6.662m being set aside for this purpose and is classed as “Other 
Reserves” below. 
 
In addition, reserves classed as “Invest to Save” below have also been earmarked for 
specific initiatives.  These initiatives are expected to incur one off costs that should 
deliver ongoing savings to the Commissioner.  Many of these projects focus on 
developing systems and communications technology, some of which are necessary to 
link in with new national system infrastructures. 
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Reserve 
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Description 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000  


Ill Health 
Retirement 
Reserve 


794 (72) 0 0 722 To meet the cost of possible ill health 
retirements in respect of officers who have 
been, or are anticipated to be, on long term 
restrictions or limited duties.  


Insurance 
Reserve 


750 (750) 0 0 0 These are funds that were held to meet 
potential and contingent insurance liabilities 
– there has been limited use of this fund in 
the past and these costs will be met from 
the General Reserve in future. 


Invest to Save 
Reserve 


7,387 587 (7,071) 622 1,525 To fund future projects that will deliver 
ongoing revenue savings. 


Criminal Justice 
Reserve 


951 (951) 0 0 0 These funds were earmarked to be spent 
on the wider Criminal Justice system.  
However, as these funds were not used as 
previously anticipated, they have now been 
re-allocated to fund other invest to save 
initiatives. 


Go Safe Reserve 0 0 0 305 305 Held on behalf of the ‘Go Safe’ Partnership 
to fund future earmarked revenue 
expenditure.  


PFI Termination 
Reserve 


4,000 (403) (3,597) 0 


 


0 This reserve was established last financial 
year in order to fund the termination of the 
Ammanford police station PFI.  Termination 
was achieved on 19th June 2015. 


Other Reserves 8,967 (424) (1,961) 40 6,622 Funds aimed at addressing the future 
funding gap. 


Total 22,849 (2,013) (12,629) 967 9,174  


 


Earmarked Capital Reserves  


These are amounts set aside from day to day spending and money received from the sale of 
non-current assets to pay for new non-current assets or repay borrowing.  There has been a 
lack of investment in the estate over the last few years and the Commissioner has now begun 
a significant programme of works that will deliver an effective, fit for purpose estate over the 
next few years.   


2014/15  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 £’000 


14,947 Balance at 1st April:  17,528 


 Amounts received in year * 543  


 Reclassifications 2,013  


2,581 Amounts used in year (1,401) 1,155 


    


17,528 Balance at 31st March:  18,683 


 
*Amount held on behalf of the ‘Go Safe’ Partnership – please refer to Note 31 for further information 
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Capital Receipts Reserve 


This account relates to the proceeds from the sale of non-current assets. 


2014/15  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


0 Balance at 1st April: 0 


 Capital receipts received during year  


(31) Vehicles (63) 


(137) Buildings 0 


0 Helicopter 0 


168 Capital receipts utilised during year 63 


0 Balance at 31st March: 0 


Capital Grants Unapplied 


2014/15  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


1,004 Balance at 1st April: 627 


974 Grant received in year 695 


(1,351) Grant applied in year (817) 


627 Balance at 31st March: 505 


 


26. Unusable reserves 


31st March 2015   31st March 2016 


£’000  £’000 


13,191 Revaluation reserve 13,253 


50,908 Capital adjustment account 59,282 


(534) Accumulated absences account (503) 


(1,047,283) Pensions reserve (1,011,819) 


0 Deferred Capital Receipt 205 


0 Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 165 


(983,718) Total (939,417) 


 
Revaluation reserve 


The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the 
Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the 
balance on the Capital Adjustment Account. 


2014/15   2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


13,476 Balance at 1st April: 13,191 


0 Upward revaluation of assets 363 


0 Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not 
charged to the surplus/deficit on the Provision of Services 


(17) 


0 Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets 
not posted to the surplus or deficit on the Provision of 


Services 


346 


(285) Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost 
depreciation 


(284) 


0 Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account 0 


13,191 Balance at 31st March: 13,253 
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Capital Adjustment Account 


The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different 
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the 
acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.  The 
Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, 
impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair 
value figures to a historical cost basis).  The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by 
the Commissioner as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement. The 
Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains 
recognised on donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the Group/Commissioner. 


The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment 
before 1 April 2007 


 


2014/15   2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


51,651 Balance at 1st April: 50,908 


 Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: 


 


(3,928)  Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (3,393) 


0  Revaluation losses on property, plant and equipment (448) 


0  Revaluation gains on property, plant and equipment 482 


(13)  Amortisation of intangible assets (10) 


0  Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 0 


(164)  Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part 
of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 


(991) 


47,546  46,548 


 Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve  


 Net write out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in 
the year 


 


 Capital financing applied in the year:  


168  Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 63 


1,084  Use of Reserves to finance new capital expenditure 1,436 


974  Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital 
financing 


695 


377  Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital Grants 
Unapplied Account 


122 


339  Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged 
against the General Fund 


10 


0  Provision for the financing of capital investment charged against the 
General Fund 


7,309 


420  Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 605 


3,362  10,240 


0 Termination of PFI contract – write off of PFI liability 2,494 


0 Movements in the market value of Investment Properties debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 


0 


0 Movement in the Donated Assets Account credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement 


0 


50,908 Balance at 31st March: 59,282 
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Accumulated Absences Account 


This account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund Balance 
from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year. Statutory 
arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers 
to or from the Account. 


 


2014/15  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


(557) Balance at 1st April: (534) 


557 Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the preceding year 534 


(534) Amounts accrued at the end of the current year (503) 


23 Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different from remuneration 
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements. 


31 


(534) Balance at 31st March: (503) 


Pensions Reserve 


The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements 
for accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with 
statutory provisions.  The Chief Constable accounts for post-employment benefits in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees 
accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing 
assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs.  However, 
statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Chief Constable makes 
employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is 
directly responsible.  The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a 
substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources 
the Commissioner has set aside to meet them.  The statutory arrangements will ensure that 
funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid. 


 


2014/15  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


(883,675) Balance at 1st April: (1,047,283) 


(126,348) Actuarial (gains) or losses on pensions assets and liabilities 66,641 


9,524 Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 


12,529 


(46,784) Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the 
year. 


(43,706) 


(1,047,283) Balance at 31st March: (1,011,819) 


Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 


The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of 
non-current assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take place. Under 
statutory arrangements, the Commissioner does not treat these gains as usable for 
financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. When the 
deferred cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the 
Capital Receipts Reserve. 
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Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 


The Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve contains the gains made by the 
Commissioner arising from increases in the value of its investments that have quoted 
market prices or otherwise do not have fixed or determinable payments. The balance 
is reduced when investments with accumulated gains are: 


 revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost, 


 disposed of and the gains are realised. 


 


2014/15  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


0 Balance at 1st April: 0 


0 Upward revaluation of investments 165 


0 Accumulated gains on assets sold and maturing assets written out to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Other Investment 
Income 


0 


0 Balance at 31st March: 165 


 


 


2014/15  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


0 Balance at 1st April: 0 


0 Transfer of deferred sale proceeds credited as part of the gain / loss on disposal to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 


205 


0 Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash 0 


0 Balance at 31st March: 205 
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27. Cash flow statement – operating activities 


 


2014/15 - Restated  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


35,837 Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 35,328 


    


  Adjustments for non-cash movements:  


(4,224) Depreciation (3,688) 


(1) Investment Impairment 40 


0 Fixed Asset Impairment 0 


0 Revaluation losses on Property, Plant & Equipment 0 


(37,260) Net charges made for Retirement Benefits (31,176) 


(166) Sale of Fixed Assets (NBV) (721) 


(525) Contribution to Provisions 189 


0 Gain on Revaluation of Financial Assets available for sale 165 


35 Net PFI Contribution 2,504 


33 Increase/Decrease in Interest on Investments accrual 5 


1 Increase/Decrease in Interest on Borrowing accrual 1 


(42) Increase/Decrease in Stock (34) 


3,045 Increase/Decrease in Debtors (3,044) 


(3,200) Increase/Decrease in Creditors 2,006 


0 Capital Grants in Advance 0 


(42,304)  (33,753) 


 
Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit 
on the provision of services that are investing and financing 
activities: 


 


168 
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 
investment property and intangible assets 


63 


(148) Other payments for financing activities – Agency arrangements (996) 


414 Payments for and Receipts from investing activities 616 


434  (317) 


   


(6,033) Net cash flows from operating activities 1,258 


 


28. Cash flow statement – investing activities 


 


2014/15   2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


2,306 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property 
and intangible assets 


2,842 


249,000 Purchase of short-term and long-term investments 143,079 


210 Other payments for investing activities 200 


(169) 
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 
investment property and intangible assets 


(63) 


(247,008) Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments (143,132) 


(623) Other receipts from investing activities (817) 


3,716 Net cash flows from investing activities 2,109 
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29. Cash flow statement – financing activities 


 


2014/15   2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


131 Repayments of short- and long-term borrowing 143 


148 Other payments for financing activities 996 


279 Net cash flows from financing activities 1,139 


 


30. Amounts reported for resource allocation decisions 


The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement is that specified by the Service Reporting Code of 
Practice (SeRCOP). However, decisions about resource allocation are taken by the 
Police and Crime Commissioner on the basis of budget reports analysed across 
subjective headings. 


These reports are prepared on a different basis from the accounting policies used in 
the financial statements.  In particular: 


 no charges are made in relation to capital expenditure (whereas depreciation, 
revaluation and impairment losses in excess of the balance on the Revaluation 
Reserve and amortisations are charged to services in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement) 


 the cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of employer’s 
pensions contributions) rather than current service cost of benefits accrued in the 
year 


 expenditure on some support services is budgeted for centrally and not charged to 
Divisions and Departments. 


The income and expenditure of the Group/Commissioner’s principal directorates 
recorded in the budget reports for the year is as follows:  


 


Group  - Directorate Income and Expenditure 2015/16 


 OPCC Territorial 
Policing 


Investigations Central Total 
Directorate 


Analysis 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


(719) (135) (496) (425) (1,775) 


Government grants (619) (1,286) 0 (2,270) (4,175) 


Total Income (1,338) (1,421) (496) (2,695) (5,950) 


Employee costs 741 48,599 17,828 6,221 73,389 


Premises costs 0 67 65 108 240 


Transport costs 13 732 173 345 1,263 


Supplies & services 154 2,302 1,528 201 4,185 


Agency & contracted 
services 


1,351 66 128 1,638 3,183 


Total Expenditure 2,259 51,766 19,722 8,513 82,260 


Net Expenditure 921 50,345 19,226 5,817 76,310 
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Group - Directorate Income and Expenditure 2014/15  


 OPCC Territorial 
Policing 


Investigations Central Total 
Directorate 


Analysis 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


(637) (167) (300) (1,352) (2,456) 


Government grants (298) (406) 0 (2,259) (2,963) 


Total Income (935) (573) (300) (3,611) (5,419) 


Employee costs 703 43,180 12,361 21,934 78,178 


Premises costs 0 348 97 97 542 


Transport costs 19 1,206 170 166 1,561 


Supplies & services 157 2,049 1,465 127 3,798 


Agency & contracted 
services 


1,373 55 145 1,192 2,765 


Total Expenditure 2,252 46,838 14,238 23,516 86,844 


Net Expenditure 1,317 46,265 13,938 19,905 81,425 


Commissioner - Directorate Income and Expenditure 2015/16 


 OPCC Territorial 
Policing 


Investigations Central Total 
Directorate 


Analysis 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


(719) (135) (496) (425) (1,775) 


Government grants (619) (1,286) 0 (2,270) (4,175) 


Total Income (1,338) (1,421) (496) (2,695) (5,950) 


Employee costs 634 0 0 0 634 


Premises costs 0 0 0 0 0 


Transport costs 13 0 0 0 13 


Supplies & services 154 0 0 0 154 


Agency & contracted 
services 


1,351 0 0 0 1,351 


Total Expenditure 2,152 0 0 0 2,152 


Net Expenditure 814 (1,421) (496) (2,695) (3,798) 


Commissioner - Directorate Income and Expenditure 2014/15  


 OPCC Territorial 
Policing 


Investigations Central Total 
Directorate 


Analysis 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


(637) (167) (300) (1,351) (2,455) 


Government grants (298) (406)  (2,259) (2,963) 


Total Income (935) (573) (300) (3,610) (5,418) 


Employee costs 646 0 0 0 646 


Premises costs 0 0 0 0 0 


Transport costs 19 0 0 0 19 


Supplies & services 157 0 0 0 157 


Agency & contracted 
services 


1,373 0 0 0 1,373 


Total Expenditure 2,195 0 0 0 2,195 


Net Expenditure 1,260 (573) (300) (3,610) (3,223) 
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Reconciliation of Directorate Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 


 


Group 
2014/15  


Commissioner 
2014/15 


 Group 
2015/16 


Commissioner 
2015/16 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


81,425 (3,223) Net expenditure in the Directorate Analysis 76,310 (3,798) 


15,387 (5,788) 
Net amounts of services and support services 
not included in the Analysis 


18,498 (6,226) 


11,427 (270) 
Amounts in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement not reported to 
management in the Analysis 


12,931 3,360 


0 0 
Amounts included in the Analysis not included 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 


0 0 


108,239 (9,281) 
Cost of services in Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement 


107,739 (6,664) 


Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis 


This reconciliation shows how the figures in the Directorate Analysis of Income and 
Expenditure relate to a subjective analysis of the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
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Group - Financial year 2015/16  
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


(1,775) (3,106) 415 (4,466) 0 (4,466) 


Interest & investment 
income 


0 0 0 0 (1,036) (1,036) 


Income from council tax 0 0 0 0 (43,033) (43,033) 


Government grants & 
contributions 


(4,175) (3,120) 911 (6,384) (63,523) (69,907) 


Gain or loss on disposal 
of non-current assets 


0 0 0 0 723 723 


Total Income (5,950) (6,226) 1,326 (10,850) (106,869) (117,719) 


Employee costs 73,389 15,749 (1,165) 87,973 0 87,973 


Premises costs 240 3,265 (228) 3,277 200 3,477 


Transport costs 1,263 893 (145) 2,011 0 2,011 


Supplies & services 4,185 4,296 76 8,557 0 8,557 


Agency & contracted 
services 


3,183 521 150 3,854 0 3,854 


Pension costs 0 0 7,834 7,834 34,097 41,931 


Depreciation, 
amortisation, 
impairment & 
revaluations 


0 0 3,688 3,688 0 3,688 


Exceptional Item – PFI 
Termination 


0 0 1,469 1,469 0 1,469 


Exceptional Item - 
Icelandic bank 
impairment 


0 0 (40) (40) 0 (40) 


Exceptional Item –  


Non-current asset 
revaluation 


0 0 (34) (34) 0 (34) 


Gain on revaluation of 
financial assets 
available for sale 


0 0 0 0 (164) (164) 


Interest payments 0 0 0 0 325 325 


Total Expenditure 82,260 24,724 11,605 118,589 34,458 153,047 


Surplus or deficit on 
the provision of 
services 


76,310 18,498 12,931 107,739 (72,411) 35,328 
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Group - Financial year 2014/15  
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


(2,456) (2,595) 263 (4,788) 0 (4,788) 


Interest & investment 
income 


0 0 0 0 (816) (816) 


Income from council tax 0 0 0 0 (44,886) (44,886) 


Government grants & 
contributions 


(2,963) (3,188) (1,460) (7,611) (66,744) (74,355) 


Gain or loss on disposal 
of non-current assets 


0 0 0 0 (4) (4) 


Total Income (5,419) (5,783) (1,197) (12,399) (112,450) (124,849) 


Employee costs 78,178 12,955 1,287 92,420 0 92,420 


Premises costs 542 2,782 149 3,473 210 3,683 


Transport costs 1,561 840 179 2,580 0 2,580 


Supplies & services 3,798 4,037 438 8,273 0 8,273 


Agency & contracted 
services 


2,765 556 (840) 2,481 0 2,481 


Pension costs 0 0 7,182 7,182 39,233 46,415 


Depreciation, 
amortisation, impairment 
& revaluations 


0 0 4,228 4,228 0 4,228 


Icelandic bank 
impairment 


0 0 1 1 0 1 


Non-current asset 
revaluation 


0 0 0 0 0 0 


Interest payments 0 0 0 0 605 605 


Total Expenditure 86,844 21,170 12,624 120,638 40,048 160,686 


Surplus or deficit on the 
provision of services 


81,425 15,387 11,427 108,239 (72,402) 35,837 
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Commissioner - Financial year 2015/16 
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


(1,775) (3,106) 415 (4,466) 0 (4,466) 


Interest & investment 
income 


0 0 0 0 (1,036) (1,036) 


Income from council tax 0 0 0 0 (43,033) (43,033) 


Government grants & 
contributions 


(4,175) (3,120) 911 (6,384) (63,523) (69,907) 


Gain or loss on disposal 
of non-current assets 


0 0 0 0 723 723 


Charge to Chief 
Constable for use of 
Non-Current Assets 


0 0 (3,050) (3,050) 0 (3,050) 


Total Income (5,950) (6,226) (1,724) (13,900) (106,869) (120,769) 


Employee costs 634 0 0 634 0 634 


Premises costs 0 0 0 0 200 200 


Transport costs 13 0 0 13 0 13 


Supplies & services 154 0 0 154 0 154 


Agency & contracted 
services 


1,351 0 0 1,351 0 1,351 


Pension costs 0 0 0 0 21 21 


Depreciation, 
amortisation, 
impairment & 
revaluations 


0 0 3,688 3,688 0 3,688 


Exceptional Item – PFI 
Termination 


0 0 1,470 1,470 0 1,470 


Exceptional Item - 
Icelandic bank 
impairment 


0 0 (40) (40) 0 (40) 


Exceptional Item –  


Non-current asset 
revaluation 


0 0 (34) (34) 0 (34) 


Gain on revaluation of 
financial assets 
available for sale 


0 0 0 0 (164) (164) 


Interest payments 0 0 0 0 325 325 


Intra-Group Transfer 0 0 0 0 148,479 148,479 


Total Expenditure 2,152 0 5,084 7,236 148,861 156,097 


Surplus or deficit on 
the provision of 
services 


(3,798) (6,226) 3,360 (6,664) 41,992 35,328 
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Commissioner - Financial year 2014/15  
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Fees, charges & other 
service income 


(2,455) (2,595) 263 (4,787) 0 (4,787) 


Interest & investment 
income 


0 0 0 0 (816) (816) 


Income from council tax 0 0 0 0 (44,886) (44,886) 


Government grants & 
contributions 


(2,963) (3,193) (1,461) (7,617) (66,744) (74,361) 


Gain or loss on disposal 
of non-current assets 


0 0 0 0 (4) (4) 


Charge to Chief 
Constable for use of 
Non-Current Assets 


0 0 (3,307) (3,307) 0 (3,307) 


Total Income (5,418) (5,788) (4,505) (15,711) (112,450) (128,161) 


Employee costs 646 0 0 646 0 646 


Premises costs 0 0 0 0 210 210 


Transport costs 19 0 0 19 0 19 


Supplies & services 157 0 0 157 0 157 


Agency & contracted 
services 


1,373 0 0 1,373 0 1,373 


Pension costs 0 0 5 5 12 17 


Depreciation, 
amortisation, 
impairment & 
revaluations 


0 0 4,229 4,229 0 4,229 


Icelandic bank 
impairment 


0 0 1 1 0 1 


Non-current asset 
revaluation 


0 0 0 0 0 0 


Interest payments 0 0 0 0 605 605 


Intra-Group Transfer 0 0 0 0 156,741 156,741 


Total Expenditure 2,195 0 4,235 6,430 157,568 163,998 


Surplus or deficit on 
the provision of 
services 


(3,223) (5,788) (270) (9,281) 45,118 35,837 
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31. Agency services 


Since April 2015, The Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys has been the 


strategic lead for the financial administration of the ‘GoSafe’ Partnership. ‘GoSafe’ is the 
public facing image of the Wales Road Casualty Reduction Partnership which comprises 
the  4 Welsh Police Forces, 22 Unitary Authorities for Wales and the Welsh Government 
(as the Trunk Road authority). 


The ‘GoSafe’ Partnership is funded from two principle sources: a Welsh Government 
grant, and utilisation of income received from attendance of offenders on Speed 
Awareness Courses.  During 2015/16, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed 
Powys submitted grant claims totalling £2.54m, and made creditor payments to the value 
of £5.53m, on behalf of the Partnership.  


The ‘GoSafe’ Partnership pays the Police and Crime Commissioner an annual 
administration fee in return for the services provided. 


2014/15  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


0 Expenditure incurred in providing Financial Administration Services to 
the ‘GoSafe’ partnership 


10 


0 Administration fee payable by the ‘GoSafe’ partnership (10) 


0 Net surplus arising on the agency arrangements 0 


In accordance with the requirements of IAS 18 Revenue, the Code of Practice requires 
that where an organisation acts as an agent, transactions will not be reflected in an 
authority’s financial statements, with the exception of cash collected or expenditure 
incurred by the agent on behalf of the principal, in which case there is a debtor or 
creditor position and the net cash is included in Financing Activities in the Cash Flow 
Statement.  


Pension services provided by Carmarthenshire County Council  


The council administer the Local Government and Police Pension schemes and levy 
an annual fee based on the number of active and deferred members, as well as 
actual pensioners. A cost is also incurred for maintenance and the annual benefit 
statements. 


 


2014/15  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


62 Expenditure incurred in administering the Police and Local 
Government Pension Schemes 


82 


62 Net surplus arising on the agency arrangements 82 


 


32. Collaborative Arrangements  


Police forces in Wales have a long, successful history of collaborating to develop 
specialist areas of policing. This included those under the remit of the former Police 
Authorities of Wales Joint Committee. Future collaboration will be driven by the need 
to satisfy the Strategic Policing Requirement and by the outcomes of the Regional 
Strategic Assessment of threats, risks and harm to the southern region of Wales.  
 
The Police and Crime Commissioner for each Police Force will be responsible for 
ensuring the Strategic Policing Requirement is met.  As part of this, he will look to 
work in collaboration with other Commissioner’s and forces to provide the most 
effective service possible. Such agreements are regulated by Section 22A of the 
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Police Act 1996, as amended by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 
2011.  
 
The collaborative services and their funding continue under revised Commissioner 
and Force Governance arrangements. These are in effect considered as ‘Pooled 
Budgets’ with agreements for Funding Contributions, made and varied from time to 
time, and certain Specific Government Grants. The pooled budgets are effectively 
hosted by the Commissioner and Force for South Wales Police on behalf of the four 
police forces in Wales.   
The CIPFA guidance on “Accounting for Collaboration requires the Commissioner 
and Force to assess all collaborative activity and categorise these into either joint 
operations or joint ventures and account for their fair share of expenditure, income, 
assets and liabilities in their individual accounts.  
 
The Expenditure and Income Statements for the main collaborative arrangements 
are provided below:  
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Pay Expenditure 4,179 411 2,389 3,610 1,873 9,670 22,132 


Non Pay Expenditure 1,504 29 172   965 627 1,569 4,866 


Gross Expenditure 5,683 440 2,561 4,575 2,500 11,239 26,998 


Specific Grant Income (5,664) (440) (2,556) (2,613) (500) 0 (11,773) 


Income (19) 
 


0 (5) (274) (99) (16) (413) 


Total Income & Grants (5,683) (440) (2,561) (2,887) (599) (16) (12,186) 


Force Contributions (Net) 0 0 0 (1,688) (1,901) (11,223) (14,812) 


(Surplus) or Deficit 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


 
Finance representatives from all Forces in Wales met with representatives of the 
Wales Audit Office on the 29


th
 January 2016.  At this meeting, the cost 


apportionment method for each Collaborative Arrangement was agreed.  The tables 
below show each Force’s contribution towards Expenditure and Income:  
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Dyfed-Powys 950 74 552 986 525 3,182 6,269 


Gwent 1,067 83 620 1,107 625 2,764 6,266 


North Wales 1,276 99 Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 1,375 


South Wales 2,390 184 1,389 2,482 1,350 5,293 13,088 


Gross Expenditure   5,683 440 2,561 4,575 2,500 11,239 26,998 
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 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Dyfed-Powys (950) (74) (552) (622) (126) (4) (2,328) 


Gwent (1,067) (83) (620) (699) (150) (4) (2,623) 


North Wales (1,276) (99) Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 (1,375) 


South Wales (2,390) (184) (1,389) (1,566) (323) 
 


(8) (5,860) 
 


Total Income & 
Grants  


(5,683) (440) (2,561) (2,887) (599) (16) (12,186) 


 


Note 1: North Wales Police are basing their costs and income on actual costs rather than an allocation on 
Welsh population.  Furthermore, they are not included in the Regional Task Force, which operates in the 
Southern Welsh Forces and for the Regional Organised Crime Unit, they contribute to the North West region 
of England and North Wales. 


 


Each force may hold their own reserves for collaborative purposes. 


 


 
 







POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DYFED POWYS 
 
 


 76 


33. Officers’ remuneration 


Senior employees  


      


Salary 
(including fees 


and 
allowances) 


Benefits in 
kind - lease 


cars 


Benefits in 
kind - 


relocation 
expenses 


Other Payments 


Total 
remuneration 


excluding 
pension 


contributions 


Pension 
contributions 


Total 
remuneration 


including 
pension 


contributions 


          Note 1         


  Year Note £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 


Chief Constable  
2015/16   127,465 4,192 0 0 131,657 27,517 159,174 


2014/15   126,237 4,425 0 0 130,662 29,733 160,395 


Deputy Chief Constable  
2015/16 2 115,856 3,501 0 0 119,357 27,034 146,391 


2014/15 3 113,978 4,106 0 5,593 123,677 26,766 150,443 


T/Deputy Chief Constable  
2015/16 4 44,558 1,570 0 0 46,128 10,783 56,911 


2014/15   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Assistant Chief Constable  
2015/16 5 36,669 2,382 30,139 0 69,190 8,874 78,064 


2014/15   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


T/Assistant Chief Constable 
2015/16 6 64,014 1,846 0 0 65,860 13,953 79,813 


2014/15 7 50,130 2,184 0 0 52,314 11,765 64,079 


Director of Finance/ Chief 
Financial Officer to the Chief 
Constable 


2015/16   68,007 0 0 0 68,007 7,889 75,896 


2014/15   64,647 0 0 0 64,647 7,499 72,146 


Director of Resources 
2015/16   68,007 0 0 0 68,007 7,889 75,896 


2014/15 8 42,065 0 0 0 42,065 4,846 46,911 


Director of Legal and 
Compliance 


2015/16   69,498 0 0 0 69,498 0 69,498 


2014/15   68,175 0 0 0 68,175 0 68,175 


Commissioner 
2015/16   65,000 0 0 0 65,000 7,540 72,540 


2014/15   65,000 0 0 0 65,000 7,540 72,540 
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Deputy Commissioner* 
2015/16 9 53,000 0 0 0 53,000 6,148 59,148 


2014/15   53,000 0 0 0 53,000 6,148 59,148 


Chief Financial Officer to the 
Commissioner* 


2015/16 10 58,208 0 0 0 58,208 6,776 64,984 


2014/15   64,706 0 0 0 64,706 7,492 72,198 


Chief of Staff* 
2015/16 11 4,405 0 0 0 4,405 5,793 10,198 


2014/15   58,499 0 0 0 58,499 6,786 65,285 


Temporary Chief of Staff* 
2015/16 11 59,142 0 0 0 59,142 6,860 66,002 


2014/15   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 


Total 2015/16     833,829 13,491 30,139 0 877,459 137,056 1,014,515 


Total 2014/15     706,437 10,715 0 5,593 722,745 108,575 831,320 


 
*staff under the direction and control of the Commissioner
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Note 1: Under the Chief Officer Relocation Package Policy, Chief Officers who relocate their main home to 


the force area are entitled to receive reimbursement of their relocation expenses. This is in accordance with 
Winsor Recommendation 37, which states that Police and Crime Commissioners "should be required to pay 
all reasonable costs arising from the sale and purchase of a chief officer's house and should pay all tax 
liabilities arising from any relocation packages, so that, for the chief officer concerned, there is no personal 
financial disadvantage." 


Note 2: The Deputy Chief Constable was seconded to the role of "Deputy Chief Constable - All Wales" from 


08/11/15 - present. There was no change in remuneration as a result of this appointment.   


Note 3:  The figure of £5,593 in the 'Other Payments' column relates to reimbursement of the benefit in kind 


tax liability that was incurred as a result of relocation expenses paid to the Deputy Chief Constable in 
2012/13 and the resultant change in tax code.  This was in accordance with Winsor Recommendation 37 
(see note 1).          


Note 4: The Assistant Chief Constable was promoted to Temporary Deputy Chief Constable from 08/11/2015 


onwards. The annualised salary for this post in 2015/16 was £112,173.     


Note 5: The Assistant Chief Constable was appointed on 29/06/15 and was in post until 07/11/2015 (see 


note 4).  The annualised salary for this post in 2015/16 was £102,822.     


Note 6: The Temporary Assistant Chief Constable was in post between 01/04/2015 - 27/06/2015 and 


15/11/2015 - 31/03/2016. The annualised salary for this post in 2015/16 was £97,509.    


Note 7: The Temporary Assistant Chief Constable was appointed on 28/09/2014.  The annualised salary for 


this post in 2014/15 was £95,245.         


Note 8:  The Director of Resources was appointed on 11/08/2014.  The annualised salary for this post in 


2014/15 was £65,229.          


Note 9:  The Deputy Commissioner left the organisation on 11/05/2016 following the Police and Crime 


Commissioner elections.  The new Commissioner does not intend to appoint a Deputy Commissioner. 


Note 10: The Chief Financial Officer to the Commissioner reduced her working hours during 2015/16. The 


full-time equivalent salary for this post in 2015/16 was £68,007.  


Note 11: The Chief of Staff was on maternity leave from 27/04/2015 - 10/04/2016. The salary figure shown 


above excludes maternity pay.  The annualised salary for this post in 2015/16 was £60,993. 


Note 12: The Temporary Chief of Staff was in post from 02/03/2015 - 08/05/2016 to cover the Chief of Staff's 


maternity leave (see note 11).          
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Other employees 


The other Group employees receiving more than £60,000 remuneration for the year 
(excluding employer’s pension contributions) were paid the following amounts: 


 


2014/15  2015/16 


Number of employees  Number of employees 


6 £60,000 - £64,999* 4 


5 £65,000 - £69,999 5 


1 £70,000 - £74,999* 1 


4 £75,000 - £79,999 3 


3 £80,000 - £84,999 3 


1 £85,000 - £89,999 2 


*The remuneration paid to two individuals in 2014-15, one in the £60,000 - £64,999 bracket and the 
other in the £70,000 - £74,999 bracket, included compensation for loss of office.   


There were no other Commissioner employees receiving more than £60,000 
remuneration for the year (excluding employer’s pension contributions). 


 


Ratio of Chief Constable Remuneration/Chief of Staff Remuneration 


The revision to the Accounts and Audit Regulations (Wales) in 2014 has added a new 
requirement to report the following remuneration ratio information:  
 


a. the remuneration of the body’s Chief Constable/Chief of Staff during 
the year to which the accounts relate; 


b. the median full-time equivalent remuneration of all the body’s 
employees in post at 31


st
 March 2016; and 


c. the ratio of the amount in sub-paragraph (a) to the amount in sub-
paragraph (b);  


 


Remuneration includes basic salary, overtime, allowances and benefits in kind. 


 


Commissioner: 


The full-time equivalent remuneration of the Chief of Staff for 2015/16 was £60,993. 


The median full-time equivalent remuneration of all the Commissioner’s employees as at 
31


st
 March 2016 was £35,100. 


The ratio of the temporary Chief of Staff’s remuneration to the median Commissioner 
employee’s remuneration was 1.74:1. 


 


Chief Constable: 


The remuneration of the Chief Constable for 2015/16 was £132,171. 


The median full-time equivalent remuneration of all the Chief Constable’s employees as 
at 31


st
 March 2016 was £35,254. 


The ratio of the Chief Constable’s remuneration to the median Chief Constable 
employee’s remuneration was 3.75:1. 
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Exit Packages 


The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the redundancies 
during 2015/16 is set out in the tables below.  


Group: 


Exit package cost 
band 


Number of 
Redundancies in 


each band 
Cost of Redundancies in each band 


No. 


Redundancy cost Pension Strain Total 


£’000 £’000 £’000 


£0 - £20,000 1* 6 0 6 


£20,001 - £40,000 0 0 0 0 


£40,001 - £60,000 0 0 0 0 


£60,001 - £80,000 0 0 0 0 


£80,001 - £100,000 0 0 0 0 


£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 


£150,000 + 0 0 0 0 


 1 6 0 6 


*No Group staff exited the organisation during 2015/16; however, a member of staff who 
exited the organisation in 2014/15 received a further payment in 2015/16 in respect of 
their exit package.  


Commissioner: 


No exit packages were charged to the Commissioner’s accounts in 2015/16. 


 


The total cost of exit packages is charged to the Group’s Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Account in the current year. The cost of the Redundancies is included in the 
Service Analysis and the Pension Strain as a Non Distributed Cost. 


In comparison, the number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of 
redundancies during 2014/15 is set out in the table below: 


Group: 


Exit package cost 
band 


Number of 
Redundancies in 


each band 


Cost of Redundancies in each band 


No. Redundancy cost Pension Strain Total 


£’000 £’000 £’000 


£0 - £20,000 28 321 84 405 


£20,001 - £40,000 13 374 91 465 


£40,001 - £60,000 1 45 0 45 


£60,001 - £80,000 0 0 0 0 


£80,001 - £100,000 0 0 0 0 


£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0 0 


£150,000 + 0 0 0 0 


 42 740 175 915 


Commissioner: 


No exit packages were charged to the Commissioner’s accounts in 2014/15. 
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Members 


 The following amounts were paid to Joint Audit Committee members in 2015/16. 


 


Group Commissioner  Group  Commissioner 


2014/15 2014/15  2015/16 2015/16 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


0 0 Salaries 0 0 


2 2 Allowances 3 3 


0 0 Expenses 0 0 


2 2 Total 3 3 


 


34. External audit costs 


The Group/Commissioner has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of 
the Statement of Accounts, certification of grant claims and statutory inspections and 
to non-audit services provided by the Group/Commissioner’s external auditors: 


Group Commissioner  Group Commissioner 


2014/15 2014/15  2015/16 2015/16 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


82 41 


Fees payable to the Wales Audit 
Office with regard to external audit 
services carried out by the appointed 
auditor for the year 


82 41 


82 41 Total 82 41 


In 2014/15 the Group received a payment of £15,772 as a result of a redistribution of 
reserves to local government / police bodies and a refund of £3,381 in respect of the 
2013/14 performance fee. These amounts have not been reflected in the figures 
above.  
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35. Grant Income 


The Commissioner credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 2015/16: 


 


2014/15  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


 Credited to Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure  


0 Competed Fund (75) 


(20) ACPO TAM CT Specific grant – Boat engines 0 


(197) Other capital grants 0 


(217) Total (75) 


 Credited to Taxation and Non-specific grant income  


(33,152) Police Revenue Grant (32,448) 


(6,215) Welsh Floor Grant (5,063) 


(1,251) Revenue Support Grant (1,426) 


(757) Capital Grant (619) 


(41,375) Total (39,556) 


 Credited to services  


 Revenue grants  


(3,380) Grants Receivable from the Home Office (1,528) 


(2,184) Police Community Support Officers (2,192) 


(178) Victim Support Services (576) 


(404) Private Finance Initiative (391) 


(343) All Wales Schools Liaison Programme  (334) 


(7) Competed Fund  (39) 


(58) Capital Loans Grant (55) 


0 Other Revenue Grants (52) 


 Collaborative Grants **  


(576) Regional Organised Crime Unit (563) 


(105) Regional Task Force (105) 


0 Dedicated Security Posts (Ports Unit) (551) 


0 Counter Terrorism Security Advisors (CTSA) (56) 


(779) Counter Terrorism Intelligence Unit (946) 


(8,014) Total (7,388) 


 
**Police and Crime Commissioners and Police Forces in Wales are complying with new 
requirements arising from the CIPFA guidance on “Accounting for Collaboration”. This has 
required the Group to assess all collaborative activity and account for their fair share of grant 
income in their individual accounts since 2014/15. In the 2014/15 Statement of Accounts, following 
discussions between the Welsh Forces, grant income in respect of the Dedicated Security Posts 
(Ports Unit) and Counter Terrorism Security Advisors (CTSAs) was included based on the Police 
and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed Powys’ ‘own spending’ as opposed to being apportioned 
based on ‘fair share’.  As a result, in 2014/15 the grants were shown under ‘Grants Receivable 
from the Home Office’. 
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36. Related parties 


The Group/Commissioner is required to disclose material transactions with related 
parties, i.e. bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the 
Group/Commissioner or to be controlled or influenced by the Group/Commissioner.  


 Central Government and Other Public Bodies 


Central government has significant influence over the general operations of the 
Group/Commissioner – it is responsible for providing the statutory framework within 
which the Group/Commissioner operates, provides the majority of its funding in the 
form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the 
Group/Commissioner has with other parties.  Grants received from government 
departments are set out in the subjective analysis in Note 30 on reporting for 
resource allocation decisions.   


The Group/Commissioner has business relationships, giving rise to income and 
expenditure transactions, with Central Government Bodies and other Public Bodies 
as follows: 


Group  Commissioner 


2015/16  2015/16 


Income Expenditure  Income Expenditure 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


(68,320) 764 Home Office (68,320) 0 


(17,934) 3 Welsh Government (17,934) 0 


(14,328) 4,300 Carmarthenshire County Council (14,328) 0 


(6,097) 139 Ceredigion County Council (6,097) 0 


(10,677) 539 Pembrokeshire County Council (10,677) 275 


(12,200) 197 Powys County Council (12,200) 0 


 


Group  Commissioner 


2014/15  2014/15 


Income Expenditure  Income Expenditure 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


(54,559) 455 Home Office (57,797) 0 


(16,271) 0 Welsh Government (16,271) 0 


(14,725) 963 Carmarthenshire County Council (14,725) 33 


(6,390) 151 Ceredigion County Council (6,390) 5 


(11,133) 182 Pembrokeshire County Council (11,133) 7 


(12,642) 142 Powys County Council (12,642) 0 


Joint Audit Committee Members 


The total of members’ allowances paid in 2015/16 is shown in note 33. 


Senior Officers 


The IPCC has an investigation underway following referral by the Force into 


allegations received against the Director of Legal and Compliance. The allegations 


relate to payments made by Dyfed Powys Police for legal services over a number of 


years to a barrister’s chamber where her then husband worked. The IPCC is 


investigating what role the Director of Legal and Compliance had in instructing the 


chambers, in signing off any invoices and whether a potential conflict of interest was 


declared when required in line with force policies and procedures.  
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Payments totalling £14,461 were made to these chambers for legal services carried 
out during 2015/16. 


There were no material transactions between the Group/Commissioner and other 
Senior Officers, or parties related to them.  


Entities Controlled or significantly Influenced by the Group/Commissioner 


There are no entities controlled or significantly influenced by the 
Group/Commissioner. 


37. Capital expenditure and capital financing 


The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table 
below, together with the resources that have been used to finance it.  Where capital 
expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are 
used by the Group/Commissioner, the expenditure results in an increase in the 
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred 
historically by the Group/Commissioner that has yet to be financed.  The CFR is 
analysed in the second part of this note. 


2014/15  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


(7,614) Opening capital financing requirement: (7,309) 


 Capital Investment:  


(3,023)  Property, Plant and Equipment (2,701) 


0  Investment properties 0 


0  Intangible assets (219) 


0  Revenue expenditure funded from Capital under 
Statute 


0 


 Sources of finance:  


168  Capital receipts 63 


2,435  Government grants and other contributions 2,252 


 Sums set aside from revenue  


420  Direct revenue contributions 605 


305  MRP / loans fund principal 0 


0 Repayment of Capital Financing Requirement * 7,309 


(7,309) Closing capital financing requirement: 0 


 


 


2014/15  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


 Explanation of movements in the year:  


305 (Increase) / decrease in underlying need to borrow (supported 
by government financial assistance) 


0 


0 (Increase) / decrease in underlying need to borrow 
(unsupported by government financial assistance) * 


7,309 


0 Assets acquired under finance leases 0 


0 Assets acquired under PFI contracts 0 


305 (Increase)/ decrease in Capital Financing Requirement 7,309 


 


* Please refer to Narrative Report and Note 4 for further information 
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38. Leases 


Group/Commissioner as Lessee 


Operating Leases 


The Group/Commissioner leases property from other property owners where 
appropriate and affordable, to provide suitable accommodation for operational 
policing and support. The Group/Commissioner also has operating leases for plant 
and equipment which includes photocopiers.  


The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future 
years are: 


 


31
st


 March 2015  31
st


 March 2016 


£’000  £’000 


181 Not later than one year 168 


551 Later than one year and not later than five years 416 


1,146 Later than five years 977 


1,878 Total 1,561 


The expenditure charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
during the year in relation to these leases was: 


 


2014/15  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


292 Minimum lease payments 235 


0 Contingent rents 0 


0 (Sublease payments receivable) 0 


292 Total 0 


 


Group/Commissioner as Lessor 


Operating Leases 


The Group/Commissioner leases out part of its property portfolio to provide suitable 
and affordable accommodation for other Public Sector Authorities. 
 
The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in  
future years are: 


The income credited to the Group/Commissioner’s Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement during 2015/16 in relation to these leases was £163,481. 


Group Commissioner  Group Commissioner 


31
st


 March 
2015 


31
st


 March 2015  31
st


 March 
2016 


31
st


 March 2016 


£’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 


93 93 Not later than one year 95 95 


365 365 Later than one year and not later 
than five years 


337 337 


854 854 Later than five years 356 356 


1,312 1,312 Total 788 788 
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39. Private Finance Initiatives and similar contracts 


Ammanford Police Station 


Property Plant and Equipment 


The assets used to provide services at the police station are recognised on the 
Group/Commissioner’s Balance Sheet.   


The classification of the asset remains the same on the Balance Sheet following the 
termination of the contract. 


 


Payments 


An agreed payment is made each year which is increased annually by inflation and 
can be reduced if the contractor fails to meet availability and performance standards 
in any year but which is otherwise fixed.  


Payments were made in 2015/16 for the period April - June prior to the termination of 
the contract. 


Due to the termination of the PFI contract no payments remain to be made. 


 


Although the payments made to the contractor are described as unitary payments, 
they have been calculated to compensate the contractor for the fair value of the 
services they provide, the capital expenditure incurred and interest payable whilst the 
capital expenditure remains to be reimbursed.  The liability outstanding to pay the 
liability to the contractor for capital expenditure incurred is as follows: 


 


2014/15  2015/16 


£’000  £’000 


2,539 Balance outstanding at start of year 2,504 


(35) Payments during the year (10) 


0 Payments during the year (termination of contract) (2,494) 


0 Capital expenditure incurred in the year 0 


2,504 Balance outstanding at year end 0 


40. Impairment losses 


During 2015/16, there is no reason to believe that the value of assets has changed, 
therefore there is no indication of impairment.  


41. Termination benefits  


During 2015/16 no staff exited the organisation under redundancy; however one 
additional payment was made during the year to a member of staff who exited the 
organisation in 2014/15, which was funded from the recurring revenue budget. See 
note 33 for the number of exit packages and total cost per band. 


42. Defined benefit pension schemes   


Participation in Pension schemes 


As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Group makes 
contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits.  Although these benefits 
will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Group has a commitment to 
make the payments that needs to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their 
future entitlement. 


The Group participates in two post-employment schemes: 
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 The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), administered locally by 
Carmarthenshire County Council – this is a funded defined benefit final salary 
scheme, meaning that the Group and employees pay contributions into a fund, 
calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with investment 
assets. 


 The Police Officer Pension Scheme – this is an unfunded defined benefit final 
salary scheme, consequently the fund has no investment assets. Benefits payable 
are funded by contributions from employers and employees with any difference 
between benefits payable and contributions receivable being met by the top-up 
grant from the Home Office. 


Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits 


The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the reported cost of services when 
they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as 
pensions. 


However, the charge the Group is required to make against council tax is based on 
the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post-employment/retirement benefits 
is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement.  The 
following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves 
Statement during the year: 
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 Local Government 
Pension Scheme 


Police Pension Scheme 


 
Group Commissioner Group 


Commissione
r 


 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement: 


    


Cost of services:     


 Current service cost (4,277) (88) (19,508) 0 


 Past service cost 0 0 (3,199) 0 


 Other (94) 0 0 0 


Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure: 


    


 Net interest expense (1,009) (21) (33,088) 0 


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged 
to the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 


(5,380) (109) (55,795) 0 


Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to 
the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement: 


    


Remeasurement of the net defined benefit 
liability comprising: 


    


 Return on plan assets (excluding the 
amount included in the net interest 
expense) 


(3,960) 0 0 0 


 Remeasurement gains and losses 
arising on changes in demographic 
assumptions 


0 0 0 0 


 Remeasurement gains and losses 
arising on changes in financial 
assumptions 


8,811 100 61,790 0 


 Other – experience (gain)/loss 0 0 0 0 


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged 
to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 


(529) (9) 5,995 0 


Commissioning Costs (intra-group 
transfer) 


0 (520) 0 5,995 


Total net cost (529) (529) 5,995 5,995 


Movement in Reserves Statement:     


 Reversal of net charges made to the 
Surplus or Deficit for the Provision of 
Services for post -employment benefits 
in accordance with the Code 


5,380 5,380 55,795 55,795 


Actual amount charged against the General 
Fund Balance for pensions in the year: 


    


 Employers’ contributions payable to 
scheme 


(2,596) (2,596) (27,402) (27,402) 


  


An intra-group transfer has been processed from the Chief Constable’s accounts to 
the    Commissioner’s accounts, as the Chief Constable is not responsible for holding 
reserves. 
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The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the Group and 
Commissioner Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements to the 31 March 
2016 is a gain of £4,851k (2014/15: £15,123k loss). 


 


 Local Government 
Pension Scheme 


Police Pension Scheme 


 Group Commissioner Group Commissioner 


 2014/15 2014/15 2014/15 2014/15 


 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement: 


    


Cost of services:     


 Current service cost (3,011) (62) (19,153) 0 


 Past service cost (235) (5) 0 0 


 Other (92) 0 0 0 


Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure: 


    


 Net interest expense (608) (12) (38,625) 0 


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to 
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services 


(3,946) (79) (57,778) 0 


Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement: 


    


Remeasurement of the net defined benefit 
liability comprising: 


    


 Return on plan assets (excluding the 
amount included in the net interest expense) 


8,348 0 0 0 


 Remeasurement gains and losses arising on 
changes in demographic assumptions 


0 0 0 0 


 Remeasurement gains and losses arising on 
changes in financial assumptions 


(23,471) (311) (146,398) 0 


 Other – experience (gain)/loss 0 0 35,173 0 


Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 


(19,069) (390) (169,003) 0 


Commissioning Costs (intra-group transfer) 0 (18,679) 0 (169,003) 


Total net cost (19,069) (19,069) (169,003) (169,003) 


Movement in Reserves Statement:     


 Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus 
or Deficit for the Provision of Services for 
post -employment benefits in accordance 
with the Code 


3,946 3,946 57,778 57,778 


Actual amount charged against the General 
Fund Balance for pensions in the year: 


    


 Employers’ contributions payable to scheme (2,641) (2,641) (21,823) (21,823) 
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Pensions Assets and Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet 


The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Group’s obligation in respect 
of its defined benefit plans is as follows: 


 Local Government Pension 
Scheme 


Police Pension Scheme 


2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 


£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Present value of the defined benefit 
obligation 


(124,805) (123,284) (1,016,308) (982,911) 


Fair value of plan assets 93,830 94,376 0 0 


Net liability arising from defined 
benefit obligation 


(30,975) (28,908) (1,016,308) (982,911) 


Reconciliation of the movements in the Fair value of Scheme (Plan) Assets 


 Local Government Pension 
Scheme 


Police Pension Scheme 


2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 


£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Opening fair value of scheme 
assets 


80,472 93,830 0 0 


Interest income 3,733 3,214 0 0 


Remeasurement gain / (loss)     


 The return on plan assets 
excluding the amount 
included in the net interest 
expense 


8,348 (3,960) 0 0 


Contributions from employer 2,641 2,596 0 0 


Contributions from employees into the 
scheme 


1,205 1,238 0 0 


Benefits paid (2,477) (2,448) 0 0 


Other (if applicable) (92) (94) 0 0 


Closing fair value of scheme assets 93,830 94,376 0 0 


 


The majority of the employment costs are incurred by the Chief Constable, therefore assets 
and liabilities relating to post-employment benefits remain within the Chief Constable and 
Group accounts. 
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Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation): 


 Funded Liabilities: Local 
Government Pension Scheme 


Unfunded Liabilities: Police 
Pension Scheme 


2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 


£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


Opening Balance at 1
st


 April: (95,019) (124,805) (869,128) (1,016,308) 


Current service cost (3,011) (4,277) (19,153) (19,508) 


Interest cost (4,341) (4,223) (38,625) (33,088) 


Contributions from scheme 
participants 


(1,205) (1,238) (5,849) (5,862) 


Remeasurement gains and (losses)     


 Remeasurement gains/ 
(losses) arising from changes 
in demographic assumptions 


0 0 0 0 


 Remeasurement gains / 
(losses) arising from changes 
in financial assumptions 


(23,471) 8,811 (146,398) 61,790 


 Other (if applicable) 0 0 35,173 0 


Past service cost 0 0 0 (3,199) 


Losses/ (gains) on curtailment (235) 0 0 0 


Benefits Paid 2,477 2,448 27,672 33,264 


Closing balance at 31
st


 March (124,805) (123,284) (1,016,308) (982,911) 


Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised: 


 Fair value of Scheme assets 


2014/15 2015/16 


£’000 £’000 


Cash and cash equivalents 695 397 


Equity instruments 64,104 65,214 


Bonds 19,385 18,252 


Property 9,646 10,513 


Total Assets 93,830 94,376 


Basis for estimating Assets and Liabilities 


Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit 
method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on 
assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels etc. 


Both the LGPS and Police Officer pension scheme liabilities have been estimated by 
Mercer Human Resource Consulting, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the 
LGPS Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2016. 


The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been: 
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 Local Government Pension 
Scheme 


Police Pension Scheme 


 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 


Mortality assumptions:     


Longevity at 65 (60 for police 
scheme) for current pensioners: 


    


 Men 23.3 23.4 27.2 27.6 


 Women 25.8 25.9 29.7 30.2 


Longevity at 65 (60 for police 
scheme) for future pensioners: 


    


 Men 25.5 25.7 29.7 30.3 


 Women 28.1 28.2 32.2 


 


32.5 


 


Other assumptions:     


Rate of  inflation 2.1% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 


Rate of increase in salaries 3.6% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 


Rate of increase in pensions 2.1% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 


Rate for discounting scheme 
liabilities 


3.4% 3.6% 3.3% 3.6% 


 


The estimation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to actuarial assumptions set 
out in the table above.  


The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonable possible 
changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for 
each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions 
remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy 
increases or decreases for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and 
changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the 
sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme i.e. on an 
actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The methods and types of 
assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from those 
used in the previous period. 
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Local Government Police Scheme 2015/16 Impact on the defined benefit obligation in the 
scheme 


Increase in 
assumption 


Decrease in 
assumption 


£’000 £’000 


Longevity (increase or decrease by 1 year) 2,296  


Rate of inflation (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 2,869  


Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 
0.1%) 


1,012  


Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or 
decrease by 0.1%) 


 2,805 


Police Pension Scheme 2015/16 Impact on the defined benefit obligation in the 
scheme 


Increase in 
assumption 


Decrease in 
assumption 


£’000 £’000 


Longevity (increase or decrease by 1 year) 18,928  


Rate of inflation (increase of decrease by 0.1%) 20,191  


Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 
0.1%) 


5,191  


Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or 
decrease by 0.1%) 


 19,752 


 


Impact on the Group’s Cash flows 


The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a rate 
as possible. The Group has agreed a strategy with the scheme’s actuary to achieve a 
funding level of 100% over the next 3 years. The triennial valuation was completed on 
31


st
 March 2014 and details of the future employers’ rates are shown below: 


Year Employer rate 


2016/17 11.6% 


 


43. Contingent Liabilities 


The Chief Constable of Dyfed Powys, along with other Chief Constables and the 
Home Office, currently has 14 claims lodged against them with the Central London 
Employment Tribunal.  The claims are in respect of alleged unlawful discrimination 
arising from the Transitional Provisions in the Police Pension Regulations 2015.  The 
Tribunal is unlikely to consider the substance of the claims until 2017.  Legal advice 
suggests that there is a strong defence against these claims.  The quantum and who 
will bear the cost is also uncertain, if the claims are partially or fully successful and 
therefore at this stage it is not practicable to estimate the financial impact.  For these 
reasons, no provision has been made in the 2015/16 Accounting Statements. 
 
Police Officers who have accrued 30 years’ service are entitled to opt out from the 
Pension Scheme. This only applies to officers who are members of the 1987 pension 
scheme. There is the potential that some officers may claim that they have overpaid 
pension contributions and as such, they might be entitled to make a claim. No claims 
have been submitted to date and it would be difficult to provide a reliable estimate for 
such costs at this point in time. We have estimated that there would be a maximum of 
5 Dyfed-Powys Police Officers affected.  
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44. Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments  


The Commissioner has adopted CIPFA’s Revised Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management and complies with the Revised Prudential Code of Capital Finance for 
Local Authorities (both updated in November 2009). 


As part of the adoption of the Treasury Management Code, the Commissioner 
approves a Treasury Management Strategy before the commencement of each 
financial year. The Strategy sets out the parameters for the management of risks 
associated with Financial Instruments. The Commissioner also produces Treasury 
Management Practices specifying the practical arrangements to be followed to 
manage these risks.  


The Treasury Management Strategy includes an Annual Investment Strategy in 
compliance with the Welsh Government’s Investment Guidance for local authorities.  
This Guidance emphasises that priority is to be given to security and liquidity, rather 
than yield.  The Commissioner’s Treasury Management Strategy, together with his 
Treasury Management Practices are based on seeking the highest rate of return 
consistent with the proper levels of security and liquidity. 


The main risks covered are: 


 Credit Risk: The possibility that the counterparty to a financial asset will fail to 
meet its contractual obligations, causing a loss to the Commissioner. 


 Liquidity Risk: The possibility that the Commissioner might not have the cash 
available to make contracted payments on time. 


 Market Risk: The possibility that an unplanned financial loss will materialise 
because of changes in market variables such as interest rates or equity 
prices. 


 
Credit Risk 


Investments 


The Commissioner manages credit risk by ensuring that investments are placed with 
Banks and Building Societies having sufficiently high credit worthiness as set out in 
the Annual Investment Strategy. These include commercial entities with a high 
minimum long-term credit rating of A-, the UK Government, other Local Authorities, 
and organisations without credit ratings upon which the Commissioner has received 
independent investment advice.  


A limit of £2m is placed on the amount of money that can be invested with a single 
counterparty (other than the UK government).  


 


The Commissioners’ maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in 


banks and building societies of £40m cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any 


institution failing to make interest payments or repay the principal sum will be specific 


to each individual institution. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such 


entities to be unable to meet their commitments. A risk of irrecoverability applies to all 


of the Commissioner’s deposits, but there was no evidence at the 31 March 2016 that 


this was likely to crystallise. 


The table below summarises the nominal value of the Commissioner’s investment 
portfolio at 31


st 
March 2016, and confirms that all investments were made in line with 


the Commissioner’s approved credit rating criteria: 
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Counterparty 


Credit 
Rating 


Criteria Met 
When 


Investment 
Placed? 


Credit 
Rating 
Criteria 
Met on 


31
st


 March 
2016? 


Balance Invested as at 31 March 2016 
£’000s 


Total 
 


 
 


Y/N Y/N 
Up to 1 
month 


> 1 month 
and < 3 
months 


> 3 
months 
and < 6 
months 


> 6 
months 
and < 12 
months 


 


   £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 


UK Banks Y Y 0 2,000 4,000 0 6,000 


Foreign Banks Y Y 0 4,000 4,000 2,010 10,010 


UK Building 
Societies 


N/A N/A 2,000 2,000 2,000 0 6,000 


Bonds Y 
Y 


0 0 0 
6,156 


6,156 


DMO - T Bills Y Y 0 1,998 0 0 1,998 


Local 
Authorities 


N/A N/A 6,000 0 0 
0 


6,000 


Total   8,000 9,998 10,000 8,166 36,164 


 


The above analysis shows that all deposits outstanding as at 31
st
 March 2016 met 


the Commissioner’s credit rating criteria on the 31
st
 March 2016. The analysis 


excludes the estimated carrying value after impairment of the Commissioner’s 
Icelandic Bank investment of £12k. 


Trade Receivables 


The following analysis summarises the Commissioners’ potential maximum exposure 
credit risk, based on the experience gathered over the last five financial years on the 
level of default on trade debtors. 


Only those receivables meeting the definition of a financial asset are included i.e. 
debtors that have arisen as a result of trading activities.  


 


 31
st


 March 2015 31
st


 March 2016 


Gross Debtors (£’000) 1,542 1,743 


Bad Debt Provision 
as a % of Group 
Trade Debtors 


 


7.26 6.25 


Credit risk exposure 112 109 


 


Liquidity Risk 


The Commissioner has ready access to borrowing at favourable rates from the 


Public Works Loan Board and other local authorities, and at higher rates from banks 


and building societies.  There is no perceived risk that the Commissioner will be 


unable to raise finance to meet its commitments.  It is however exposed to the risk 


that it will need to refinance a significant proportion of its borrowing at a time of 


unfavourably high interest rates.   


The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows: 
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31
st


 March 2015 


£’000 


Loans maturing within: 31
st


  March 2016 


£’000 


144 Under 1 Year 157 


144 Total Current Borrowing 157 


157 1 – 2 years 173 


569 2 – 5 years 623 


1,371 5 – 10 years 1,502 


358 10 – 15 years 0 


0 15 + years 0 


2,455 
Total Long Term Borrowing more than 12 


months 
2,298 


All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year. 


 


Market Risk 


Interest Rate Risk 


The Commissioner is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate 


movements on its borrowings and investments. Movements in interest rates have a 


complex impact on the authority. For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the 


following effects: 


 borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities borrowings will fall 


 investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall. 


 


Price Risk 


The Commissioner does not invest in pooled funds or equity shares and therefore is 
not subject to any price risk (i.e. the risk that the Commissioner will suffer loss as a 
result of adverse movements in the price of financial instruments).  


Foreign Exchange Risk 


The Commissioner has no financial asset or liabilities denominated in a foreign 
currency. It therefore has no exposure to loss arising as a result of adverse 
movements in exchange rates. 


 


45. Trust Funds 


The aim of the Dyfed Powys Crime Prevention Trust is to promote for the public 
benefit in partnership with the police, the protection of people and property from, and 
the prevention of criminal acts, in particular by: 


- Encouragement of greater public participation in the prevention and solution 
of crime; and 


- Assisting in measures designed to reduce the level of crime; and 


- The provision of education, information and practical assistance on crime 
prevention. 


The Trust has been running the ‘Bobby Van Scheme’ which delivered increased 
security in vulnerable people’s homes in the form of window locks, door chains and 
door viewers.  Recognising the significant financial contribution made by Dyfed 
Powys Police, and at a time of diminishing financial resource, a review of the ‘Bobby 
Van Scheme’ was carried out to identify future service provision options and in 2014, 
a decision was made to bring the scheme to an end. The future of the Crime 
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Prevention Trust is currently under discussion and there is a likelihood that the Trust 
will be dissolved and will be replaced with an alternative charitable body.. 


The Trust is registered with the Charities Commission and a financial summary is 
included below: 


Financial year end  Income Spending Net position 


 £ £ £ 


31
st
  Mar 2015 (73,863) 82,491 8,628 


31
st
  Mar 2014 (103,347) 96,955 (6,392) 


It has been determined that the Commissioner does not have control of the Trust 
and it is not a subsidiary of the organisation. 
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Glossary of Terms 
 


Term Definition 


2015/16 This refers to the period covered by these accounts - 1 April 2015 to 31 March 
2016. 


2014/15 This refers to the period covered for comparative purposes by these accounts – 1 
April 2014 to 31 March 2015. 


Accounting policies These are a set of rules and codes of practice used when preparing the 
accounts. 


Actuarial gains and 
losses 


For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or 
surpluses that arise because: 


 Events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made in the 
last valuation ;or 


 The actuarial assumptions have changed. 


Amortisation Intangible assets should be amortised on a systematic basis over their economic 
lives. 


Asset revaluation A revaluation of fixed assets is a technique required to accurately record the true 
value of capital assets held in the balance sheet. The purpose of a revaluation is 
to bring into the accounts the fair market value of non-current assets. 


Capital expenditure Expenditure on the acquisition or construction of assets, which have a long-term 
value e.g. land and buildings. 


Capital receipts Income from the sale of non-current assets, which can only be used to finance 
new capital expenditure or repay outstanding debt on assets financed from loans. 


Usable capital receipts are those capital receipts which are not set aside for 
specific purposes but are available to be used for any capital purchases. 


Carrying value The carrying value of an asset is the value of the asset included in the Balance 
Sheet. 


CIPFA The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, one of the 
professional accountancy bodies in the UK.  CIPFA specialises in the public 
services and has responsibility for setting accounting standards for these 
services. 


Commissioning The entire cycle of assessing the needs of people in a local area, designing 
services, and then securing them. 


Component 
accounting 


Accounting for non-current assets’ individual components separately. 


Consumer Price Index 
(CPI) 


Official measure of the general level of inflation as reflected in the retail price of 
goods and services – excludes mortgage interest payments, council tax and 
other housing costs. 


Contingent liabilities These exist where: 


 a possible obligation arises from past events and whose existence will 
be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the organisation’s control; or 


 a present obligation arises from past events but is not recognised 
because: 


i. it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation, or 


ii. the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient 
reliability. 


Corporate and 
democratic core costs 


 


These represent the costs of delivering public accountability and representation 
in policy-making and meeting the Commissioner’s statutory reporting obligations. 



http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fixed_assets

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fair_market_value
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Term Definition 


Corporation sole A corporation sole is a legal entity consisting of a single ("sole") incorporated 
office, occupied by a single ("sole") man or woman i.e. the Commissioner and 
Chief Constable are both corporations sole under the PRSRA. 


Current assets 


 


Current assets are items that can be readily converted into cash.  


By convention the items are ordered by reference to the ease that such 
conversion into cash can be carried out. 


Current liabilities 


 


Current liabilities are items that are due immediately or in the short – term. 


Current service cost 
(Pensions) 


The increase in the present value of a defined benefit scheme’s liability expected 
to arise from employee service in the current period. 


Curtailment Changes in liabilities relating respectively to actions that relieve the employer of 
primary responsibility for a pension obligation (e.g. a group of employees being 
transferred to another scheme) or events that reduce the expected years of 
future service of employees or reduce the accrual of defined benefits over their 
future service for some employees (e.g. closing a business unit). 


Defined benefit 
scheme 


A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution 
scheme. Usually, the scheme rules define the benefits independently of the 
contributions payable, and the benefits are not directly related to the investments 
of the scheme. The schemes may be funded or unfunded. 


Delegation Is the partnership of authority and responsibility to another person to carry out 
specific activities. The person who delegated the work remains accountable for 
the outcome of the delegated work. 


Depreciation The measure of the cost or revalued amount of the benefits of the non-current 
asset that have been consumed during the period. Consumption includes the 
wearing out, using up or other reduction in the useful life of a non-current asset 
whether arising from use, effluxion of time or obsolescence through either 
changes in technology or demand for the goods and services produced by the 
asset. 


Fair value The fair value of an asset is the price at which it could be exchanged in an arm’s 
length transaction less, where applicable, any grants receivable towards the 
purchase of the asset. 


Finance lease A lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a 
non-current asset to the lessee. Such a transfer of risks and rewards may be 
presumed to occur if at the inception of the lease the present value of the 
minimum lease payments, including any initial payment, amounts to substantially 
all of the fair value of the leased asset. 


Financial instrument Any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. 


A derivative financial instrument is a financial contract that derives its value from 
changes in underlying assets or indices. 


Financial Liability An obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the Commissioner and 
can be represented by a contractual obligation to deliver cash or financial assets, 
or an obligation to exchange financial assets and liabilities with another entity 
that is potentially unfavourable to the Commissioner. 


Financial Asset A right to future economic benefits  controlled by the Council that is represented 
by cash or other instruments, or a contractual right to receive cash or another 
asset. 


FRS Financial Reporting Standards, as agreed by the UK accountancy profession and 
the Accounting Standards Board.  These include Statements of Standard 
Accounting Practice (SSAPs). 


Group accounts The financial statements of the group i.e. the two corporations sole, presented as 
a single economic entity. 



http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Juristic_person
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Term Definition 


Impairment A reduction in the value of a non-current asset, below its carrying amount in the 
balance sheet. 


Merger accounting Merger accounting should be applied where there is a transfer of functions in full 
from the responsibility of one authority to another. Where merger accounting 
applies it is assumed that the merger took place at the beginning of the 
accounting period. 


National Non 
Domestic Rates 
(NNDR) 


The non-domestic rates, or business rates, collected by local councils are the 
means by which businesses and others who occupy non-domestic property make 
a contribution towards the cost of local services. The rates are pooled by central 
government and redistributed to local councils and Commissioner according to a 
formula. 


Net book value The amount at which non-current assets are included in the balance sheet i.e. 
their historical cost or current value less the cumulative amounts provided for 
depreciation. 


Net Interest Cost 


(Pensions) 


For a defined benefit scheme, this occurs during the period when the net defined 
benefit liability (asset) arises from the passage of time. 


Non-current assets These are items such as land, buildings, vehicles and major items of equipment, 
which give benefit over more than one year. 


Past service cost For a defined benefit scheme, the increase in the present value of the scheme 
liabilities related to employee service in prior periods arising in the current period 
as a result of the introduction of, or improvement to, retirement benefits. 


Police Reform and 
Social Responsibility 
Act (PRSRA) 


An Act of the Parliament of the United Kingdom which transferred the control of 
police forces from police authorities to elected Police and Crime Commissioners. 


Provisions A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. A provision is recognised if 
the following criteria are fulfilled: 


 an entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 


 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation; 


 a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 


Prudential borrowing  Borrowing by local authorities without government financial support, but in 
accordance with the CIPFA prudential code of local authority borrowing.  


PWLB 


 


This is the Public Works Loan Board, which is an organisation financed by the 
Government.  It lends money to Commissioners on set terms so that they can 
buy capital items. 


Reserves Balances that represent resources set aside for purposes such as general 
contingencies and cash flow management.  Earmarked reserves are those set 
aside for specific policy purposes. 


Retail Price Index 
(RPI) 


Official measure of the general level of inflation as reflected in the retail price of a 
basket of goods and services, including mortgage costs, council tax and other 
household costs. 


Revenue Budget The estimate of annual income and expenditure requirements, which sets out the 
financial implications of policies and the basis of the annual precept to be levied 
on collection funds. 


Revenue Support 
Grant (RSG) 


A general government grant in support of local authority expenditure (including 
Commissioners) and fixed each year in relation to spending levels. 


Senior Employee An employee whose salary is more than £150,000 per year, or one whose salary 
is at least £60,000 per year (calculated pro rata for a part-time employee) and 
who is the designated head of paid service and a statutory chief officer. Typically 
the Commissioner’s Chief Executive and statutory Chief Officers. 


Single entity accounts The individual accounts of each corporation sole. 


 



http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Act_of_Parliament

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Parliament_of_the_United_Kingdom

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Police_and_Crime_Commissioner
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INTRODUCTION 


1. This summary report provides the Joint Audit Committee with an update on the progress of our work at Dyfed Powys Police as at 13
th
 September 2016. 


PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2016/17 ANNUAL PLAN  


2. Our progress against the Annual Plan for 2016-17 is set out in Appendix A.  


INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK  


3. Fieldwork has commenced on the 2016/17 reviews, with one report currently issued to draft stage. There are no issues arising from the findings which would 


require the annual Head of Audit Opinion to be qualified. 


EMERGING GOVERNANCE, RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL RELATED ISSUES 


4. We have identified no emerging risks which could impact on the overall effectiveness of the governance, risk and internal control framework of the organisation to 


date. 


AUDITS COMPLETED SINCE THE LAST REPORT TO COMMITTEE 


5. The table below sets out details of audits completed for 2016/17 since the previous meeting of the Joint Audit Committee. 


  Key Dates 
Number of 


Recommendations 


Review Evaluation 
Draft 


issued 


Responses 


Received 


Final 


issued 
1 2 3 OE 


Hr – Flexitime 


Management 


Reasonable 


Assurance 


22/07/2016 17/08/2016 18/06/2016 - 3 3 1 


Public Service Bureau Limited 


Assurance 


30/06/2016 17/08/2016 18/08/2016 - 5 4 2 


Payroll – Anti Fraud Substantial 


Assurance 


20/07/2016 08/08/2016 09/08/2016 - - - 1 


ICT Data Assurance Reasonable 


Assurance 


18/08/2016 02/09/2016 07/09/2016 - 1 - 1 


Duty Resource 


Management 


Reasonable 


Assurance 


18/05/2016 08/09/2016 12/09/2016 - 4 - - 
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Driver Re-training 


Programme 


Reasonable 


Assurance 


01/09/2016 12/09/2016 13/09/2016 - 2 2 1 


Electronic Expenses 


and Travel Claims 


Reasonable 


Assurance 


12/08/2016 12/09/2016 13/09/2016 - 1 3 1 


 


CHANGES TO THE ANNUAL PLAN 2016/17    


6. There are no changes proposed to the Annual Plan at this time, other than changes to the timing of the reviews due to operational issues as noted in Appendix A.    


FRAUDS/IRREGULARITIES  


7. We have not been advised of any frauds or irregularities in the period since the last summary report was issued. 


LIAISON 


8. Liaison with external audit: We have ongoing liaison with Wales Audit Office as required. 


PROGRESS ACTIONING PRIORITY 1 RECOMMENDATIONS 


9. We have made one Priority 1 recommendation (i.e. fundamental control issues on which action should be taken immediately) that remains outstanding since the 


previous SICA. The current progress with the implementation of the recommendation is reported at Appendix B.  


RESPONSIBILITY/DISCLAIMER 


10. This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written 


consent. The matters raised in this report not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. 


No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any 


duty of care to any other party who may receive this report and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is 


caused by their reliance on our report. 


. 
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 Appendix A 


Progress against the Annual Plan for 2016/17 
          


System 
Planned 


Quarter 


Days Revised 


Quarter 
Current Status Comments 


Governance – Strategic Control and 


Corporate Governance 


1 


6
th


 – 14
th


 


June 2016 


6 3 Re-arranged to Quarter 3 
To be re-arranged probably Quarter 3 following election of new Police 


and Crime Commissioner.  


Neighbourhood – Duty of Care, HR 


and Financial systems 


1 


w/c 16
th


 


May 2016 


10 


 


3 Re-arranged to Quarter 3  


Public Service Bureau 


1 


3
rd


 – 6
th


 


May 2016 


 


6 1 
Final report issued 18


th
 


August 2016 
 


Electronic expenses and travel claims 


2 


w/c 1
st
 


August 


2016 


4 2 
Final report issued 13


th
 


September 2016 
 


Risk Management – Mitigating 


Controls 


2 


w/c 11
th


 


July 2016 


6 2 
Draft report issued 19


th
 


August 2016 
 


ICT Security – Data Assurance 


2 


18
th


  - 26
th


 


July 2016 


10 2 
Final report issued 7


th
 


September 2016 
 


Payroll – Anti-Fraud 


2 


w/c 4
th


 


July 2016 


6 2 
Final report issued 9


th
 


August 2016 
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System 
Planned 


Quarter 


Days Revised 


Quarter 
Current Status Comments 


HR – Duty Resource Management 


2 


w/c 18
th


 


July 2016 


7 1 
Final report issued 12


th
 


September 2016 
Review brought forward due to other planned changes. 


HR  - Flexi Time Management 


2 


w/c 25
th


 


July 2016 


7 


 


2 
Final report issued 18


th
 


August 2016 
 


Driver retraining programme 


2 


w/c 15
th


 


August 


2016 


6 2 
Draft report issued 13


th
 


September 2016 
 


ICT Security – Cyber Security. 


2 


w/c 1
st
 


August 


2016 


10 2 
In the process of being 


arranged. 
Moved from quarter 3. 


Business Continuity Planning 


3 


21
st
  – 25


th
  


November 


2016 


10 3 


Fieldwork to commence 


21
st
 November 2016 – 


APM issued 


 


Governance – Assurance Framework 


3 


24
th


 – 30
th
 


October 


2016 


 


5 3 To be arranged  


Treasury Management 


3 


w/c 30
th


 


October 


2016 


7 3 To be arranged  
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System 
Planned 


Quarter 


Days Revised 


Quarter 
Current Status Comments 


General Ledger 


3 


w/c 28
th


 


November 


2016 


6 3 To be arranged  


Payroll 


3 


w/c 5
th


 


December 


2016 


8 3 To be arranged  


Creditors 


3 


w/c 12
th


 


December 


2016 


8 3 To be arranged  


Fixed Assets 


3 


w/c 12
th


 


December 


2016 


 


8 3 To be arranged  


Commissioner’s Services 


3 


w/c 7
th


 


November 


2016 


6 3 To be arranged  


Follow Up 


 2 and 4 


w/c 5
th


 


September 


2016 and 


w/c 27
th


 


February 


2017 


10 2 & 4   
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System 
Planned 


Quarter 


Days Revised 


Quarter 
Current Status Comments 


Liaison with WAO 1 - 4 3 1 – 4   


2016/17 Annual Plan 1 2 1 Final report issued  


Strategic Plan 1 2 1 Final report issued  


2016/17 Annual Report 4 2 4   


Audit Management 1-4 16 1-4   


 


   KEY: 


 = To be commenced 


 = Site work commenced 


 = Draft report issued 


 = Final report issued 
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Appendix B 


Recommendations – Priority 1 Only 


Audit Report: Follow Up – 2015/16 - Report Issued: 6
th


 June 2016 


Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 


Comments 


Implementation 


Timetable 


(dd/mm/yy) 


Responsible 


Officer 


(Job Title) 


1 Directed Previous internal auditors report. A formalised force wide Business 


Continuity Plan be put in place. 


1 This activity is on timescale for 
completion by the planned 30


th
 


September date. All of the 
Business Impact Assessments 
have been produced and the 
overarching Force Business 
Continuity Plan is currently being 
drafted (as at 8


th
 September) for 


COG approval and will be complete 
and in place by the end of this 
month. 


Original  - 


30/06/2013 


 Revised 1 -   


31/03/2015   


Revised 2 -   


30/09/2015 


Revised 3 – 


30/09/2015 


Revised 4 – 


31/03/2016 


Current planned 


date 


30/09/2016 


Assistant 


Director of Legal 


and Compliance 
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PURPOSE: JOINT AUDIT COMMITTEE SCRUTINY  


Title: Annual Treasury Outturn Report for 2015/16 and review of 2016/17 


activity to date 


Executive Summary:  
 
2015/16 


 
During the financial year 2015/16, the treasury management function complied 


with its treasury management practices. 
 


A prudent approach has been taken in relation to investment activity with priority 
being given to security and liquidity over yield. 
 


However, two of the prudential/treasury management indicators were breached.   
 


One breach was expected and known and occurred as a direct consequence of 
utilising reserves to reduce the CFR to zero during 2015/16. A detailed 
explanation was provided in sections 2 and 3 of Appendix D of the Treasury 


Management Strategy for 2016/17 (attached as Appendix C to this report).  
 


The other breach was due to incorrectly setting a Treasury Management  
Indicator for the proportion of fixed term debt repayable over 5 years.  This was 
set at 50% despite there being over 65% of existing (historic) debt falling into 


this category.  There is no intention to repay this debt prematurely as repayment 
costs are prohibitive.  This breach occurred in 2015/16 however the same 


indicator is in place for 2016/17 (see Section 5.4 “Maturity Structure of 
Borrowing” in the Treasury Management Strategy for 2016/17 at Appendix C) 
 


Therefore it is proposed that this indicator is adjusted to 70% applicable 
immediately for 2016/17.  


 


 


Timing:  Routine 


Category of Decision / Business Area Impact: Statutory Requirement - 
Finance 


ITEM 11 
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Recommendation: 


 
The Joint Audit Committee to consider and comment on the Treasury Outturn 
Report for 2015/16 and mid-year report for 2016/17.   


 
The Joint Audit Committee is asked to consider and comment on the proposal to  


increase the Treasury Management Indicator for the percentage of fixed debt 
repayable over 5 years and within 10 years to 70% for 2016/17. 
 


The Commissioner to approve changing the percentage of fixed debt maturing 
over 5 but within 10 years to 70% (to allow for existing historic debt) in the 


Treasury Management Strategy for 2016/17. 


 


 
2016/17 
 


Treasury management activities to date in 2016/17 continue to be performed in 
line with the current Treasury Management Strategy other than for the two 


breaches referred to above. 
 
The treasury management function, in line with advice from its treasury 


management advisors Arlingclose, continues to diversify its investments between 
creditworthy counterparties. 
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Report of the Chief Finance Officer of the PCC to the  
Joint Audit Committee 


 


Annual Treasury Outturn Report for 2015/16 and midyear review 
of 2016/17 


 
1. Purpose of Report 


 


This report outlines for 2015/16: 
 the performance of the treasury management function; 


 the effects of decisions taken and transactions executed in 
the past year; and  


 instances of non-compliance with the organisation’s Treasury 


Management Policy Statement and treasury management 
practices. 


 
This report also provides a high level review of 2016/17 treasury 
management activities to date. 


 
2. Background 


 


The Commissioner’s treasury management activity is underpinned 
by CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management (“the Code”).  
The Code requires that reports on the performance of the treasury 


management function are made at least twice a year (mid-year and 
at year end).  


 
This report fulfils the Commissioner’s legal obligation under the 


Local Government Act 2003 to have regard to both the CIPFA Code 
and the Welsh Government’s Investment Guidance. 
 


Dyfed Powys’ Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16 was 
presented to the Joint Audit Committee on the 17th March 2015 and 


approved by the Commissioner prior to the 31st March. 
Amendments to the strategy were approved in September 2016. 
 


The Commissioner has invested substantial sums of money and is 
therefore exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested 


funds and the effect of changing interest rates.  The successful 
identification, monitoring and control of risk are therefore central to 
the Commissioner’s treasury management strategy.  
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3. External Context 


Growth, Inflation, Employment: The UK economy slowed in 


2015 with GDP growth falling to 2.3% from a robust 3.0% the year 


before. CPI inflation hovered around 0.0% through 2015 with 


deflationary spells in April, September and October. The prolonged 


spell of low  inflation was attributed to the continued collapse in the 


price of oil from $67 a barrel in May 2015 to just under $28 a barrel 


in January 2016, the appreciation of sterling since 2013 pushing 


down import prices and weaker than anticipated wage growth 


resulting in subdued unit labour costs. CPI picked up to 0.3% 


year/year in February, but this was still well below the Bank of 


England’s 2% inflation target. The labour market continued to 


improve through 2015 and in Q1 2016, the latest figures (Jan 2016) 


showing the employment rate at 74.1% (the highest rate since 


comparable records began in 1971) and the unemployment rate at 


a 12 year low of 5.1%. Wage growth has however remained modest 


at around 2.2% excluding bonuses, but after a long period of 


negative real wage growth (i.e. after inflation) real earnings were 


positive and growing at their fastest rate in eight years, boosting 


consumers’ spending power.  


 
Global influences: The slowdown in the Chinese economy became 


the largest threat to the South East Asian region, particularly on 


economies with a large trade dependency on China and also to 


prospects for global growth as a whole. The effect of the Chinese 


authorities’ intervention in their currency and equity markets was 


temporary and led to high market volatility as a 


consequence.  There were falls in prices of equities and risky assets 


and a widening in corporate credit spreads. As the global economy 


entered 2016 there was high uncertainty about growth, the 


outcome of the US presidential election and the consequences of 


June’s referendum on whether the UK is to remain in the EU. 


Between February and March 2016 sterling had depreciated by 


around 3%, a significant proportion of the decline reflecting the 


uncertainty surrounding the referendum result.  


 


UK Monetary Policy: The Bank of England’s MPC (Monetary Policy 


Committee) made no change to policy, maintaining the Bank Rate 


at 0.5% (in March it entered its eighth year at 0.5%) and asset 


purchases (Quantitative Easing) at £375bn. In its Inflation Reports 


and monthly monetary policy meeting minutes, the Bank was at 


pains to stress and reiterate that when interest rates do begin to 


rise they were expected to do so more gradually and to a lower 


level than in recent cycles. 


 


Improvement in household spending, business fixed investment, a 


strong housing sector and solid employment gains in the US allowed 


the Federal Reserve to raise rates in December 2015 for the first 


time in nine years to take the new Federal funds range to 0.25%-


0.50%. Despite signalling four further rate hikes in 2016, the Fed 
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chose not to increase rates further in Q1 and markets pared back 


expectations to no more than two further hikes this year. 


 


However central bankers in the Eurozone, Switzerland, Sweden and 


Japan were forced to take policy rates into negative territory.  The 


European Central Bank also announced a range of measures to 


inject sustained economic recovery and boost domestic inflation 


which included an increase in asset purchases (Quantitative 


Easing).   


 
 


4. Local Context 


At 31/03/2016 the underlying need to borrow for capital purposes 


as measured by the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) was 


reduced to nil. 


 


Reserves have been utilised to offset the CFR, thus reducing the 


amount of reserves held by the Commissioner, but not reducing 


cash balances.  


 


5. Borrowing Strategy 


There was no new borrowing in 2015/16.  The table below 
summarises the movement in borrowing during 2015/16: 
 


 Balance on  
1/4/2015                            


£m 


Debt 
Maturing             


£m 


Debt 
prematurely 


repaid £m 


Balance on 
31/3/16                


£m 


Capital 


Financing 
Requirement 


(CFR) 


7.309  (7.309) 0 


Total PWLB 


borrowing 
2.600 (0.140) 0 2.460 


PFI liability 2.504  (2.504) 0 


 
Capital expenditure was funded via internal resources and 


earmarked capital reserves.  
 
The use of internal resources in lieu of borrowing was judged to be 


the most cost effective means of funding capital expenditure. This 
has, for the time being, lowered overall treasury risk by reducing 


both external debt and temporary investments.  However, the 
current capital strategy indicates that there may be a requirement 
to undertake borrowing in 2018/19. 
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 Debt Rescheduling: The PWLB continued to operate a spread of 


approximately 1% between “premature repayment rate” and “new 
loan” rates so the premium charge for early repayment of PWLB 


debt remained relatively expensive for the loans in the 
Commissioners portfolio and therefore unattractive for debt 
rescheduling activity.  No rescheduling activity was undertaken as a 


consequence.  
 


 
6. Investment Activity in 2015/16 


 


As of the 31/3/16 Dyfed Powys held £36.00m invested funds, 
representing income received in advance of expenditure plus 
balances and reserves held.   


 
The Welsh Government’s Investment Guidance gives priority to 


security and liquidity and the Commissioner’s aim is to achieve a  
yield commensurate with these principles.  


 


 


Investments 


 


Balance 
on 
1/4/2015 


£m 


Investments 
Made 
 


£m 


Maturities/ 
Investments 
Sold  


£m 


Balance on 
31/3/2016   
 


£m 


Average 
Rate  
 


%  


Short term 
Investments (call 


accounts, deposits) 
- Banks and 


Building Societies 


with ratings of 
[A-] or higher 


- Local Authorities 
- Unrated building 


societies 


36.00 94.00 (101.99) 28.01 0.55 


UK Government: 
- DMADF 


- Treasury Bills 
- Gilts 0 40.00 (38.00) 2.00 0.35 


- Bonds issued by 
Multilateral 


Development 
Banks 


- Corporate Bonds 


(secured) 
- Corporate Bonds 


(unsecured) 


0 6.00 0 6.00 0.79 


TOTAL 
INVESTMENTS 


36.00 140.00 (139.99) 36.01 0 
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Security of capital has remained the main investment objective. 


This has been maintained by following the counterparty policy as 
set out in its Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 


2015/16.  
 
Counterparty credit quality was assessed and monitored with 


reference to credit ratings (the Commissioner’s minimum long-term 
counterparty rating is A- across rating agencies Fitch, S&P and 


Moody’s); for financial institutions analysis of funding structure and 
susceptibility to bail-in, credit default swap prices, financial 
statements, information on potential government support and 


reports in the quality financial press.  
 


Dyfed Powys will also consider the use of secured investments 
products that provide collateral in the event that the counterparty 
cannot meet its obligations for repayment. 


 
 


 
2013/14 


 
 


2014/15 


 
 


2015/16 


 
 


Difference 
(2014/15 


& 
2015/16) 


Average 
investment made 


£4.571m £3.500m £2.136m -23% 


Average number 
of days of each 
investment 


33.64 58.22 78.23 +34% 


Average daily 
total investment 


£30.447m £37.660m £29.626m -21% 


Average rate of 
interest 


0.31% 0.37% 0.52% +41% 


 
Security of capital remained the Commissioner’s main investment 


objective. This was maintained by following the counterparty policy 
set out in Treasury Management Policy Statement for 2015/16.  


This resulted in investments only being made with institutions 
defined as “high credit quality” - those having a long-term credit 
rating of (A-) or higher. 
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7. Credit Risk 


 
Counterparty credit quality as measured by credit ratings is 
summarised below: 


 


 
 
Scoring:  
-Value weighted average reflects the credit quality of investments 


according to the size of the deposit 
-Time weighted average reflects the credit quality of investments 
according to the maturity of the deposit 


AAA = highest credit quality = 1 
D = lowest credit quality = 26 


 
The end of bank bail-outs, the introduction of bail-ins, and the 


preference being given to large numbers of depositors other than 
local authorities means that the risks of making unsecured deposits 
continues to be elevated relative to other investment 


options.  Dyfed Powys has therefore increasingly favoured secured 
investment options or diversified alternatives such as covered 


bonds, and non-bank investment over unsecured bank and building 
society deposits. This is evidenced via the reducing credit score as 
illustrated in the above table “credit risk.” 


 
During the course of 2015/16 Dyfed Powys have increased the 


number of counterparties and types of investments made (18 
different types / institutions as at 31st March 2016 compared with 
11 as at the 31st March 2015). 


Diversification was made during the course of the year through 
investing in Local Authorities, Treasury Bills, Financial and Covered 


Bonds. 
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8. Budgeted Income and Outturn for 2015/16 


 
The UK Bank Rate has been maintained at 0.5% since March 2009.  
Short-term money market rates have remained at relatively low 


levels. New deposits were made at an average rate of 0.52%, 
compared with 0.37% in 2014/15.   


 
The Commissioner’s budgeted investment income for the year was 
£0.25m.  The Commissioner’s investment outturn for the year was 


£0.21m. 
 


The below tables compare Dyfed Powys return on Total Investment 
Portfolio with other Arlingclose clients in March 2016 and March 
2015. This demonstrates that the steps taken to increase 


counterparties and types of investments made, have increased 
returns on investments whilst maintaining adequate credit risk (see 


above section 6). 
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March 2016 – Total Return on Total Investment Portfolio 


(Internal plus External Funds) 


 


 
 
March 2015 - Total Return on Total Investment Portfolio 
(Internal plus External Funds) 
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This is further illustrated in the below table: 


 
March 2016 – Average Rate vs Credit Risk (value-weighted) 
 


 
 
 


9. Performance Measurement of Treasury Management 


Function in 2015/16 


 
As detailed in Treasury Management Practice Statement A2 of the 
2015/16 Treasury Management Strategy the following measures 


will be utilised to monitor the performance of the Treasury 
Management Function: 


 
 


 Performance Measure Achieved Explanation 


1 Achieving the budgeted 


investment income 


No Bank of England 


base rate has 
remained at 0.5%. 


Security of deposit 
not return remains 
priority  


2 Ensuring cash balance cover 
of 31 days 


Yes Money was held in 
call accounts 


during the year 


3 Ensuring that investments are 


only placed with institutions 
which comply with the annual 


Treasury Management 
Strategy 


Yes  


0.0%


0.5%


1.0%


1.5%


2.0%


2.5%


3.0%


1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11


A
v
e
r
a
g


e
 R


a
te


 o
f 


I
n


v
e
s
tm


e
n


ts
 


Average Credit Risk Score - Valued Weighted Average 


Benchmarking Dyfed Powys Police - 31/03/2016


LOW RISK 


HIGH RETURN 
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4 Ensuring approved counter-
party limits are adhered to 


Yes  


5 Expected levels of 
investments per month 
compared to actual level of 


investment 


Yes Actual levels of 
investments per 
month were 


comparable with 
expected levels 


6 Average rate of return of 
investments per month 


compared to target rate 


No As mentioned 
above regarding 


achieving 
budgeted 
investment 


income 


 
 


10. Update on Investments with Icelandic Banks 


 


Early in October 2008, the Icelandic Banks Landsbanki and Glitnit 
collapsed and the UK subsidiaries of the banks, Heritable and 


Kaupthing Singer and Friedlander (KSF) went into administration. 
The Former Police Authority had £2m deposited across two of these 
institutions in accordance with the Annual Investment Strategy. The 


current situation with regards to recovery of the sums deposited 
varies between each institution. 


 
 KSF – Dyfed Powys has now recovered 83.50% of its 


investment (principal and dividends); 


 Heritable – Dyfed Powys has recovered 97.98% of its 


investment (principal and dividends). 


It is likely that a further distribution for KSF will be received during 
the 2016/17 financial year 


 
11. Compliance 


 


Appendix B to this report provides a summary of performance 
against the Prudential Indicators set for 2015/16. 
 


In compliance with the Code, in 2015/16 the treasury management 
function can confirm that: 


 
 it complied with its treasury management practices; and 


 


 two prudential indicators have been breached: 
 


o One breach was expected and known and occurred as 
a direct consequence of utilising reserves to reduce the 
CFR to zero during 2015/16. A detailed explanation 


was provided in sections 2 and 3 of Appendix D of the 
Treasury Management Strategy for 2016/17 (attached 


as Appendix C to this report); 
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o The other breach was due to incorrectly setting a 


Treasury Management  Indicator for the proportion of 
fixed term debt repayable over 5 years.  This was set 


at 50% despite there being over 65% of existing 
(historic) debt falling into this category.  There is no 
intention to repay this debt prematurely as repayment 


costs are prohibitive.   
 


 a prudent approach has been taken in relation to investment 
activity with priority being given to security and liquidity over 
yield. 


 
 


12. Treasury Management Activity in 2016/17 


 
Treasury management activities have been carried out in line with 


the Treasury Management Strategy and practices except in relation 
to the two issues mentioned above, which are also applicable in 


2016/17.    
 
Borrowing Activity 


 
No new borrowing has taken place between the 1st April 2016 – 31st 


August 2016. 
 
Temporary and short-dated loans borrowed from the markets 


predominantly from other Local Authorities have remained 
affordable and attractive.  


 
It is the intention to undertake one such loan before the 31st March 
2017 to ensure that internal processes are working should the need 


arise in the future. 
 


Investment Activity 
 
The Commissioner holds significant invested funds, representing 


income received in advance of expenditure plus balances and 
reserves held.   


 
The Welsh Government’s Investment Guidance gives priority to 


security and liquidity and the Commissioner’s aim is to achieve a 


yield commensurate with these principles.  


 


The transposition of European Union directives into UK legislation 


places the burden of rescuing failing EU banks disproportionately 


onto unsecured local authority investors through potential bail-in of 


unsecured bank deposits. (Please note, the outcome of the EU 


referendum does not alter the UK’s legislated bail-in resolution 


regime.) 
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In line with this the Commissioner invests funds in large range of 


institutions and uses a variety of investment types such as 


Certificates of Deposit, Treasury Bills and Covered Bonds. 


 


The diversity of types of investments held is illustrated below: 


 


 
 


Further detail of the current portfolio of investments held is 


available in Appendix A (RESTRICTED). 


 


Budgeted Income and Outturn 


 


The average cash balances for the period April – August 2016 were 


£36.94m. 


 


Rates on short-dated money market investments with banks and 


building societies have reduced as a consequence of Brexit and the 


reduction in the Bank of England Base rate to 0.25% in August 


2016. 


 


As the majority of the Commissioner’s surplus cash continues to be 


invested in short-dated money market instruments, it will most 


likely result in a substantial fall in investment income over the year. 


 


 £’000 


Budgeted Investment Income 


2016/17 


402 


Investment Income received 


April – August 2016 


45 


 


Projected Investment Income 


2016/17 


180 


Estimated Budget Shortfall 222 


 


Current Investments 


Bank


Building Society


Certificate of Deposit


Covered Bond


Debt Management


Office
Financial Bond


T bills
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13. Staff Training 


 


All staff responsible for Treasury Management have received 


training through the year relevant to their roles.  


 


Staff have attended workshops provided by our Treasury 


Management Advisors Arlingclose including an Investment and Debt 


Workshop, Treasury Management Strategy and an Accounts 


Closedown workshop.  


 


Quarterly client meetings with Arlingclose were also attended by 
key staff which provided an update on general economic 
environment conditions and investment tools to consider. 


 


All staff are supported to attend relevant training courses. 
 


 
 
14. Resource Implications 


 


Implication Detail  


Finance As detailed above  


Staff N/A 


Assets N/A 


Partners N/A 


Timescales N/A 


Leadership N/A 


 
15. Impact Considerations 


 


Implication Impact 


Considered 
(Yes/No) 


Impact Identified  


Legal Yes Statutory duty to produce 


document 


Contribution to 


Police and Crime 
Plan 


Yes Priority 6: Spending wisely – 


this includes good management 


of financial resources 


Risk Analysis Yes Included within main body of 


report 


Equality Yes None 


Human Rights Yes None 


Children & Young 
People 


Yes None 


Environmental and Yes None 
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Sustainability 


National Park  Yes None 


Media Yes None 


 


16. Appendices 


 
Appendix A – Summary of current investments 
Appendix B – Prudential Indicators 
Appendix C – Treasury Management Strategy for 2016/17 


 
17. Background / Supporting papers 


 
 Local Government Act 2003, 


 CIPFA TM Code, 
 Prudential Code, 
 Dyfed Powys Investment Strategy and Policy 2015/16, 


 
18. Contact details 


 
Author(s): Jayne Woods and Sarah Welsby 


Email: Jayne.woods@dyfed-powys.pnn.police.uk  
sarah.welsby@dyfed-powys.pnn.police.uk 


Telephone: x23806 


 
19.  Public Access to Information 


 
Information in this form is subject to the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOI 


Act) including the exemptions set out within the Act and other relevant 


legislation. Where the exemptions or other restrictions are applicable, this form 


will be edited prior to being made available on the OPCC website within 5 


working days of consideration by the Policing Board. 


 
20. Officer Approval 


 


Chief Finance Officer  


I have been consulted about the proposal and confirm that financial and legal 


advice have been taken into account in the preparation of this report. I am 


satisfied that this is an appropriate request to be submitted to the Policing Board 


 


Signature 


 


Date 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 



mailto:Jayne.woods@dyfed-powys.pnn.police.uk

mailto:sarah.welsby@dyfed-powys.pnn.police.uk
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Appendix B – Performance against 2015/16 Prudential Indicators 


(a) Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 


 
The Commissioner’s cumulative maximum external borrowing requirement for 


2015/16 to 2017/18 are shown in the table below: 
 


Capital Financing 


Requirement 


31/03/2016 


Approved 


£000 


31/03/2016        


Actual        


£000 


31/03/2017 


Estimate 


£000 


31/03/2018 


Estimate 


£000 


 


Total CFR 
10,292 0 0 0 


 


Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement: In order to ensure that 
debt is only used for capital purposes in the medium term, debt should not, 


except in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus 
the estimates of any additional CFR for the current and next two financial years. 
This is a key indicator of prudence.  The table below summarises the current 


position: 
 


Debt 


31/03/2016 


Approved 


£000 


31/03/2016 


Actual 


£000 


31/03/2017 


Estimate 


£000 


31/03/2018 


Estimate 


£000 


Borrowing 2,455 2,298 2,298 2,125 


PFI liabilities  2,463 0 0 0 


Total Debt 4,918 2,298 4,918 4,713 


Borrowing in excess 


of CFR? * 
No Yes Yes Yes 


 
*External debt is currently higher than CFR as a result of the Commisioner’s 


decision made in 2015/16 to utilise reserves to repay the CFR.  A full explanation 
is provided in sections 2 and 3 of Appendix D of the Treasury Management 


Strategy for 2016/17. 
 
The repayment premiums on the long-term loans held are prohibitive and 


therefore it is most cost effective to carry these loans rather than pay them off 
early. 


 
 


(b) Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt  


The Operational Boundary for External Debt is based on the Commissioner’s 
estimate of most likely, i.e. prudent but not worst case, scenario for external 


debt. This is based on the Commissioner’s estimate of capital expenditure, the 
capital financing requirement and cash flow requirements and is a key 
management tool for in-year monitoring.  Other long-term liabilities comprise 


finance lease, Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and other liabilities that are not 
borrowing but form part of the Authority’s debt. 


 







The Authorised Limit for External Debt is the affordable borrowing limit 
determined in compliance with the Local Government Act 2003.  It is the 


maximum amount of debt that the Commissioner can legally owe.  The 
authorised limit provides headroom over and above the operational boundary for 


unusual cash movements. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer confirms that there were no breaches to the Authorised 


Limit and the Operational Boundary during 2014/15 and no new borrowing was 
undertaken in 2014/15.   


 
 Operational 


Boundary 


(Approved) 


31/03/2016         


£000 


Authorised Limit 


(Approved) 


31/03/2016           


£000 


Actual External 


Debt 


31/03/2016            


£000 


Short-term Borrowing 1,000 3,203 0 


Other Long-term Liabilities 19,637 20,600 2,455 


Total 20,637 23,802 2,455 


 
(c) Upper Limits for Fixed Interest Rate Exposure and Variable 


Interest Rate Exposure  


This indicator is set to control the Commissioner’s exposure to interest rate risk.  
The upper limits on fixed and variable rate interest rate exposures, expressed as 


the amount of net principal borrowed.    
 
 Approved Limits for 


2015/16 


Principal borrowed 


£000  


Maximum during 


2015/16 


Principal borrowed 


£000  


Upper Limit for Fixed Rate 


Exposure 
20,600 0 


Compliance with Limits: Yes   


Upper Limit for Variable Rate 


Exposure 
3,203 0 


Compliance with Limits: Yes   


 
(d) Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate Borrowing  


This indicator is provided to limit large concentrations of fixed rate debt needing 


to be renegotiated during times of uncertainty over interest rates.  
 


  







Maturity Structure of 


Fixed Rate Borrowing 


Upper 


Limit 


% 


Lower 


Limit 


% 


Actual Fixed 


Rate 


Borrowing at 


31/03/2016 


£’000 


% Fixed 


Rate 


Borrowing  


at 


31/03/2016 


Compliance 


with Set 


Limits? 


under 12 months 10 0 157 6.832 Yes 


12 months and within 24 


months 
10 0 173 7.528 Yes 


24 months and within 5 years 50 0 623 27.111 Yes 


5 years and within 10 years 50 0 1,502 65.3 No * 


10 years and above 100 0 0 0 Yes 


Total   2,298   


*The upper limit on fixed borrowing was set incorrectly and did not take 


into account the repayment structure of existing long term debt. There 
are no plans to renegotiate any debt due to the high repayment premium.  


The same indicator is in place for 2016/17 and therefore it is proposed 
that the percentage limit of fixed rate borrowing maturing over 5 years 
and within 10 years for 2016/17 is increased to 70% to reflect the existing 


debt that we carry. 
 


 
 


(e) Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 


This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of 
existing and proposed capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the 


revenue budget required to meet financing costs, net of investment income. 
 
Ratio of Financing 


Costs to Net Revenue 


Stream 


31/03/2016 


Approved 


% 


31/03/2016 


Actual 


% 


31/03/2017 


Estimate 


% 


31/03/18 


Estimate 


% 


Total 1.08 0.61 1.29 1.26 


 


 
 


 


(f) Upper Limit for Total Principal Sums Invested Over 364 Days 


The purpose of this limit is to contain exposure to the possibility of loss that may 


arise as a result of the Authority having to seek early repayment of the sums 
invested. 


 
 


 31/03/2016 


Approved 


£m 


31/03/2016 


Actual 


£m 


31/03/2017 


 


£m 


31/03/2018 


 


£m 


Upper Limit for Total 


Principal Sums Invested 


for over 364 Days 


4 0 20 16 
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REPORT / SUMMARY DECISION SHEET 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


                             
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 


PURPOSE: COMMISSIONER DECISION  


Title: Prudential Indicators (PI) and Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 


Statement for 2016/17 


Executive Summary:  
 


Before the start of the 2016/17 financial year, the PCC set the budget 


and Treasury Management Strategy (TMS) for the year.   
 


However, the PIs and Authorised Limit (as defined by the Prudential 
Code) were not set at that time pending confirmation from Wales Audit 


Office that capital reserves could be applied to reduce our Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR) to zero prior to the start of the 2016/17 
financial year. 


 
I recommend that the attached PIs (including authorised limit) and MRP 


statement (Appendix D of the Treasury Management Strategy) are now 
approved for 2016/17. 


 


Police and Crime Commissioner for Dyfed-Powys 
 


I confirm I have considered whether or not I have any personal or prejudicial interest in 


this matter and take the proposed decision in compliance with the Nolan Principles for 


Conduct in Public Life. 


 


The above request has my approval. 


 
  


Timing: Urgent – before the start of the 2016/17 financial year 


Category of Decision / Business Area Impact: Finance 


Signature:      Date: 
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Report of Chief Finance Officer of the PCC 


 
 


Treasury Management Strategy and Investment Policy 
 


 


1. Purpose of Report 


The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management 


in the Public Services; Code of Practice 2011 edition (the CIPFA code) requires the 


PCC to approve a treasury management strategy before the start of each financial 


year. 


In addition, the Welsh Government (WG) issued revised Guidance on Local Authority 


Investments in March 2010 that requires the PCC to approve an investment strategy 


before the start of each financial year. 


This report fulfils the PCC’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 2003 to 


have regard to both the CIPFA Code and the WG Guidance. 


The PCC has invested substantial sums of money and is therefore exposed to 


financial risks including the loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of changing 


interest rates.  The successful identification, monitoring and control of risk are 


therefore central to the PCC’s treasury management strategy. 


The PCC’s Chief Financial Officer (CFO) should implement and monitor the treasury 


management policies and procedures in line with the CIPFA code and other 


professional guidance. 


 


2. Credit Outlook and Interest Rate Forecast 


2.1 Credit outlook 


The varying fortunes of different parts of the global economy are reflected in market 


indicators of credit risk. UK Banks operating in the Far East and parts of mainland 


Europe have seen their perceived risk increase, while those with a more domestic 


focus continue to show improvement. The sale of most of the government’s stake in 


Lloyds and the first sale of its shares in RBS have generally been seen as credit 


positive. 


Bail-in legislation, which ensures that large investors including local authorities will 


rescue failing banks instead of taxpayers in the future, has now been fully 


implemented in the UK, USA and Germany. The rest of the European Union will 


follow suit in January 2016, while Australia, Canada and Switzerland are well 


advanced with their own plans. Meanwhile, changes to the UK Financial Services 


Compensation Scheme and similar European schemes in July 2015 mean that most 


private sector investors are now partially or fully exempt from contributing to a bail-in. 
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The credit risk associated with making unsecured bank deposits has therefore 


increased relative to the risk of other investment options available to the PCC; returns 


from cash deposits however remain stubbornly low. 


2.2 Interest rate forecast 


The PCC’s treasury advisor Arlingclose projects the first 0.25% increase in UK Bank 


Rate in the third quarter of 2016, rising by 0.5% a year thereafter, finally settling 


between 2% and 3% in several years’ time. Persistently low inflation, subdued global 


growth and potential concerns over the UK’s position in Europe mean that the risks to 


this forecast are weighted towards the downside. 


A shallow upward path for medium term gilt yields is forecast, as continuing concerns 


about the Eurozone, emerging markets and other geo-political events weigh on risk 


appetite, while inflation expectations remain subdued. Arlingclose projects the 10 


year gilt yield to rise from its current 2.0% level by around 0.3% a year. The 


uncertainties surrounding the timing of UK and US interest rate rises are likely to 


prompt short-term volatility in gilt yields. 


For the purpose of setting the budget, it has been assumed that new investments will 


be made at an average rate of 1.2% with an assumed average reserve balance of 


£33.365m for the year. 


2.3 Local Context 


As of the end of December 2015 the PCC had £2.5m of borrowing and £41m of 


investments. This is set out in further detail at Appendix A.  Forecast changes in 


these sums are shown in the balance sheet analysis in table 1 below. 
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Table 1: Balance Sheet Summary and Forecast 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


*   assumed that reserves will be used to reduce the CFR to zero within 2015/16 as 


recommended by Arlingclose.  However, this is subject to the approval of Wales Audit 


Office 


** shows only loans to which the PCC is committed and excludes optional refinancing 


 


3. Borrowing Strategy 


The PCC currently holds £2.5 million of loans, a decrease of £0.1 million on the 


previous year, as part of its strategy for funding previous years’ capital programmes.  


The PCC does not expect to need to borrow in 2016/17.  The PCC may however 


borrow to pre-fund future years’ requirements, providing this does not exceed the 


authorised limit for borrowing. 


The PCC’s chief objective when borrowing money is to strike an appropriately low risk 


balance between securing low interest costs and achieving certainty of those costs 


over the period for which funds are required.  The flexibility to renegotiate loans 


should the PCC’s long-term plans change is a secondary objective. 


The PCC may borrow short-term loans (normally for up to one month) to cover 


unexpected cash flow shortages. 


3.1 Sources 


The approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing are: 


• Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) and any successor body 


• any institution approved for investments (see below) 


• any other bank or building society authorised to operate in the UK 


• UK public and private sector pension funds (except Dyfed-Powys Pension 


Fund) 


 


31.3.15 


Actual 


£m 


31.3.16 


Estimate 


£m 


31.3.17 


Forecast 


£m 


31.3.18 


Forecast 


£m 


31.3.19 


Forecast 


£m 


Total CFR * 7.6 0 0 0 0 


Less: External 


borrowing ** 
2.5 2.4 2.3 2.2 4.2 


Internal (over) 


borrowing 
5.1 -2.4 -2.3 -2.2 -4.2 


Less: Usable reserves 45.5 30.1 21.7 12.2 6.5 


Less: Working capital 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 


Investments (or New 


borrowing) 
41.0 33.1 24.6 15.0 1.3 







 
 


5 


 


• capital market bond investors 


• UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc and other special purpose companies created 


to enable local authority bond issues 


In addition, capital finance may be raised by the following methods that are not 


borrowing, but may be classed as other debt liabilities: 


• operating and finance leases 


• hire purchase  


• sale and leaseback 


 


Previously all long-term borrowing has been raised from the PWLB but it continues to 


investigate other sources of finance, such as local authority loans and bank loans, 


that may be available at more favourable rates. 


All borrowing will need the approval of the CFO PCC or the CFO CC (only in 


circumstances where the CFO PCC is unavailable). 


The PCC’s capital expenditure plans imply that there will be a need to borrow in 


financial years 2018/19 and 2019/20.  Reserve levels are forecast to fall to £6.018m 


in 2019/20 as capital reserves / receipts are used to finance capital expenditure and 


reserves are used to finance the revenue budget.  


4. Investment Strategy 


The PCC holds significant invested funds, representing income received in advance 


of expenditure plus balances and reserves held.  In the past 12 months, the PCC’s 


investment balance has ranged between £31 and £43 million. 


Both the CIPFA Code and the WG Guidance require The PCC to invest its funds 


prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its investments before 


seeking the highest rate of return, or yield.  The objective when investing money is to 


strike an appropriate balance between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring 


losses from defaults and the risk receiving unsuitably low investment income. 


Given the increasing risk and continued low returns from short-term unsecured bank 


investments, the PCC aims to further diversify into more secure and/or higher yielding 


asset classes during 2016/17.  This is especially the case for the estimated £5m that 


is available for longer-term investment. The majority of the Authorities surplus cash is 


currently invested in short-term unsecured bank deposits, and certificates of deposit.  


This diversification will represent a continuation of the new strategy adopted in 


2015/16. 
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4.1 Approved Counterparties 


The PCC may invest its surplus funds with any of the counterparty types in table 2 


below, subject to the cash limits (per counterparty) and the time limits shown. 


The combined secured and unsecured investments in any one bank will not exceed 


the cash limit for secured investments. 


Counterparty limits will be reviewed on a quarterly basis and will be amended if 


necessary dependent on investment balances. 


Definitions of types of investment are included in Appendix B. 


Table 2: Approved Investment Counterparties and Limits 


Credit 


Rating 


Banks 


/Building 


Societies 


Unsecured 


Banks 


Secured 
Government Corporates 


Registered 


Providers 


UK 


Govt 
n/a n/a 


£ Unlimited 


50 years 
n/a n/a 


AAA 
£3m 


 5 years 


£4m 


20 years 


£5m 


50 years 


£3m 


 20 years 


£3m 


 20 years 


AA+ 
£3m 


5 years 


£4m 


10 years 


£5m 


25 years 


£3m 


10 years 


£3m 


10 years 


AA 
£3m 


4 years 


£4m 


5 years 


£5m 


15 years 


£3m 


5 years 


£3m 


10 years 


AA- 
£3m 


3 years 


£4m 


4 years 


£5m 


10 years 


£3m 


4 years 


£3m 


10 years 


A+ 
£3m 


2 years 


£4m 


3 years 


£2m 


5 years 


£2m 


3 years 


£2m 


5 years 


A 
£3m 


13 months 


£4m 


2 years 


£2m 


5 years 


£2m 


2 years 


£2m 


5 years 


A- 
£3m 


 6 months 


£4m 


13 months 


£2m 


 5 years 


£2m 


 13 months 


£2m 


 5 years 


*BBB+ 
£3m 


 6 months 


£4m 


13 months 


£2m 


 5 years 


£2m 


 13 months 


£2m 


 5 years 


*BBB 
£3m 


 6 months 


£4m 


13 months 


£2m 


 5 years 


£2m 


 13 months 


£2m 


 5 years 


None 
£1m 


6 months 
n/a £2m None None 


* No new investments to be made with banks of these ratings 


 


4.2 Specified Investments 


The WG Guidance defines specified investments as those: 


• denominated in pound sterling, 
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• due to be repaid within 12 months of arrangement, 


• not defined as capital expenditure by legislation, and 


• invested with one of: 


o the UK Government, 


o a UK local authority, parish council or community council, or 


o a body or investment scheme of “high credit quality”. 


Dyfed Powys defines “high credit quality” organisations and securities as those 


having a credit rating of A- or higher that are domiciled in the UK or a foreign country 


with a sovereign rating of AA+ or higher 


4.3 Non-specified Investments 


Any investment not meeting the definition of a specified investment is classed as non-


specified.  The Dyfed Powys does not intend to make any investments denominated 


in foreign currencies.  Non-specified investments will therefore comprise long-term 


investments, i.e. those that are due to mature 12 months or longer from the date of 


arrangement.  Limits on non-specified investments are shown in table 3 below. 


Table 3: Non-Specified Investment Limits  


 Cash limit 


Total long-term investments £20m 


Total shares in Money Market Funds £5m 


Total shares in other pooled funds £5m 


Total investments without credit ratings or rated 


below [A-] 
£10m  


Total investments with institutions domiciled in 


foreign countries rated below [AA+]  
£10m 


Maximum amount to be invested in non-specified 


investments  
£30m 


  


4.4 Investment Limits 


The PCC’s revenue reserves available to cover investment losses are forecast to be 


£4.5 million on 31st March 2016.  In order that no more than 10% of available 


reserves will be put at risk in the case of a single default, the maximum that will be 


lent to any one organisation (other than the UK Government) will be £4 million.  A 


group of banks under the same ownership will be treated as a single organisation for 


limit purposes.  Limits will also be placed on fund managers, investments in brokers’ 


nominee accounts, foreign countries and industry sectors as below. Investments in 


multilateral development banks do not count against the limit for any single foreign 


country, since the risk is diversified over many countries. 
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Table 4: Investment Limits 


 Cash limit 


Any single organisation, except the UK Central 


Government 
£4m each 


UK Central Government unlimited 


Any group of organisations under the same 


ownership 
£4m per group 


Negotiable instruments held in a broker’s 


nominee account 
£25m per broker 


Foreign countries £6m per country 


Registered Providers £5m in total 


Unsecured investments with Building Societies £6m in total 


 


4.5 Risk assessment and credit ratings 


Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by the PCC’s treasury advisers, who will 


notify changes in ratings as they occur.  Where an entity has its credit rating 


downgraded so that it fails to meet the approved investment criteria then: 


• no new investments will be made, 


• any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be, and 


• full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing investments 


with the affected counterparty. 


Where a credit rating agency announces that a credit rating is on review for possible 


downgrade (also known as “rating watch negative” or “credit watch negative”) so that 


it may fall below the approved rating criteria, then only investments that can be 


withdrawn on the next working day will be made with that organisation until the 


outcome of the review is announced.  This policy will not apply to negative outlooks, 


which indicate a long-term direction of travel rather than an imminent change of 


rating. 


4.6 Other Information on the Security of Investments 


The PCC understands that credit ratings are good, but not perfect, predictors of 


investment default.  Full regard will therefore be given to other available information 


on the credit quality of the organisations in which it invests, including credit default 


swap prices, financial statements, information on potential government support and 


reports in the quality financial press.  No investments will be made with an 


organisation if there are substantive doubts about its credit quality, even though it 


may meet the credit rating criteria. 


When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of all 


organisations, as happened in 2008 and 2011, this is not generally reflected in credit 


ratings, but can be seen in other market measures.  In these circumstances, Dyfed 


Powys will restrict its investments to those organisations of higher credit quality and 
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reduce the maximum duration of its investments to maintain the required level of 


security.  The extent of these restrictions will be in line with prevailing financial market 


conditions. If these restrictions mean that insufficient commercial organisations of 


high credit quality are available to invest the PCC’s cash balances, then the surplus 


will be deposited with the UK Government, via the Debt Management Office or 


invested in government treasury bills for example, or with other local authorities.  This 


will cause a reduction in the level of investment income earned, but will protect the 


principal sum invested. 


4.7 Liquidity Management 


Dyfed Powys completes an annual cash flow forecast which estimated the monthly 


cash flow position. This will be utilised to determine the maximum period for which 


funds may prudently be committed. This forecast is compiled on a prudent basis, with 


receipts under-estimated and payments over-estimated to minimise the risk of being 


force to borrow on unfavourable terms to meet its financial commitments. 


Dyfed Powys will aim to have a minimum of £2 million in call-accounts for short term 


liquidity purposes. 


  All investments of over 13 months will require CFO PCC approval in advance. 


 


5. Treasury Management Indicators 


Dyfed Powys measures and manages its exposures to treasury management risks 


using the following indicators. 


5.1 Security 


The PCC has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk by monitoring 


the value-weighted average credit rating / credit score of its investment portfolio.  This 


is calculated by applying a score to each investment (AAA=1, AA+=2, etc.) and taking 


the arithmetic average, weighted by the size of each investment. Unrated investments 


are assigned a score based on their perceived risk. 


 Target 


Portfolio average credit rating / score A / 6 


 


5.2 Liquidity 


The PCC has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to liquidity risk by 


monitoring the amount of cash available to meet unexpected payments within a 


rolling three month period, without additional borrowing. 


 Target 


Total cash available within 3 months £4m 
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5.3 Interest Rate Exposures 


This indicator is set to control the PCC’s exposure to interest rate risk.  The upper 


limits on fixed and variable rate interest rate exposures, expressed as the account of 


net principal borrowed. (Investments count as negative borrowing.): 


 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 


Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposure £40m £40m £40m 


Upper limit on variable interest rate 


exposure 
£20m £20m £20m 


 


Fixed rate investments and borrowings are those where the rate of interest is fixed for 


at least 12 months, measured from the start of the financial year or the transaction 


date if later.  All other instruments are classed as variable rate. 


5.4 Maturity Structure of Borrowing 


This indicator is set to control the PCC’s exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and 


lower limits on the maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing will be: 


 Upper Lower 


Under 12 months 10% 0% 


12 months and within 24 months 10% 0% 


24 months and within 5 years 50% 0% 


5 years and within 10 years 50% 0% 


10 years and above 100% 0% 


 


Time periods start on the first day of each financial year.  The maturity date of 


borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment. 


5.5 Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than 364 days 


The purpose of this indicator is to control the PCC’s exposure to the risk of incurring 


losses by seeking early repayment of its investments.  The limits on the long-term 


principal sum invested to final maturities beyond the period end will be: 


 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 


Limit on principal invested beyond year end £20m £16m £6m 


 


6. Other Items 


There are a number of additional items that Dyfed Powys is obliged by CIPFA or WG 


to include in its Treasury Management Strategy. 
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6.1 Policy on Use of Financial Derivatives 


In the absence of any legal power to do so, the PCC will not use standalone financial 


derivatives (such as swaps, forwards, futures and options).  Derivatives embedded 


into loans and investments, including pooled funds and forward starting transactions, 


may be used, and the risks that they present will be managed in line with the overall 


treasury risk management strategy. 


6.2 Investment Training 


CIPFA’s Code of Practice requires the Chief Finance Officer to ensure that all 


members tasked with treasury management responsibilities, including scrutiny of the 


treasury management function, receive appropriate training relevant to their needs 


and understand fully their roles and responsibilities. 


Staff who undertake Treasury management duties attend relevant training events 


provided by Arlingclose and attend a quarterly strategy meeting. Staff also attend 


other relevant training events. 


6.3 Investment Advisers 


The PCC has appointed Arlingclose Limited as treasury management advisers and 


receives specific advice on investment, debt and capital finance issues from them.  


6.4 Investment of Money Borrowed in Advance of Need 


The PCC may, from time to time, borrow in advance of need, where this is expected 


to provide the best long term value for money.  Since amounts borrowed will be 


invested until spent, the PCC is aware that it will be exposed to the risk of loss of the 


borrowed sums, and the risk that investment and borrowing interest rates may 


change in the intervening period.  These risks will be managed as part of the PCC’s 


overall management of its treasury risks. 


The total amount borrowed will not exceed the authorised borrowing limit of £23.6 


million.  The maximum period between borrowing and expenditure is expected to be 


two years, although Dyfed Powys is not required to link particular loans with particular 


items of expenditure. 


6.5 Financial Implications 


The budget for investment income in 2016/17 is £0.4 million, based on an average 


investment portfolio of £ 33.4 million at an interest rate of 1.2%.  If actual levels of 


investments and actual interest rates differ from those forecast, performance against 


budget will be correspondingly different.   


6.6 Other Options Considered 


The WG Guidance and the CIPFA Code do not prescribe any particular treasury 


management strategy for local authorities to adopt.  The Chief Financial Officer 


(PCC), believes that the above strategy represents an appropriate balance between 


risk management and cost effectiveness.  Some alternative strategies, with their 


financial and risk management implications, are listed below. 
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Alternative Impact on income 
and expenditure 


Impact on risk management 


Invest in a narrower 
range of 
counterparties and/or 
for shorter times 


Interest income will be 
lower 


Lower chance of losses from 
credit related defaults, but any 
such losses may be greater 


Invest in a wider 
range of 
counterparties and/or 
for longer times 


Interest income will be 
higher 


Increased risk of losses from 
credit related defaults, but any 
such losses may be smaller 


Borrow additional 
sums at long-term 
fixed interest rates 


Debt interest costs will 
rise; this is unlikely to 
be offset by higher 
investment income 


Higher investment balance leading 
to a higher impact in the event of a 
default; however long-term interest 
costs may be more certain 


Borrow short-term or 
variable loans instead 
of long-term fixed 
rates 


Debt interest costs will 
initially be lower 


Increases in debt interest costs 
will be broadly offset by rising 
investment income in the medium 
term, but long term costs may be 
less certain  


Reduce level of 
borrowing  


Saving on debt 
interest is likely to 
exceed lost 
investment income 


Reduced investment balance 
leading to a lower impact in the 
event of a default; however long-
term interest costs may be less 
certain 
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Appendix A – Investment & Debt Portfolio Position  


 


 29/02/2016 


Actual Portfolio 


£m 


29/02/2016 


Average Rate 


% 


External Borrowing:  


PWLB – Fixed Rate                        3                              


 


5.48 


Total Gross External Debt    3 5.48 


Investments: 


Managed in-house 


Short-term investments 


 


 


 33 


 


 


0.52 


Total Investments  33 0.52 
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Appendix B – Investment Definitions 


Credit Rating 


Investment decisions are made by reference to the lowest published long-term credit rating 


from Fitch, Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s.  Where available, the credit rating relevant to the 


specific investment or class of investment is used, otherwise the counterparty credit rating is 


used. 


Banks Unsecure 


Accounts, deposits, certificates of deposit and senior unsecured bonds with banks and 


building societies, other than multilateral development banks.  These investments are subject 


to the risk of credit loss via a bail-in should the regulator determine that the bank is failing or 


likely to fail.  Unsecured investment with banks rated BBB are restricted to overnight deposits 


at the PCC’s current account bank. 


Banks Secured 


Covered bonds, reverse repurchase agreements and other collateralised arrangements with 


banks and building societies.  These investments are secured on the bank’s assets, which 


limits the potential losses in the unlikely event of insolvency, and means that they are exempt 


from bail-in.  Where there is no investment specific credit rating, but the collateral upon which 


the investment is secured has a credit rating, the higher of the collateral credit rating and the 


counterparty credit rating will be used to determine cash and time limits.  The combined 


secured and unsecured investments in any one bank will not exceed the cash limit for 


secured investments. 


Government 


Loans, bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by national governments, regional and local 


authorities and multilateral development banks.  These investments are not subject to bail-in, 


and there is an insignificant risk of insolvency.  Investments with the UK Central Government 


may be made in unlimited amounts for up to 50 years. 


Corporates 


Loans, bonds and commercial paper issued by companies other than banks and registered 


providers. These investments are not subject to bail-in, but are exposed to the risk of the 


company going insolvent.  Loans to unrated companies will only be made as part of a 


diversified pool in order to spread the risk widely. 


Registered Providers 


Loans and bonds issued by, guaranteed by or secured on the assets of Registered Providers 


of Social Housing, formerly known as Housing Associations.  These bodies are tightly 


regulated by the Homes and Communities Agency and, as providers of public services, they 


retain a high likelihood of receiving government support if needed.   
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Pooled Funds 


Shares in diversified investment vehicles consisting of the any of the above investment 


types, plus equity shares and property. These funds have the advantage of providing wide 


diversification of investment risks, coupled with the services of a professional fund manager 


in return for a fee.  Short-term Money Market Funds that offer same-day liquidity and very 


low or no volatility will be used as an alternative to instant access bank accounts, while 


pooled funds whose value changes with market prices and/or have a notice period will be 


used for longer investment periods.  


Bond, equity and property funds offer enhanced returns over the longer term, but are more 


volatile in the short term.  These allow the PCC to diversify into asset classes other than 


cash without the need to own and manage the underlying investments. Because these funds 


have no defined maturity date, but are available for withdrawal after a notice period, their 


performance and continued suitability in meeting the PCC’s investment objectives will be 


monitored regularly. 
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Appendix C – Treasury Management Practices (TMP) 


 


TMP1 Risk Management 


The Chief Finance Officer (CFO) of the PCC will design, implement and monitor all 
arrangements for the identification, management and control of treasury management risk, 
will report at least annually on the adequacy/suitability thereof, and will report, as a matter of 
urgency, the circumstances of any actual or likely difficulty in achieving the PCC’s objectives 
in this respect, all in accordance with the procedures set out in TMP6 Reporting 
requirements and management information arrangements.  


In respect of each of the following risks, the arrangements which seek to ensure compliance 
with these objectives are set out below:-            


 Credit and Counterparty Risk   


Definition 


The risk of failure by a counterparty to meet its contractual obligations to the 
organisation under an investment, borrowing, capital, project or partnership financing, 
particularly as a result of the counterparty’s diminished creditworthiness, and the 
resulting detrimental effect on the organisation’s capital or current (revenue) 
resources. 


Action 


“Dyfed-Powys regards a key objective of its treasury management activities to be the 
security of the principal sums it invests.  Accordingly, it will ensure that its counter-
party lists and limits reflect a prudent attitude towards organisations with which funds 
may be deposited, and will limit its investment activities to the instruments, methods 
and techniques referred to in TMP4 Approved instruments, methods and techniques.  
It also recognises the need to have, and will therefore maintain, a formal counter-
party policy in respect of those institutions from which it may borrow, or with whom it 
may enter into other financing arrangements.”  


 Counterparties are detailed within the Treasury Management Strategy and Policy.  


 


 Liquidity Risk 


Definition 


The risk that cash will not be available when it is needed, that ineffective 
management of liquidity creates additional unbudgeted costs and that the 
organisation’s business / service objectives will be thereby compromised. 


Action 


It will be the function of the CFO (Chief Constable) through the treasury management 
staff employed by the Chief Constable to ensure that it has adequate though not 
excessive cash resources, borrowing arrangements, overdraft or standby facilities to 
enable it at all times to have the level of funds available to it which are necessary for 
the achievement of its business / service objectives.  


They will ensure that at all times there will be a surplus of cash available which can 
be called upon (£2m) through its investments in cash on call accounts, which would 
be available at any time. 
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Robust weekly, monthly and annual cash flow forecasting processes are in place in 
line with Financial Regulations and Financial Control Procedures. 


  


Interest Rate Risk 


Definition 


The risk that fluctuations in the levels of interest rates create an unexpected or 
unbudgeted burden on the organisation’s finances, against which the organisation 
has failed to protect itself adequately. 


Action 


Dyfed-Powys will manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates with a view to 
containing its interest costs, or securing its interest revenues, in accordance with the 
amounts provided in its budgetary arrangements as amended in accordance with 
TMP6 Reporting requirements and management information arrangements. 


It will achieve this by the prudent use of its approved financing and investment 
instruments, methods and techniques, primarily to create stability and certainty of 
costs and revenues, but at the same time retaining a sufficient degree of flexibility to 
take advantage of unexpected, potentially advantageous changes in the level or 
structure of interest rates. This should be subject to the consideration and, if required, 
approval of any policy or budgetary implications. 


The PCC will only undertake borrowing from approved sources such as the PWLB, 
organisations such as the European Investment Bank and from commercial banks 
who are on the PCC’s list of authorised institutions, thereby minimising legal and 
regulatory risk. All investment of over 13 months will need prior approval by the CFO 
PCC. 


 


    Exchange Rate Risk 


Definition 


The risk that fluctuations in foreign exchange rates create and unexpected or 
unbudgeted burden on the organisation’s finances, against which the organisation 
has failed to protect itself adequately. 


Action 


Currently Dyfed Powys only invest in sterling products, hence there is no exchange 
rate risk. 


 


Refinancing Risk 


Definition 


The risk that maturing borrowings, capital, project  or partnership financings cannot 
be refinanced on terms that reflect the provisions made by the organisation for those 
refinancing, both capital and current (revenue) and / or that the terms are inconsistent 
with prevailing market conditions at the time. 


Action 


Dyfed-Powys will ensure that its borrowing, private financing and partnership 
arrangements are negotiated, structured and documented, and the maturity profile of 
the monies so raised are managed, with a view to obtaining offer terms for renewal or 
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refinancing if required, which are competitive and as favourable to the PCC as can 
reasonably be achieved in the light of market conditions prevailing at the time. 


It will actively manage its relationships with its counter-parties in these   transactions 
in such a manner as to secure this objective, and will avoid over reliance on any one 
source of funding if this might jeopardise achievement of the above.” 


 


 Legal and Regulatory Risk 


Definition 


The risk that the organisation itself, or an organisation with which it is dealing in its 
treasury management activities, fails to act in accordance with its legal powers or 
regulatory requirements, and that the organisations suffers losses accordingly. 


Action 


Dyfed-Powys will ensure that all of its treasury management activities comply with its 
statutory powers and regulatory requirements.  It will demonstrate such compliance, if 
required to do so, to all parties with whom it deals in such activities.  In framing its 
credit and counter-party policy under TMP1 credit and counter-party risk 
management, it will ensure that there is evidence of counter-parties’ powers, authority 
and compliance in respect of the transactions they may effect with the PCC, 
particularly with regard to duty of care and fees charged. 


Dyfed Powys recognises that future legislative or regulatory changes may impact on 
its treasury management activities and, so far as is reasonably able to do so, will seek 
to minimise the risk of these impacting adversely on the PCC. 


 


Fraud, Error and Corruption Contingency 


Definition  


The risk that an organisation fails to identify the circumstances in which it may be 
exposes to the risk of loss through fraud, error, corruption or other eventualities in its 
treasury management dealings, and fails to employ suitable systems and procedures 
and maintain effective contingency management arrangements to these ends. It 
includes the area of risk commonly referred to as an operational risk. 


Action 


Dyfed-Powys will ensure that it has identified the circumstances which may expose it 
to the risk of loss through fraud, error, corruption or other eventualities in its treasury 
management dealings.  Accordingly, it will employ suitable systems and procedures, 
and will maintain effective contingency management arrangements to these ends. 
Internal Audit will regularly review Treasury Management function and report to the 
Joint Audit Committee. 


A clear, well defined reporting structure for fraud etc. is in place in the event of a 
systems breakdown. The insurance policy incorporates cover for fraud, error and 
corruption. This is documented within the Anti-fraud and Corruption policy and 
included within Financial Control Procedure 4.7 “Dealing with Suspected Fraud and 
deception.” 
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Market Risk 


Definition 


The risk that through adverse fluctuations in the value of the principal sums an 
organisation borrows and invests, its stated treasury management policies and 
objectives are compromised, against which effects it has failed to protect itself 
adequately. 


Action 


Dyfed-Powys will seek to ensure that its stated treasury management policies and 
objectives will not be compromised by adverse market fluctuations in the value of the 
principal sums it invests, and will accordingly seek to protect itself from the effects of 
such fluctuations.  


It will only place investments with institutions that are included on the most recent 
counter-party lending list approved by Arlingclose. 


 


TMP2  Performance Measurement 


Dyfed Powys is committed to the pursuit of value for money in its treasury management 
activities and to the use of performance methodology in support of that aim, within the 
framework set out in its treasury management policy statement. 


Accordingly, the treasury management function will be the subject of on-going analysis of the 
value it adds in support of the organisation’s stated business or service objectives. It will be 
the subject of regular examination of alternative methods of service delivery, of the 
availability of fiscal or other grant or subsidy incentives, and of the scope for other potential 
improvements. The performance of the treasury management function will be measured by 
using the criteria set out below:- 


The performance measures / benchmarks for treasury management will include the 
following: -  


 Performance Measure 


1 Achieving the budgeted investment income 


2 Ensuring cash balance cover of 31 days 


3 Ensuring that investments are only placed with institutions which 
comply with the annual Treasury Management Strategy. 


4 Ensuring approved counter-party limits are adhered to (refer to TMP’s 
1/ 5) 


5 Expected levels of Investments per month compared to actual level of 
investment 


6 Average rate of return of investments per month compared to target 
rate 
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TMP3  Decision Making and Analysis 


Dyfed Powys will maintain full records of its treasury management decisions and of the 
processes and practices applied in reaching those decisions, both for the purposes of 
learning from the past, and for demonstrating that reasonable steps were taken to ensure 
that all issues relevant to those decisions were taken into account at the time. 


Decisions regarding funding, borrowing, lending and new instruments and techniques will 
only be made if they comply with the Treasury Management Policy and Strategy. All 
decisions will be open to independent scrutiny. 


 


TMP4  Approved Instruments, Methods and Techniques 


Dyfed Powys will undertake its treasury management activities by employing only those 
instruments, methods and techniques specified in the Financial Regulations and Financial 
Control Procedures and within the limits and parameters defined in TMP 1 Risk 
Management.  


The Corporate Governance Framework section 7.8F gives instruction on Treasury 
Management and Banking arrangements and the Financial Control Procedure 2.1 Treasury 
Management and Banking arrangements specify instruments, methods and techniques 
approved. 


 


TMP5  Organisation, Clarity and Segregation of Responsibilities and Dealing 


Arrangements 


Dyfed-Powys considers it essential, for the purposes of the effective control and monitoring 
of its treasury management activities, for the reduction of the risk of fraud or error, and for the 
pursuit of optimum performance, that these activities are structured and managed in a fully 
integrated manner, and that there is, at all times, clarity of treasury management 
responsibilities. 


The principle on which this will be based is a clear distinction between those charged with 
setting treasury management policies and those charged with implementing and controlling 
these policies, particularly with regard to the execution and transmission of funds, the 
recording and administering of treasury management decisions, and the audit and review of 
the treasury management function.  


If and when Dyfed Powys intends, as a result of lack of resources or other circumstances, to 
depart from these principles, the CFO CC will ensure that the reasons are properly reported 
to the CFO PCC in accordance with TMP6 Reporting Requirements and Management 
Information Arrangements, and the implications properly considered and evaluated. 


The CFO CC will ensure that there are clear written statements of the responsibilities for 
each post engaged in treasury management, and the arrangements for absence cover.  The 
CFO CC will also ensure that at all times those engaged in treasury management will follow 
the policies and procedures set out and report any deviance from these to the CFO PCC. 


The CFO CC will ensure that there is proper documentation for all deals and transactions 
and that procedures exist for the effective transmission of funds and provide evidence of this 
where required to the CFO PCC.   


 


TMP6  Reporting Requirements and Management Information Arrangements 


Dyfed-Powys will ensure that regular reports are prepared and considered on the 
implementation of its treasury management policies; on the effects of decisions taken and 
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transactions executed in pursuit of those policies; on the implications of changes, particularly 
budgetary, resulting from regulatory, economic, market or other factors affecting its treasury 
management activities; and on the performance of the treasury management function. 


It is suggested that the following reporting process be presented by the PCC CFO:- 


  


Annual reporting requirements before the start of the year: 


 Review of the Treasury Management policy statement and strategy, 


 Review of the Treasury Management Practices, 


 Prudential Indicators. 


 


Mid-year reporting requirements: 


 Treasury Management Activities undertaken, 


 Variations (if any) from agreed policies / practices, 


 Performance report, 


 Performance against Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators. 


 


Annual reporting requirements after year end: 


 Performance of Treasury Management Function, 


 Report on risk implications of decisions taken and transactions executed, 


 Report on any circumstances of non-compliance with the Treasury management 


Police Statement and TMPs. 


 


TMP7  Budgeting, Accounting and Audit Arrangements 


The CFO PCC will prepare and the PCC will approve and if necessary from time to time will 
amend the annual budget for the Treasury Management function, together with associated 
income. The matters to be included in the budget will be at minimum those required by 
statute or regulation, together with such information as will demonstrate compliance with 
TMP1 Risk Management, TMP2 Performance Measurement and TMP4 Approved 
Instruments, Methods and Techniques. The CFO will exercise effective controls over this 
budget and will report upon and recommend any changes required in accordance with TMP6 
Reporting Requirements and Management Information Arrangements. 


Dyfed-Powys will account for its treasury management activities, for decisions made and 
transactions executed, in accordance with appropriate accounting practices and standards, 
and with statutory and regulatory requirements in force for the time being and in particular the 
CIPFA Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes for Treasury Management in 
Public Services issued in 2011. The CFO will act in accordance with the PCC’s policy 
statement and TMPs and the CIPFA: Standard of Professional Practice on Treasury 
Management. 


The PCC will ensure that its auditors, and those charged with regulatory review, have access 
to all information and papers supporting the activities of the treasury management function 







 
 


22 


 


as are necessary for the proper fulfilment of their roles, and that such information and papers 
demonstrate compliance with external and internal policies and approved practices.   


Treasury Management procedures and processes will be audited in accordance with the 
internal audit risk based audit strategy. 


Auditors will as part of their responsibilities in auditing the Statement of Accounts, obtain 
independent verification from counterparties of investments held by the PCC. 


 


TMP8  Cash and Cash Flow Management 


Unless statutory or regulatory requirements demand otherwise, all monies in the hand of Dyfed 
Powys will be under the control of the PCC, and will be aggregated for cash flow and 
investment management purposes. Cash flow projections will be prepared on a regular basis, 
and the CFO PCC and CFO CC will ensure that these are adequate for the purposes of 
monitoring compliance with TMP1 Liquidity Risk Management.  


 


TMP9  Money laundering 


Dyfed Powys is alert to the possibility that it may become the subject of an attempt to involve it 
in a transaction involving the laundering of money. Accordingly, it will maintain procedures for 
verifying and recording the identity of counter-parties and reporting suspicions, and will ensure 
that staff involved in this are fully trained.  


Only counterparties approved by the Treasury Management consultants will be utilised. Terms 
and conditions are agreed between the counterparty and the PCC prior to the transfer of 
funds. 


The Proceeds of Crime Act 2020 (POCA) and the related Money Laundering Regulations 
2007 have also extended the Wales Audit Office auditors responsibilities. The Auditor 
General and his staff and contractors are required to report to the Serious and Organised 
Crime Agency (SOCA) where they suspect, as a result of information gained during the 
course of their work, that there may have been criminal acts that involve financial gain. 


If any staff involved in Treasury Management have suspicions of money laundering then this 
should be brought to the attention of the CFO PCC and CFO CC. 


 


TMP10  Training and Qualifications 


Dyfed Powys recognises the importance of ensuring that all staff involved in the treasury 
management function are fully equipped to undertake the duties and responsibilities 
allocated to them. The PCC will therefore seek to appoint individuals who are both capable 
and experienced and will provide training for staff to enable them to acquire and maintain an 
appropriate level of expertise, knowledge and skills. The CFO PCC will recommend and 
implement the necessary arrangements. 


The CFO PCC will ensure that all staff tasked with treasury management responsibilities, 
including those responsible for scrutiny, have access to training relevant to their needs and 
those responsibilities. 


Those charged with governance recognise their individual responsibility to ensure that they 
have the necessary skills to complete their role effectively. 


Staff who undertake Treasury management duties attend relevant training events provided 
by Arlingclose and attend a quarterly strategy meeting. Staff also attend relevant training 
events that are held by CIPFA. 
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Weekly bulletin e-mails are sent out by Arlingclose which provide advice on any economic 
developments and suggested revisions to counterparty limits. 


 


TMP11  Use of External Service Providers 


Dyfed-Powys recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions remains with 
the PCC at all times. Dyfed-Powys recognises the potential value of employing external 
providers of treasury management services, in order to acquire access to specialist skills and 
resources.  When it employs such service providers, it will ensure it does so for reasons 
which will have been submitted to a full evaluation of the costs and benefits.  It will also 
ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which their value will be 
assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subject to regular review.  And it will 
ensure, where feasible and necessary, that a spread of service providers is used, to avoid 
over reliance on one or a small number of companies.   Where services are subject to formal 
tender or re-tender arrangements, legislative requirements will always be observed.  The 
monitoring of such arrangements rests with the CFO PCC. 


Dyfed Powys has a contract with Arlingclose for the provision of advice/assistance as 
follows: 


 Strategic advice 


 Capital finance advice 


 Treasury Management Policy and Strategy 


 Interest Rate Forecasting and Economic Advice 


 Investment Policy Advice 


 Debt Advice 


 Counterparty Assistance 


 Seminars and training 


 Website and client meetings. 


The initial contract was for the period 1st July 2008 to 30th June 2010.  This is now subject to 
an annual review. 


 


TMP12  Corporate Governance 


Dyfed-Powys has adopted and implemented the key recommendations of the CIPFA Code of 
Practice.  This is considered vital to the achievement of proper corporate governance in 
treasury management, and the CFO PCC and CFO CC will monitor and, if and when 
necessary, report upon the effectiveness of these arrangements. 


The Code recommends that public service organisations state their commitment to 
embracing the principles of corporate governance in their Treasury Management activities, 
notably openness and transparency. 


Dyfed Powys is committed to the pursuit of proper corporate governance throughout its 
businesses and services, and to establishing the principles and practices by which this can 
be achieved. Therefore, the treasury management function and its activities will be 
undertaken with openness and transparency, honesty, integrity and accountability reflected 
in Dyfed Powys’s Corporate Governance Framework and Financial Control Procedures. 
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The organisation’s Treasury Management policies and practices will be published on the 
internet. 


The CFO PCC has primacy over Treasury Management functions and will ensure that 
adequate separation of duties exist between staff charged with undertaking Treasury 
Management Functions. 
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Appendix D - Prudential Indicators and MRP Statement 


The Local Government Act 2003 requires the PCC to have regard to the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in 
Local Authorities (the Prudential Code) when determining how much money it can 
afford to borrow. The objectives of the Prudential Code are to ensure, within a clear 
framework, that the capital investment plans of local authorities are affordable, 
prudent and sustainable, and that treasury management decisions are taken in 
accordance with good professional practice.  


To demonstrate that the PCC has fulfilled these objectives, the Prudential Code sets 
out the following indicators that must be set and monitored each year. 


 


1. Estimates of Capital Expenditure 


The PCC has approved capital expenditure and financing as summarised below:- 


 


Capital Expenditure and 
Financing 


2016/17 
Estimate 


£m 


2017/18 
Estimate 


£m 


2018/19 
Estimate 


£m 


2019/20 
Estimate 


£m 


Total Expenditure 7.857 9.108 7.819 2.712 


     


Government Grants 0.500 0.500 0.500 0.500 


Borrowing 0 0 2.106 1.765 


Capital Receipts 1.614 0.568 0.223 0 


Revenue 0.422 0.431 0.439 0.447 


Reserves 5.321 7.609 4.551 0 


Total Financing 7.857 9.108 7.819 2.712 


 
 


2. Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement 


The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR) while usable reserves and working capital are the 
underlying resources available for investment.  


As of 1st April 2015 the PCC had an opening capital financing requirement of £7.309 
million (excluding PFI) against total fixed assets recorded on the balance sheet of 
£73.912 million.  During 2015/16 the PCC applied £7.309 million of its capital reserve 
to the CFR in order to reduce the balance to zero. 


In addition, in 2015/16, the Ammanford Police Station PFI was terminated, thus 
reducing the outstanding capital expenditure relating to the PFI to zero. 


In relation to the capital expenditure plans outlined in the capital strategy, the PCC 
will need to borrow a total of £3.871 million (internal borrowing) over the period 
2018/19 to 2019/20. The PCC must also make annual repayments from the revenue 
budget for interest and a repayment of principal in accordance with the MRP policy 
set out below. 


The PCC is currently looking at ways to reduce the need to borrow in 2018/19 and 
2019/20 to zero.  It is likely that this will be achieved by reducing the contributions 
from the revenue reserve to the revenue budget that are currently planned (as a 
result of the PCC’s decision to realign the level of the council tax precept payable and 
in effect, return reserves to tax payers) and instead, making the contributions to the 
capital budget. 
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Capital Financing 
Requirement 


2015/16  
Estimate 


£m 


2016/17 
Estimate 


£m 


2017/18 
Estimate 


£m 


2018/19 
Estimate 


£m 


2019/20 
Estimate 


£m 


Opening Capital 
Financing 
Requirement 
(Excluding PFI) 


7.309 0 0 0 2.106 


Opening PFI balance 2.504 0 0 0 0 


In-year use of reserves 
to reduce CFR 


-7.309 0 0 0 0 


Termination of PFI -2.504 0 0 0 0 


Less: Annual Minimum 
repayment from 
revenue 


0 0 0 0 0.084 


Add: New Borrowing 0 0 0 2.106 1.765 


Total 0 0 0 2.106 3.787 


 


 


3. Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement 


In order to ensure that over the medium term debt will only be for a capital purpose, 
paragraph 44 of the Prudential Code states that the PCC should ensure that debt 
does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of capital financing requirement in 
the preceding year plus an estimates of any additional capital financing requirement 
for the current and next two financial years.   This is a key indicator of prudence. All 
borrowing decisions will be made by the PCC advised by the CFO PCC. 


Whilst currently we meet the requirement of paragraph 44 of the Prudential Code, 
external debt is higher than the CFR in 2016/17.  This is due to the CFR reducing 
more than we expected when we initially took out the long-term loans that we hold (all 
are dated pre 1990).  Repayment premiums on these Public Works Loan Board debts 
are prohibitive and therefore it is more cost effective to continue to carry these loans 
rather than pay them off early.  In addition, the PCC receives a grant contribution 
towards the costs of pre 1990 debt financing at 51% of the costs of the remaining 
notional interest payments and minimum revenue repayment. 


 


Debt 31.03.17 
Estimate 


£m 


31.03.18 
Estimate 


£m 


31.03.19 
Estimate 


£m 


31.03.20 
Estimate 


£m 


External Borrowing 2.298 2.125 1.936 1.729 


PFI liabilities 0 0 0 0 


Total Debt 2.298 2.125 1.936 1.729 


 


 


4. Operational Boundary for External Debt   


The operational boundary is based on the PCC’s estimate of most likely i.e. prudent, 


but not worst case scenario for external debt. It links directly to the PCC’s estimates 


of capital expenditure, the capital financing requirement and cash flow requirements 


and is a key management tool for in-year monitoring. Private Finance Initiative also 


forms part of the PCC’s debt. The limits set are shown in the Table below: 


 


 







 
 


27 


 


 


Operational Boundary 2016/17 
Estimate 


£m 


2017/18 
Estimate 


£m 


2018/19 
Estimate 


£m 


2019/20 
Estimate 


£m 


Short-term Borrowing  2.500 2.500 2.500 2.500 


Total long-term debt and other 
liabilities (incl CFR) 


18.137 18.137 18.137 18.137 


Total Debt 20,637 20,637 20,637 20,637 


 


 


5. Authorised limit for External Debt 


The authorised limit is the affordable borrowing limit determined in compliance with 


the Local Government Act 2003. It is the maximum amount of debt that the PCC can 


legally owe. The authorised limit provides headroom over and above the operational 


boundary for unusual cash movements. The limits set are shown in the Table below: 


 


Authorised Limit 31.03.16 
Revised 


£m 


31.03.17 
Revised 


£m 


31.03.18 
Estimate 


£m 


31.03.19 
Estimate 


£m 


Short-term Borrowing 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 


Total long-term debt and other 
liabilities (incl CFR) 


18.600 18.600 18.600 18.600 


Total Debt 23.600 23.600 23.600 23.600 


 


6. Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 


This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of existing 


and proposed capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the revenue budget 


required to meet financing costs, net of investment income. This indicator shows 


financing costs in the context of the entire budget. This is scheduled to reduce over 


the period. 


 


Authorised Limit 2016/17 
Estimate 


£m 


2017/18 
Estimate 


£m 


2018/19 
Estimate 


£m 


2019/20 
Estimate 


£m 


Financing Cost 1.203 1.198 1.066 1.045 


Net Force Budget 93.342 95.378 96.455 98.275 


Total Debt 1.29% 1.26% 1.11% 1.06% 


 


7. Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions 


This is an indicator of affordability that shows the impact of capital investment 


decisions on Council Tax levels. The incremental impact is the difference between 


the total revenue budget requirement of the current approved capital programme and 


the revenue budget requirement arising from the proposed capital programme. 


 


Incremental Impact of Capital Investment 
Decisions 


2016/17 
Estimate  


2017/18 
Estimate  


2018/19 
Estimate  


Incremental Cost £m -0.006 -0.131 -0.021 


Council Tax Base 218,090 219,617 221,154 


Band D increase £ -0.03 -0.60 -0.10 
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Annual Minimum Revenue Provision Statement 2016/17 
 


Where the PCC finances capital expenditure by debt, it must put aside resources to repay 


that debt in later years. The amount charged to the revenue budget for the repayment of debt 


is known as Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) although there has been no statutory 


minimum since 2008. The Local Government Act 2003 requires the PCC to have regard to 


the Welsh Government’s Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision. 


 


The broad aim of the WG guidance is to ensure that debt is repaid that is either reasonably 


commensurate with that over which the capital expenditure provides benefits or, in the case 


of borrowing supported by Government Revenue Support Grant, reasonably commensurate 


with the period implicit in the determination of that grant. 


 


The WG guidance requires the PCC to approve an annual MRP statement each year, and 


recommends a number of options for calculating a prudent amount of MRP. 


 


Whilst it is foreseen that the CFR will remain at zero for a couple of years (and therefore 


MRP will be zero), the policy will still be used to estimate future MRP charges to the revenue 


account for future years in setting the medium term financial plan and capital programme. 


 


The following statement only incorporates options recommended in the guidance: 


ANNUAL MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION (MRP) STATEMENT 


The following policy has been set by the PCC in relation to MRP for 2016/17. 


Supported Borrowing - Capital Financing Requirement Method 


MRP is equal to 4% of the supported Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) at the end of 
the preceding financial year. For 2016/17 this is estimated to be zero. 


Prudential Borrowing -  Depreciation Method 


MRP is to be equal to the provision required in accordance with depreciation accounting 
in respect of the asset on which expenditure has been financed by prudential borrowing 
or unsupported credit arrangements. 


(a) MRP will continue to be made annually until the cumulative amount of such provision 
is equal to the expenditure originally financed. 


(b) On disposal of the asset, the amount of the capital receipt will not be taken to the 
revenue account and the PCC will comply with the normal requirements of the 2003 Act 
on the use of capital receipts. 


(c) Where the percentage of the expenditure on the asset financed by prudential 
borrowing or unsupported credit arrangements is less than 100%, MRP will be equal to 
the same percentage of the provision required under depreciation accounting. 


Finance Leases and PFI 


In the case of finance leases and on balance-sheet PFI contracts, the MRP requirement 
will be regarded as met by a charge equal to the element of the rent/charge that goes to 
write down the balance sheet liability. 
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Update to Joint Audit Committee – 20 September 2016 on ‘HMIC Matters’ 


 


1. Publication of Reports 
On 22 September, about 2 months earlier than expected, HMIC will be send out the Efficiency, Legitimacy and Leadership 
force reports. Accompanying the reports will be a template for Chief Officers to review and record any comments relating to the 
factual accuracy of these reports.  
 
Returns are due on 3 October (Efficiency) and 7 October (Legitimacy and Leadership).   
 
The final reports are expected before the end of the year: Efficiency during the first week in November, Legitimacy and 
Leadership in December).  
 


2. Review of Inspection process / agreeing Governance 
 
Following the Spring PEEL Inspection, a governance group chaired by DCC James has been established to oversee HMIC 
recommendations.  Attendees are action owners, Chief Officer team and HMIC Liaison Team.  Actions are monitored on a 
single Action Tracker spreadsheet, listing all recommendations since 2014. 
 
The first meeting was held in August and we have had two others since with good progress being made.  The HMIC Liaison 
Team is developing a system to enable actions to be monitored, tasked and updated more efficiently. 
 


3. Work Priorities 
 
The current priority is preparation for the 2016 PEEL Effectiveness Inspection, which takes placed 10-14 October 2016. 
 


 Broadly speaking, there are 5 areas that HMIC will be inspecting: crime prevention, crime investigation, vulnerability, 
serious & organised crime and the strategic policing requirement. 


 Fieldwork began on 11-14 July 2016.  HMIC Inspectors came into force to carry out a crime file review of 60 cases to 
test the effectiveness of crime investigation. 


 14-16 September, HMIC Inspector Mike Nally in Force as part of the ‘Insights Programme.’ The purpose being to test the 
effectiveness of DMMs, to visit the FCC and NPTs in Brecon and Carmarthen. ACC Kelly will also be meeting Mr Nally. 


 A chief-officers’ self-assessment has been submitted to HMIC outlining the force position on 13 overarching questions. 


 Insp Stuart Bell is currently working through Inspection Methodology and gathering evidence in order to produce a 







Update to Joint Audit Committee – 20 September 2016 on ‘HMIC Matters’ 


 


detailed document for HMIC outlining work going on in the force. It will also assist in preparing a briefing document for 
senior officers, focus groups etc. 


 Insp Stuart Bell is collating Crime Prevention and Problem Solving work going on around the force. Results will be 
circulated in order to share ideas and best practice. 


 DI Diane Davies is undertaking an audit on Stalking & Harassment which will be reviewed as an additional area within 
the effectiveness inspection. 


 
 


4. Future Inspections  
 


 10th – 14th October 2016 – PEEL Effectiveness 
This inspection will have a lot more reality testing where HMIC will visit divisions and places of work unannounced.  
Day 1  Strategic Round Table Presentation and reality testing 
Day 2  Interview with head of Firearms and reality testing 
Day 3  Interviews with Head Analyst (Dorian Griffiths), BCU Commander (Supt Parmenter), Head of Crime (Det Chief      
Supt John) and Head of PVPU (Det Supt Cockwell)   
Day 4  Focus Groups with Partners (PVP + CSP), Focus Group with Lead Responsible Officers, nterview with ACC Kelly 
(Local policing / Public Protection / Serious & Organised Crime)  
Day 5  Hot debrief to DCC, ACC and PCC 
 


 Day 2 (11th October) –Stalking & Harassment Inspection (as part of the Effectiveness)   
Immediately following the interview with the SPOC, HMIC will be conducting some reality testing and viewing force 
records on stalking and harassment cases, with a focus on cases where a PIN (Police Information Notice) has been 
issued (where forces do not issue PINS this sample will be adapted to include alternative approaches to reports).  
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5. HMIC Publications received 
 
August Update from HMIC with regard to Crime Data Integrity 
 
We are yet to host HMIC for our CDI Inspection, but reports from other forces have been circulated highlighting concerns from 
HMIC. Our Force Crime Registrar is in touch with those forces in order to learn any lessons possible. 
  
 


 


 






image14.emf
Cofnodion 

06-09-2016


Cofnodion 06-09-2016


1 


 


 
 


 


 


  


 


Corporate Governance Group 
 


MINUTES 6th September, 2016   


 


ACPO, Police Headquarters  


 


Attendees:    Edwin Harries (Chair)   Director of Finance (DoF) 


Adrian Williams    Director of Resources (DoR) 


  Jayne Woods    Chief Finance Officer, OPCC (CFO) 


  Carys Morgans    Chief of Staff, OPCC (CoS) 


  Sharon Richards    Performance Manager, OPCC (SR) 


  Helen Morgan-Howard   Project Manager, Corp. Gov (HMH) 


  Paul Morris     Collaboration & Efficiency (PM) 


  Malcolm McDonald    Joint Audit Committee (MM) 


 


Apologies: T/DCC Liane James    T/DCC 


Gawain Evans                                    Chair of the Joint Audit Committee 


  Rachel Jones     Legal Services 


 


1. Disclosure of any other Business Items 


None to raise. 
 


 


2. Minutes of Corporate Governance Group – 8th June, 2016 


The minutes of the last meeting of the Corporate Governance Group held on the 8th June, 


2016 were agreed. 


 


Action:- Paul Morris and Helen Morgan-Howard to reflect the Corporate Governance Group 


in the work currently being undertaken.  


 


It was confirmed that work undertaken by the Governance Group was reflected in the 


Corporate Governance Framework.  


 


Action:- Ed Harries to request an extension to the timescale for submission to JAC.   


Action:- Paul Morris and Ed Harries to meet and update the document.  


 


The Annual Governance Statement had been updated and circulated in time for the JAC 


meeting. 


 


Action:- Rachel Jones to liaise with Huw Morgans and report back the position in relation to 


Business Continuity. 


 


The completed Force Business Continuity Plan will be presented to COG at the end of 


September. Discussions were ongoing on how to raise the issue of Risk within the organisation.  


Although a significant amount of work had been undertaken a continuing Risk factor was the 


resource available in going forward.  


 


Action:- A summary of the current governance structure to be discussed at the next meeting 


of this group so that this can be evidenced at the end of the current financial year. 
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To be discussed under a later agenda item. 


 


Action:- It was agreed that when the findings have been published on ‘Hillsborough’, these 


will be examined from an operational perspective and fed through the Code of Ethics 


committee to establish whether there can be any lessons learned. 


 


T/DCC Liane James to provide an update on the findings on ‘Hillsborough’. 


 


 


Action:- Helen Morgan-Howard to explore whether people feel it is appropriate to have this 


kind of arrangement.   


 


Helen Morgan-Howard agreed to report back to T/DCC Liane James on the appropriateness 


of raising related party declarations during the personal development review process. 


 


 


Action:- Paul Morris and Ed Harries to consider and discuss Risk Embedding further. 


 


A considerable improvement had been made in terms of Risk and a positive internal audit 


report had been received on Risk. 


 
 


 


3. & 4. Governance Core Principles and the New Corporate Governance Framework - CIPFA 


It was beneficial to discuss the two agenda items in conjunction. 


 


The Governance Core Principles were included to remind the Group of the old Core 


Principles and the New Corporate Governance Framework illustrated the recently published 


document for policing.  The New Corporate Governance Framework was applicable to 


2016/17 and following it was mandatory.  Based on the new guidelines, a discussion took 


place on actions required to demonstrate that its requirements are met.  The links between 


the work on Corporate Governance and ongoing work on the Police & Crime Plan was key in 


determining a specific approach in meeting these requirements.  There was an opportunity 


to work in a more dynamic way and HMH circulated a document based on the new model 


on the assurance framework.  It was agreed that whilst the new Framework was an useful 


model, following it rigidly would prove to be resource intensive and some guidance as to the 


extent was sought in advance of the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement. 


 


Suggestions included: 


 Set up a working group to produce a skeleton draft document and form an action 


plan evidencing weaknesses and key factors to take forward in order to build into the 


organisation. 


 Accomplish wider engagement with officers and staff through the Senior Leaders 


Forum 5th October. 


 Cover governance within training and induction of Officers. 


 To be smarter in how we apply governance when working with Partnerships. 


 


ACTION:  To follow the Senior Leaders Forum, set up a Task and Finish Group to consider 


requirements and revised matrix. 


 


SR provided an up to date position on the Police & Crime Plan.  The existing Plan was in place 


until a new one is published.  Short term work was required to ensure that the Corporate 


Governance Framework was fit for purpose in the immediate term, with a complete revamp 
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once the new Police and Crime Plan was in place. 


 


MM shared his concern on a weakness where HMIC advice is incorporated within the Annual 


Governance Statement. 


 


A discussion took place around representation by Corporate Governance Group members 


at all Board levels to capture governance issues.   HMH circulated the results of a table top 


exercise which highlighted only one Board with a missing link to the Corporate Governance 


Group. 


 
 


 


 


 


5. Governance Structure Review (OPCC Restructure) 


 


The Group was made aware of the restructure within the OPCC to support the 


Commissioner’s needs and priorities in going forward.  SR attended the meeting in her role as 


Governance Manager and Deputy Monitoring Officer.  Work was ongoing to develop a 


process of OPCC engagement at all Force meetings. 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


6. Information Sharing 


The DoR provided an update of Force activity on Information Compliance.  A TIAA assurance 


audit review is to be presented to the next JAC meeting.  The current issues associated with 


information compliance together with procedures in place in going forward was highlighted. 


 


The OPCC was reviewing its position in terms of information compliance particularly in relation 


to commissioned work and estates work. 


 


 


 


7. Review of current issues that may have an impact on governance arrangements 


A general discussion was held on the following issues: 


 


a) Risk 


Not much change to the OPCC Risk Register since the version presented to the last 


JAC meeting.   The Force Risk Register was recently presented at COG. 


 


b) Internal Audit 


Reported under next agenda item. 


 


c) HMIC 


PEEL Inspection on Effectiveness was due w.c. 10th October.  An additional piece of 


work on Stalking and Harassment was highlighted. 


 


d) Operational Issues 


Work had commenced in relation to a potential Police Fund Transformation Bid to look 


at an All Wales solution in terms of Records Management.  The success of the bid will 


be known by the end of the year. 


 


e) Ethics 
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A considerable amount of work had been done by the Ethics Committee.  A referral 


process had recently been launched on the intranet.  A discussion took place on 


whether the minutes of the Ethics Committee should be presented at Corporate 


Governance Group. 


 


ACTION:  discuss with T/DCC Liane James how the Code of Ethics and the Ethics 


Committee can feed in to the Corporate Governance Group. 


 


f) COG 


No significant matters. 


 


g) External Issues 


No significant matters. 


 


h) Financial Matters 


None in terms of governance.  The CFO referred to an occasion which required 


working outside the Corporate Governance Framework.  This was reported at Policing 


Board.  Need to ensure that the Framework is flexible and fit for purpose at the review 


process. 


 


i) Joint Audit Committee 


MM highlighted points raised for consideration at the last JAC meeting in relation to  


business being discussed within the appropriate cycles, i.e. deferring the June meeting 


until July in order to look at the accounts after they had been submitted to Wales 


Audit Office; the Accounting Policies to be looked at in March rather than in June.  


Also inviting individuals to JAC meetings in order to encourage timely management 


responses. 


 


j) Complaints 


Reference was made to HMIC’c comments on the timeliness of complaints.  An 


Internal Audit report focussed on Public Service Bureau and processes.  The CoS 


referred to an impending review of the Public Service Bureau. 


 


 


8. Internal Audit Plan – 2016/17 
 


7 Internal Audit reports have been issued since the last meeting – 5 awarded reasonable 


assurance, 1 substantial assurance and 1 limited assurance.  In terms of Governance the 


audit of complaints highlighted a weakness on the impact on the public through timeliness in 


communication and service delivery. 


 


No changes in the Audit Programme are proposed to date.  However, a meeting with TIAA 


next week may indicate a change to the audit of Commissioners Fund. 


 


 


 


9. Monitoring of ongoing tasks 
 


Force Risk Management arrangements had been completed.   


Work was ongoing to embed the OPCC Risk arrangements. 


Public First Programme in Learning the Lessons had been completed. 


Work on the Code of Ethics Leadership and Culture was progressing well. 


Work on Governance in Collaboration and Partnerships was in progress. 
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10.  Any other business 


None. 


 
 


 


11.  Date of next meeting 


The next meeting will be held on 15th November 2016 at 2pm. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


ACTIONS 


 


AGREED ACTIONS 


  


OUTSTANDING ACTION:- It was agreed that when the findings have been 


published on ‘Hillsborough’, these will be examined from an operational 


perspective and fed through the Code of Ethics committee to establish whether 


there can be any lessons learned.  T/DCC Liane James to provide an update on 


the findings on ‘Hillsborough’. 


 


 


 


T/DCC 


Liane 


James 


 


 


OUTSTANDING ACTION:  In relation to Complaints and governance 


arrangements, Helen Morgan-Howard to report back to T/DCC Liane James on 


the appropriateness of raising related party declarations during the personal 


development review process. 
 


 


 


Helen 


Morgan-


Howard 


Based on the New Corporate Governance Framework a decision was required 


on the extent on which the guidelines are followed. 


ACTION:  Set up a Task and Finish Group to consider requirements and revised 


matrix. 


 


DoF & CFO 


 


 


 


A decision as to whether the minutes of the Ethics Committee are to be 


presented to the Corporate Governance Group. 


ACTION:  to discuss with T/DCC Liane James how the code of Ethics and the 


Ethics Committee can feed in to the Corporate Governance Group 


DoF 
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